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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

OVERVIEW

During the year ended March 31st, 2000 (EY00), Marico achieved a turnover of Rs. 6483 million (USD 148.5 million) frem
Sales and Services, representing a growth of 17.6% over the previous year (FY99). Despite difficult market conditions and
intensified competition, top-line growth remaimed healthy.

FY00 saw a significant step-up in the Advertising and Sales Promotion {ASP) suppert-extended to new products launched,
as well as to the existing product range. Investments in ASP during FY00 were about Rs. 587 million {USD 3.4 million) as
compared to Rs. 390 million (USD 8.9 million} in FY99. In tc;ms of a proportion to Sales & Services, ASP increased to 9.1%
in FY0O as against 7.1% in FY99. This significantly higher level of brand spend had an impact on FY00 profitability.

FY0) witnessed a steep decline in the prices of most edible oils, as a consequence of which all major players, including
Marico, reduced retail prices of refined edible oils. This resulted in some crosion of margins for the Compan)".

Profit before Tax and exceptional item during FY00 at Rs. 426 million (USD 9.7 million}, showed a de-growth of 3.3 %
over FY90,

During December '99, workmen at the Company's Sewree plant availed of a Voluntary Retirement Scheie {VRS) bffered
by the Company and were paid an aggregate amount of Rs. 18 rﬁiilion (USD 0.4 million). As 2 prudent accounting policy, the

entire amount has been charged off to revenue during the year and shown as an exceptional item in the financial results.

Consequent to Marico adopting the Accounting Standard AS2 (made mandatory by the Institute of Chartered Accountants

of India with effect from Aprif '99), necessary changes have been made in the method of valuation of its inventory, as a resuls
of which, inventory as on March 31st, 2000 and profits for FY00 are higher by Rs. 18 million (USD 0.2 miltion).
Dividend for the year comprised two interim dividends aggregating 90% (Rs. 9.00 per share of Rs. 1,60). This translates

into a dividend payout of 40.5% (inclusive of dividend tax) as compared to 38.5% in FY99.




BrRAND REVIEW

PARACHUTE
Marico's top-line growth during FY00 was powered by a very healthy performance by its flagship brand Parachute.
A strong volume growth of over 14% as compared to FY99 ensured that the brand maintained its dominating position

in the branded cocenut oils market. In order 1o build upon its existing franchise, the Company increased advertising

support to the brand and ran sales promotion schemes. To provide greater value to consumers, it also introduced a
new All Seasons' pack, which has made dispensation more convenient.

Notwithstanding increased competition, Parachute's market share during the 12-month period ended March '00, was
maintained ar 53%,

Raw material (copra) prices for Parachute ruled high through most of FY00. Average prices during Parschine Parkes Save trkan)
the year were higher than those during the previous year by about 18% . Retail prices of Parachute

kg

.
were increased in stages during the year, which helped counter the higher raw material cost. s

Increased sales realizations together with velume growth, resulted in the brand achieving a

value growth of about 30% during the year ended March '00, over the previous year.

OIL OF MALABAR

In December '99, Marico acquired the coconut oil brand Oif Of Malabar and all associated business and commercial rights
from West Coast India Ltd. (WCIL). Oil Of Malabar, with-an All India market share of about 3% had clocked a turnover of
gver Rs. 120 million {USD 2.8 million) during 1998-99. On an Al India basis, it reaches about 160,000 outlets including about
100,000 rural cutlets.

This acquisition would help in increasing Marico's franchisc in the pure coconut oil market. It also equips the Company

with z second brand with which to combat low priced competition and thus take some pressure off Parachute.

PArRaACHUTE LITE
The performance of Parachute Lite was moderate. The brand recorded a volume growth of over 6% over the
previous year. Its share in the value added coconut oils market during the 12 months ended March 00, was

maintained at 7%. Parachute Lite Jasmine, which was carlier test launched in the East, was rolled out in some

markets in the North and the West,




PARACHUTE DANDRUFF SOLUTION
During the fourth quarter of FY00, the Company launched Parachute Dandruff Solution coconut hair oil, This is for
4 the first time that a coconut hair oil with a dandruff fighting property has been introduced. It combines the goodness

of coconut oil with special anti-dandruff agents such as - Neem, Lemon and Tea Tree Oil. The recommended

application instruction of leaving the oil on overnight makes it more effective than ordinary anti-dandruff shampoos.
Thus, apart from coconur nourishment, Parachute Dandruff Solution also provides a more distinct consumer benefit. The

launch was supported by a strong advertisement campaign. The initial response to the launch has met expectations,

MaRrico’s HAIR & CARE
During the year ended March '00, Marico's Hair & Care grew by 7% in value terms while volumes declined

* 1 marginally. In the 12-month period ended March '00, its market share showed a small decline to about 23% of the

=1 Non-Sticky Hair Oils market,

REVIVE
Revive continues its dominance of the cold water fabric starch category. During the year ended March '00, however, its

volumes remained flat.

MEDIKER
During the first quarter of FY00, Marico acquired from Practer & Gamble (P&G), the Anti-Lice Treatment business
under the Brand Mediker with an annual turnover of about Rs. 80 million (USD 1.8 millien). The Company

1 commenced sales of Mediker towards the end of July '99. Focus provided by Marico resulted in an immediate spurt in

%

2 the sales of the brand. During the nine months or so of operations until March '00, Mediker sales exceeded the annual

turnover of about Rs. 80 mitlion (USD 1.8 million) achieved during the entire year FY99,

SAFFOLA & SWEEKAR
O1Ls

Saffola recovered some of the franchise lost last year. The Saffola safflower and corn oil blead, which
brings a healthy oil to consumers at a price point between refined safflower oil and refined sunflower oil,

1 was extended to some of the markets of South and East India during the second quarter of FY00. Saffola

/ volumes (Refined Safflower Ol and Refined Safflower + Corn blead) grew during FY00 by over 14% over




FY99, The value growth was lower at about 3%, partly on account of the blend being consciously priced lower.
Last ycar Sweekar had achieved an extraordinary volume growth of 45%. On the back of this strong performance in the

previous year, the brand has shown a volume de-growth of about 19%. Part of this decline is on account of the fact that

the Company, as part of & portfolio rationalisation initiative, decided to discontinue some of the lower margin
! variants of Sweekar it had launched in the last two years,

Most edible oils experienced a steep decline in iarices during FY00. This resulted in most players lowering their
retail prices. Together with the de-growth in volume therefore, Sweekar showed a value decline of 35% over the previous year.

Marico's share in the Refined Oil in Consumer Packs {ROCP) market during the 12-month period ended March 00

was about 14%.

VALUE ADDED SALT

Last year two vaciants of Saffola salt had been rolled out. While Saffola Mineral Enriched Salt (MES)
continues to be available in select towns, Saffola Healthy Heart Salt (HIIS) has been rolled out nationally. The

response is in line with expectations. Being premium priced, Saffola Salts are expected to notch up a small share

of the market in the medium term.

SIL
The Sil range of processed foods was re-staged last year, with new pack designs and a new formulation of jams
with glucose, This has evoked a gaod consumer response. During the year ended March '00, the brand recorded a

turnover growth of about 29% compared to the previous year. Sil's market share in the jams category during the

12-month period ended March ‘00 increased to over 12%, from about 10% in the previous year.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS

Exports grew by 23 % over the previous year. Export sales now stand at Rs.200 million
Export Sales (Rs. IMiion})

5.0

(USD 4.6 million), comprising largely exports to the Middle East and Bangladesh.
200

In the medium term, the Company plans to explore opportunities in the SAARC

region. In order to optimally tap the potential offered by Bangladesh, Marico set up

its first wholly owned subsidiary in Bangladesh. Marico Bangladesh, Led. (MBL) 98 0% 9300

commenced local operations during the year. The Company has also identified Srilanka as a market with potential,

v




MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS

Tor RAMEN
Top Ramen instant noodles which Marico markets and diseributes for Indo Nissin Foods Lid., continues to do well. Tap
Ramen Curry Noodles, a new variant, was launched during the year. During the 12-month period ended March ‘00, T'op

Ramen's share in the instant noodle market was 21% as compared to about 19% in the previous year.

P&G

An agreement was put into effect in July '99, with Procter & Gamble Home Products Ltd. and Procter & Gamble Hygicne
and Health Care Ltd. (P&G} to distribute their brands Clearasil, Ultra Clearasil, Pampers, Old Spice, Arilcl detergent bar and
Camay in India. During the nine month period from July '99 to March '00 that Marico distributed these brands, they clocked
a turnover of Rs. 444 mitlion (USD 10.2 million). This is being accounted as Marico's turnover, on which it carns a fee to cover
expenses and profit expectations.

Leveraging Marico's distribution network through these alliances has, apart from providing benefits such as access
to certain food and chemist outlets and an increased throughput, also helped in adding a distinct income stream for

the Company.

OPERATIONS
% to Sales & Services
FYO0 FY99
Raw Matcrial 57.8 57.6
" Packing Material 9.3 9.9
Advertising & Sales Promotion 9.1 7.1
Personnel 3.3 -3.2
. Other Expenses ) 13.6 13.9
O-pcrating Costs : 93.4 : 91.7
Operating Margins (PBIT) 69 8.3

(Excludes Other Income & Exceptional item)

Raw material prices showed varied trends. While there was a steep decline in sunflower oil prices, copra prices remained




high for most of the year. However, retail prices of Parachute were increased to counter the raw material price increase. The
inclusion of P&G products in finished goods purchased has also increased the component of raw material in the cost structure.
Overall, raw material as a proportion ofsal__és and services was the same as in the previous year. While all other costs were also
kept under control, a sharp increase in advertising and sales promotion investment to 9.1% of sales & services in FY00 from

7.1% in FY99, resulted in the operating margin declining to 6.9% of sales & services in FY00 from 8.3% in FY95.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Net cash flow from continuing operations nearl}; doubled to Rs. 443 million from Rs. 223 million in FY99. During the year,
paid up equity share capital remained at Rs. 145 million (USD 3.3 million). Reserves and surplus increased by Rs, 212 million
(USD 4.9 million) to Rs. 1277 million (USD 29.3 million}. Against 2 net worth of Rs. 1422 million (USD 32.6 million), the
Company had no secured debt and an unsecured debt of Rs. 33 million (USD 0.8 million) on March 31st, 2000. The unsecured
debt comprises Rs. 3 million (USD 0.1 million) fixed deposits carrying a coupon of 15% per anﬁum and an interest free
deferred sales tax loan of Rs. 30 million (USD 0.7 million). With a debt to equity ratio of 0.02:1, the Company is welf placed
in its capacity to raise deht. The Company continues to have access to various sources of funds at attractive rates based on its
strong financial position, including undrawn lines of fund based credit from its consortium of banks totalling Rs. 350 million
Met Working Capital 15 number of Days' S2es

{USD 8.0 million). ICRA reaffirmed Marico's short-term commercial paper rating at Al--, 4

indicating highest safety and its MAA+ rating for medium term debt. 2

For the increase in turnover during the period, there was a less than propertionate increase g

in Net Working Capital. Average Net Working Capitzl thus reduced to 29 days of Sales &
Services during FY00 from 33 days in FY99.

During the year there was a significant increase in the investments in Fixed Capital. Gross Fixed Assets as on March 31st,
2000 were higher than on March 3Ist, 1999 by Rs. 333 million (USD 7.6 million). The major investments were in the
acquisitions of the brands Mediker and Oil Of Malabar and balancing equipment at the Cempany's Jalgaon factory. During
the last quarter of FY00, the Company acquired the processed foods manufacturing facility of Kanmoar Foods Lid., located
at Saswad, for a considcratien of Rs. 17 million (USD 0.4 million), based on valuation reports of Deloitte Haskins & Sells.

Return On average Capital Employed (ROCE) for the year has declined to 32.7% from 41.5% in the previous year, largely
because of « higher gross block. Economic Value Added {(EVA) during the period was Rs. 233 million {USD 5.3 million) as
compared to Rs. 230 million (USD 5.3 millior) in the previous year.

During June 1999, the Boards of Directors of Marico and The Bomb.ay Oil Industries Limited {BOIL) had reached an

understanding in terms of which the brands Parachute and Saffola would be assigned to Marico. The assignmeat will take

|



cffect by June 30th, 2000. Marico is expected to discharge the full payment of Rs. 300 million (USD 6.9 miltion) during the
quarter April - June 2000. The outgo on account of payment of royalty to BOIL would stop upon payment of the

consideration. This addition of Rs. 300 million (USD 6.9 million) to the Company's gross black, will have an impact on ROCE

and EVA.
ECcONOMIC VALUE ADDED ANALYSIS
Rs. in Million -
Year Ended March 31st 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
a) Average Capital Employed 704 1023 1627 1152 1345
b) Average Debt/ 44.4 28.7 13.5 5.0 2.1
Total Capital (%)
¢} Beta Variant 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.68 0.31
d} Risk Free Debt (%) 12.9 1.3 10.6 9.5 10.1
{Average of 364 days
Treasury bill yields)
e} Market Premium (%) 10.0 10.0 10.0 1.0 10.0
B Cost of Equity (%) 204 18.8 17.5 16.3 13.2
d+ (cxe)
g} Cost of Debt {Post Tax)(%) 10.0 10.0 9.4 8.5 7.1
h) Weighted Average Cost 15.8 16.2 16.4 15.9 131
of Capital (%)
i) Profit After Tax 183 201 300 375 375
(excl. extraordinary item)
i) Add: Interest Post Tax 52 7 52 57 38 34
k) Net Operating Profit 236 253 357 413 109
After Tax
1) -Less : Cost of Capital it 166 169 183 176
m) Economic Value Added 125 86 188 230 233
n) EVA % to Capital Employed t7.8 8.4 18.3 20.0 17.3

PoOrRTFOLIO RATIONALISATION

Over the last two years or so, Marico had test marketed / launched over a dozen new products. These have met with varying
degrees of success in the market place. There has also been Jearning, which is being acted upon. In order to focus ofganizational
energies and resources on a vital few, the product portfolio was rationalised. The choice of brands to focus on is based on their

strategic importance and financial returns, Consequently, the Company withdrew some of the low margin variants of Sweekar




and Parachute Nutrisheen. It has also decided not to take Saffola Atta, which was being test launched in Delhi, national. Apart
from ensuring that all the brands reccive adequate organizational share of mind, this product rationalisation is also aimed at

conserving Marico's strategic funding for fighting competition and increased investments in select brands,

A DECADE OF GROWTH
1n its decade of existence, Marico has grown from a2 Company with three brands Parachute, Saffola and Sweekar to one with
a basket of eight brands plus several brand extensions. Apart from edible oils, the Company now has a presence in the hair care,
processed foods and niche fabric care sectors. Marico started its intcrnational business in 1991, and now has an export turnover
of Rs. 200 million {(USD 4.6 million) comprising only branded products. Having discontinued operations in one of the two
plants it had then, Marico today carries out manufacturing at five factories, which are strategically located, complemented by a
aumber of sub-contract manufacturers, including one in Bangladesh. Marico has established for itself a strong distribution
network with 28 C&FAs servicing about 3400 distributors and stockists, estimated to reach about 1.4 mitlion retail outlets across
. the country. It has leveraged this distribution strength by entering into marketing and distribution alliances.
Maricé‘s turnover during the past decade has grown from Rs. 1 billion to Rs. 6.4 billion, reflecting a compound growth rate

of 22%. Profit before tax has grown at a compounded rate of 28% from Rs. 45 million to Rs. 426 million.

QUTOOK FOR THE NEAR FUTURE
During FY00, Marico had expericnced de-growth in Profits hefore Tax in the first two quarters as compared to the
corresponding quarters in the previous year. With concerted management action, this was reversed and both quariers in the

sccond half recorded a growth in profit over the corresponding period in the previous year,

PBT (before AS2 & Exceptional item) - growth over
corresponding quarter in the previous year

15.0% ..
7.5% —

0.0% - e
_7.59% .. Q1 Qu e Qm oW

15.0% - —
-22.5% -

-30.0% -

While this recovery is heartening, it must be kept in mind that the intensity of competition in the environment continues

to rise. In this ambience, Marico would aim at achieving a healthy growth through brand building, retail outlet expansion

b7l
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and acquisitions. ft would also target continuing its dominance of the coconut oil market, In order to create long-term value,
the Company plans to continue investments in strengthening existing brands and consotidating upon new introductions. That

alone would ensure sustained value building for Marico stakeholders.

NoTES
1. Market share information is based on ORG-Urban Retail data,

2. Exchange rate assumed for conversion of INR figures is the rate prevailing on March 31,2000 viz, USD1 = Rs. 43.66




FinaANcCciAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Amounts in Rs. Million)

Year ended March 31st 1991 1992 1993 1994 {995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
Sales & Services 1058 1595 2103 2364 2833 3486 4097 4900 5512 6483
Profit before Interest & Tax 70 109 204 2067 252 364 353 424 -477 458
Opcr:‘zting Profit before Tax 45 62 148 149 191 268 277 365 40 426
Extraordinary/Exceptional item - - - - - 29 14 - - (18)
Profit before Tax 45 62 148 148 191 297 291 365 440 408
Profit after Tax 24 29 62 64 18 212 215 300 375 357
Economic Value Added 58 48 ] 125 87 188 230 233
Net Fixed Assets 40 68 110 167 270 404 453 605 694 952
Investments - - - 7 22 23 8 - - 9
Net Current Assets 40 91 145 159 230 634 524 463 540 494
‘Total Capital Employed 30 159 255 333 - 522 1061 985 1068 1235 1455
Share Capital 9 9 45 45 45 145 145 145 145 145
Reserves & Surplus 24 53 82 140 252 SIS 653 834 1065 1277
Net Worth 33 62 - 127 85 297 . 660 798 979 1210 1422
Borrowed funds 47 97 1;28 48 225 401 187 89 25 33
Total Funds Employed 80 159 255 333 522 1064 985 1068 1235 1455
Profit before Tax to Turnover % 4.3 39 7.0 6.3 6.7 7.7 6.7 74 80 63
Profit after Tax to Turnover % 2.3 1.8 2.9 2.7 4.2 52 4.9 6.1 6.8 5.5
Return on Net Worth % 727 6L 65.6 41.0 49.0 443 295 338 343 271
(PAT / Average Net Worth)

Return on Capital Employed % 873 91.2 986 704 589 460 345 413 415 327
{PBIT/Average Total Capital Employed}

Net Cash Flow from Operations )

per share ! Rs. 17.0 1.8 197 287 154 306
Earnings Per Share Rs. 27.1 317 13.8 141 263 126 13.9 207 259 246
Economic Value Added per share Rs. 129 107 0.0 8.6 60 130 153 161
Dividend per share Rs. - - 20 12 15 25 s50.. 75 40 9.0
Debt / Equity Times 1.42 1.56 101 080 076 061 023 009 002 002
Book Value per share Rs. 367 689 282 411 660 455 550 675 834 981
Sales to Average Times 13.2 10.6 83 7.1 5.4 3.3 4.2 1.6 1.8 4.8
Capital Employed

Sales to Average Times 40.8 24.4 17.8 156 146 8.1 7.1 9.9 116 125

Net Working Capital




MAaRrRiCcO’s BusiNgss DIRECTION; 2010

We commit ourselves to improving the quality of people’s lives, in as many
parts of the world, through fast moving branded consumer goods - primarily in
Nature Ca;-c and Health Care.

In the Nature Care business: we will offer brands that enhance the appeal and
nourishment of hair and skin through distinetive products, fargely based on the
goadness of coconut and other natural substances.

In the Health Care business: we would make available a variety of branded
products needed for healthy living; drawn from agriculture and offered both in
natural and processed forms.

In the International business: we would develop a franchise for our brands, in
parts of the world beyond the sub continent.

We will aim to be a leader in each of the businesses; by heighténed l'se‘h'sitivity
to consumer nceds, sctting new standards in the delivery and quality of products
and through processes of continuous learning and improvement.

We will share our prosperity among members, sharcholders and associates
who contribute in improving Marico’s Equity and Market Value, We will acquire

the stature of a friendly corporate eitizen, contributing to the betterment of

neighbourhood communitics where we are significantly present,

i




MARICO'S VALUES

Our values are preferred practices that will be employed in pursuit of

our Business Direction, captured in the acronym COME WIN.

On the one hand, it is an invitation to excel.

On the other, it sums up the philosophy that will guide our success.

CONSUMERS

For they are the reason we exist.

MEMBERSHIP

For a sense of ownership empowers us.

EXCELLENCE

For it unleashes our potential.

WEALTH 5

For on it hinges our growth.

INNOVATION

For it gives wings to ideas,

CONSUMERS

The wealth of the company is created by the patronage of consumers, The primary focus of our efforts will be to
understand what adds greatest value to them. We will vaderstand and respond to changing needs and desires of the
consumer; and transfate these inte marketable preducts and an ever-expanding base of loyal consumers, with speed and 2

quality of response that surpasses the competition.

MEMBERSHIP
Wholesome membership is when a person brings his or her entire being inte the organisation. We will allow space for

diversity and encourage genuine expression of feelings, opinions and viewpoints. Equally important is the ability to listen

without bias and alter one's view based on soundness. Inter-personal transactions will be characterised by trust, empathy,
. faith, fairness and respect. Membership gives each member a role in articulating 2nd shaping the destiny of the organisation .

which in turn builds commitment and ownership. We will encourage teamwork and a shared approach to results as it




promotes synergy, removes communication barriers and improves the overall quality of decisions and performance. Public
acknowledgement creates recognition and also spurs others. We will spontanecously recognise and appreciate both individuals

and teams for their contributions reflected in rising standards of performance,

EXCELLENCE
We will focus on policies and practices where people produce consistently superior performance and where people are
encouraged to discover their untapped potential, Competent members will be careered through increased and varied role

responsibilities. They will be attractively compensated based on persanal and collective accomplishment.

WEALTH
All our efforts must culminate in the creation of wealth, We will do so by continuously adding value in everything we do
through 2 variety of methods. We will use resources productively, eliminate waste, reduce cycle times and costs and enhance

the consumer base,

INNOVATION

The future of oiir organisation rests on our willingness to experiment,-push in new and untested directions, think in
uncommon ways and take calculated risks. Continuous improvement should be a part of everyday work. We must also
innovate to achieve dramatic results. Members will be encouraged to experiment and take calculated risks where necessary.
We acknowledge that failure is inherent in any new initiative. We will commit resources for experimentation and invest in

processes for reviewing and sharing of learning.




MARICO’S PRESENCE IN INDIA

ZIRAKPUR

AHMEDABAD
@

@ INDORE

CALCUTTA

A JALGAON o
o NAGPUR

MUMBAI

VASHI
BHIWANDI
SASWAD

HYDERABAD
a9

YIAYAWADA &

GOA

* HEAD OFFICE
A FACTORIES (5)
REGIONAL OFFICES (4)
2 DEPOTS {28) Eh
% REDISTRIBUTION CENTRES (1)

COCHIN

KANJIKODE -




Board of Directors

Top Management Team

Company Secretary

& Legal Manager

Bankers

Auditors

Solicitors

Registered Office

Factories

MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Harsh Charandas Mariwala, Chairman & Managing Director

Kishore Vallabhdas Mariwala
Bipin Ratilal Shah
Cyril Suresh Shroff

Harsh Mariwala, Chairman & Managing Director
Pranab Datta, Chief Executive Officer-Health Care
Shreekant Gupte, Chief Executive Officer-Nature Care
Pradeep Mansukhani, Chief Executive Officer-Sales
Rakesh Pandey, Chief Human Resources Officer

Milind Sarwate, Chief Financial Officer

Dev Bajpai

Allahabad Bank
ANY, Grindlays Bank
Bank of Baroda
Citibank N.A.

State Bank of Saurashera

RSM & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Amarchand & Mangaldas & Suresh A, Shroff & Co.

Rang Sharda, Krishnachandra Marg, Bandra Reclamation,

Bandra {(West), Mumbai - 400 050.

‘P’ Plot, Fosberry Road, Sewree, Mumbai - 404 033,
E-10, M.I.E>.C. Area, Jalgaon - 425 003,

Industrial Development Area, Kanjikode, Palakkad - 678 621.
Plot No.70/0 & 72/1, Khandepar Village, Ponda, Gaa - 403 401,
Village Khalad, Saswad-412 301, Purandar Taluka, Puge.




To the Members

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Tiwelfth Annual Report together with audited accounts of your

Cempany for the year ended March 31, 2000 (‘the year under review'-or ‘the year’).

FiNaANCIAL RESULTS
{Indian Rupees Million)
Year Ended March 31,

2000 1999
Sales and Other Income 6495.5 5530.8
_Profit before Tax and Exceptional item 425.6 440.3
Exceptional item (Voluntary Retirement Compensation) 17.8 -
Profit before Tax 407.8 440.3
Provision for Tax 50.5 65.2
Profit after Tax 357.3 375.1
Add : Surplus brought forward 3524 176.6
Profit available for Appropriation 709.7 551.7
Appropriation :
Interim dividend 130.5 50.8
Final dividend (proposed) - 79.7
130.5 1305
Tax on dividend 14.4 13.8
144.9 144.3
Transfer to General Reserve 71.0 55.0
Surplus carried forward 493.8 352.4
709.7 551.7

Sartkes TvuvrRNOVER & ProFITABILITY

[mal

In the face of difficuit market conditions and increased competition, your Company achieved a turnover of Rs.

6483.4 million from Sales and Services during the year - a growth of 17.6% aver the previous year.

Profit before Tax and Exceptional item during the year at Rs. 425.6 million showed a de-prowth of 3.3 % over the

previous year. Margins were impacted mainly on account of increased spends on Advertising and Sales Promotion

towards brand building and an adverse environment in the refined edible oil business which witnessed a rapidly

declining oil price table. Profit after Tax {PAT) was also lower at'Rs. 357.3 million as compared to Rs, 375.1 million in

the previous year.

s
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During December 1999, workmen at your Company’s Sewrée plant availed of a Voluntary Retirement
Scheme offered by your Company and were paid an aggregate amount of Rs. 17.8 million. As a prudent
accounting policy, the entire amount has been charged off to revenue during the year and shown as an exceptional

item.

DivipeEND

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of your Company declared two interim dividends, a first
interim of Rs. 3.50 per share and a second interim of Rs. 5.50 per share, aggregating Rs. 9.00 per share. The Board does

not propose any final dividend. The total dividend of Rs. 9.00 per share is thus the same as that in the previous year.

Your Company has alse paid tax on dividend of Rs. 14.4 million. The total dividend outflow represents a payout of

40.5% of the distributable PAT as against 38.5% in the previous year.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS
Exports grew by 23 % over the previous year. Export sales now stand at Rs.200 million.

In order to optimally tap the potential offered by Bangladesh, your Company set up its first whoily
owned subsidiary in Bangladesh - Marico Bangladesh Ltd. (MBL) which commenced local operations during the

ycar.

ALLIANCES AND ACQUISITIONS

During December 1999, yousr Company acquired “Oil of Malabar”, a coconut oil brand from West. Coast India

Ltd. Fhis acquisition would help your Company increase its franchise in the coconut oil market.

Earlicr during June 1999, your Company had acquired from Procter & Gamble, the Anti-Lice Treatment business
under the Brand Mediker. The transition has been handled smoothly. During the nine menths or so of operations ]
during the year, Mediker sales exceeded the annual turnover of about Rs. 80 million achicved during the entire \

previous year.

During Fuly 1999, your Company puct into cffect, an agreement with Procter & Gamble Home Producrs Lid. and
Procter & Gamble Hygicnc & Health Care Lid. {P&G) to distribute their brands Clearasil, Ultra Clearasil, Pampers,
Old Spice, Ariel detergent bar and Camayp in Indiz. This is your Company’s second alliance with a teading FMCG
company. Your Company alrcady has a marketing and distribution alliance with Indo Nissin Foods Ltd. Both these

partnerships are functioning satisfactorily.




During June 1999, vour Company reached an understanding with The Bombay Oil Industries Led. (BOIL) in
terms of which the brands “Parachute™ and “Saffola™ would be assigned to vour Company on a payment of Rs. 300
million. This assignment will take effect by June 30, 2000. On completion of the assignment, your Company will not
be required to pay any rovalty 1o BOIL.

During March 2000, vour Company acquired from Kanmoor Foods Led. its facilities at Saswad (for manufacture

of Jams, sauces and other fruit and vegetable products) at a consideration of Rs. 16.5 million.

PusrLic DEerosITS
Ar the end of the current vear, public deposits with vour Company aggregated Rs. 2.611 million. These do not
include six deposits aggregating Rs. 60,000 which were unclaimed as on March 31, 2000, of which 2 deposits amouniing

Catal

to Rs. 10,000 have since been repaid.

DerrositToRrRY SYSTEM

During the previcus yvear vour Company’s shares were made available for dematerialisation through the National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). Yeur Company also tied up with Central Depasitory Services {India) Limited
(CDSL) for dematerialisation of its shares. As of March 31, 2000, 34.9% of the shares in vour Company have been

dematerialised.

ReEsearcH & DeveroprpMENT (R & D)

Your Company continues to focus on R&D efforts with a strong belief that R&D witl provide many product
innovations and differentiation. The recentiy launched Parachute Dandrutt Seluton Coconut Hair Ol 15 one such
product innovation. During the vear vour Company also filed for seven product and process patents.

Your Company spent Rs. 1.5 million on capital expenditure as against Rs. 1.9 million during the previous vear.

Revenue expenditure was Rs. 29,5 million as against Rs. 24,1 million in the previous year.

InForsMarTionNn TeEcHNoroecy (IT)

During the vear, vour Campany selected SAP-R / 3 version 4+.0B as the Enterprisc Resource Planning {ERP)
solution and SAP-APO (Advanced Planning & Optimization) as the Supply Chain Management (SCM) solurtion. The
Board believes that these solutions will meet the current and emerging Information Systems needs of your Company

over the next few vears and create value through the business benetits that are expected to acerue through reduction in

costs as also in cycle / process time. The implementation of both these solutions is proposed to be carried out over the




next few months with the help of expert implementation partners. With these initiatives, your Company aims to be

amongst the first few companies in India to implement an integrated suite of both ERP and SCM solutions.

Your Company’s business systems, software, hardware, machines, equipment, process control and embedded systems

rolled over to the vear 2000 smoothly and have continued to function normally.

AccouNrTs

The accompanying Financial Statements of your Company have been prepared on a going cencern basis and meet

the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Your Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies, which have been applied consistently. Reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates have been made so as to ensure that the accounts give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of your Coempany as at March 31, 2000 and the profits of your Company for the vear ended on that date.

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of appropriate accounting records in accerdance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1936 (‘the Act’) for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

The observations of the Auditors in their Report to the Members have been adequately dealt with in the relevant

Notes to the Accounts, Henee no additional explanation is considered necessary.

DirRECTORS

The Board regrets to inform that Mr. Charandas V. Mariwala, Chairman of vour Comgpany, passed away on April
2, 2000. The Board wishes to place on record the valuable services rendered by Mr. Charandas V. Mariwala in his
capacity as the founder Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors.

‘.\Ir. Cyril Shroff and Mr. Harsh C. Mariwala retire by rotation and. being eligible, offer themselves for

re-appointment.

ADDITIONAL STATUTORY INFORMATION

Information uader Section 217(1) (e} of the Act read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report
of the Board of Directors) Rules, $988 is annexed and forms part of this Report. Information pursuant to Section
217{2A) of the Act read with the Companies (Particulars of Emplovees) Rules, 1975, as amended by the Companics

{Particulars of Employees) Amendment Rules, 1999 forms part of this Repore. Although in accordance with the provisions

i




of Section 219(1}(b)(iv) of the Act such information has been excluded from the Report and Accounts sent to the
Members, any member desirous of obtaining this information may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered

Office of the Company.
Marico Bangladesh Limited (MBL), your Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, was incorporated on September 6,
1999, The first accounting period of MBL is yet to be closed. Therefore no Report and Accounts referred to in Section

212 ( 1) of the Act have been annexed. However, the statement pursuant to Section 212(}) (e} of the Act has been

annexed to this report.

AUDITORS

RSM & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and have confirmed their

eligibility for re-appointment.

HuMmManN RESOURCES

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation of the co-operation and support received from all members

of the Marico organisation.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board acknowledges the support and assistance received from the Central Government, various State
Governments, Trade and Industry Associations, Bankers, Vendors, C&F Agenis, Distributors and other business

associates, and looks forward to continued support of all these partners in progress.

On hehalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Harsh C. Mariwala

Date: April 26, 2000 Chairman and Managing Director




Statement pursuant to Section 212 (1) (e) of the

Companies Act, 1956

I. Name of subsidiary MARICO BANGLADESH LIMITED

2. NMNumber of Shares held I,OOO,GGD

3. Capital - Holding Company’s

interest in equity 100.00%
4. Net Aggregate Profit or (Loss) Not Applicable sinee the First Accounting
for the year period is yet to be closed.

5. Net Aggregate Profit or (Loss) for the
previous financial years since becoming
subsidiary so far as it concerns the Not Applicable since the First_-Accounting
Members of the holding company not period is yet to be closed.
dealt with or provided for in the

accounts of the Holding Company.

6. Marerial changes, if any, between the

end of the financial year of the Not Applicable since the First Accounting
subsichary and that of the Holding period is yet to be closed.
Company.

Dated : April 26, 2000




Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of Energy, Research & Development expenditure and Foreign

Exchange earnings and outgo as required under Companies {Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Board of

Directors) rules, 1988.

A. Conservation of Ehergy

Your company optimised the running of dehumidifiers, cutters, expellers and compressor operations for its crushing

operations. Close monitoring of the steam fuel ratio through steam meter and CO2 meter improved boiler efficiency.

The details of total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit are given in Enclosure A

B. Research & Development
The details of Research & Development are given in Enclosure ‘B’

C. Foreign Exchange carnings and outgo:

The details of total foreign exchange used and earned are provided in Schedule ‘Q" to the Accounts.

EncrLrosurse ‘A’

Power & Fuel Consumption

1. Electricity
a. Purchased Units {Kwh)
Amount (Rs. mitlion)
b. Own Generation
i, Through Diesel Generation units (Kwh)
Amovnt (Rs. mitlion)
Average Rate {Rs./Unit)
it.  Through Steam Generator
2. Coal {(Used tor Boiler)
Quantity {M.T)}
Amount (Rs. million)
Average Rate (Re/Ton)

Furnace Oil

Lo

Quantity (KL)
Amount {Rs. million}

Average Rate (Rs/KL)

Year ended March 31,

2000

4473588

15,75

3543536

13.30

3.75

Nil

Nil

1747.96

17.55

10042.56

1969

1332231

13.14

2895864
9.84
3.6

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

1571.93
11.3%

7223.07




4,  Other Internal Generation

L.D.O/H.S.D.

Quantity (KL} 1339.27 190.09
Amount {Rs. million) 16,44 150
Average Rate (Rs./KL) . 12273.25 7890.11

Consumption Per unit of Production of Edible Qil

Unit
Electricity o Kwh 150.6 154.0
Coal MT Nil Nil
Furnace Oil KL 0.03 0.03
1.D.0/H.8.D. KL 0.03 0.00

Excrosuvre ‘B’
Research & Development

1. Specific areas in which R&D was carried out by the Company:

* Technology selection and absorption towards cenverting agricultural and natural ingredients into consumer

benefits and solutions.
*  Packaging development towards enhancing customer value in terms of convenience and product assurance

¢ Development of new products and new processes,

2. Benefuts derived as z result of above R&D:
°  New products were launched to address niche consumer benefits and solutions,

= Better cost structures were achieved through selcctions in packaging materials, application of appropriate

technologies, and process optimization.

Your Company continues to seek new consumer needs and solutions through its R&D efforts.




&

3. Expenditure on R & D

Rs. million

a) Capital 1.51
b} 'Recurring | 29.49
Total 31.00

¢) Total R & D expenditure as 2 percentage to Sales & Services 0.47%

On behalfl of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai Harsh C. Mariwala

Date: April 26, 2000 Chairman and Managing Director
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To,

The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED as at 31st March, 2000

and the annexed Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and report that :

1.  As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 1988, issued by the Company

Law Board in terms of Section 227 (4A} of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks of the

books and records as we considered necessary and appropriate and according to the information and explanations

given to us during the course of the audit, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 above, we report that :

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

a.
necessary for the purposes of our audiy;
b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as appears
from our examination of those books ;
c. the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;
d. in our opinien, the Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet comply with the accounting standards referred
to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;
¢ in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view;
i.  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31s¢ March, 2000 and
ii. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date.
for RSM & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place : Mumbai NATRA] RAMERISHNA
Dated « Apnil 26, 2000 Partner

2
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(Referred to in Paragraph (1) of our report

of even date)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and sitvation
of fixed assets. The fixed assets are physically verified by the management in a phased manner. No material
discrepancies were noticed in case of assets verified.

None of the fixed assets has been revalued during the year,

The stocks of finished goods, raw materials, stores and spares have been physically verified during the year by the

amanagement at reasonable intervals. Confirmations have been obtained in respect of materials lying with third

parties.

The procedures for physical verification of stocks followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

No material discrepancies have been noticedv on physical verification of stocks as compared to the book records.
In our opinion and on the basis of our examination, the valuation of stocks is fair and proper in accordance with
the normally accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis as in the preceding year, except as stated in
note 3 to Schedule ‘R,

The Company has taken unsecured loans from a company listed in the Register maintained under Section 361 of
the Companies Act, 1956. The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the loan were not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. In terms of sub-section {6) of Section 370 of the Companies Act, 1956,
provisions of the section are not applicable to a company on or after 31" October, 1998.

The Company had given unsecured loans to a company listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956. The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the loan were not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the interest of the Company. In terms of sub-section (6) of Sectian 370 of the Companies Act, 1956,
provisions of the section are not applicable to a company on or after 31" October, 1998.

Loans or advances in the nature of loans given are being repaid as stipulated, together with interest, wherever
applicable.

There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of stores, raw materials including compeonents, plant and machinery, equipment and
other assets and for the sale of goods.

In respect of the transactions of purchases of goeds and materials in pursuance of contracts or arrangements

entered in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and aggregating during the year




12.

13.

14,

16.

17.

18,

19.

20.

21

ta Rs. 50,000/~ or more in respect of each party, we were informed that alternate acceptable source of supply did
not exist and therefore, no comparison of prices was possible. There werg-no transactions of sale of goods,

materials and services entered in the said register,

The Company has a regular procedure for the determination of unserviceable or damaged stores, raw
materials, finished goods and materials dealt in and provision for loss, wherever necessary, has been made in the
aceounts.

The Company has complied with the Provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies
(Acceétancc of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable records for the sale and disposal of realisable by-

products. The Company has no significant realisable scrap.

- The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under Section 209(1)(d) of the

Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has regularly deposited Provident Fund dues and Employees’ State Insurance dues with the

appropriate authorities, There were no arrears at the year end.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, custom duty and excise
duty which have remained outstanding at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, other than those payable under contractual obligations

or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning of clause (o) of sub-section (1) of Section 3 of

the Sick Industrial Companies {Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

I respect of services rendered, the nature of service is such that it does not involve consumption of maiterials and

hence it is not considered necessary to have a system of allocation of man-hours utilised to the relative jobs.

for RSM & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ RAMKRISFINA

Date . April 26, 2000 Partner




SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS
Capital
Reserves and sueplus

LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans
Unsecured loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

FIXED ASSETS
Gross block
Less : Depreciation

Net block
Capital work-in-progress

INVESTMENTS

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Inventories
Sundry debtors
Cash and bank balances

Loans and advances

Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Fiabilities
Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Notes to the Accounts

As per our attached report of ¢ven date

FOR RSM & Co.
Chartered Accountants

NATRA] RAMEKRISHNA DEV BAJPAL

Partner Company Sccretary
and Legal Manager

Place Mumbai

Pated :  Aprii 26, 2000

As at March 31,

SCHEDULE 2000
Rs. million

1999

Rs. million

145.009

A 145.000
B 1,277.299 1,064.861
1,422.299 1,209.861
C _ —
D 32.839 24,982
32.839 24.982
1,455.138 1,234.843

E
1,182.483 857.302
251.125 176.251
931.358 681.051
20.508 13.040. .

951.866 694,091
F 9.055 0.440
G 460,323 489.111
H 361.877 342.466
I 103.418 120.846
] 235.637 208.410
1,161.255 1,160.833
K 578,476 518.071
L 88.567 102.450
667.038 620.521
494.217 540,312
1,455.138 1,234.843

For and oa behalf of the Board of Directors

K. V. MARIWALA

HARSH C. MARIWALA

Director Chairman and
Managing Dirvector

Place Mumbai

Dated April 26, 2000

LS




INCOME
Sales and services

Other income

EXPENDITURE
Cost of materials
Manufacturing and other expenses
Finance charges

Depreciation

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEM
Exccptionai Item :
Voluntary Retirement Compensation
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND
AFTER EXCEPTIONAL ITEM
Provision for Tax {including Rs. 0.500 million
{Rs. 0.400 million) towards wealth tax)
PROFIT AFTER TAX
Balance brought forward

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

APPROPRIATIONS
Interim Dividend
Tax on Interim Dividend
Proposed Final Dividend
Tax on Proposed Dividend
General Reserve

BALANCE CARRIED TO THE BALANCE SHEET

Notes to the Accounts

As per our attached repert of even date

FOR RSM & Co.
Chartered Accountants

NATRA] RAMKRISHNA DEV BAJPAL
Fartner Company Secretury
and Legal Manager

Place : Mumbai

Dated @ April 26, 2000

SCHEDULE

M

For and on Lehalf of the Board of Directors

K. V. MARIWALA

Director

Place : Mumbai

Dated @ Apnl 26, 2000

For the year ended March 31,
199% .

2000

Rs. million

Rs. million

6,483.380 5,512:133
©12.153 18.647
6,495.533 5,530,780
3,744.285 3,176.836
2,215.781 1,824.611
32,246 37.068
77.642 51.974
6,069.954 5,090.489
425.579 440,297
17.786 —
407.793 440.291
50.500 £5.200
357,293 375.091
352.361 176.617
709.654 551.708
130.500 50.750
14.355 5.075
— 79.750

— 8.772
71.000 55.000
493.799 352.361

HARSH C. MARIWALA

Chairiman and

Managing Director




SCHEDULE A
SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED:
2,99,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.}0 each
10,006 14% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference shares of Rs.100 each

ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED:
1,45,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
up, including 1,20,00,000 alloeted as
fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation
of General Reserve

SCHEDULE ‘B!
RESERVES AND SURPLUS

CAPITAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Received during the year

SHARE PREMIUM
As per tast Balance Sheet

GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Transfer from Debenture
Redemption Reserve
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account

DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet
Less: Transfer 1o General Reserve

_PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

SCHEDULE ‘C’
SECURED LOANS

Working capital linance from banks

{Secured by hypothecation of stocks in trade

and other tangible movable asscts of the Company,
wherever situated, and guaraniced by three Directors
of the Company. Balance outstanding against
working capital limirs as at the year end 15 Rs. Nil.)

¥

As at
March 31,
2000
Rs. million

299.000

1.000
300.000

145,000
145.000

2.500

2.500

165.000

545.000

71.000
616.000

493,799

1,277.299

As at
March 31,
1999

- Rs. million

2599.000

1.000
300.000

145.000
145.000

2.360
0.149

2.500

165.000

455.000

35.000
55.000

545.000

35.000
35.000

352.361
1,064.86%




As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2000 1999
Rs, million Rs. million
SCHEDULE ‘D’
UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed deposits 2.611 4,403
(Repayable within a year Rs. 2,611 million (Rs. 1.832 millicn)
Deferred sales tax loan . 36,228 20.579
{Repayable over five years commencing from year 2006)
, 32.839 24.982
SCHEDULE ‘B’
FIXED ASSETS Rs. million
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK . DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions Deductions As ac Upro Far the Beductiens Up to Asar As ag
March 31, March 31, March 31, Period March 31, March 31 March 3L,
1999 2000 1999 2000 2008 1999
Freehald land 9,193 1517 — 10710 — — — — 12.710 9153
Leaschold land 3244 — — 3244 0.288 0.037 — 0.325 2919 2956
Building 290.053 25.007 R 315.060 15.774 5.961 — 21735 293.325 174,279
Plant & machinery 503,832 83401 3.077 584.156 153.304 58.582 0551 11335 372,821 350.528
Furaiture & Fttings 12140 0.958 0.80) 12.997 1180 1.009 0,005 5.184 7.813 7,960
Veicles 2340 1.605 6.354 4,094 2705 0.855 2 1.348 2.743 6.135
Intangible Assets 30.000 2212225 — 252,225 — 11,198 — 11.198 241027 30.000
TOTAL j 857,302 334.713 9,532 1,182.483 176,251 77.642 2.76% 251125 931.338 631,051
PREVIOUS YEAR
{March 31, 1999) 670360 200.037 13.095 857.302 134.463 51.974 10.186 176.151
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (AT COST) INCLUDING ADVANCES ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT 20,508 13.040
951.866 694.091
Nores : 1. Gross block of Frechold Land includes pending execution of conveyance — Rs. 3,037 million {Rs. 1.520 miilion)
2. Gross block of Buildings includes pending exccution of conveyance — Rs. 192,312 miilion {Rs, 175,372 million)
3. Gross block of Plant & Machinery includes cost of asscts leased out — Rs. 47,171 million (Rs. 47.803 million}
4. Intangible aeseis include trademarks and copyrights {pending registration) Rs. 79.014 miltion {Rs. 30.000 million},
know-how, business and commercial rights, non compete covenants ete - reler note Hd) of Schedule B; Notes 1o Accouats.
SCHEDULE ‘¢
INVESTMENTS (At Cost, Non Trade)
LONG TERM — UNQUOTED
Government Securities ;
National Savings Certificates {Deposited with Gove. authorities) 0.1i% 0.119
Subsidiary Company :
Marice Bangladesh Lid. (Incorporated in Bangladesh)
10,00,000 {Nil) equity shares of Taka 10 each fully paid up. 8.615 —
8.734 0.119
CURRENT — QUOTED
Unit Trust of India — Unit Scheme — 1964
16170 (16170} Units of Rs. 10 each fully paid 0.260 0.260
Unit Trust of India Master Gain-92
4600 (4600) Units of Rs. 10 cach fully paid 0.061 0.061
0.321 0.321
9.055 0.440
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.289 0.290

Notes :1. During the year 0.456 million {Ni}} vnits of
Alliance Mutual Fund were purchased and sold.
2. Provision for dimunition in value of quoted investments
Rs. 0.039 million (Rs. 0.030 nillion) is reflected under
Schedule L : Provisions

i
i
|
¢
:
[
f
!
|
i
L
|
i




SCHEDULE ‘G’

INVENTORIES

{For basis of valuation, refer Note 1{f)

of Schedule 'R’}

Raw materials

Packing materials

Stores, spares, consumables & chemicals etc.
Work-in-process

Finished products

By-products

SCHEDULE ‘H’
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecared)

Over six months — Considered good
— Considered doubtful

Less : Provision for doubtful debes

Others Debts — Considered good

SCHEDULE ‘T
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
Fixed deposits (lodged with Govt. authority)
Margin accounts (Against Letters of credit and
Bank guaranices)
Current accounts — Scheduled banks
— Non Scheduled bank
(Jalgacn Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd.)
[Maximum balanee Rs. $.278 million
(Rs. 0.732 million)]

As at
March 31,
2000

Rs. mitlien

78.516
67,810
8.470
6.450
295.817
3.260

460,323

0.645
4.500

5.145
4.500

0.645
361.232
361.877

0.996
1.425
2.004

98.945
0.048

103.413

As at
March 31,
199%
Rs. million

150.879
55.004
7.4a2
3.674
271.202
0.890

489.111

4.158

4.158

4.158
338.308
342.466

0.822
4.503
2.893

112.563
0.065

120.846

-t

(5,




As at As at

March 31, March 31,
2000 1999
Rs. million Rs. million
SCHEDULE *J*
LOANS AND ADVANCES
{(Unsecured—considered good})
Inter.corporate deposit 112,000 68.500
Advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be received . 57.068 . : 81.368
Deposits 61.263 51.852
Balance with Central Excise authorities 0.688 6.130
Interest acerued on — Investments . 0.082 0.082
— Others 0.260 0.478
Income tax payments, net of provision 4.276 —
T 235.637 208.410
SCHEDULE ‘K’
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors 489.784 433,006
Unclaimed dividend 0.070 0.006
Other liabilities 44,826 42,105
Security deposits 43.395 42.463
Interest accrued but not due on loans 0.401 0.491
578.476 518.071
SCHEDULE ‘L)
PROVISIONS
Income tax (Net of advance tax) e 13.897
Diminution in value of investments 0.639 0.030
Dividend 79.750 79.750
Tax on dividend 8.773 8.773
88.562 102.450




SCHEDULE ‘M’
OTHER INCOME

Income from investments (Gross)
{Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil) (Rs. 0.005 million)

Miscellaneous income

SCHEDULE ‘N’
COST OF MATERIALS

RAW MATERIALS :
Opening stock

Add : Purchases
Less : Sales
Less : Closing stock

PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK:
Work-in-process

By-products
Finished products

Less :
CLOSING STOCK.:

Work-in-process
By-products
Finished products

Less : Insurance claims — Finished goods

Year ended
March 31,

2000

Rs, million

0.051

12,102
12,153

150.879
3,146.672
20.600
78.516
3,198.435

594.362

3.674
0.890
271.202

0.450
3.260
295.817

(29.761)
18.751

3,744,285

Year ended
March 31,
1999

Rs. mtillion

0.040

18.607
18.647

48,808
3,240,219
58.024
150.879

" 3,080.124

228,663

4.305
0.427
139.081

3.674
0.890
271.202

(131.953)

3,176.836




Year ended
March 31,
2000

Rs. miflion

SCHEDULE ‘O’
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES

Employees” costs :

Salaries, wages and bonus 165.774
Centribution to provident fund and other funds ) 25.782
Welfare expenses ‘ 24.615
216.171

Packing materials consumed 606.143
Stores, spares and chemicals consumed 25.672
Power, fuel and water 57.451
Contract manufacturing charges 136.777
Rent and storage charges 41.849
Repairs to: Buildings 10.300
Machinery 8.096

Others ‘ 5.161

23.557

Freight, forwarding and distribution expenses 249.494
Advertisement and sales promaotion 586.808
Rates and taxes 1.927
Sales tax and cess 21.421
Provision for doubiful debes 4.500
Printing, stationery and communication expenses 35.273
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 57.992
Royalty 32,382
Insurance 5.196
Provision for diminution in value of investments 0.009
Miscellaneous expenses 113.159

2,215,781

SCHEDULE ‘P!
FINANCE CHARGES

Interest on fixed loans 1.050
Other faterest 25.180
Bank charges and others 28.535

54.765
Less : Interest earned 22.519

- (Tax deducted at source Rs. 4.643 million {Rs. 3.815 million)
32.246

Year ended
March 31,
1999

Rs. million

137.173
19.089
21.358

177.620

545.900
24.378
41.816

119.185
44.347

9.420
7.182
3.715

20317

217.191
389.526
1,442
41.262
26.576
49.578
26,181
3.922
0.004
94.966

1,824,611

7.407
19.894
31.292

58.593
21.525

37.068
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SCHEDULE ‘¢ 7
B} RAW MATERIALS CONSUI\'{ED
Oil seeds

Raw oils
Others

C) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND
INDIGENOQUS MATERIALS CONSUMED

Raw materials

Imported
Indigenous

Stores, spares and chemicals
Imported
Indigenous

D) VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.LF. BASIS

Raw materials
Capital goods

E) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENGY

Packing material
Travelling and other expenses

F) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE

F.O.B. value of exports

March 31,

March 31,
2000 1999
Quantity Value Quantity Value
M.T. Rs. million M.T. Rs. million
55,524,838 2,003.059 47;956.00 1,507.932
34,256,930 1,075.803 35,710.00 1,401.003
P 119.573 — 171.189
3,198.435 3,080.124
% Value % Value
Rs. million Rs. million
23.43 749.355 3L.76 978.113
76.57 2,449.080 68.24 2,102,011
100,00 3,198.435 100.00 3,080.124
100,00 25.672 100.00 24.378
106.00 25.672 160,00 24,378
619.042 941,183
— 29.447
619.042 970.630
5.266 4.226
49,301 43.349
54.567 47.575
179.363 143.813
- 179.363 143,813




SCHEDULE ‘R’

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS =

{a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

The Company and nature of its operations

Marico Inaustries Limited (*Marico’ or “The Company’), headquartered in Mumbai, India, carries on business
in Fast Moving Consumer Goods. Marico manufactures and markets products under the following brands
Parachute, Saffola, Sweekar, Marico’s Hair & Care, Sil, Revive, Oil of Malabar and Mediker. Marico’s products
reach its consumers through retail outlets serviced by Marico’s distribution network comprising 5 Regional
offices, 28 Carrying & forwarding agents and about 3400 distributors and stockists spread all over India. The
Company’s export markets comprise the Middle Fast and SAARC countries. Marico has manufacturing facilities

located at Goa, Kanjikode, Jalgaon, Sewrce and Saswad, supported by subcontracting units. Marico has a

marketing and distribution alliance with Indo Nissin Foods Ltd. for Top Ramen instant noodles, and a

distribution arrangement with Practer & Gamble Home Products Lid. and Procter & Gamble Hygiene &

Health Care Lid, for disteibution of some of their products in India.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and are in

conformity with mandatory accounting standards.

TFixed Assets
Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition.. Cost of acquisition includes taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation. Interest on borrowing to finance fixed assets

during construction peried is capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for major projects are also capitalised, where

appropriate.

{(¢) Depreciation/Amortisation

I.  Tangible Assets
(i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight line method at the rates and in the manaer
specified in Schedule XIV to the Co&xpanics Act, 1956. Depreciation on additiens/deductions during
the ycar has been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the menth of addition/deduction.

Extca shift depreciation is provided on “Plant” basis.

P
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(e)

()

(h)

(ii) Assets given on lease are depreciated over the primary period of the lease.
(iii) Assets individually costing Rs. 5000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

(iv) Leaschold land is amortised over the period of the lease.

I1. Intangible Assets
(i) Trademarks/Copyright that have an estimated‘- economic value which far exceeds the carrying cost
are not depreciated.
(i1} Other intangible assets are amortised over the estimated econamic useful life as assessed by the

management, but not exceeding the period given hereunder:

‘Trademarks, Business and Commercial rights etc. 20 Years

Technical know how 6 Years

Non-Compete covenant non-compete period
Investments

(i) Long term Investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of Investments is
made to recognise a decline, other than temporary.

(i1} Current Investments are valued at lower of cost or market value, computed categorywise.

Inventory

(i) Raw Material, Packing Material, Chemicals, Consumables, Stores & Spares and Work-in-process are
valued at cost.

(i1} Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

{iti} By-products and Unserviceable/damaged finished products are valued at net realisable valuc.

{iv} The bases of determining cost for various categories of inventorics are as follows :
Finished goods and work-in-process Absorption Costing

Others ) FIF®

Researeh and Development
Capital expenditure on Research and Development is allocated to Fixed Assets. Revenue expenditure is charged

off in the year in which it is incurred,

Revenue Recognition
(i) Sales are recognised at the point of despatch to the customers and stated net of erade discount and

sales tax.




(ii) Agency commission income is recognised upon effecting sales.

(iii) Interest and other income arc recognised on accrual basis.

(i} Retirement Benefits
The Company has various schemes of retirement benefits, namely, Provident, Superannuation and
Gratuity Pur;ds. These funds are administered through Trustees and the Company’s contribution thereto is
ch.;;\rged to revenue every year. Accruals are made for feave encashment and gratuity on the basis of actuarial

valuation.

(j) Forcign Currency Transactions
Current assets and current liabilities are translated at forward cover rate or at the year end exchange rate, as
applicable. Resultant gains or losses are recognised in the profit and loss account other than the exchange rate
differences relating to fixed assets which are adjusted against the carrying cost of corresponding fixed assets.
Exchange differences arising on forward exchange contracts are recognised over the period of the contract.
(k) Government Grants
(i} Government grants refated to the total investment in the undertaking are treated as capital reserve.

(i) Government grants related to specific fixed assets are reduced from the cost of the assets.

Capital Reserve represents subsidy received from the Government of Kerala for setting up of the new plant at
Kanjikode which is refundable, if the unit goes out of production within five years of receipt of subs.‘id'y,'i;é'.,j‘by

2000-2001.

With a view to ensuring compliance of changes in the Accounting Standard ‘AS-2 on Valuation of Inventories’
prescribed by the ICAlL the Company has changed the basis of valuation of finished goods and work-in-process
from ‘dircct costing’ to ‘absorption costing’ method and also effected other minor modifications to arrive at cost of
raw materials, Also, low value items of stores and spares, which hitherto were being charged off in the year of
purchase are now being inventorised and charged to revenue upon consumption. Consequent to these changes,

inventory as at March 31, 2000 is higher by Rs. 10.017 million with corresponding effect on the Profic & Loss

account.

During the ycar, workmen at the Company's Sewree plant availed of a Voluntary Retirement Scheme offered by
the Company and were paid an aggregate amount of Rs. 17.786 million. As a prudent accounting policy, the entire
amount has been charged to revenue and has been disclosed as an exceptional item in the Profit and Loss

Account.

s




10.

11.

12.

The Company had preferred insurance claims aggregating to Rs. 5.263 mittlién o recover loss of stocks arising out
of accidental fire at one of its depots. Pending final settlement thereof, the Company has accrued the claims in

these accounts, as it is reasonably certain of realisability,

Miscellaneous income includes lease income Rs. 6.862 miltion (Rs. 7.346 million), Export incentives
Rs. 0.186 million (Rs. 3.920 million) and Profit on sale of current investments Rs. 0.267 million

(Rs. 0.164 million).

Miscellaneous expenses includes Commission and Brokerage Rs. 5.472 million (Rs. 8.225 million), Donations Rs.
1.753 million (Rs. 0.169 million), Cash discount Rs. 0.265 million (Rs. 0.384 million), Loss on sale of assets (net)
Rs. 2.246 million (Rs. 0.544 million), Audit fees Rs. 0.761 million (Rs. 0.575 million), Payment to Auditors for
other services Rs. 0.053 million {Rs. 0.073 millién} and Payment to Auditors for out-of-pocket expenses Rs. 0.043

million {Rs. 0.042 million).

Exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings (arising out of difference between spot rate and forward
contract rate) Rs. 5.109 million {Rs. Nil), and on other accounts (net) Rs. 0.233 million (gain Rs. 4.276 million)

have been included under Miscellaneous expenses (Miscellaneous Income).

Sales tax and cess expenses are net of reversal of earlier year provision of Rs. 10.474 million (Rs. Nil), pursuant to

refund received on disposal of appeal.

Research and Development expenses aggregating Rs. 29487 million (Rs. 24.104 million) have been included

under the relevant heads of expenses.

Contingent liabilitics not provided for in respect of :

a} Letters of Credit outstanding Rs. 21.665 million (Rs. 44.272 million).

b) Sales Tax / Cess claims disputed by the Company (net of tax) Rs. 48.910 million (Rs. 33.081 million).

¢} Income Tax and interest demand disputed by the Company Rs. 12.131 million (Rs. Nil), and disputed by the

[ncome tax department Rs. 2.121 million (Rs. 2.121 million).

d} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. 1.228 million (Rs, 0.983 million).

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 327.320 million
{Rs. 19.530 million) net of advances. This includes commitment of Rs. 300.000 million (Rs. Nily, towards acquisition

of Parachute and Saffsla brands.

i
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13.

14.

Cost of assets taken on lease Rs. 18.856 million (Rs. 12.488 million). Future lease rental obligations

Rs. 5.462 million {Rs. 3.252 million)

Managerial Remuneration :

i} Calculation of Commission payable to the Managing Director :

Profit before taxation and exceptional item
Add: Diirector’s Remuneration
Directors’ Sitting fees
Depreciation as per books
Loss on sale of assets as per books (net)
Provision for diminution in value of investments

Profit on sale of assets under Section 350

Less: Depreciation under Section 350
Profit on sale of investments (net}

Loss on sale of assets under Section 350

Profit as per Section 349

Commission to Managing Director @ 1%
of net profit

ii) Payments and provisions on account of
remuneration to the Managing Director
included in Profit & Loss Account,

i) Salary

it} Commission

iii) Contribution to Provident Fund
and Pension Fund

iv) Other Perquisites

Note : The above remuneration does not include contributien to Gratuity Fund as this contribution is a lumpsum

amount for all relevant employees based on acruarial valuation.

March 31,
2000
Rs. million

425.579
5.327
0.042

77.642
2.246
0.009
0.728

511.573

110.214
0.267

401.092

4.010

0.600
4.010

0.162
0.555

5.327

March 31,
1999
Rs. milljion

140.291
5.368
0.032

51.974
0.544
0.004

498.213

34.708

0.552
412.953

4.129

0.600
4,129

0.162
0.477

5.368

The Company deals with several Smali Scale Tndustrial (SSI) undertakings on mutually accepted terms and

conditions. Based on the records of the Company and the information received from SSI supp

amounts due to $SIs and included under sundry creditors aggregate Rs. 12.128 million (Rs.

tiers, the various

22.970 million}. The

names of such SSI suppliers where individual balances are in excess of Rs. 1 lakh and due for more than 30 days

at the Balance Sheet date are as undey:

A




16.

17.

Neeljyot Plastics, Pack-well (India), Shree Ganesha Packaging Industries, Moreshwar plastics, Doshi Packaging
Industries, Kaveri Plastics, Shivam Plastics Industries, Badkur Polycans Industries, Multi Films Plastics Pvt. Ltd.,
Eskay Flexible Packaging Pvt. Ltd., Leeraj Printers Pvt. Led., Shree Mookambika Plast, Malhar Offser Put. Ltd,,
Goa Plast Pvt. Lid,, Blow Containers, Mangesh Plastics, Chakreswari Industries, Refine Marketing Pve. Ltd.,
Complement Marketing Pvt. Lad., Pratik Enterprises, Rachana Enterprises, Seal-in-Tact, Nirmal Offset Pvt. Ltd.,

Neelesh Industries, Affair Finvest & Trading P Ltd., Pilot Plastics B Ltd., Vista Paper & Chemicals Pve. Ltd.,

Empee Offset Pvt. Lid., Interlabels Industries (P} Ltd., Mzhajeet Clayton Lid.

Figures in brackets represent those of the previous period, which have been regrouped wherever necessary to

conform with current year.

Information pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 :

2} Registration details :
Registration No.

Balance Sheet Date

b} Capital raised during the year
Public Issue
Bonus Issue
Rights Issue

Private placement

11-49208

March 31st, 2000

{Amount in Rs. millien)

Nil

Nil

Nii

Nil

¢) Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds {Amount in Rs. million)

Total Liabilities

Toral Assets

Sources of Funds
Paid up Capital
Reserves and Surplus
Secured Loans

Unsecured Loans

2,122,176

2,122,176

£45.000
1,277.299
Nil

32.839

Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets
Investments

Net Current Assets
Misc. Expenditure

Accumaulated losses

951.866

9.055

494.217




d} Performance of the Company {Amount in Rs. million.) /’{ _
Turnover (Sales and Other Income) 6,495.533
Total Expenditure 6,087.740
Profit before Tax ana after exceptional item 407.793
Profit after Tax 357.293
Earnings per share {in Rs.) 24.64
Dividend rate (%) 90
¢} Generic name of the three :principai products/services of the Company :
Itemn Code No. Product Description
{I.T.C. Code}
151319.00 Coconut oil
151219.01 Sunflower Oil .
151219.02 Safflower Oil .
Signatures to Schedules A to R
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors -
DEV BAJPAI K. V. MARTWALA HARSH C. MARIWALA
Place : Mumbai Company Secretary Direcior Chairman and
Dated : April 26, 2000 & Legal Manager Managing Director




Year ended Year ended |
March 31, March'31, x

2000 1999
Rs. million Rs. million
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and
after Exceptional item 407.793 440.291
Adjustments for :-
Depreciation g 77.642 51.974
Finance charges 32.240 37.068
Loss on sale of assets (net of profit) 2,246 0.544
Provision for diminution in value of investments 0.099 0.004
Income from investments (0.051) (0.040)
112.092 89,554
Operating Profit before working capital changes 519.885 529.84¢
Adjustments for —
Increase/{Decrease) in Inventories {28.788) 239282
Increase/{Decrease} in Sundry debtors 19.411 61012
Tncrease/(Decrease) in Loans & advances 22951 {18.449)
Decrease/(Increase) in Current bHabilities (60.405) (94.038)
(46.831) 187.817
Cash generated from Operations 566.716 342.024
Less : Payments for
Direct taxes (Net of refunds) 68.672 60.016
Finance charges 54.765 58.592
123,437 118.608
NET CASH INFLOW/(OQUTFLOW)
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A 443.279 223.416 |
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
{(Purchase) of Fixed assets (342.181) (143.740}
(Purchase)/Sale of lavestments (including bills discounted/ICD) (8.616) (0.015)
Sale of Fixed assets 4.519 2.36% j
Interest/Dividend income 22.569 21.565
Capital subsidy received — 0.140 |
NET CASH INFLO“"/(OUTFLO\\") e

FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B (323.709) (119.681})




Year ended
March 31,

2000

Rs. million

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/{Repayment) of Borrowings 7.857
Dividend paid ' (144.855)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) ) - .
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C (136.998)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)} IIN CASH & CASI ‘

EQUIVALENTS A+B+C (17.428)
Cash and Cash Eguivalents - Opening Balance 120,846
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 103.418

Year ended
March 31,

1999
Rs. million

{61.081)
{127.600)

{191.681)
{87.946)

208.792

120.846

For and on behalf of the Board of Dirccéors

K. V MARIWALA
Place : Mumbai Director
Dated : April 26, 2000

HARSH C. MARIWALA

Chairman and

Managing Director

1

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE

We have examined the attached Cash Flow Statement of Marico Industries Ltd. for the year ended March 31,

2000. The statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements of Clause 32 of the

tisting agreement with The Stock Exchange and is based en and in agreement with the coerresponding Profit and Loss

Account and Balance Sheet of the Company covered by our report dated April 26, 2000 to the members of the

Company.

Place Mumbai

Dated Aprii 26, 2000

For RSM & Co,

Chartered Accountants

NATRA] RAMKRISHNA

Parener

~y

mr




(Indian Rupees Million)

Particulars Three Month Ended Annual
Jun. 30, 99 7| Sep. 30, 99 | Dec. 31, 99 | Mar 31, 00 FY 00

Sales and Services 1,350 1,712 1,721 1,700 6,483
Other Income 3 2 2 6 12
Total Revenue 1,353 1,713 1,723 1,706 6,496
Total Expenditure 1,265 1,548 1,582 1,566 5,960
Finance Charges 3 8 16 5 32
Gross profit after finance charges 85 157 126 135 503

but before depreciation and taxation
Depreciation 15 19 19 24 78
Profit before taxation and
Exceptional Item 70 138 106 1i1 426
Exceptional Jtem — — 18 —_ 18
Profit before taxation 70 138 88 111 408

Provision for taxation 10 20 11 1l 51
Profit after tax 60 119 78 100 357
"Earnings per Sharc -Annualised (Rs.) 16.7 32.7 215 27.7 24.6
Dividend declared per share (Rs.) 9.00
Particulars Three Month Ended Annual
Jun. 30, 98 Sep. 30, 98 | Dec. 31, 98 | Mar. 31, 99 FY 99

Sales and Services 1,093 1,376 1,544 1,500 3,512
Other Income 4 7 2 5 19
Total Revenue 1,097 1,383 1,546 1,505 5,531
Total Expenditure 982 1,214 1,418 1,387 5,001
Finance Charges 7 9 13 7 37
Gross profit after finance charges 108 159 - 115 19 492

but before depreciation and taxation
Depreciation 14 14 13 11 52
Profit before taxation 94 145 i 100 440
Provision for taxation 14 21 13 17 65
Profit after tax 80 124 88 83 375
Earnings per Share -Annualised (Rs.) 22.1 34.2 24.3 22.9 25.9
Dividend declared per share {Rs.)) 9.00 |

All the above pereains to information on continuing operations.




STOCK EXCHANGE PERFORMANCE

The Company's shares (of par value of Rs. 10.00 each) quoted at Rs. 250 per share on March 31st, 2000 on The Swock
Exchange, Mumbai (BSE), giving it a market capitalization of Rs. 362 crore (USD 83 million). The performance of Marico's

share price on the BSE versus the CINX-Midcap 200 Index is captured in the graph below.

E o '
: Marico v/s CNX Mibpcar 200 ‘
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SHAREHOLDING
The sharcholding pattern of the Company as on March 31st, 2000 is given below.
6406 65%  6.5% u
I Promoters
2.7% |mF.Ls/MF5]|
ifF.LLs
'11CCBs
14.8% i@ Indivduals |
|1 Others o




Shares in Marico are listed on The Stack Exchange, Mumbai (BSE} and the National Stock Exchange (NSE). The

following table sets forth the high and low prices, as well as the traded volumes, of the Marico shares.

Quarter ended

Mar. 31, 2000
Pec. 31, 1999
Sep. 30, 1999
Jun. 30, 1999
Mar. 31, 1999
Dec. 31, 1998
Sep. 30, 1998
Jun, 30, 1958

Quarter ended

Mar. 31, 2000
Dec. 31, 1999
Sep. 30, 1999
Jun. 30, 1999
Mar. 31, 1999
Dec. 31, 1598
Sep. 30, 1993
Jun. 30, 1958

Market Capitalisation is computed on the closing price of cach quarter
High / Low are compauted on the closing prices of each trading day

High

Low

Closing

(Rupees per share of Rs. 10/- each)

345
422
714
738
725
372
305
359

High

235
3i6
430
545
346
290
232
235

Low

250
334
430
645
695
353
302
240

Closing

(Rupees per share of Rs. 10/- each)

342
420
701
723
740
373
3067
358

244
319
434
540
348
286
238
232

255
334
434
03¢
695
355
368
238

THE STOCK EXCHANGE, MUMBAI (BSE)

Market
Capitalisation
INR Million

3625
4843
6235
9353
10078
5119
4379
3480

THE NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE (NSE)

Market
Capitalisation
INR Million

3698
4850
6293
G425
16078
5148
4466
3451

Avg. Volume per day
No. of Shares (*000)

4.0
8.9
20.1
8.8
8.1
5.6
21.6
10.2

Avg, Volume per day
No. of Shares {*000)

4.4
4.4
3.0
5.1
5.6
4.3
6.7
8.6




Annual General Meeting : The Annual General Meeting of the shareholders will be convened

at 4.30 p.m. on July 25, 2000, at CENTRUM, MVIRDC WORLD TRADE CENTRE 1, IST FLOOR, CUFFE PARADE,

MUMBAI - 400 005,

Book Closure : The book closure for Annual General Meeting will be from Tuesday, July 18, 2000 to Tuesday, July 25,
ZGbO {both days inclusive). o
Stock Exchange Listing : The Company’s equity shares are listed on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE) and The
National Stock Exchange (NSE). .
BSE Group : Bl Transaction Code : 531642

NSE Transaction Code : Maricoind

Reuters Code : MRCO

Bloomberg Code : MRCO IN

Copies of the Annual Report : These can be requested by mail directed to the Company Secretary, at the Company’s
Registered Office address or by fax on (91-22) 641 01 06 or by e-mail at milinvrel@maricoindia.net. Copies are also
available via the Company’s internet site at http://www.maricoindia.com

Quarterly Reports : These are available via the Company’s Internet site at hetp://www.maricoindia.com

Sharcholder Records : For any assistance regarding sharcholding, share transfers and transmissions, address changes,
non-receipt of dividends, duplicate/missing certificates please write to The Registrars and Share Transfer Agents :
M/s. Karvy Consultants, 7, Andheri Industrial Estate, Off Vecra Desai Road, Andheri {West), Mumbai-100 (58, India.
Tel : (91-22) 636 7226, 636 9044, 632 2266 Fax: (91-22) 631.0882

Dividend : The Company paid a first interim dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share on January 15, 2000 2nd a second interim
dividend of Rs. 5.50 per share on May 24, 2000. Ne final dividend is proposed.

Shareholders whe have not encashed their dividend cheques for the first interim dividend 1996-97 or any of the
subsequent dividends, are requested to send the outdated cheques for revalidation to the Company at its Registered
Office.

Neomination : The Nomination facility is already in place. This would facilitate the process of transier of shares to
nominees of sharcholders, when required. Forms for nomination can be requested from the Registered Office of the
Company.

Demateriafisation : The Company’s shares are now under compulsory demat for all categories of investors. During

the year, the Company has ticd up with Central Depository Services {India) Limited. With this, members have an
option to hold their shares in electronic form with National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) or Central
Depasitory Services (India) Limited {CDSL).

Members are requested to provide updated bank account details to their depasitory participants. This will aveid delay
at the time of disbursement of dividends. |

Multipte Mailings : If you receive multiple mailings of Marico’s annual report and would like us to eliminate. the extra
copies, please send your written permission to our registrars indicating your folio number. Multipte mailings occur if
shares are held in multiple names, are registered under different names or are registered with slight differences in

names and add.oss.
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Mr. Charandas V, Mariwala
(Ocrober 15, 1921 - April 02, 2000}

Mr. Charandas Valabhdas Mariwala joined his father in business in 1941 immediately after graduating with Honours in commerce,
Since then- when he was a partner in the firm of Kanji Mooratji, 2 trading firm dealing in agricultural produce, essentially from

Kerala, in southern India, young Charandas had a vision of transforming the then modest trading firm into a vibrant and dynamic

industrial and commercial conglomerate.

In a decade, he steered the Qowth of M/s. Kanji Mooratji, from a locally trading firm into the largest exporter of spices from India.
Simultaneously, he made forays into the manufacturing sector by establishing The Bombay Oil Industries Ltd. in 1947, which
marketed coconut oil and refined groundnut oil, under the brand name of "Parachute” and subsequently, refined safflower oil under

the brand name "Saffola".

1960 saw the establishment of the Fatty Acids and Chemicals Division in Borbay Oil. This division went on to become the pioncer
in the manufacture of oleo chemicals. In 1968, Mr. C V Mariwala conceptualised the oleoresin project . for manufacture of
sophisticated spice products like extracts, essential oils and food colours from spices and plant materials, It was the largest spice

extraction plant in the world at that time.

"Thus, in about 30 years from joining the business, he had given a concyete shape to his vision and transformed che trading house

into a vibrant conglomerate with muti-faceted activities.

A restructuring in the lawe 19805 saw the Oils and Consumer Products Division of The Bombay Oil Industries Lid. become Marico
Industries Ltd. while the Chemicals Division was acquired by Hindustan Polyamides & Fibers Ltd. and the Oleoresin Division

became Kancor Flavours & Extracts Led.

Mr. C V Mariwala was the founder chairman of Marico Industries Ltd. Under his stewardship, Marico grew into one of the leading

fast moving consumer goods companies in the country with popular brands and a natienal presence.
All through these years, he actively participated in a number of trade and industry associations and high-powered committees

appointed by the Government and other public bodies such as Development Council for Oils, Detergents and Paints in the

Ministry of Industry, Central Qrganisation for Qil Industry and Trade, Indian Merchants' Chamber, to name a few.

May his soul rest in peace.
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M ANAGEMENT Di1scussioN
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In the year ended March 31,'99 (FY 99), Marico achieved a Total Revenue
of Rs. 5531 million (USD 1294 millio;l), representing a growth of £2.5% over the
previous financial year (FY 98). The sluggish trend in the revenue growth during the
first half of the year was reversed in the second half. In contrast to a growth of 9.1% in
the ﬂrsf half, revenue in the second half recorded a growéh of 15.5% over the
corresponding period in FY 98.

Marico posted pretax profits of Rs. 440 million (USD 10.3 million),
a growth of 20.7%. Net Profit at Rs. 375 million (USD 8.8 million) was 6.8%
of revenue, up from 6.1%, registering a growth of 24.9% over FY 98. Earnings
per share during the year were Rs. 25.9 as compared to Rs.20.7 in FY 98.
(Profits for FY 98 are after considering a non-recurring expense of Rs. 26
million (USD 0.6 million)).

Marico continued to maintain its focus on productivity of capital.
Return on average capital employed (ROCE) was 41.5% against 41.3% in the
previous year, while return on average net worth (RONW) improved to 34.3%
from 33.8% in FY 98.

The Board of Directors has recommended distribution of a final
dividend of 55%. Togethér with the interim dividend of 35% declared in

October '98, the total distribution recommended is 90%, as compared to 75% for FY 98.
BrAaNDS S

PARACRUTE

During the first quarter of FY 99, retail prices of Parachute were dropped by
about 18% with a view to expanding the coconut oil market and fighting low priced
competitors. Although retail prices were raised by about 6% in the third quarter,
Parachute showed a decline of 7% in value terms for the year as a whole. Whilst the
volume growth in the firsc half of the year was a modest 4.5%, the second half saw

volumes rising appreciably and the brand registered a 7.5% growth for the whole year.




Parachute continued its dominance of the coconut oil market and
improved its market share to 54.0% from 52.3% in FY 98. The Company plans to
hold its market share through investments in brand building, maintaining cost
leadership across the vatue chain and extending availability of the brand through
distribution initiatives.

A significant portion of the coconut oil demand in the country today is

%

serviced in loose form. This provides a- large market opportunity waiting to be
tapped. Parachute provides the consumer with coconut oil of a superior quality, free
from adulteration, with better aroma and clarity. It also fulfils the aspiration of
these with rising incomes, keen to swiich to branded produces. To encourage
conversion from loose to packed consumption, Parachute is available in pouches,
which can be retailed at a lower price due to lowes packing costs and small unit
valume packs that help reduce the unit price as well.

In FY 98, Parachute was restaged with a new look and the Ceconut Dream
logo. Parachute's Coconut Dream sought to associate the inherent goodness of coconut
with the brand. This would provide the ideal platform for launching a hasket of value-
added hair care products with the "Goodness of Coconut" theme. In FY 98 the
Parachute franchise was extended to Parachute Lite, a less greasy coconut hair oil, as
well as two other hair grooming products, Parachute Nutri-Sheen Cream and
Parachute Nugri-Sheen Liquid: This year, the Company test taunched Parachute Lite
Perfumed, with Jasmine fragrance and Parachute Active Herbs, a cocanur hair oil with
herbal ingredients Neem, Hibiscus and Almonds. When heated, its "Hot Oil Action”
makes these ingredients penerrate deep into hair roots, giving maximum nourishment

to help keep hair problem-free.
The response to Parachute Lite has been good and has helped it
post a market share of 8.6% in the Value Added Coconut Oils market.

Nutri-Sheen, a new product category, is being retailed in select towns.

REVIVE
Value growth during the year was over 5%. The
unusually prolonged monsoon affected offtake and volumes grew

by 2%. Revive, however, continues to be the only branded cold water

&

Parachuta Markel Shara




starch to be retailed in the country, An improved formulation of the brand, which was
rotled out recently, enhances the solubility of the starch thus adding to convenience,
and also ensures a more uniform starching of all garments.

The Company test laanched Revive Colourfix in July '98. This is an
innovative product that {ixes colour on fabric, addressing another typically Indian
consumer need. During the year, sales were about Rs, 150 million {USD 0.35
million). Revive is emerging as a niche fabric care brand that could be extended to

similar products,

Marico's HaIr & CARE
The brand turned in a steady performance during the period. Volumes grew
by 15.7% accompanied by a value growth of over 19%, Marico's Hair & Care

maintained its market share of 27.9% in the Non-Sticky Hair Oils market,

SAFFOLA AND SWEEKAR

For the Refined Oils in Consumer Packs business, the fortunes in FY 99
were mixed.

Saffola faced a raw material supply constraint during the year due to 2
complete washout of the domestic safflower crop on account of unseasonal winter
rains. Alternative arrangements were made through imports in order to protect
volumes. However, the lead-time for procuring the material from overseas resulted
in considerable loss of sales. Volumes in Saffola, therefore declined by 15% as
compared to FY 98. .

Sweekar volumes improved substantially, partially offsctring the decline
in Saffola. Sales of Sweekar refined sunflower oif crossed, for the first time, che
Rs. 1 billien (UUST) 23.4 million) mark, With edible oil prices ruling high this year,
some shifts from higher ]n‘iﬁed oils to more economical options like sunflower may
have occurrcd. The outbreak of cpidemic dropsy in some regions af the country,
caused by adulteration of mustard oil with argemone seed oil, also gave a fillip to
sales of branded wvils which carry an assurance of better quality. Both, Sweekar
refined sunflower oif and refined mustard oil, grew during the year.

In continuation of its stratepy to make the preferred oil of the region

avatluble to consumers, Marico launeli®d a refined Soya oil variant of Sweekar in
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ROCP Market Share

2090

September '98 and Sweekar Filtered Groundnut Oil in January '99. With this,
Sweekar now has a presence in most major segments based on regional tastes /
preferences.

Marico's brands in the refined oils in consumer packs category grew by
19.7% in volume compared to FY 98, Marico maintzined its number 2
position in the category, with a slight decline in market share due to
Saffola shortages.

Raw material prices increased significantdy during the first
three quarters of the year. However, since the brands enjoy considerable
equity; price increases could be taken. Consequently, in value terms,
refined oils showed a growth of 41%.

Saffola meszns more than just refined safflower oil to the
consumer and offered a potential for being restaged. In order to enable

its transition from a largely curative to a wider, preventive usage, the

28-09

brand has been positioned on a "Hearr of a Healthy Family" platform.

In December '98, a safflower-corn blended refined oil was launched in
North India. This brings with it the health benefits of safflower together with the
rich taste of corn. It is priced below Saffola refined safflower oil, and is expected to
expand the market.

The packaging for the brand also underwent an overhaul. Saffela is now
available in a uniquely shaped jar, Its design facilitates smooth pouring of the oil,
making it the only "glug-frec” container in the market today.

The "Gooed for the Heart " equity of Saffola offered potential for the
brand to be extended to other food categories. In December '98, Marico launched
its first non-oil extension - a Mineral Enriched Salt. This is formulated to
provide a 25% reduction in sodium in the salt. Diets low in sodium may reduce
the risk of high blood pressure. The salt has been launched in a PET jar and
retails at Rs. 20/- per kg, a significant premium over ordinary iodized salts, In

February '99, a second variant (providing 10% reduction in sodium) was
¥ ! p g

launched in a pouch pack at a retail price of Rs, 10/- per kg.
In January '99, Saffola Atta {(wheat flour) was added to Saffola's heart care

range. This is a whele-wheat atta enriched with natural soya proteins and soluble




Rs. million

Export Sales

fibre from oats, Soluble fibré helps in the breakdown of cholesterol in the body. At
present the product has been test launched in Delhi and is premium priced at

Rs. 32/- for a 2 kg. pack.

SiL
The Sil range of processed foods was restaged d;aring the year. New
formulations including jams with glucose have been introduced. In order to enhance
appezl and convenience, the packaging design for the entire range has been
changed. The brand registered a 3 % growth in value. S$il jams maintained a

market share of around 10%.

ExpoRTS

Exports during the year grew at 32 %, on a larger base, as compared to
$0 % in FY 98. Marico's export turnover has row reached Rs. 163 million (USD
3.8 million), comprising largely of exports to the Middle East and Bangladesh,

ALLIANCE WITH INDO NISSIN
Foops LTp. FOR INSTANT NOODLES

The large and well-established distribution network of Marico provided an
opportunity for being leveraged to generate additional revenue streams Ffor the
Company. 1n June '98, Marico operationalised its marketing and distribution alliance

with Inde Nissin for Top Ramen instant noodles. Under the arrangement Marico

earns a fee linked to sales. No investments are envisaged by Marico while all
expenses are reimbursed by Indo Nissin. This has increased the Company's
throughput in the processed foods segment and is expected to increase
Marico's clout in the distribution chain, It will also provide the Sil range
access to certain types of vutleis where Top Ramen has a better reach.

In July '98, Top Ramen had a market share of 13.6% of the

instant nondle marker. By February '99, this improved to 21.4%.
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Aweraga Nel Working Capital

86-87

FINANGOCIAL ReviEew

Net Cash Flows from continuing operations coniinned to fund the

~ Company'’s working capital, capital expenditure, dividends and reduction of debt.

Operating profit before working capital changes increased by 14.5% to Rs. 529.8
miflion (USD 12.4 million). At the year end, there was an increase of inventory fevels
by Rs. 239.3 million (USD 5.6 million) as compared to March '98, largely on account
of raw material build up in safflower and advances for raw material imports in transit.
The level of finished goods inventory was alse Rs. 132 million (USD 3.1 million)
higher owing to higher unit values in Parachute as well as the lauach of new products
this year.

During the year, additions to fixed assets were about Rs. 130
million (USD 3.06 million), These mainly comprised investments in new
packaging systems at the Goa plant, in production facilities for instant starch
‘and in information technology, including VSATs for improved connectivity
amongst factories, regional offices, the copra buying office at Calicut and the
corporate centre.

The focus on tight control of workiag capital was maintained.
Despite the launch of a range of extensions, average net working capital
jncreased only marginally. Consequently, the Company's return on total
capital employed continued to remain healchy at 41.5%. Receivables increased
marginally to 23 days from 21 days of sales. With the proportion of rural sales
increasing, the collection period may inch upwards.

During the year, paid up equity capital remained at Rs, 145 million
(USD 3.4 million). Reserves and surplus increased by Rs. 230.9 million (USD)
5.4 million) to Rs. 1064.9 million (USD 24.9 million). The Company repaid
13.25% non-convertible debentures of Rs. 70 million (USD 1.6 million) during
the year. Against a net worth of Rs. 1,734.8 million (USD 25.9 million), the

Rupees

Company had no secured debt and an unsecured debt of Rs. 25 million (USD
0.6 million} or 31 March, '99, reflecting a high debt raising capacity. (The
unsecured debt comprises Rs. 4.4 million (USD 0.1 million} {ixed deposiis

carrying a coupon of 15 % per annum and an interest-free deferved sales tax loan

Boak Value per Share

26-97 or-95 9299




of Rs. 20.6 million (USD 0.5 million)}. The Company has access to various sources of

funds at attractive rates based on its strong financial position, including undrawn lines

of fund-based credit from its consortium of banks totalling Rs. 350 million (USD 8.2

million}. Marico's short-term commercial paper rating with TCRA remained ar Al+,
pap g

indicating highest safety.

OPERATIONS

Qperating Costs to Sales (%)

FY 98 FY 99
Raw Matcriai 56.2 57.6
Packing Material 10.7 9.9
Advertising & Sales Promotion {(ASP} 8.3 7.1
Personnel 2.8 3.2
Other Expenses 12,9 12.9

[Other expenses for FY 98 are after considering a non-recnrring expense of Rs.26 million

(USD 0.6 million)]

Raw materials showed divergent trends during the period. While the prices of

both suntlower aund safflower oil flared owing to a poor oilseeds crop in India as well as

overseas, copra prices ruled easy. However, a drop in retail prices lowered the sales

reakisation of Parachute coconut oil. Overall the raw marterial cost as a percentage of

revenue moved up by about 1.4 percentage points. ASP expense ratio was lower as

advertising expenditure on Saffola refined safflower oil was curtailed in view of the

supply constraint. Another factor causing the lowering of ASP ratio to Revenue was the

relatively higher spend on the restaging of Parachute in FY 98 as
compared to the restaging of Saffola this year. Control en other

expenses was maintained,

EVA (Econoxic VALUE ADDED)

One of Marico's strategic objectives is to consistently
deliver earnings in excess of the cost of capital provided by lenders
and shareholders. EVA, which measures the residual income after

considering a charge for the cost of capital, has therefore been adopted

EVA/ Average Capital Emplayed

95-97 9798 $8-63




as a yardstick for shareholder value creation.
EVA during FY 99 increased to Rs. 222 million (USD 5.2 miilion) from Rs. 188
million {USD 4.4 million) in FY 98. There was also an improvement in the EVA to

average capital employed ratio to 19.3% up from 18.3% in FY 98.

EcoNOoMIC VALUE ADDED ANALYSIS
Rs. in Million

92-93 9394 95 9596 96.97 9798 9899

a Average Capital Employed 207 294 427 04 1,023 LORT 1,152
b Average Debt / 54.4 46.9 43.6 444 287 RER 5.0
Total Capital (%)
¢ Beta Variant 0,75 0.75 0.7% 0.75 0.7% 075 075 ~
d Risk Free Debt (%) ik4 111 10.2 129 113 100 9.5 (-
(Average of 364 days ’
Treasury bill yields)
e Market Premivm (%) 10.0 1.0 16.0 10.0 10.0 0.0 KO K
f Cost of Equity (%) 18.9 18.6 177 204 18.8 175 170
dt{e*e)
g Cost of Debt (Post Tax)(%) 8.7 8.3 10.3 1.0 10.0 9.4 8.5
h Weighted Average Cost 134 3.7 144 158 16.2 6.4 166
of Capital {%)
i Profit After Tax 62 64 118 183 20 300 375

{excl. extraordinary items}

j Add : Interest Post Tax 23 25 33 52 52 57 38

k WNet Operating Profit 85 88 15t 236 253 357 413
After Tax

1 Less : Cost of Capital 28 40 62 14 166 169 191

m Economic Value Added 57 48 89 12§ 86 188 222

n % to Capirtal Employed 275 16.3 20.8 17.8 8.4 183 193

10




CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS

FIRST ACQUISITION

On April 26, '99, the Company entered inte a memorandum of
understanding (MOU) with Praocter & Gamble (India} Led. (PGI) for the acquisition
of the anti-lice treatment shampoo, Mediker. The acquisition of this profirable brand,
with nearly 100% market share, provides Marico an entry into the problem-solution
hair care segment and an opportunity to extend its distribution reach to chemist
outlets, The current turnover of Mediker is about Rs. 80 million (USD 1.9 million).

Under the MOU, Marico would have the rights to the trademark "Mediker' in
India, apart from a non-compete covenant from PGI and its affiliates. In addition,
Marico would be allowed to apply for registration of the brand in Bangladesh, Sri

Lanka, Saudi Arabia, Yemen, Iran, Lebanon, Kuwait, Israel and Jordan.

DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT WITH P&G

On April 26, '99, Marico entercd into an agreement with Procter & Gamble Home
Products Ltd, and Procter & Gamble India Led. (P & G) for the distribution of some of
P & G's products in India, including the brands Clearasil, Old Spice, Parnpers, Camay and
Ariel detergent bar. The current tarnover of these brands is about Rs. S60 million (USD
11.7 million}. Marico will purchase and distribute these products and earn a margin to
cover overheads and net income expectations. Demand creation will be handled by P& G.

- The additional throughput is expected to help Marico towards a wider and

more cost effective distribution, especially in the 100,000 plus population towns and
further develop its distribution competency,

The agreement is targeted to become effective on July 1,'99. It will be valid
for a period of 10 years, renewable on murual agreement. Specific provisions,
including an exit penalty to be paid by P&G, have been made for any premature

termination of the agreement,

Naotes :
L. Exchange sate assumed for conversion of INR figures s USD | = INR 42,75,
2. Market share information is based on ORG-Urban Retail data.

1




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 1990-91. T0Oo 1998-99

Year ended March 31st

Sales & Services

Profit before Interest & Tax
Operating Profit before Tax
Extraordinary Income
Profit before Tax

Profit after Tax

Economic Value Added
Nert Fixed Assets
Investments

Net Current Assets

Total Capital Employed

Share Capital
Reserves

Net Worth

Borrowed Fands

Total Funds Employed

Profit before Tax to Turnover (%)
Profit after Tax to Furnover (%}
Return on Net Worth (%)

{PAT J Average Net Worth)

Return on Capital Employed (%)
(PBIT / AverageTotal Capital
‘Employed)

Net Cash Flow from Operations
per share (Rs.}

Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Rs.}

Economic Value Added (EVA)
per share {Rs.)

Dividend per share (Rs.)
Book Value per share (Rs))
Debt / Equity (Times)

Sales to Average Capital
Employed {Times}

Sates to Average Net Working
Capital {1imes)

1991

1058
70
45

45
24

4@

40
80

24
33
47
80

4.3
2.3
72.7

87.5

36.7

1.42

40.8

1992

1595
109
62

62
29

68
21

159

53
62
¥7
159

3.9
I
61.1

91.2

68.9

16.0

24.4

1993

2103

12

284
148

148
&2
58

FH10

i45
255

45
82
127
128
255

7.0

2.9
65.6

98.6

12.9

2.0
28.2
1.

8.3

1994

2364
207
149

149
64
48

167

159
333

45
140
185
148
333

6.3
2.7
41.0

704

14.1

10.7

41.1

0.80

7.1

1695

2833
252
191

19
118

90
270

12
230
522

45
252
297
225
522

6.7
4.2
49.0

58.9

26.3

20.0

66,0

0.76

4.6

1996

3486
364

. 268

29
297
212
125
404

23
634

1061

145
515

660

401
1061

1.7
5.2
44.3

46.0

12.6

-8.6

2.5
45.%

0.61

3.3

8.1

{(Amounts in Rs. Million)

1997

4097
353
277

14
291
215

87
453

524
985

145
653

798

i87
985

6.7
4.9
29.5

34.5

19.7

139

6.0

5.0

55.0

0.23

4.2

7.1

1998

4900
424
365

365
300
188
605

463
1068

145
834
919
89
1068

1.4
6.1
33.8

41.3

20.7

13.0

7.5
67.5
6.09

4.6

9.9

1999

5512
477
440

440
375
222
694

540
1235

145
1065
1210

25
1233

8.0
6.8
343

41,5

9.0
83.4
0.02

4.8




Marico’s. 4
Business Direction : 2010

We commit ourselves to improving the quality of people’s lives,

in as many paris of the world, through fast moving branded consumer goods

- primarily in Nature Care and Health Care.

In the Nature Care business:
we witl offer brands that enhance the appeal and
nourishment of hair and skin through distinctive products, largety based on
the goodness of cocanut and other natural substances.

In the Health Care business:
we would make available a variety of branded products needed
for healthy liviné; drawn from agriculture and offered both in natural
and processed forms,

In the International business:
we would develop a franchise for our brands, in parts of the world
beyond the sub continent.

We wiHl aim to be a leader in each of the businesses;
by heightened sensitivity to consumer needs, setting new standards
int the delivery and quality of products and
through processes of continvous learning and improvement.

We will share our prosperity among members,
sharcholders and associates who conteibute in improving Marico’s Equity
and Market Vatue. We will acquire the stature of a friendly
corporate citizen, contributing to the betterment of neighbourhood

communities where we are significantly present.
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MarR1CcO’>s VALUES
Our values are preferred practices that will be employed in pursuit of
our Business Direction, captured in the acronym COME WIN.
On the one hand, it is an invitation to excel.
On the other, it sums up the philosophy that will guide our success.
CONSUMERS
Tor they wre the reason we exist.
MEMBERSHIP
Tor a sense of ownership empowers us. .

l“'

ExCELLENCE -

For it unleashes our potential.

WEALTH

For on it hinges our growth.

INNOVATION

Tor it gives wings to ideas.

CONSUMERS

The wealth of the company is created by the patronage of consumers. The
primary focus of our efforts will be to understand what adds greatest value to them.
We will understand and respond to ehanging needs and desires of the consamer; and
translate these into marketable products and an ever-expanding base of loyal

consumers, with speed and a quality of response that surpasses the competition.

MEMBERSHIP

Whaolesome membership is when a person brings his or her entire being into

the organisation. We wilt aHlow space for diversity and encourage genuine cxpression

14




C O ME W I N

of feelings, opinions and viewpoints. Equally important is the ability to listen without
bias and alter one's view based on soundness. Inter-personal transactions will be
characterised by trust, empathy, faith, fairness and respect. Membership gives each
member a role in articulating and shaping the destiny of the organisation which in turn
builds commitment and ownership. We will encourage teamwork and a shared
approach to results as it promotes synergy, removes communication barriers and
improves the overall quality of decisions and performance. Public acknowledgement
creates recognition and also spurs others. We will spontanecusly recognise and
appreciate both individuals and teams for their contributions reflected in rising

standards of performance.

EXCELLENCE

We will focus on policies and practices where people produce consistently
superior performance and where people are encouraged to discover their untapped
potential, Competent members will be carcered through increased and varied role
responsibilities. They will be attractively compensated based on personal and

collective accomplishment.

WEALTH

All our efforts must culminate in the creation of wealth. We will do so by
continuously adding value in everything we do through a varicty of methods. We will
use resources productively, eliminate waste, reduce cycle times and costs and enhance

the consumer base,

INNOVATION

The future of our organisation rests on our willingness to experiment, push
in new and untested directions, think in uncommon ways and take calculated risks.
Continuous improvemeni should be a part of everyday work. We must also innovate to
achicve dramatie results, Members will be encouraged to experiment and take
catculated risks where necessary, We acknowledge that failure is inherent in any new
initiative. We will commit resources for experimentation and invest in processes for

reviewing and sharing of learning.
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ABRourt MARILICO-

COoMMODITIES TO CONSUMER PRODUCTS.

Marico Industries Limited (Marico), India's homegrown Fast Moving
Consumer Goods (FMCG) Company has come a long way. Commercial operations,
which began in April 1990, by. taking over the consumer products division of The
Bombay OQil Industries Lid. (BOIL), have grown from two brands, Saffola and
Parachute, into six brands and over two dozen preducts. From 2 manufacturing units,
Marico now has 4 factories supported by several sub-contract manufacturers, Marico's
sales have grown from under Rs. [ billion (USD 23.4 million} to over Rs. 5.5 billion
(USD 128 million) in 1998-99 (FY 99}, and its retail strength has grown from about
200,000 to arcund 1,200,000, Over the last few years, export markets have been tapped
and revenues from International business have crossed Rs. 160 million {(USD 3.7
million). ¥rom a typically family owned business in the commeodities heartland of
Mumbai at Masjid, Marico has successfully transformed iwself into a professionally

managed and focussed consumer products company.

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL - A BUILDING BLoCK

The formation of Marico, in 1990, as a separate company accelerated the
endeavour to build a unique, high-spirited, flexible, yet stable enterprise. Marico
sought to attract talented individuals from industry, leading business schools and
other professionals from diverse disciplines such as marketing, technology and
finance. This sprung from the conviction that the success and growth of an FMCG
business, with significant investment in brands, depends on the guality of its
human resources. Marico realised the need to create an enabling working
environment that would best harness the potential of its own people and encourage
them to identify and create superior products to serve the needs of consumers. Since
mannger—s from various organisational backgrounds were participating in building
Marico, the need was felt to design and put in place a distinctive and appropriate
culture, Over the years Marico has built for itself a stimulating work culture that
empowers 1ts people, promotes temn building and encourages new ideas. Performance

incentives allow its senior managers to identify with the suecess of their husiness.
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For instance, cach business division has specific performanee targets linked to
generating growth and improving return on capital employed.

Marico has received recognition for its Human Resource processes, In 1994

it received the Best HR Practices Award from the National HRD Network. Marico's -

Kanjikode wnit wen the Amity - HRD Network Human Resource Excellence Award
in 1997, In 1998, Marico was recognised for Most Innovative HR Practices at the Asia
Pacific HR Conference. The World Fconomic Forum honoured Marico as a Top

Performing Global Growth Company from India in 1997.

BusiNEss MODEL - AN OUTLINE

The learnings over the last nine years have helped Marico evolve a business
model for itself. The model centres around remaining focussed, building and
leveraging its brand strength and distribution network. The entite turnover of the
company comes from branded products. Marico has chosen to shun trading in the
underlying commodities as it is not in keeping with its business focus of remaining
committed to branded and value-added products. Organisational energies are invested
only in those areas where they can add maximum value.

Investments in brand building and augmenting sales and distribution
networks are preferred over investments in other assets. The company focusses on cost

in order to achieve the hest cost structure across the value chaim

BUSINESS GROWTH

Marico recognises that in each of its chosen fields there will be certain drivers
of Future Business Growth. In categories where it enjoys a strong market position, the
emphasis will be on conversions from loose goods te branded products. Penetsation of
branded food products in India is low. Branded refined oils in consumer packs for
instance, constitute less than 10% of the total edible oil market. With two strong brands
like Saffola and Sweekar, Marico is amongst those best placed to exploit the potential
that this market provides. Instances of moves in this direction are the launch of Sweekar
edible oil catering to regional preferences and making Parachute coconut oil avatlable in
small volume flexi packs. Where the brand is a number two, constant efforts will be
made to increase market share,

Marico, over the past few years, has been focussing on increasing the share

|
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of value-added business based on brand strengths. This will help earn bet;ter margins,
as well as reduce the threat from low priced competitors, The test launches of
Parachute Active Herbs and the salt and atta {(wheat flour) extensions of Saffola are
steps in this direction.

Marico also aims at a quantum improvement in sales and distribution
capabilities. This will involve expanding the network to reach more outlets in urban India
and at the same time increase penetration to cover more towns in the rural hinterland.
Simultaneously, other channels such 25 supermarkets and institutions will be explored.

In International business, Marico's growth will comne through the launch of
the Parachute hair care range and entry in new markets.

Finally, discontinuous growth will come from brand acquisitions. The
Company will explore opportunitics to acquire brands that have a fit with its existing
product range and distribution network. Marico recently announced its first brand

acquisition - Mediker, a niche anti-lice shampoo from Procter & Gamble {India} Ltd.

BusiNgss De-RiskiNG

In the past, the fortunes of the Company were closely finked to the
performance of Parachute. Over time however, with the launch and growth of new
products, Parachute's share of the Company's gross contribution has been brought
down from nearly three fourths in 1996 to around half this year. The Company will
continue to work towards reducing this share further.

Agriculivral raw materials form a significant portion of cost in Marico’s
products; raw rsaterial prices and availability tend to fluctuate. In order to reduce risk
in this area, the Company stays away from trading. Purchases are made only for the
purpose of self-consumption. Over time, the risk has also heen spread over a larger
range of commodities. Sweekar for instance, has becn extended to rapeseed oil,
soyabean oil and groundnut oil, in addition to sunflower oil and mustard oil in which
it was present last year. The glabalisation of raw material sourcing over the last few
years has also reduced vulnerability to shortages. The Company is also constantly
working on improving price and supply forecasting skills.

A shift to value-added husinesses will ensure margins, which are not only
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higher but also less dependent on the variations in prices of the underlying raw

material commodity. In addition, value added products provide the potential of

premium pricing and further reduce vulnerability to price warriors.

INNGVATION AND REJUVENATION

Last year the Company was reorganised into three businesses as profit centres:
Nature Care {Brands: Parachute, Marico’s Hair and Care and Revive), Health Care
{Brands: Saffola, Sweekar and Sil), and International Business. This was done with the
view of promoting accountability gnd focus across the entire value chain within each
division. A separate Sales division was alse created. With each group of managers
required to focus on a smaller set of brands, energics were released and channelled
towards conceptualisation, development and launch of a range of new products in FY 99.

In the FMCG business it is necessary to rigorously question the status quo
and constantly rebuild. Marico has proven its ability at reinventing its brands. Despite
the strong position and brand equity of brands like Saffola and Parachute, Marico has
frequently veered from the tried and tested formula in its quest for excellence. In FY
98, Parachute was restaged with a new look znd the Coconut Dream story. The
consumers endorsed this and the brand has been seeing reasonable volume growth.
The principle is manifest once again in this year's repositioning of Saffola - a
comprehensive rebuilding exercise. The new Saffola jar is glug-free and hence user
friendly, ensuring that the design shift is not merely cosmetic but addresses practicai
issues as well. Saffola's makeover from the curative "Good for the Heart" platform to

the preventive and more inclusive "Heart of 2 Healthy family" has helped it ride into

the healthcare market with at least three new products,

One of Marico's principal values has been innovation. The movement from
tin packs to HDPE packs in the '80s for instance, was a change te a more convenicent
pack, which at the same time made the product more affordable to the consumer. Ther
there is a product like Revive - o one of 2 kind soluble starch that demonstrates
Marico's knack for understanding the Indian consumer's latent needs. This year
Marico test launched Revive Colourfix - yet another product that serves a typically

Indian need.
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DISTRIBUTION IN INDIA - THE
CHALLENGES & THE OPPORTUNITIES

SCATTER OFf THE POPULATION

For a branded FMCG company in India, distribution is an invaluable asset
which when managed well becomes a key competitive strength. India’s urban
population comprises 26% of the national population covering 3768 cities and towns.
The remaining 74% of the population resides in 600,000 villages spread across the
country. Many of these villages are not connected by motorable roads. The scattered
nature of the population implies a high cost of penctration, considerable complexity
in logistics and challenges of customisation to consumer needs.

The distribution channel structure in India is unigue with a large chain of
intermediaries who account for a sizeable portion of margins thereby making
distribution a key cost element. These intermediaries are retailers, wholesalers,

distributors and clearing and forwarding agents (C&TFAs).

MaRrico's DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

Marico has established for itself a strong distribution network with 26
C&FAs servicing about 3,000 distributors and stockists. These distributors, either
directly or through wholesalers, reach an estimared 1.2 million retail outlets, Of the
3768 towns in urban India, Marico directly covers 2900 towns. "Fhis  includes
coverage of all towns with populations of more than 100,000. Marice has stratified the
country into 150 territories, each of which is managed by a company employed
Territory Sales In-Charge and complemented by over 600 sales representatives

provided by its distributors.

RuURAL THRUST

Converting loose coconut oil to '1 branded product has been part of growth
strategy. In addition, the potential of exploiting the equity of Parachute in sinall semi-
urban and rural towns formed the basis of Marico's decision to extend its distribution

to rural Indin. ln the mid-nineties, it opencd a separate rural channel structure. It
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appointed around 100 “Superdistributors” (SDs) across the country for speedy and
efficient servicing of small towns. These S5Ds have their own sales representatives,
who are trained and supervised by Marico's Territory Sales Executives. About 25% of

Marico’s turnover is obtained through the network of SDs.

MaricOo CHANNEL STRUCTURE

Marico/Associate Factories
26 C&FA's {Depots)

750 Distributoys 100 Superdistributors
2400 Srockists

25000 Whaolesalers

| Y
Retail Qutlets Urban & Rural - 600,000 each

Y

Consumcrs - 18 million households

BUILDING COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS IN DISTRIBUTION

While Marico does have a strong distribution neiwork, it believes there is
further work to do. In 1998-99, when Marico reorganised itself, Sales became a
separate division, so as to be able to focus on and baild specialist skills in distribution
besides delivering cost economics. Over the next two years the Company plans to
continue its distribution expansion drive to cover towns and villages having a
population in excess of 5000.

Alongside expansion of the distribution nerwork, Marico is also focussing on
the productivity of the entire sales and distribution system by increasing the range of
products and packs and its theoughputs. New performance measurement systems have
been introduced to drive productivity improvements.

Marico s also making significant investments in information technotogy to

improve connectivity, cusure speedier processing of information and provide for data

2%
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based decision making. Marico's distributors are also proposed to be linked by
computer to its internal information network. An added benefit of these measures will
be the reduction of inventory-carrying costs and the prevention of sales foss on

account of delayed replenishments.

TRADE EqQuity

Marico's growth has also meant improved earnings for the trade - its
channel partners. The strong equity that its brands cnjoy, together with the
Company's marketing efforts, ensures a quick turnaround of its products, Tncreasing
sales and attractive return on investment for its distributors makes Marieo a preferred
company in trade. For many of its distributers, Marico forms the single lal;gest
gccount in their business,

Having built an equity for itself in trade, Marico is now in a pesition to
encourage its distributors to make investments in infrastructure and follow
standardised practices in Accounting, Stock Management and Customer Relationship
Programmes. Marico has started a programme of upgrading the quality of the
distributors’ salesmen by partnering them in recruitment and training. To reduce
subjectivity and wasteful effort in negotiating reorder quantities, order generation
from distributors is now being automated, Customised software has been developed
for installation at the distributors' offices.

Together, all these initiatives will help Marico create specialist skills in
sales and distribution. This will enable Marico to effectively counter and withstand
competition through a state-of-the-art distribution set-up, also available for other

FMCG altics to ride on,
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To the Members
"The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Eleventh Annual Report together with the audited accounts of

your Company for the year ended March 31, £1999.

Financial Results : (indian Rupees Million)
1998-99 1697-98
Sales and Other Income 5530.8 49158
Profit hefore tax 4403 3649
Tax 652 64.5
Profit after Tax 3751 © 3004
Add : Prior period adjustments — —
Profic at:ter tax and prior period adjustments 3751 3004
Add : Surplus brought forward 176.6 709
Profiravailable for Appropriation 5517 3713
Appropriation:
Interim dividend 508 43,5
Final dividend (proposed) 79.7 65.3
) 1305 108.8
Tax on dividend 13.8 109
A 1443 197
Transfer to General Reserve 550 40.0
“Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve — 350
Surplus carried forward 3524 1766
’ 5517 3713
Sales Twrnover -

Sales value showed a growth of 12.5%, as compared to 19.6% in the previous year. This growth would have been
higher, but for the lower availability of Saffiower leading to a drop in Saffola volumes as also the price cut whi ch'was
taken in Parachute Coconat Oil. The edible oil price fall during the fast quarter also impacted the sales vatue g1'oi'.:'tl1.
While volume growth varied from brand to brand, your Company continued to strengthen its brand portfolic through
the launch of new produces as Brand extensions. In keeping with its Stuategic Direction, your Company-contnues to

be No. 1 ar No. 2 in cach of the major segments is operates in.




Thuring the coming year, your Company will continue its strategy to grow its value-added businesses, based on the
inherent strength of its brands. New product launches and expansion of existing markets should help your Company

to maintain and improve its position in the competitive EMCG markets.

Profitability
The Profit before Tax was higher by 20.7% at Rs. 440.3 milfion as compared to the previousyear’s Rs. 364.9 million.
The Profitafter Taxwas also higher by 25.0% at Rs. 375.1 million as compared to the previous year's Rs. 3004million.

Dividend

“The Board had declared an interim dividend of Rs, 3.50 per share (35%) during October 1998 on the Equity capital
of Rs. 145 million, The Board is now pleased o propose a final dividengd of Rs. 5,50 per share (§5%) bringing the
total dividend to Rs. 130.5 million as compared o Rs. 108.8 mitlion paid for the previous year. This outflow excludes
the tax on dividend which worked aut to Rs, 13.8 million for the year, as against Rs. 10.9 million for the previous

ear. The dividend outflow for the year represents an inerease of abaut 20% over the previous year's outflow.
¥ y p P ¥

The Pay-out has been afeer considering the need to conserve internal accruals for acquisition opportunities during

the coming year.

Intemational Business

“The International business turnover posted an increase of 32% over the previous year, the revenue gding up to
Rs. 163 million as compared to Rs. 123 milkion in the previous year.

Yeur Company isalso expanding its presence in the Middle Fast by launching new products and entering new Markets.
Your Company has been looking at the SAARC Region as an important market for its international businesses and
has been operating in Bangladesh as an exporter from India. Tn view of the increasing volumes in Bangladesh, itis
proposed to set up a wholly owned subsidiary in Bangladesk, which will take up local manufacturing so that the

opporeunities can ke hetter tapped.

Alliances and Acquisitions

Surphus funds, virtually untapped fund raising capacity and increasing stake-holders’ aspirations, have driven your
Company’s search for acquisition/alliance opportunities to help it achieve discontinuous growth. While your
Company’s key value propositions to prospective allies are its smong brands and brand building skills as also irs
well developed and cost effective distribution nerwork, your Company has maintained a clear focus on shareholder
value and strategic fit with current business areas, in choosing acquisition/stiance targets. During the year, your
Company operationalised a Marketing and Distribution Alliance with Tndo Nissin Foods Ltd., 2 subsidiary of the

USD 2 billion company, Nissin Foods, Japan. Recently, your Company has also reached an understanding with
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Procter & Gamble India Ltd. (PGI) in‘respect of the sale to your Company of “Mediker” ~ the anti-lce treatment
shampoo business in India and with PGI and Procter & Gamble Home Products Ltd. (P&G) for the distribution

ir India, of some of their brands viz. Clezrasil, Old Spice, Pampers, Ariel Bar and Camay International.

Dropping Of the Proposed Merger of Kanmoor Foods with your Company

During October 1998, your Board of Directors decided not to proceed with the merger of Kanmoor Foods Lid.
with your Company, owing to adverse changes in the financial feasibility on account of the merger process taking
2 considerably long time and more impertantly due to doubts arising as regards the availability / quantum of tax

relief as originally envisaged in the evaluation of the merger proposaf.r

Organisation Structure

At the beginning of the year under review, your Company had re-organised itself into a divisional structure with
three profit centres, viz. Nature Care, Health Care and International Business, supported by three service centres,
namely, Sales, Personnel and Finance. The strucrare has stabilised and has been instramental in the provision of

a new stimulus and focus to each of these divisions,

Public deposits
Public deposits with your comparny 4t the end of the year aggregated Rs, 4.613 million, Nine deposits aggregating
Rs. 0.110 millior were unclaimed as on March 31, 1999, of which 4 deposits amounting te Rs, 0,060 million have

since been repaid.

Depository System
During July 1998 your Company’s equity shares were made available for dematerialisation. As of now, nearly

18% of the shares in your Company have been dematerialised.

Research & Development
During the year your Company spent Rs. 1.9 million on capital expenditure as against Rs. 3.8 million in the
previous year, On revenue account it spent Rs, 24.1 million as against Rs. 23.7 million in the previous year, The

R&D efforts have led to introduction of value added products in unique packaging during the year.

Information Technology
While it derives considerable value from intellectual capital in the form of strong brands, your Company has also
tapped the power of another form of intellectual capital viz. Information Technology (IT). During the year,

several steps were taken to strengthen the 1T function in the Company, starting with the installation of VSATs ax
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alt the factories and most of the regional offices of your Company. This and the other steps, which are being
taken, would help your Company towards establishing robust connecu:vity. Your company has also upgraded
most of its hardware to tap the connectivity enhancement. During the coming year, it is proposed to evaluate
and. implement packaged solutions such as ERP, SCM or both for improvi'ng the Information systems in your

Conpany so as to help IT provide the.much desived cutting edge to business competitiveness.

Y2K Compliance

Your Company uses Information Technolagy for most of its key functions and therefore the Y2K bug would be an
issue in several areas. However, the risk to the Company can be considered to be low because of the various proactive
steps taken towards Y2K compliance. The current level of Y2K comphiance ean be estimated at 90% for computer
systems and 85% for non-computer i.e. embedded systems. Ttis expected that during the Quarter Aprit-June 1999,
the campliance levels would reach 106%.

Your Cornpany has reviewed the Y2K compliance status for its business associates such as Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents, C&F Agents and Contract Manufactovess. Your Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
—Karvy -Consultants have confirmed that they are completely Y2K compliant. For the rest, the compliance status
varies but can be estimated to be between 40% and 80%. We expect that complete compliance by all the assaciates
would be achieved during the Quarter July-September 1999, Like all other companies, your Company also depends
considerably on various publicuslites in areas of ielecommunications, power, banking, transport ete, Your company
is maintaining a follow-up with these authorities to assess the status of their Y2K compliance. Your Company does
not expect any significant disruption to its operations due to the Y2K problem. Contingency planning will be carried
out in the second quarter of 1999-2000. The planning will include minimizing the risk duc to non-compliance of
public utilities and providers of mission critical supplies and services. The costs of addressing the Y2K issues have
been estimated at Rs. 16 mmillion.

To obtain an independent review of your company's state of preparedness and ongeing plans, which includes an
examination of the posentiaf for disruption caused by suppliessand / or customers not being ready for the millenniumg,

an external appraisal is underway.
Accounts

The accompanying Financial Statements of your company have been prepared on a going concern basis and meet

the Accounting Standards made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Your Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies, which have been applied consistently. Reasonable and
prudent judgement and estitnates have been made so as to ensure that the accounts give a rue and fair view of the state

of affairs of your company as at March 31, 1999 and the profits of your company for the year ended on that date,
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Proper and sufficient care hias been taken for maintenance of appropriate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities.

The observations of the Auditors in their Report to the Members have been adequately dealt with in the relevant

Notes to the Accounts. Hence no additional explanation is considered necessary.

Directors
Mr. B.R. Shahand Mr, C.V. Mariwala retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Mcetmg Being eligible, they

have offered themselves for reappointment,

Additonal Statutory Information

Enformation under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars
in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed and forms part of this Report. Information pursuant
to Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as
amended by the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Amendment Rules, 1999 forms part of this Report. Although
in accordance with the provisions of Seetion 219(1){b)(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956 such information has been
excluded from the Report and Accounts sent to the Members, any member desirous of obtaining this information

may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

Auditors
RSM & Cé. {formerly, M/s. Ratan S. Mama 8 Co.), Chartered Accountants retire at the ensuing Anmual General

Meeting and they have confirmed their eligibility for reappointment.

HumanResources
Human Resources continue to be the backbone of your Company’s effectiveness. Your Company has built its own
equity in the field of HR over the past few years. During the year, the Asia Pacific HR Conference chose your
Company for an award for the most innovative HR practices.
The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation of the co-operation and support received from all members of
the Marico organisation.
Admowledgment
The Board acknowledges the su pport and assistance received from the Central (Government, various State
Gaovernments, Bankers, Vendors, C & F Agents, Distributors and other business associates, and fooks forward to
continued support of all these partners in progress.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: Mumbai Charandas V. Mariwala
Date: April 26, 1999 Chairman
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Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy, Research & Development expenditure and Foreign

Exchange earnings and outgo as required under Companies (Disclosure of particufars in the Report of Board of

Directors) Rules, 1988,

A,

Conscrvation of Energy:

In the area of Power consumption, the company optimised running of dehwmidifiers, cutters, expellers and
compressor operations for its erushing operations. At the refining plant, power factor was maintained in
excess of 0.95. Furnace Qil consumption was optitized by moving to double press operations, by ¢liminating
heating of first press cakes and elimination of steam leakages. Boiler cfficiency was also improved by close
monitoring of steam fuel ratio through steam meter and CO2 meter.

The details of total energy consumption and energy consumption per unitof production are given in Enclosure 'A’.
Research & Development:

The details of Research & Development are given in Enclosure ‘B,

TForeign Fxchange eamings and outgo:

Opportunities are continuously explored to promaote the export of your Company’s products in new categories
and new territories,

The derails of total foreign exchange used and earned are provided in Schedule *Q” to the Accounts.

ENCLOSURE ‘A’

Power & Fuel Consumption:

199899 199798
Electricity

a.  Purchased Units (Kwh) 4,332,231 3,848,253
Amount (Rs. million) 13.i4 10.71

b, Own Generation
i Theough Diesel Generation units {(Kwh) 2,895,894 2,334,96%
Amount (Rs. miliion) 9.84 7.86
Rate (Rs./Unit) 3.40 337
ii.  Through Stearm Generator NIL NIL

Coal (Used for Boiler)
Quandey (M.T.) NIL NIL
Amount (Rs. million) NIL NIL
Average Rate (Rs./Ton) NI NIL
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3. Furnace Oil
Quanty (KL)
Amount {Rs. million)

Average Rate (Rs./KL)

4. OtherInternal Generation
LD.O/HSD.
Quantity (KL)
Amount (Rs. million)

Average Rate (Rs./K1}

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION OF EBIBLE OIL

Uit
Plectricity Kwh
Cont - MT
Furnace Qil Ki,

ENCLOSURE ‘B’
Research & Development (R & D)

1. Specificarcas in which R&D was carried out by the Company:

199899

1571.93
1135
722307

1.50
785%0.11

1998-99
154.0

0.03

1997-98

1582.20
12.06
762147

227.07
213
9382.39

1997-98
1344

0.03

—  Extracting and deploying in new products the benefits from agricultural and natural proseins like fibre,

protein and other ingredients.

— Improvements and innovation in processing parameters to rednce process costs.

—  Packaging development,

— Development of new producs.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D:

Over the years, your Company’s R&D efforts have heen moving closer to the Consumer in an endeavor to

understand and address his/her needs and concerns through produet, process and packaging innovadons. Some

of the berefits of this approach are as under:

— New producis like Saffols Arta, Saffola Sale and Parachute Active Herbs Hair Oil were designed based an

these needs,
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— Pracess and technology were leveraged to ensure that the products delivered met consumer expectations
in terms of price through cost efficienciés.

— Packaging development efforts resulted in unique pack offerings that showed superiority in design,
convenience and value addition. -

Your Company continues to seek out newer consumer needs and solutions through its R&D efforts.

3. Txpenditure on R&D:

Rs. million

a)  Capital 1.85
b) Recurring 24,10
Total 2595

&) Total R&D expenditure as a Percentage of tatal turnover C0A7

On behalf of the Board of Diirectors
Place: Mumbai Charandzs V. Madiwala

Date: April 26, 1999 Chairman

a3z
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To,

‘The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MARICO INDUSTRIES LIE\-HTED as at March 3ist, 1999

and atso the Profit and Loss Accownt of the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto, 2nd

report that :

1. As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies {Audiror’s Repor.t) Order, 1988, issued by the

Company Law Board in terms of Section 227 (44) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such

checks of the books and records as we considered necessary and appropriate and aceording to the information

and explanations given 1o us during the course of the zudit, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 4 and $ of the said Order to the extent applicable,

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph ‘1’ ahoves.

@)

G

©

(&)

(e)

Place

Dated

We have obtained all the information and explenations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

were necessary for the purposes of our andit;

In our epinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as
appears from our examination of those books and proper retutns adequate for the purpose of our audit

have been received from the branches not visited by us;

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with th_e'

beoks of account and returns;

In onr opinion, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account eomply with the accounting

standaxds referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

Inour opinion and ta the best of our information and according to the explanadons given tous, the accounts
give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a rue and fair

view -
(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3Ist, 1999;
and

{9} in the case of the Profitand Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the vear ended on that date,
For RSM & Co.

Chartered Accotvntants

: Mumbhai NATRAJ] RAMKRISHNA

April 26, 1999 Partrer
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(Referred to in Paragraph (1) of our report to the Members of Marico Industries Limited on the

accounts for the year ended March 31st, 1999)

§. The Company has maintained proper records shawing full particnlars, including quantitacive details and
sieuation of fixed assets. The fixed assets are physically verified by the management in a phased manner. No

material discrepancies were noticed in case of assets verified.
2. None of the fixed assets has been revalued during the year.

3. The stocks of finished goods, raw materials, stores and spares have been physically verified during the year
by the management at ressonable intervals. Confirmations have been cbtained in respect of materials lying

with third parties.

4. “The procedures for physical verification of stacks followed by the management are reasonable and adequate

in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

5. No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of stacks as compared to the book

records.

6. In our opinion and on the basis of our examination, the valuation of stocks is fair and proper in accordance N

with the pormally accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis a3 in the preceding year.

7. ‘The Company has not taken any loans, secured or nnsecured from companies, firms or other parties listed in N
the Register maintzined under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. We are informed thar there are no

companies under the same management within the meaning of Section 370(1E) of the Companies Act, 1956.

8. The Company had given loans to a company listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, The raze of interest and other terms and conditions of the loan were not, prima facie,
prejudicial to the intesests of the Company. We are informed thas there are no companies under the same

management within the meaning of Section 370 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956,

9, Loans or advances in the nature of loans given are being repaid as stipulated, together wich interest, wherever
applicable.

10. There are adeguate cantrol procedures comensurate with the size of the Company and the nagure of its

husiness for the purchase of stores, raw materials including components, plant and machinery, equipment

and other assets and for the sale of goods.

}1. The Company has entered into tansactions of purchase of goods and materials in pursnance of contracts

or arrangements entered in the Register maintained wnder Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and
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12.

13.

14.

15.

L6,

17.

18,

20,

aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000/- or more in respeet of cach party. We were informed that in
respect of these purchases, alternate acceptable sources of supply did not exist and, hence, comparison of
prices was not possible. The transactions of sale of services were at rates which were reasonable as
eompared to prevailing market rates. There were, however, no transactions of sale of goods and materials

entered in the said Register.

The Company has 2 regular procedure for the determination of unserviceable or damaged stores, raw
materials, finished gonds and materials dealt in and provision for loss, wherever necessary, has beens made

in the accounts,

The Company has complied with the provision of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the

Companies {Acceprance of Deposits) Rutes, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public,

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable records for the sale and disposal of realisable

by-products. The Company has no significant realisable scrap.
The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under Seetion 200(1){d)

of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has regularly deposited Provident Fund dues and Employees’ State Tnsurance dues with the

appropriate authorities. There were no arrears at year end.

"Phere are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, custom duty and
excise duty which have remained outstanding at the year end for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable.

No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, other than those payable under contractual

obligations or in accordance with generally accepted business practices.
"The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning of Clause (O} of Sub-section (1) of
Section 3 of the Sick Industrial Companies {Special Provisions) Act, 1985. ‘

For RSM & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai _ NATRAF RAMKRISHNA
Dated : April 26, 1999 Portner




SCHEDULE

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Capital
Reserves & surplus

LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans
Unsecured loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross block
Less: Depreciation

Net block
Capital work-in-progress

INVESTMENTS
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Inventories

Sundry debrors

Cash and bank balances
Loans and advances

wie)

¥

H

Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Liabilities
Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Wotes to the Accounts
As per our attached report of even date

For RSM & Co.
Chaitered Acconntants

NATRA] RAMERISHNA DEV BAJPAL
Partner Company Secretary &
Legal Manager

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 26, 1999
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As at March 31,

1999 1998
Rs. million Rs. milkion
145.000 145.000
1,064,861 833.977
1,209.861 978.977
24.982 89.063
24,982 89.063
1,234.843 1,068,040
857302 670.360
176251 134.463
681.051 $35.497
13.040 69.337
694,091 605.234
0440 0.425
489,111 249.818
342.466 281 455
120.846 208.792
208410 226.859
1,160.833 966.924
518071 424.033
102450 80.510
620.521 504.543
540312 462.381
1,234.843 1,068,040

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARIWALA
Chairznmi

Place

H. C. MARTWALA

Managing Director

< Mumbai

Dated : Aprit 26, 1999

i




SCHEDULE

INCOME

Sales and services Q

Other income M_
EXPENDITURE

Cost of materials N

Manufacturing and other expenses O

Finance charges P

Depreciation i

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Provision for tax {including Rs. 0,400 million
(Rs. 0.500 million) towards wealth tax]

PROFIT AFTER TAX
Balance brought forward
PROTIT AVAILABRLYL FOR APPROPRIATION

APPROPRIATIONS
Interim dividend
Tax on interim dividend
Propased final dividend
Tax on proposed final dividend
Debenture redemption reserve
General reserve
- BALANCE CARRIED TO THE BALANCE SHELET

Notes to the Accounts ' R
As per ou¥ attached report of even date

For RSM & Co.
Chartered Acconntants

NATRAJ RAMEKRISHNA DEV BAJPAI

For the year ended March 31,

1999 1998

Rs. million - Bs. million
5,512,133 4,900.240
18.647 15.556
5,530.780 4,915.796
3,176.836 2,752.165
1,824,611 1,700.092
37.068 58.827
51.974 39.848
5,090,439 4,550.932
440.291 364.864
65200 64.500
375.091 300.364
176.617 70.878
551,708 371.242
50.750 43,500
5.075 4350
79.750 65.250
8.772 6.525

— 35.000
55.000 40,000
352.361 176.617

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. C. MARIWALA

Managing Director

C. V. MARTWALA
Fartner Company Secretary & Chairumn
Legal Manager
Place : Numbai Place : Mumbai

Dated : April 26, 1999
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SCHEDULE-A’
SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED
2,59,00,000 FEquity shares of Rs, 10 each

10,000 14% Cumulative Redecmable
Preference shares of Rs, 100 each

ISSUED AND SUBSCRIBED
1,45,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up,
including 1,20,00,000 allotted as
fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation
of General Reserve

SCHEDULE ‘B’
RESERVES & SURPLUS

CAPITAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Received during the year

SHARE PREMIUM
As per last Balance Sheet

GENERAL RESERVE

As per last Balance Sheet

Add: Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve
Transfer from Profit and Loss Account

DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE

As per last Balance Sheet
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account
Less: Transfer to General Reserve

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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As at
March 31,
‘ 1999
Rs, million

295.000

1.000
300.000

145.000
145.000

2360
0.140

2,500

165,600

455.000
35.000
55.000

545.000

35000

35,040

352361
1,064.861

As at
March 31,
1998
Rs. million

299.000

1.000
300.600

145.000
~145.000

2360

T 2360

165.000

415.000

40.000
455.000

35.08¢

35.000
176.617
833.977

——




As at As at
March 31, March 31,
1999 1998
B Rs, million Rs. million
SCHEDULE ‘/C’
SECURED LOANS
Working capital finance from banks — —
(Secured by hypothecation of stocks in trade and other tangible
movable assets of the Company, wherever situated, and guaranteed
by three Directors of the Company. Balances outstanding againse
working capital limits as at the year end is Rs. Nil)
SCHEDULE ‘D!
UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed deposits 4403 9.176
Repayable within a year Rs. 1.832 million (Rs. 4.426 million)
13.25% Non-Converdble Debentures of Rs. 100 each, privately
placed — 70.000
Deferred sales tax loan ) 20.579 9.887
(Repayable over five years commencing from year 2006)
24,982 89.063
SCHEDULE ‘¥’
FIXED ASSETS Rs. million
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Addiviens  Deductions Asal Upto For the Deductions Upto Asat As ar
Aanch Mauch Alangh Yeur Mond: ALarch March
I, 31, i, . 3, i,
1998 199 g 1993 1Ay
Frechold land 2103 — — 193 — — — - .103 AP
Leasehold land 334 - - 334 azst am7 —  ums 295 19
Building 205671 8381 — 2005 10563 5003 ~ asam | wmam s
TPhane & wachineny R s 123540 503832 118.204 45.086 9982 1533 350528 287397
Furniture & Finy 8279 3561 o200 1210 337 ol 008 4188 790 540
“Trade mari/
Copyright i — — 3004 — . — — 30000 RIEREL]
Vehicles T80 il 034 854 i Rs7 wnn 2705 613% S0
TOTAL G0 I [REIH 857307 U-L-lf}___ 31074 10056 76251 63105} 335807
PREVIOUS YEAR Hdtn LI 670360 U451 0848 033 133203
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (X1 COSH) INCLUDING ADVANCES ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT Mg i
Notes 604001 [T
L Gross bhuck of Buildings includes peeding evecutinn of cansevanie — Rs. 4,280 million (Rs. 130653 millon) SR e
3 Gross Block of Plant & machineny includes cint of 2ssers Teased sur — Bs. 47,608 million (Rs. 32 802 milhicn)
3 Taadam/Copyeight is perding registration,
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SCHEDULE ‘P

INVESTMENTS (At Cost, Non Trade)

LONG TERM - U_NQUOTED

Government securities:

National Savings Certificates (Depasited with Govtrauchorities)

CURRENT — QUOTED
Unit Trust of India — Unit Scheme — 1964
16,170 (16,170} Units of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Unit Trust of India Master Gain -~ 92
4,600 (4,600) Units of Rs. 10 each fully paid

TOTAL

Aggregate market value of quoted investiments

SCHEDULE ‘G*

INVENTORIES

(As valued and certified by the
management — Note 1(f) of Schedule 'R}

Raw materials*

Packing materials

Stores, spares, consumables & chemicals ete.
Work-in-process

Finished products

By-products

* Encludes Goods in Transit Rs. 21.527 million (Nil)

SCHEDULE ‘H?
SUNDRY BERTORS
{Unsecured — considered good)

Qver six months
Others

40

Asat
March 31,
1999

Rs. million

0.119
0.119

0.260

0.0a1

0321

0440

0.290

150.879
55.004
7.462
3.674
271.202
0.890

489.111

4158
338308

342466

As at
March 31,
~ 1998
Rs. million

0.104
0.104

0.260

0.061
0.321
0425

0.294

48.808
49.030

8.167

4,305
139.081
0.427

249.818

6.174
275.281

281.455




SCHEDULET
CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash on hand

Balances with banks:
Fixed deposits
{includes Rs. 4.501 miflion (Rs. 0.779 miltion) lodged with
Govt. authorities)
Margin accounts (Against Letters of credit and Bank guarantees)
Current accounes — Scheduled banks
- Non Scheduted bank
(Jalgaon Janata Sahakari Bank Lid.)
[Maximum balance Rs. .732 million
(Rs. 0.316 mitlion)]

SCHEDULE T
LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured — considered goad)

Inter corporate deposits

Adwvances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be received
Deposits

Balances with Central Exeise authorities
Interest accrued on — Tavestinents

— Others
SCHEDULE ‘K’
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors
Unclaimed dividend
Other liabilities

Security deposits
Interest accrued but not due on loans

SCHEPULE ‘L’
PROVISIONS

Income tax {net of advance rax)
Diminutdon in value of investments
Dividend

Tax on dividend

41

As at
March 31,
1999

Rs. million

0.822

4.503

2.893
112,563
0.065

120.846

68.500

81.368
51.852

6.130
0.082
0478

208.410

433.000
0600
42,105
42463
0491

518071

13.898
0.030
79.750
8772

102450

As at
Mareh 31,
1998
Rs. million

0.697

0.779

4.501
202.813
0.002

208.792

82.500

99.950
43.784
0.038
0.082

0.505
226.859

344.683
0.006
34.533
41.246
3.565

424.033

8709
0.026
65.250
6.525

80.510




SCHEDULE ‘M’
OTHER INCOME

Income from investinents {(Gross)

[Tax deducted at saurce Rs. 0.005 million (Rs. 0.017 miltion)]

Provision for diminution in value of
imvestrnents written back
Miscellaneous income

SCIEDULE ‘N’
COST OF MATERTALS

RAW MATERIALS :
Opening stock
Add : Purchases
Tess : Sales
Less : Closing stock

PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS

(INCREASEYDECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING §TOCK

Work-in-process

By-products

Finished products

Less:

CLOSING STOCK :
Wark-in-process
By-products
Finished products
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Year ended
March 31,
1999

Rs, millicn

48.808
3,240.219
58.024
150.879

3,080.124

228.665

4.305
0427
139.081

3.674
0.890
271.202

(131.953)

3,176.836

Year ended
March 31,
1998

Rs. million

0.138

1.060
14.358

15.556

60.801
2,536.123

48.808
2,548,116

194.429

3.576
2,694
147.163

4.305
0.427
139.081

9.620

2,752.165




Year ended

March 31,
1999
Rs. million
SCHEDULE ‘O .
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES
Employees’ costs :
Salaries, wages and bonus 137.173
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 19.089
Welfare expenses 21.358
177,620
Packing materials consumed 545.900
Stores, spares and chemicals consumicd 24378
Power, fuel and water 41.816
Contract manufacturing charges 119.185
Rent and storage charges 44.347
Repairs to : Buildings 9420
Machinery 7.182
Others 3715
20317
Freight, forwarding and distribution expenses 217.191
Advertisement and sales promotion 389.526
Rates and taxes 1.442
Sales tax and cess 41262
(Includes cess relating to earlier years Rs. Nil (Rs. 25,526 million)
Printing, stadonery and communication expenses 26976
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses ' 49.578
Royalty o 26,181
Insurance 3.922
Provision for diminution in valee of investinents 0.004
Miscellaneous expenses 94.966
1,824.611
SCHEDULE ‘P’
FINANCE CHARGES
Interest on fixed foans 7407
Other interest 19.894
Bank charges and others 31,292
58.593
Less : Interest earned 21.525

37.068
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Year ended
March 31,

1968
Rs. million

106.216
13312
17.030

136558
525.759
25,037
37.547
96.701
136,543
8345
6.354
5413

20112
183.345

407.026 .

2.379
63.831

19.542
42.014
27.522

3121

73.055
1,700.092

25.612
21.290
40063

86.965
28.138

58827
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March 31, March 31,
1999 1998
Quantity Value  Quantity Value
MT. Rs.million MT. Rs. million
SCHEDULE Q’ : '
B) RAW MATERTALS CONSUMED
Oil seeds 47956000  1,507.932  47,894.178  1,532.949
Raw oils ' 35710000 1401003  29,236.894 927.098
Others — 171,189 — 88.069
3,080.124 2,548.116
O VALUE OF IMPORTED AND % Value % Value
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED Rs. million Rs. million
Raw materials
Imported 3176 978.113 14.81 371277
Indigenous 6824  2,102.011 8519  2,170.839
10000 3,080.124 10000 2,548.116
Stores, spaves and chemicals
Tmported e — 046 0:116
Indigenous 100.00 24.378 99.54 24.921
100.00 24378 H00.60 25.037
D} VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.IF. RASIS
Raw material 941183 280976
Capital goods 29447 21.849
970.630 312.816
E} EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
Packing material 4226 42,735
Travelling & other expenses 43,349 19.480
47.575 62,235
F) TF.0.B.VALUE OF EXPORTS 143813 H7.043
117.043
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SCHEDULE T¢
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS :

k.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

(@

(b}

()

G)

(e}

M

The Company and nature of its operations

Marico Industries Limited ( “Marico’ or “The Company”), head quartered in Mumbai, India, carries
on business in Fast Moving Consumer Geods, Marico manufactures and markets products under
brands such as Parachute, Saffola, Sweekar, Marico’s Hair & Care, Siland Revive. Marico’s products
reach its consumners through resail outlets serviced by Marico's distribution network comprising 4

‘Regional offices, 26 Carrying & forwarding agents and abouat 3000 distributors spread all over

India. The Company’s export markets comprise The Middte East and SAARC countries. Marico

has manufzcturing facilities located at Goa, Kanjikode, Jalgaon and Sewree, supported by

subcontracting units.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial staterents are prepared under the historical cost convention on an acerual basis and

are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition. Costincludes taxes, duties, freight and other incidental

expenses related to acquisition and installation. Interest on borrowings, to finance Fixed assets

during construction period is capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for major projects are also

capitatised, where appropriate.

Depreciation

() Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight line method at the rates and in the manner
specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Depreciation on additions/dednctions
during the year has been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of addition/
deduction. Fxtra shift depreciation is provided on “Plant” basis.

(i) Assets given on lease are depreciated over the primary period of the lease.

(ifiy Assets individually costing Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition,

{iv) Leasehold land is amortised over the peried of lease. '

) Trademarks/Copyright with Economic Value exceeding the carrying cost are not weated as
depreciable assets.

Investments

{i) Long term Investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of
Tnvestments is made to recognise a decline, ather than temporary.

(iiy Current Investments are valued at lower of cost or market value, computed categorywise.

Inventory

i) Raw Material, Packing Material, Chemicals, Consumables, Stores & Spares and Wosk-in-
process are valued at cost,

(i} Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

(iii) By-products and Unserviceable/damaged finished products are valued at net realisable value.

(iv) The bases of determining cost for various categories of inventories are as follows :
Finished goods and work-in-process : Direct Costing basis
Others : FIFO basis

(v) Storesand spares individually costing less than Rs. 1,500 are charged off in the year of purchase.
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(g} Research and Development

Capital expenditure on Research & Development is aliocated to fixed assets. Revenue expendimre

is charged off in the year in which it is incurred.
(h) Revenue Recognition ‘

(D) Sales are recognised at the point of despatch t6 the customers and stated net of trade discount
and exclusive of sales tax,

i) Agency Commission Income is recognised upon effecting sales.
(i1} Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis.
(i} Retirement Benefits

The Company has various schemes of retirement benefits, namely, Provident, Superannuation and

Gratuity Funds. These funds are administered through Trustees and the Company’s contribution
thereto is charged to revenue every year. Accruals are made for Leave encashment and Gratuity on
the basis of actuarial valuation.
(3} Foreign Currency Fransactions
Current assets and Current liabilities are translated at forward cover rate or at year end exchange
rate, as applicable. Resultant gains or losses are recognised in the profit and loss account other than
the exchange rate difference relating to fixed assets which are adjusted against the carrying cost of
corresponding fixed assets. Exchange differences arising on forward exchange contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.
(k) Government Grants
(i} Government grants related to the total investment in undertaking are treated as capital reserve.
{if} Government grants related to specific fixed assets are reduced from the cost of the assets.
Capital Reserve represents subsidy received from the Government of Kerala for setting up of the new
plant at Kanjikode, which is refandable, if the unit goes out of preduction within five years of reeeipt of
subsidy.
Miscellaneous Income includes lease income Rs, 7.346 million (Rs. 8.309 million), Export Incentives
Rs. 3.920 million (Rs. 1.050 mitlion), Income from current investments Rs. 0.164 million {Rs. Nil).
Miscellaneous expenses includes Commission and Brokerage Rs.15.901 million (Rs. 8.328 million},
Donations Rs. 0.169 miltion (Rs. 0.106 million), Cash discount Rs. 0.384 million {R35.0.542 million),
Loss on salc of assets (Net )} Rs, 0,544 million (Rs. 6.166 million}, Audit fees Rs. 0.575 milkion {Rs. 0,225
million), Payment to Auditors for other services Rs. 0.073 miltion {Rs. 0.125 million), Payment to
Auditors for out-of-pocker expenses Rs. 0.042 million (Rs. 0.060 million).
Research and Development expenses aggregating Rs. 24.104 million (Rs.23.656 million) have been
included wnder the relevant heads of expenses.
Exchange gains (net) aggregating Rs, 4.276 million (Loss - Rs.12.392 million) have been included under
the refevant heads in the profit and toss account.
Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:
(a) Letters of credit outstanding Rs. 44.272 million (Rs. 74.107 million).
{b) Sales Tax/Cess claims disputed by the Compary (net of tax) Rs. 33.081 mitlion (Rs. 21.185 millien).
(¢} Income Taxand interest demand by the Tncome Tax department disputed before higher authorities
Rs. 2,121 million {Rs. £.822 million).
(d) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. 0.983 million (Rs,0.721 million}.
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account to the extent not provided
for Rs. 19.530 million {(Rs. 53.168 million) net of advances.

Cost of assets taken on lease Rs. 12.488 million (Rs. 11.240 million). Future lease rental obligations
Rs. 3.252 million (Rs, 2.930 millien}. ‘
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Managerial Remuneradon :
i) Calculation of Commission payable to the Managing Director :

March 31, Mareh 31,

1999 1998
. Rs. million Rs. million
Profit before taxation 440,291 364.864
Add: Director’s Remuneration 5368 4.715
Directors’ Sitting Fees 0.032 0.038
Depreciation as per books 51974 39.848
Loss on sale of assets as per books 0.544 0.166
Profit on sale of assets under Sec, 350 — 0.410
Provision for diminution in
value of investments 0.004 0.098
498,213 410.139
Less: Depreciation under Section 350 84,708 59.684
Provision for diminution in value of
investments written back — 1.060
Loss on sale of assets under Sec. 350 0.552 —
Profitas per Section 349 412.953 349395
Comunission to Managing Director @ 1%
of net profit 4,129 3.494
i) Payments and provisions on account of
remuneration to Managing Director .
included in Profit & Loss Account.
i) Salary 0.600 0.600
iiy Commission 4,129 3.494
ity Contribution to Provident Fund
and Pension Fund 0162 0.156
iv) Other Perquisites 0477 0.465
5368 4,715

The above remuneradon does not include contribution to Gratuity Fund as this conunibution is a lumpsum
amount for all relevant employees based on actuarial valuation.

The company deals with several Small Scale Industrial (SSTy undereakings on mutually accepted terms and
conditions. Based on the records of the company and the information received from 551 suppliess, the
various amounts due to SSIs and included undersundry creditors aggregate Rs. 22 970 million. The names of such SS1
suppliers where individual balances are in excess of Rs. 1 lakh and due for more than 30 days are as under

Carder Plastics Pve. L., Chakreshwari Industries, Coastal Packagings, Dhoshi Packaging Industries, Eskay
Flexible Packaging, Fidvi Printing and Packaging, Garden Plast, Himalaya Containers and Cartons, Inter
Labels, Panorama Industries, Jan Plastics Pvt. Led., Kaveri Packaging, Kupatha Plastic Udyog Pvt. Ltd,,
Leeraj Printers Put. Lid., May & Win Enterprises Pvt. Lid., Neeljyot Plastics, Parees Offset Pve. Lid,,
Polite Plastics Pvt. Ltd., Prudent Aris & Fab Pve. Ltd., Rachana Enterprises, Samveer Oil Mills Ltd,,
Shree Ambe Packaging, Shree Ganesha Packaging, Shree Ganesha Printer and Packaging, Skanda
Engineering Industries Pvt. Lud,, Sree Mockambikai Plast, Sti Ayyappa Paper Company Pyt Lid,,
Vasumati Print and Packaging.

. The figures in brackets represent those of the previous year which have been regrouped wherever

necessary to conform with current year.
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13. Information pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 :
a) Registration detaifs :
Registration No. : 13-49208
Balance Sheet Date : 31st March, 1999

b) Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. million) .

Public Issue Nil
Bonus Issue Nil
Rights Issue Nil
Private placement Nil

¢) Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Amount in Rs. miltion)

‘Total Liabilities 1,234.843

Taotal Assets 1,234.843

Sources of Funds Application of Funds

Paid up Capital 145.000 Net Fixed Assets 694.091

Reserves & surplus 1,064.861 Investments 0.440

Secured loans Nil Net Current Assets 540.312

Unsecured loans 24.982 Misc. Expendirure Nil
Accumulated losses Nil

d} Performance of the Company (Amountin Rs, milfion)

Turnover (Sales & Other Income) 5,530.780

Total Expenditure 5,090.489

Profichefore Tax 440.291

Profitafter Tax 375.091

Earnings per share (in Rs.) 25.87

Dividend rate (%) 90

¢} Genericnameofthe three principal products/services of the Company:

Ttem Code No. Product Description
1. T.C. Cade) .
151319.00 Coconut Qil
151219.01 Sunflower Oil
151219.02 Safftower OH

Signatures to Schedules A to R
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DEV BAJPAL C. V. MARTWALA H. C. MARTWALA

Place : Mumbai Conpary Secretary & Chatrian Managing Director

Dated : April 26, 1999

Legal Manager
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Year ended
March 31,
1999
Rs, million
A, CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax and prior
period adjustinents 440.291
Adjustments for :
BDepreciation 51.974
Finance charges 37.068
Loss on sale of assets 0.544
Provision for diminuation in value of
investments - 0.004
Loss/(Profit) on sale of investments e
Income from investments (0.040)
Provision for diminution in value of
investinents written back —
89.550
Operating Profit before working capital changes 529.841
Adjustments for :
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories 239,292
Increase/(Decrease} in Sundry debtors 61.012
Increase/(Decrease) in Loans & advances (18.44%)
Deerease/(Increase) in Current liabilides {94.038)
187.817
Cash generated from Operations 342.024
Less : Payments for
Direct taxes (Net of refunds) 60.016
Finance charges 58,592
118.608
NET CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW)
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES A 223416
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVIEIES
{Purchase} of Fixed assets (143.740)
{Purchase)/Sale of Investments {including bills discounted/ICD}) 0015
Sale of Fixed assets 2369
Tterest/Dividend income 21565
Capital subsidy received 0.140
NET CASH INFLOW/AOQUTFLOW) I
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B (119.681)
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Year ended
March 3],

1998

Rs. mitlion

364864

39.849
58.828
0.166

0.098
0.138)

(1.069)
97.742

462,606

(18.785)
31.450

(34.114)
(89.563)

(111.612)
§73.618

71.819
85.560
157.379

416.239

(192.670)
47.920
0.489
28.276

(115.985)
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Year ended Year ended

March 31, March 31,
1999 1998
Rs. million Rs. million
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Borrowings (64.081) {98.070)
Dividend.paid (127.600) £95.700)
NET CASH INFLOWAOUTFLOW)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C (191.681) (193.770)
NET INCREASEADECREASE) IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS As+B:C (87.946) 106484
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 208.792 102,308
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 120846 208.792
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place ; Mumbai C.V.MARTWALA I C. MARTWALA
Dated : April 26, 1999, ) Chabnan Managing Director

Auditors’ Certificate

We have examined the attached Cash Flow Stateméent of Marico Industries Ltd. for the year
ended March 31st, 1999. The statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the requirement of Clause 32 of the listing agreement with The Stock Exchange and is
based on and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and Balance
Sheet of the Company covered by our report dated 26th April, 1999 to the members of the
Company.

For RSM & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai ' NATRAJ RAMEKRISHNA
Dated: April 26, 1999, Paytner
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(Indian Rupees million)

Particulars Three months ended

Jun. 30, 98 | Sep. 30, 98 [Dec. 31, 98 (Mar. 31, 99 Iy oo
Sales & Services 1093 1376 1544 1500 5512
Other Tncome 4 7 2 5 19
Total Revenye 1097 1383 1546 1505 5531
Total Expenditure 982 1214 1418 1387 5001
Finance Charges 7 9 13 7 37
Gross profit after finanee charges .
but before depreciadon and taxation 108 159 115 10 492
Depreciation i4 14 13 11 52
Profit before Tax 94 145 101 100 440
Provision for Tax 14 21 13 17 65
Profit after Tax 30 124 88 83 375
Farnings per share (Amualised)(Rs) 22,1 34.2 24.3 229 259
Dividend declared per share (Rs.) 9.00
Particulars Three months ended

Jun. 30, 97 | Sep. 30, 97 [Dec. 31, 97 {Mar. 31, 98 FY 98
Sales & Services 1008 1260 1304 1328 4900
Other Income 3 4 5 5 16
Total Revenue 1010 1264 1309 1333 4916
‘Towl Expenditure 207 1104 1222 1219 4452
Finance Charges 9 20 17 13 59
Gross profit after finance charges
but before depreciation and taxadon 94 140 70 160 405
Drepreciation 8 8 i1 17 40
Profit before Tax 86 132 59 89 365
Provision for Tax 18 28 8 11 65
Profit after Tax 68 104 51 77 300
Farnings per share (Annualised) (Rs.} 18.6 28.8 144 213 20.7
Dividend declared per share (Rs.) 7.50

All the above pertains to information on continwing operations.
MNo significant business activity has been discontinued in the years FY 98 and FY 99.
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ST0CK EXCHANGE PERFORMANCE

The company’s shares quoted at Rs. 695 per share on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai
(BSE) on March 31 ‘9l9, giving Marico @ market capitalisatian of over Rs. 10 billion. The
performance of Marico's stock on the BSE since its listing in May *96, is captured in the graph
below which sees it outperforming the CNX MIDCAP 200 - an index which tracks comparable

companies including Marico (Data pertain to closing quotes).

o
MARICO vis CNXMIDCAP 200
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SHAREHOLDING

The Shareholding pattern of the company as on April 21 *99 is given below

9% F.l.l.s

Others 10%

tndividuals 11%

i Q,
Fls/MFs 7% 63% Promoters
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Shares in Marico are lsted on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE) and ‘The Nadonal Stock Exchange
(NSE). The following table sets forth the high and low prices, as well as the traded volumes, of the Marico
shares.

Tae STock Excranes, Minmar (BSE)
' Market -Avg. Volume

High Low Closing  Capialisation per day

{INR per share of INR I0/- each) (INR million) No. of Shares

(000)

Quarter ended

Mar. 31, 1999 725 346 695 10078 81

Dec. 31, 1998 372 290 353 5119 5.6

Sep. 30, 1998 305 232 302 4379 216
Jun, 30, 1998 359 235 246 3480 10.2

Mar. 31, 1998 - m 216 260 3770 7.6

Dec, 31, 1997 345 _ 250 - 258 3741 8.2

Sep. 30, 1997 357 307 340 4930 149

Jun, 30, 1997 326 230 326 4727 226

Tue NATIONAL STOoCK EXcHANGE, (NSE)
Marker Avg. Volume

High Low Closing Capitalisaton per day
(DNR per share of INR 10/- each) (IINR million)No. of Shares
£600)

Quarter ended
Mar. 31, 1999 723 348 695 16078 56
Dec. 31, 1998 373 286 355 5148 4.3
Sep. 30, 1998 307 238 308 4466 6.7
Jun. 30, 1998 358 232 238 3451 8.6
Mar, 31, 1998 272 214 258 3741 6.1
Dec. 31, 1997 343 247 255 3698 £13
Sep. 30, 1997 355 308 3in 4669 3.2
Jun. 30, 1997 306 232 3i6 4582 23

Marker Capiwlisaton is compuied on the closing price of each guaster,
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SHARFHOLDER INFORMATION :

Annual General Meeting : The Annwal General Meeting of the shareholders will be convened at 3:00 p.m.on
22nd June 1999, at M. C. Ghia Hall, Fort, Mumbai 400 001.

Book Closure ; The dates of book closure for final dividend 1998-99 will be 15th June, 9% to 22nd June,'99
(both days inclusive).. .

Stock Txchange Listing : The Company’s equity shares are listed on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE)
and The National Stack Exchange (NSE).

BSE Group : B, Transaction Code : 31642

NSE Transaction Code : Maricoind

Reuters Code : MRCO

Bloomberg Code : MRCO RN

Copies of the Annual Report : These can be requested by mail directed to the Company Secretary, at the
Company’s Registered Office address or by fax on (91-22) 641 0106 or by e-mail at milinvrel@hotmail.com
Copies are also available via the Company’s internet site at hetp://www.maricoindia.com

Quarterly Reports: These are available via the Company’s internet site at http://www.maricoindia.com

Shareholder Records : For any assistance regarding shareholding, share transfers and transmissions, address
changes, non-receipt of dividends, duplicate/missing cerdficates please write to The Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents : M/s Karvy Consultants, 7, Andheri Industrial Estate, Off Veera Desai Road, Andheri (West),
Mumbai 400 058, India. Tel. : (91-22) 636 7226, 636 9044, 632 2266

Fax:(91-22) 631 0882 '

Dividend : The Company paid an interim dividend of Rs. 3.50 per share on 12th January, ’99. The proposed
final dividend of Rs. 5.50 per share, if approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, will be
paid by 3rd August, 1999.

Shareholders who have not encashed their dividend cheques for the first interim dividend 1996-97 or any of
the subsequent dividends, are requested to send ¢he autdated cheques for revalidation to the Company at ies
Registered Office.

Nomination : The Comnpany proposes to inwoduce a nomination facility in terins of the Companies Amendment
Ordinance, 1999, subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 22nd June, 1999,
This would facilitate the process of wransfer of shares to nominees of shareholders, when required.

Dematerialisation of Shares : Requisite facilities for dematerialisation of the Company's shares have been ser
up. The Company’s shares can now be held and traded in electronic form.

Multiple Mailings : Tfyou receive multiple maitings of Marico’s annual report and would like us ro eliminate
the extra copics, please send your written permission to our registrars indicating your folio number. Multiple
mailings accur if shares are held in multiple names, are registered under diffevent names or are regisiered with
slight differences in names and addresses.
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Marico’s LoGo

The two pillars of the letter “M” reflect solidity.
And the casual stroke across them reflects flexibility.

Our Company’s colours are also represented in the logo.

Grey denotes corporate formality, and mauve, modernity.

Printod at TAWA DONNELITY
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An all new manufacturing facility. *

In this Annual Report

Tn A League Of Its Own
To Feliow Sharcholders
Sharcholder Value Maximisation
Financial Highlights
Directors’ Report

Annexure to Directors’ Report
Auditors’ Report

Annexure 10 Auditors’ Report
Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss Account
Schedules to Accounts

Cash Flow Statements
Investor Information

Marico’s Presence in India

i
5
i




ANNUAL REPORT 1997 698

6 brands, 3 market leaders. 4 factories, 27
depots. 3000 distributors, 425,000 retail

outlets, A description of a true blue chip.

The Marico Stable
Heéﬂth Care

Mature Caye

Parachute Saffola
Revive Sweekar

Hair & Care SIL
- |

In terms of brands and distribution muscle,

a term that Marico rightly deserves. Since
1990-91, its first year of independent
operations, Marico has recorded consistent
and handsome growth: A compounded
annual rate of 25% in turnover and 43% in

post-tax profits,
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90-91

Every single Marico brand is either

number one or number two in its category.

Parachute is India's leading coconut oil
(CNO) brand. Sweekar and Saffola
together lead the branded Refined Ofl in

Packs (ROCP) segment Revive

' 'as prolccnon,

and other processed foods is similarly
placed at the second spot in that market.

Thanks to the insights that Marico has
into its consumers, it is energetically
pursuing new business opportunities and
tapping new markets with relevant brand
extensions. For 1997-98, Total Revenue

stands at Rs. 4916 million, while post-tax

profits are Rs. 300 million. Exports are
Rs. 123 million.

Parachute - Opening Out

After an eventful first life of 40 years,

Marico decided to refurbish the Parachute

image. Marico appointed Strategic
Shining Design, the famous Paris-based
image consultant to give a new, more
vibrant fook to Parachute. Research was
conducted to zoom in on the perceived
and potential values of Parachute. The
findings clearly stated purity, nourish-
ment, reliability, and heritage as core
values, What was missing was emotional
values, liveliness and a young image. The
need of the hour, therefore, was a new
image. Following the rescarch, Strategic
Shining Design, which works with global
consumer product giants, came up with a
new logo and a new look - the Coconut
Dream. The Coconut Dream connotes
seal

Marico's and pmmlse of the

o f__goodness of coconut m al! lls products

It caplures the values of coconut such

nulmlon, nounshmenl

' rehglosuy and natural goodness among

others. Parachute’s Coconut Dream seeks

10 bring out all these db_-éood values of

'L;h_tvher-'coconut and associate them with

the brand Parachuate. It is Parachute’s

"~ business unit and dcnve a Vaiuc Cham R

# Each business unit will have a Business

O
promise - both rational and emotional - to

all its consumers. The Coconut Dream”

“seal is now on all extensions of Parachute.

It is the first step towards the
metamorphosis of Parachute from being
the largest
Coconut Qil
Brand into a
mega brand

with several

value-added
products under its umbrella,

The new logo
defines a s;pecial
kind of beauty, a
living, breathing

timeless beauty.
Blue reflects vastness, and serenity, Green
reflects health, natural nourishment I
and earth, White stands for purity and
tranquility.

Consumers have responded to the new

loock with enthusiasm, assured of the

elernal goodness of the product.

4
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éTo deat with pace ‘and change of ‘the

': future Martcn has Iieorgamsed itself mto

:_ three busmesses whlch will function as

Profit Centres: Nature Care, Health Care . .
and International Business, The rationale .-
for this is to : i

#Support Strategy with strug

HStrengthen unique
required for each busine;

BImprove co-ordination:

focus,
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Head team of

“professionals. Such an approach will

supported by a

create a new stimulus, enthusiasm,

accountability and focus.

The New Organisation

Carporate
Personnet

Marico achieved a tumdver of Rs. 4916
million, a 19% growth over the previous
year. All the brands registered double
1997-9%, a year of consolidation, also saw
two strategic initiatives.
One was the refurbishing of Parachute in
terms of image and product.

The other was the internal regrouping into
three Strategic Business Unils.

digit growth in terms of volume alongside
appreciable profit growth. Stable raw
material prices and lower finance charges
saw the company post a 27% rise

in operating profit and a 50% rise in

net profit,

Pre-tax profit uvp 32% from Rs. 277
million 10 Rs. 365 million.
A net profit of Rs. 300 million, 30%

higher than the previous year.

Marico’s Profit Before Depreciation,

Interest

Operating Margin

and Tax

({PBDIT),

% to sales

adjusted for

expenses of

Rs. 26 million, at Rs. 489 million, was
higher by 27.4% over the previous year’s
PBDIT of Rs, 384 million, the operating

matgin PBT & PAT
improving e
from 9.4%

to  10%.

Pre-tax o G

margin on turnover went up from 6.7% to
7.4%. At the net profit level, the margin
improved from 4.9% to 6.1%.

The results analysed

Marico’s improved resuits can be
attributed to several factors. Chiefly,
stable raw material prices, increased

realisations and lower finance charges.

Raw material cost as & percentage to sales
fell by almost 3 percentage points. This
was partly a correction of the abnormal
increase in raw material prices in the
previous year. While employee and
other operating costs have more or less
remained under control, increased invest-
ment in advertising and sales promotion
tan be largely attributed to the re-staging
of Parachute, the launch of new products

and increasing competition in the market.

Lower finance charges also played a pari

in this year’s showing.

1996-97 || '1997-98
Materials 590 | 562 -
Advertisement & N
Sales Promotion 59 83
Personnel 2.8 28 |
Other expenses 22.9 2279
Operating Costs 90.6 90,0

Finance charges came down by almost

229, from Rs.76 million to Rs.59 million
owing to reduced debt burden, Other
expenses include Rs. 26 million which

represents a non-recurring item.

Where brands stand

Parachute - The dream run

The little blue bottle, by now a synonym
for pure coconut oil, reaches 18 million
households. During 1997-98, sales of
Parachute Coconut Oil grew by 10% in

volume and over 22% in value. Such

+ Sovres - ORG Retai Report

powerful growth further consolidated
Marico’s lock on this segment. Market
share figures provide ample proof.

To leverage the Parachute brand name
fully, Marico launched three variants of
‘ Lite,

Parachute last year: Parachute

Parachute Nutri Sheen Liquid and
Parachute Nutri Sheen Crearn.

Parachute Lite is targeted at young
women who appreciate purity and
nourishment without the greasiness asso-
ciated with oil. Parachute Nutri Sheen,
targeted al young, upper class, fashion-
conscious individuals, is a pioneering
concept. It is a grooming product avai-
lable in both Hquid and cream form. The
initial response to all the three brand
extensions has been encouraging. Marico
expects significant contribution to sales
and profitability from these extensions,
besides franchise

inviting a larger

of consumers.
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Hair & Care - Chipping away
at the market leader

EEYEF W

* Source: ORG Retail Report

in the Non-Sticky Hair Qil (NSHO)
market, Marico’s Hair & Care continued
to hold the number 2 position. Its market
share-during the last year increased from
26.2% to 27.8% through a reach of 1.3
million households. The brand, during
1997-98, grew by around 20% in both
volume and value terms. Hair & Care
continues to make inroads into the market
leader’s share and is expected to keep up

the momentum in future too.

Revive - one of a kind.

Revive continues to
penetrate more and
more households,
the figure reaching
0.9 million during

1997-98. In volume

terms, Revive witnessed a volume growth
of over 20%, while in terms of value it
grew by over 50%. Revive's competitive
position is unassailable, considering it’s
the only branded household starch in the
markel. During 1997-98, Marico test
marketed Revive Spray Starch, the
response to which was encouraging. The
future would see more innovative
extensions of Revive, aimed at a more

convenience-minded consumer.

Saffola & Sweekar - Healthy growth

In the Refined Oil in Consumer Packs

(ROCP) segment, both Sweekar and
Saffola continved to grow, While in terms
of volume, Saffola and Sweekar together
grew by about 19%, in value terms
they grew by zbout 16%. Saffola is the
only refined safflower oil in the country
even after 30 years of its- launch. The
brand franchisc has been steadily
increasing both with the consumers
the_ The

agricultural extension efforts over the last

and medical fraternity.

few years have also helped the company

1996-97  1997-98

Saffola + Sweekar 16.5 '.16..6 _

* Source: ORG Retait Report

in increasing its equity with farmers. The
company assists farmers through its agri-
extension efforts in association with
various State Governments,

The franchise for Sweekar was extended
into Refined Mustard oil in the North and
East. The initial response matches
expectations. Sweekar today reaches
nearly half a million households. The
increasing franchise of Sweekar is
intended to be leveraged by extending its

presence into other ROCP categories.

SIL - Emerging
player

Processed  foods
marketed under the
brand SIL currently

make a relatively

small contribution
to Marico’s turnover. The range comprises
jams and specialities such as Chinese

sauces, baked beans, mayonnaise and

soups. SII. recorded a healthy growth
of 21.4% during 1997-98, and now’
reaches nearly half a million households,
Changing consumer habits, evidenced by
the introduction of new types of processed
foods in the market, highlights the scope
for the SIL range of processed foods. The

brand is, therefore, well positioned to tap

emerging trends.

Copra
Coconut prices remained more or less

stable during 1997-98, with no major

“fluctuations in Copra prices.

Safflower / Sunflower

Towards the end of 1997-98, safﬂower/w

sunflower prices commenced a spiral
upwards, increasing by as much as 50%
at times.

This has been caused by a domestic crop
failure due to unseasonal ‘winter rains,
lower production in other exporting
countries and a ban on exports of palm oil
by Indonesia, which has reduced the
availability for importing countries,
including India.

The reduced availability, particularly
of safflower, and the inflationary price
situation, is a cause for concern during

the current financial year. Appropriate

strategies are being worked out,

B T T R e

On a financial note

During 1997-98, Marico increased its
Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 150
million to Rs. 300 million. There was no

change in the Paid-up Equity Capital of

(323

§
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Among

the company. Reserves and Surp}us have

'sone up substantially from Rs. 633

million to Rs. 834 miltion. Marico has

been very conscious about its debt profile

o
=1

Net Working Capital

.
=
I
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As no, of days to Sales
5 8 8

0
96-97

67-88

and has been reducing debt consistently.
The debt : equity ratio is now at an all-time
fow of 0.09, down from 0.23 previous
year. The company had no outstanding
secured debt at the end of 1997-08.
unsecured  loans, - Marico
lredeemed the entire Commercial Paper
of Rs. 50 million while privately placing
13.25% non-convertible debentures worth
Rs. 70 million. A prime contributor to
lower finance charges was efficient
working capital management, a key
parameter for all consumer-products
companies. While inventory holding
period came down from 24 days to 19
days, average collection period too came
down by a day from 22 days to 21 days.

The average net working capital cycle

came down from 47 days to 34 days.

Liquidity, Cash Flow
& Deployment

During the year, Marico's nel operating
cash flow increased by 46% from Rs. 286
million to Rs. 416 million. The company,
as of March 31, 1998, had net surplus
funds of Rs 120 million, which are

proposed to be judiciously deployed in

Net Operating Cash Flow

Rs million

-97 57.98

exploring growth opportunities including
acquisitions, without compromising the
return on capital employed and sharcholder

value accretion.

jeidesat s e

Despite a 20% growth in Sales, the
average Capital Employed was flat at
Rs. 1027 miilion, up by only Rs. 4 million
from the previous year’s level of Rs. 1023
million. Capital Employed,which does not
rfse in the same proportion as Sales,
provides to Marico’s business, a platform
of leanness, based on which Operational
and  Marketing  efficiencies  can
consisfemly contribute  to FEconomic

Value Added (EVA).

Average Capital Employed

Rz million
[=13
[
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together with improved earnings has
helped Marico to post handsome gains
on two important parameters of return
to shareholders, viz., Return on Capital
Employed {(ROCE) and Return on Net

Worth (RONW). ROCE went up from
| 44.5% to 41.3%, while RONW spurted

Effective utilisation of Capital Employed

from 29.5% to 33.8%.

Returns

During 1997-98, Marico successfully
commissioned its Goa factory without
any time or cost overruns. The factory,
with a project cost of about Rs 165
million,incorporates the DeSmet Tech-
nology in oil expelling,which has been
emp]oyéd for the first time in the world

for crushing Copra on a large scale.

it e ,
it Tt

g; rand growth. Profits. And more. In

December 1997, the World Economic

Forums honoured Marico as a Top-
performing Global Growth Company
from India. Another recognition was the
prestigious AMITY - HRD Network
Human Resource Excellence Award, won
by Marico’s Kanjikode unit, from among

160 organisations. Marico’s all round

competencies continue to win accolades

from the cognoscenti.




Dear Sharehiolders:

Financial Performance

Marico closed - 1997-98 with a 20% sales
growth and a 50% profit growth. Qur brands
their leadership

continued to reaffirm

positions. The focused efforts of our

Organisational Members and associates
ensured an extended consumer franchise
across India, the Middle East and some

SAARC countries,

New Organisation Structure
1998-99,

ourselves into three Businesses which will

Effective we have organised
function as Profit Centres: Nature Care
(Brands: Parachute, Hair & Care and'Revive),
Health Care (Brands: Saffola, Sweekar and
SIL) and International Business, Each of
these - Businesses require specialised focus
and competencies, thereby rendering such a
re-organisation a strategic necessity, Also, the
creation of the profit centres would lead
to higher business orientation, improved
interfunctional co-ordination and ensure the
most competitive and judicious use of
shareholders’ funds. Another feature of the
new structure is the creation of a separate Sales
Organisation which would improve the overall

productivity of the Sales effort,

Brands

Brands are key assets for Marico. There have
been some doubts expressed on the ownership
of the Brands - Parachute and Saffela. Ht is
16 be noted that Parachute and Saffola were
conceived by Bombay Oil Industries Limited
(BOIL) before Marico's incorporation. BOJL
is therefore the natural owner of the Brands.
However, the Brands Parachute and Saffola
are on perpetual lease to Marico, allowing it

total freedom 1o build the Brands, Marico is

also free to extend the equity of the Brands to
new products at no extra royalty costs. Marico
has the first right of refusal, should BOIL wish
to alienate itself from the ownership of the
Brands. The royalty rates are commerciatly
reasonable, in line with the industry practice.
The cumrent arrangement thus ensures that
the commercial benefits of the Brands are
available to Marico on an enduring and
sustainable basis. The other Brands, namely
Sweekar, Revive, Hair & Care and SIL are in

the exclusive ownership of Marico.

Merger of Kanmoor Foods

with Marico

The proposed merger of Kanmbor Foods
Limited with Marico is awaiting the approval
of BIFR. In considering the merger proposal,
Marico has ensured that the principle of
incremental  shareholder
compromised in any way. Accordingly, if the
merger {erms, as finally approved, are not in
the best interests of Marico, the merger will
not be proceeded with.

Marico, as a matter of policy, deals with other
entities owned by its promoters on an “arms-
length commercial basis”. This policy would

continue to apply in all respects.

Distribution Policy

From a conservative stance of a closely-held
unlisted company, Marico has moved towards
delivering value to the Shareholders in line
with the practices adopted by high performing,
widely-held companies. In the past two years,
the dividend has increased each half year.

This commitiment towards shareholder value-

enhancement will continne 1o be the determi-

! nant of Marico’s Distribution Policy

i

f The mmediate Future

|

| The 50% profit growth of 1997-98 was partly

value is noi

a correction of the deceleration during 1996-97
and hence, may not be futly sustainable. +
However, the financial performance outtook
for 1998-99 is promising. Raw material
availability by and large, will be satisfactory,
except in the case of Safflower, which ma.y
give rise to fluctnations in revenue and profits
from quarter to quarter.

We would continue to consolidate, pursue
aggressive growth and extend our Brands with
a greater emphasis on value-added products.
Marico is one among the few funds-surplus
companies in India. We will continue (o ensure
that we utilise these funds judiciousty towards

maximising Shareholder Value.

The Long Term Future

The birth of Marico eight years ago, was the
continuation of a dream we had of building

a contemporary FMCG business, equal to, if ¢
not better than the best. Our dream, has been
partly realised, but there are still many things
to do and yet more things to accomplish.

We will aggressively grow ouwr three
businesses, in spite of the highly competitive
environment and the acecelerated pace of
change. We believe we have all our building
blocks in place to launch ourselves into the
next millennium as a formidable FMCG
company in India and parts of Asia.

Our capabilities have been amply demon-
strated in ‘our track record. You can rest
assured that we will continue to work hard
in delighting you, both as a consumer and as

an investor.

Best Wishes.

Charandas V Mariwala

Chairinan

S T R T e T R L L T
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Research has shown that there is a
Yandamental comelation between Economic
Value Added (EVA) and sharcholder value,
Last year, we were one of the few Indian
companies to measure and report EVA in their
Annual Reporl, We continue to report this

measure of Shareholder value creation.

EVAis:

EVA is the residual income after a charge for
the cost of capital provided by lenders &
shareholders is comsidered. It represents the
value added to the sharcholders by generaling
opera’ging profits in excess of the cost of capitat
émponed in the business.

EVA can also be described as incremental Net
lQperaling Profit after Tax (NOPAT) over cost
of capital employed (COCE).

NOPAT is :
Profits after depreciation and taxes but before
interest, denoting the returm available to both

lenders and shareholders.

COCE is:

The weighted average cost of funds.

Cost of funds comprises cost of borrowed
funds & cost of own funds, i.c. cost of equity.
Cost of equity is the aggrepate of risk free
return approximated by retum on 364 day
treasury bills plus Market risk premium
multiplied by the Beta factor, The Beta factor
with the

measures the risk associated

company’s equity relative to the share markel.

An increase in EVA reftects :

o Greater efficiency in utilisation of existing
capital.

&investment of additional capital in projects

that return more than the cost of obtaining

the new capital, i.e profitable growth.

e Liquidation of unproductive investments that

do not cover the cost of capital.

Marico’s Policy

Marice believes that consistent enhancement
of EVA would lead to a consistent appreciation
in sharcholder value. EVA has, therefore, been
adopted as a yardstick to measure shareholder
value in Marico and is being woven into the

performance measurement system at various

levels. This will ensure that the objective of
maximising shareholder value is embedded
across Marico’s qrganisation structure.

During 1997-98, EVA as a percentage of the
Average Capital Employéd grew to 183%
from 8.5% in 1996-97, the quantum of EVA
showing a hefty rise from Rs. 87 million to

Rs. 188 million,

Economic Value Added analysis

The following detailed analysis of the EVA

Year ended March 31 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1598
(Rs. miltion}

Average Capital Employed 207 294 427 704 1023 1027

Avg, Debt/Total Capital 544% 4698 436% 444% 287% 13.5%

BETA Variant 0.75 0.75 0.75 073 0.75 .75

Cost of Risk Free Debt

{Average of 364 days

Treasury bill yields) 114%  iLi% 102% 129% i13% 100%

Market Premium 10.0% 10.0% 100% 100% 10.0% 10.0%

Caost of Equity

{Cost of Risk free debt +

(Béta * Mkt. Premium)} 18.9% 186% 17.7% 204% 18.38% 17.58%

Cost of Debt {(Post Tax)% 8.7% 8.3% 103% 100% 10.0% 94%

Weighted Average

Cost of Capital (WACC) 134% 13.7% 144% (58% 162% 164%

Frofit after Tax (PAT)

(excluding

exteaordinary Income} 62 64 118 183 201 300

Add:

Interest Post Tax 23 25 33 52 52 57

Net Operating

Profit after Tax (NOPAT} §5 88 154 236 253 357

Less: Cost of Capital 28 40 62 11 166 169

Economic Value Added 58 48 89 125 87 188

+ 1996 Average Capital Employed excludes the effect of application money received pending

allotment (Rs, 173 million).




growth reveals Marico’s twin strategy for
shareholder value enhancement viz. control

capital employed and boost operating margins.

Marico’s EVA Track Record

EVA Track Record

Rs million
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Marico’s EPS and
Dividend Record

Earnings and Dividend per Share
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Marico on the Stock Exchanges

Marico made its Initial Public Offer (IPO)
during March 1936, at a price of Rs. 175 per
share of Rs. 10. The performance of Marico’s
share since the IPO is captured in the graph
alongside, which sees it out-performing the
CRISIL 500 - ar index which tracks a large
sample of comparable companies including

Marico.

Marico (BSE) vis-a-vis
CRISIL 500 {both indexed to 100}

1404
130 4

120 Matico

110 7 \ .
100

90 1 /A

801 )

70 4 CRISIL 500

a0

Monthwise data frem May 256 10 Aprd 98

Shares in Marico are currently listed on the

B30E Bt

Bombay Stock Exchange as also on the

National Stock Exchange.

Shareholder Return Analysis

Since its IPO, Marico has provided
consistently ¢nhanced returns to its share-
holders. The Retumns to an investor in the IPO
consist of a capital appreciation of Rs. 160 per
share (based on the market price of Rs. 335
per share on the BSE as on April 27, 1998),
together with aggregate dividends of Rs, 8.00
per share starting with the Interim dividend for

1996-97 and ending with the Interim for 1997-98.

Market Capitalisation

Marico's Marlket Capitalisation as on April 27,
1998, was Rs. 4857.50 million, based on the
closing price of Rs. 335 on the Bombay Stock
Exchange. Marico would be amongst the first
150 comﬁanies on the BSE ranked in the order

of Market Capitalisation.

Distribution of Shareho]ding
(As on April 27, 1998.)
Marico Shareholding Pattern

Promoters
., B4%

Qthers . -
19Y%

Flis
17%

Current Limit to Investments by Foreign

Institutional Investors (FIIs) is 24%.

Codes for Transactions

Reuters Code : MRCO
Bloomberg Code :MRCOIN
BSE Code 131642

RICO
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Rs. million
Year Ended March 31st 199t 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
Sales 1058 1595 2163 2364 2833 3486 4097 4900
Profit before Interest and Tax 70 109 204 207 252 364 353 424
Operating Profit before Tax 45 62 148 149 191 268 277 365
Extraordinary Income - - - - - 29 14 -
Profit before Tax 45 62 148 149 191 297 291 565
Profit after Tax 24 29 62 64 118 212 215 300
Economic Value T
Added (EVA) - - 58 48 90 i25 87 188
Net Fixed Assets 40 68 1o 167 270 404 453 605
Investments - - - 7 22 23 ] -
Net Current Assets 40 91 145 159 230 634 524 463
Total Capital .
Employed (TCE) 80 159 255 333 522 1061 985 1068
Share Capitat 9 9 45 45 45 145 145 145
Reserves 24 53 82 140 252 515 653 834
Net Worth 33 62 127 185 257 660 798 979
Borrowed Funds 47 97 128 148 225 401 187 89
Totat Funds Employed 80 159 255 333 522 1061 985 1068
Ratios : .
Retumns :
Profit before Tax to Turnover (%) 4.3 39 7.0 6.3 6.7 N 6.7 74
Profit after Tax to Turnover (%) 2.3 1.8 2.9 2.7 42 52 4.9 6.1
Return on Net Worth
(%) (PAT / Avg. Net Worth) 721 61.1 65.6 41.0 49.0 443 29.5 338
Return on Capital Employed .
(%) PBIT / Avg. TCE 87.5 9.2 98.6 704 589 46.0 34.5 413
Net Cash Flow from
Operations per Share - - - - 17.03 1.75 19.71 28.71
EPS (Rs.} 27.11 31.67 13.76 14,13 26.27 12.63 13.85 20.71
EVA per Share (Rs.) - - 12.89 10.67 20.00 8.62 6.00 12.97
Dividend per Share (Rs.) - - 2.00 1.20 £.50 2.50 5.00 7.50
Gearing :
Debt/Equity (No. of times) 1.42 1.56 i.01 0.80 0.76 0.61 0.23 0.09
Book Value per Share (Rs.} 36.67 68.89 2822 41,11 66.00 4552 55.03 67.52
Others :
Sales to Capital
Employed (No. of times) 13.23 10.03 8.25 7.10 543 329 4.16 4.59
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Board of Directors

Top Management Team

Company Secretary

Bankers

Auditors

Solicitors

Registered Office

Factories

Charandas Vallabhdas Mariwala, Chairman
Kishore Vallabhdas Mariwala

Bipin Ratilal Shah

Cyril Suresh Shroff

Harsh Charandas Mariwala, Managing Director

Harsh Mariwala, Managing Director

Jeswant Nair, Chief Executive Gfficer - Sales

Pranab Datta, Chief Executive Officer - Health Care
Shreekant Gupte, Chief Executive Officer - Nature Care
Arvind Kumar, Chief Execntive Officer - International Business
Rakesh Pandey, Chief Human Resources Officer

Milind Sarwate, Chief Financial Officer

Dev Bajpai

Allahabad Bank
ANZ Grindlays Bank
Bank of Baroda
Citibank MN.A.

State Bank of Saurashtra

Dalal Desai & Kuamana

Amarchand & Mangaldas & Suresh A. Shroff & Co.

Rang Sharda, Krishnachandra Marg, Bandra Reclamation,

Bandra {West), Mumbai 400 050,

# ‘P’ Plot, Fosberry Road, Sewree, Mumbai 400 033.
B E-10, M1D.C. Area, Jalgaon 425 003.
& Industrial Development Arca, Kanjikode -
Menonpara Road, Kanjikode, Palakkad 678 621.
Plot No.70/0 & 72/1, Khandepar Village, Ponda, Goa 403 401.
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To the Members,

The Board of Directors is pleased to present
the Tenth Annual Report together with the
audited accounts of your company for the year

ended March 31, £998,

Financial Results

Sales and other Income

Profit before Tax

Tax

Profit after Tax

Add: Prior Period Adjustiments

Profit after Tax and
Prior Period Adjusiments

- Add: Surplus Brought forward
Profit Availabie for Appropriation

Appropriations
Interim dividend

Final dividend (Proposed)
Tax on dividends

Transfer to General Reserve
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve

Surplus carried forward

Sales Turnover

‘ Sales value grew at 19.6% as compared
to 17.5% in the previous year, showing
acceleration in growth.

All product categories registered double digit
percentage volume growth,ranging from 10%
to 22%, despite intense competition all over.

The year wilnessed a restage of ‘Parachute’

with a new logo based on graphics developed
after consumer research,

Your company’s product portfolio was
expanded with the addition of new product
extensions under the brand ‘Parachute’, These
included ‘Parachute Lite,” a non-greasy
perfumed coconut hair. oil’ and ‘Parachute

Nutrisheen,” a hair grooming formula in liguid

(Indian Rupees Million)

1997.98 1996-97
4915.8 4118.2
364.9 276.8
645 _760
300.4 200.8
- _136
300.4 214.4
70.9 733
3713 _287.7
43.5 29.0
65.3 43.5
108.8 72.5
10.9 43
119.7 76.8
40.0 140.0
35.0 -
176.6 70.9
3713 2877

as well as in cream form. The ‘Revive’ brand
also saw an extension through the launching of
‘Revive Spray Starch.” Refined Mustard Oil
{RMO) under the brand ‘Sweekar’' was
launched during this year.

During the year, your Company's market share

grew in most categories. Your Company

continues to be No.l or No.2 in each of the

segments it operates in.

The advent of new players in the market as
well as the availability of newer technologies
will make the market far more competitive in
the coming days. With renewed emphasis on
consumer insight, your company is well poised
to meet the challenges and cash in on the

opportunities thrown up by the market place.

International Business

The International business posted an increase
of 48% over the previous year, the revenue
going up to Rs. 123 million as compared to
Rs. 83 miilion in the previous year. The reach
of your company’s international business now
extends to the Middle East, SAARC Countries,
Mauritius, Singapore and the USA.

Profitability

The Profit before Tax was higher by 32% at
Rs. 364.9 million as compared to previous
year's Rs. 276.8 million. The Profit after Tax
showed a quantum jump from the previous
year's Rs. 200.8 million to Rs. 300.4 miilion,

showing an increase of 50%.

Dividend

An interim dividend of Rs. 3.00 per share
(30%) was declared by the Board on October
21, 1997, on the Equity capital of Rs. 145
million. The directors are now pleased to
propose a final dividend of Rs.4.50 per share
{(45%) bringing the total dividend to Rs. 108.8
million as compared o Rs. 72.5 million paid
for the previous year. The dividend outflow for
the year represents an increase of 50% over the
previous year’s outflow. This outflow excludes
the tax on dividend (at $0% on the amount of
dividend payable) which worked out lo

Rs. 10,9 million for the year, as against Rs. 4.3
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million for the previous year.

Capital

During the year, the Authorised Equity Share
Capital of your Company was increased from
14.8 million shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating
Rs. 149 million,to 29.9 million shares of Rs. 10

each aggregating Rs. 299 million.

Managment of Capital Employed

Greater operational efficiency saw an increase
in cash flow from operations from Rs. 286
million to Rs. 416 million, a spurt of 46%. The
focus on control of working capital continued
to yield results through reduction in Net
Current Assels from 47 days of sales in the
. previous year to 34 days of sales this year. The
gross black of fixed assets grew by 37%,
primarily on account of Capital Expenditure at
the Goa unit,which was commissioned during

October, 1997, with no over-run on time or cost.

Finance

Your Company continued to enjoy the highest
credit rating of A1+ (Highest Safety) issued by
ICRA Ltd. for Commercial paper programine.
At the end of the year under review, your
company had very litlle reliance on borrowed
capital, the debt : equity ratio being as low as
0.09:1. The financial leveraging capacity of

your Company is, thus, quite high.

Public Deposits

Public Deposils with the company as at the end
of this year aggregated to Rs. 9.2 miltion.
Seven deposits aggregating to Rs. 0.09 million
were unclaimed as on March 31, 1998, out
of which 4 deposits amounting to Rs. 0.06

million have since been repaid.

Investments

In line with the policy of focused operations,

your directors have, during the year, continued

with and completed the disinvestment of
your company’s non-corefequity investments.
To the extent not required for acquisition
opportunities, the surplus funds of your
company will continue to be invested

prudently in short-term financial instruments.

Kanmoor Foods Ltd.

During the year, the Board approved, in
principle, a scheme of amalgamation, with
your Company, of Kanmoor Foods Limited
(KFL), a sick Company within the meaning

of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special

Provisions) Act, 1983, under the regulations of

the Board for Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (BIFR).

The scheme of amalgamation is in line with
your Company’s long term business strategy to
pursue growth in the processed foods segment
and significantly increase the value of the
brand *SIL’ which belongs to your Company.
The amalgamation is subject to your approval
and also to the approval by the BIFR of ail
the terms and conditions spelt out in the
merger proposal. The Notes (o Accounts

provide further details.

Research & Development

The Research & Development efforis of your
company continued with a renewed emphasis
on consumer insight. During the year, the
Company spent Rs. 3.8 million on capital
expenditure on Research and Development, as
against Rs. 0.5 million in the previous year,
The expenditure on revenue account was
Rs. 23.7 million as compared to Rs. 142

miilion in the previous year.

Investor Relations

Your company has been holding meetingé
with leading Equity Analysts/Anvestors/Fund
Managers for facilitating a better informed
financial analysis. During the year, meetings
were held after declaration of half-yearly
results to disseminate information on
important issues of investor interest. The
company would continue this practice and also
institute other measures aimed at better quality
of disclosure of infonnati-m: to all investors,
both present and potential,

Steps are being taken to dematerialise shares
of your company to facilitate paperiess trading

on the B'ombay Stock Exchange and the

Nationa! Stock Exchange.

Accounts
The accompanying Financial Statements of

your company have been prepared on a going

concern basis and meet the Accounting

Standards made applicable by the Institute -

of Chartered Accountants of India.

Your Directors have selected appropriate
accounting policies which have been applied
cansisﬁeniky. Reasonable and prodent judge-
ment and estimates have been made so as to
ensure that the accounts give a trule and fair
view of the state of affairs of your company as
at March 31, 1998, and the profits of your
company for the year ended on that date.
Proper and sufficient care has been taken for

maintenance of appropriate accounting records

in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding tht:.

assets of your Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other trregularitics.

The cobservations of the Auditors in their

Report to the Members have been adequately

dealt with in the relevant Notes to the
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Accounts. Hence no additional explanation is

wonsidered necessary.

Directors

Dr. Kirit S Parikh resigned from th.c
Directorship of your Company on October 4,
1997, on account of his having taken up
an assignment” as Senior Economic Advisor
to the Administrator, United Nations
Development Programme, New York., The
Board wishes to‘ place on record its
appreciation of the contribution rendered by
Dr. Parikh during his tenure as Director.

The Board in its meeting held on Qctober 21,
1997, appointed Mr. Cyril 8§ Shroff as
Additional Director to hold office till the
tlansuing Annual General Meeting, Mr. Cyril

Shroff retires at the ensuing Annual General

. Meeting. Your company has received a notice

from a sharehelder under Section 257 of the
_ Companies Act, 1956, proposing Mr Cyril
' .Shroff’s candidature for appointment as a
Director liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Kishore Mariwala retires by rofation
and, being eligible,

reﬁppointment.

Additional Statutory Information
Information pursuant to Section 217{1)(¢}
of the Companies Act, 1956, recad with
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the
Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,
is annexed and forms part of this Report.
Information pursuant to Section 217 (2A) of
‘the Companies Act, 1956, read with the
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules,
1975, forms part of this Report. Although in
accordance with the provisions of Section
219(1)(b)Gv) of the Companies Act, 1956,

such information has been excluded from the

offers himself for

Report and Accouﬁts sent to the Members, any
member desirous of obtaining this information
may write to the Company Secretary at the

Registered Office of your Company.

Auditors

Mfs. Dalal Desai & Kumana, Chartered
Accouniants, retire at the ensning Annual
General Meeting and are eligible for
reappointment as Auditors. However, they
have intimated the company of their inability
to continue as Statutory Auditors from the
close of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

M/s. Ratan 8. Mama & Co., Chartered

Accountants, have expressed their willingness

-to take up the assignment of the Statutory

Auditors of the company. They have also
confirmed that, if approved, their appointment

would be in accordance with the limits

* specified in Section 224 (1b) of the Companies

Act, 1956, M/s. Ratan §. Mama & Co,,
established in 1952, are a reputed finm of
Chartered Accountants with an affiliation,
since 1976, with Pannell Kerr Forster, one of
the top ten Internationat Accounting firms.
A resolution for their appointment as Auditors
is being placed before the shareholders
for their approval at the ensuing Annual

General Meeting,

Human Resources

Human Resource Relations in your Company
continue to be cordial and productive. The
Board wishes to place on record its appre-
ciation of the co-operation and support
received from all members of the Marico

Organisation.

Acknowledgement

The Board takes this opportunity to

acknowledge the support and assistance
received from the Central Governifient,
various State Governments, Bankers, Vendors,
C&F Agents, Distributors and other Business

associates, and looks forward fo the continued

support of all these partners in progress.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Charandas V Mariwala

Chaimman

Place; Mumbai

Dated: Aprii 27, 1998
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Disclosure of paiticulars with respect to Conservation of
Energy, Research & Development expendifure and Foreign
Exchange eamings and outgo as required vnder Companies
(Disclosure of partticulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988.

A. Conservation of Energy:

i) Reduction in power consumption was achieved
through rationalisation of material handling
equipment and instaHation of local capacitors for
improving power factor.

ii) Reduction in Furnace Oil consumption was
achieved through installation of efficient steam
traps alongwith strainers and use of fire side and
water side chemicals to improve steam to fuel
ratio.

iy Reduction in L.D.O. consumption was achieved
through improving the thermic fluid circulation
mechanism.

The details of total energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of preduction are disclosed in Enclosure

A

B.

Research & Development :

The details of Research & Development are disclosed
in Enclosure ‘B,

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo :

Opportunities are continuously explored to promote
the export of company’s products in new categories
and new territories.

The details of total foreign exchange used and earned
are disclosed in Schedule ‘Q’.

ENCLOSURE ‘A’
Power & Fuel Consumption :

1997-98 199697
Electricity
a) Purchased Unit (Kwh) 3,848,253 3,673,120
Amount (Rs. million) 1071 9.80
b)) Own Generation
i) Through Diesel
Generator
Units (Kwh) 2,334,961 1236472
Amount (Rs. million) 7.86 342
Rate {Rs./Unit) 3.37 21
iy Through Steam
Generator Nil Nit
Coal (Used for Boiler)
Quantity (M.T.) Nil Nit
Amount (Rs. million) Nil Nit
Average Rate (Rs./Ton) Nil Nit

1997-98 1996-97
Furnace Oil
Quantity (K1) 1582.20 1544.54
Amount (Rs. million} 12.06 1149
Average Rate (Rs./Kl) 7621.47 7436.88
Other Infernal Generation
L.D.Q/H.S.D.
Quantity (K1) 227.07 22652
Amount {(Rs. million) < 2,13 214
Average Rate (Rs./Kl) 9382.3% 944045
CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF
PRODUCTION OF EDIBLE OIL
Unit 1997-98 1996-97
Etectricity Kwh 112.9 1222
Coal M.T. - Wil Nil
Furnace Qil K 0.03 0.04

ENCLOSURE ‘B’
Research & Development

1.

Specific areas in which .R&D was carried out by the

Company:

— Technology selection/upgradation for converting
agrobased commodity into value added consumer
benefit.

— Packaging Development fo improve quality,
aesthetics and cost structure.

—  Development of new products,

Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D:

New product launches to address niche consumer
benefits, improvement in quality and cost structure of
packaging material and addressing consumer needs
through selection of appropriate technology for product
development. -

Expenditure on R&D:;
Rs. million
a) Capital 3.76
b) Recurring 23.66
Total 27.42

¢} Total R&D expenditure
as a percentage of total
tarRover 0.56

For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors

CHARANDAS V MARTWALA
Chairman

Place : Muambai
Dated : April 27, 1998

|
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To,
The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED as at 315t
March, 1998 and the annexed Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and report that:

I. As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 1988,
issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956,
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered necessary and
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of the
audit, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of
the said Order.

2. Further to our comments above:

4. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as appears from our examination of those books and proper returns
adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us;

¢. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account and returns; -

d. In our opinion,

i, the accounting policies followed by the Company are in conformity with the Accounting
Standards made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

ii. there has been no material deviations from the accounting policies consistently followed
by the Company; ‘

iij. the accounting treatment of jtems in the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account is
appropriate.

e. In our opinion and to the best of our information and dccording to the explanations given to
us, the said accounts read together with the nofes thereon and in particular, Note no. 10 to
Schedule ‘R’ regarding effect not given to the scheme of amalgamation pending approvals of
BIFR and shareholders, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the
manner $o required and give a true and fair view;

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 1998 and

ii. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

For and on behalf of
DALAL DESAT & KUMANA

Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai . NATRAJ RAMKRISHNA
Dated : April 27, 1998 Partner
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10.

11,

12.

13.

14.

15.

(Referred fo in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets. The fixed assets are physically verified by the management in a phased
manner. No material discrepancies were noticed in case of assets verified.

None of the fixed assets has been revalued during the year.

The stocks of finished goods, raw materials, stores and spares have been physically verified during
the year by the management at reasonable intervals. Confirmations have been obtained in respect of
materials lying with third parties.

The procedures for physical verification of stocks followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared o the
book records.

In our opinion and on the basis of our examination, the vahiation of stocks is fair and proper in
accordance with the normally accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis as in the
preceding year.

The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other parties
listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. We are informed

that there are no companies under the same management within the meaning of Section 370 (1B} of -

the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company had given loans to a Company listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956. The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the loan were not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. We are informed that there are no companies
under the same management within the meaning of Section 370(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956,

Loans or advances in the nature of loans given are being repaid as stipulated, together with interest;
wherever applicable.

There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of ifs business for the purchase of stores, raw materials including components, plant and
machinery, equipment and other assets and for the sale of goods.

The Company has entered into transactions of purchase of goods and materials in pursuance of
contracts or arrangements entered in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000/- or more in respect of each party. We were
informed that in respect of these purchases, alternate acceptable sources of supply did not exist and,
hence, comparison of prices was not possible, The transactions of sale of services were at rates
which were reasonable as compared to prevailing market rates. There were, however, no transactions
of sale of goods and materials entered in the said Register.

The Company has a regular procedure for the determination of unserviceable or damaged stores, raw
malerials, finished goods and materials dealt in and provision for loss wherever necessary has been
made in the accounts,

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted from the
public. ‘

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable records for the sale and disposal of realisable
by-products. The Company has no significant realisable scrap.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.
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16. Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under Section
209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956,

17. The Company has regularly deposited Provident Fund dues and Employees’ State Insurance dues
with the appropriate authorities. There were no arrears at year end.

18. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth-tax, sales-tax, custom
duty and excise duty which have remained outstanding at the year end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

19. No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, other than those payable under
confractual obligations or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.

20. The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning of Clanse (Q) of Sub-section(})
of Section 3 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 19835,

For and on behalf of
DALAL DESAT & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ RAMKRISHNA
Dated : April 27, 1998 Pariner




SCHEDULE
SOURCES OF FUNDS

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Capital
Reserves & surplus

w e

LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans
Unsecured loans

ol

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

FTXED ASSETS E
Gross block
Less : Depreciation

Net block
Capital work-in-progress

sl

INVESTMENTS

.CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories

Sundry debtors
(ash and bank balances

-~

Loans and advances

Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Liabilities
Provisions

R

NET CURRENT ASSETS

i

For notes forming part of the accounts and accounting
policies, see Schedule R.

As per our attached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAT & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

As at 31st March

19938
Rs. million

145.00
833.98

978.98

89.07

T 8907
1,068.05

670.36
134.45

53591

69.34

605.25

0.42

249.83
281.45
208.79
226.87

966.94

424.04
80.52

504.56

462,38

1,068.05

1997

Rs. mittion

145.00

653.24
798.24

127.24
59.90

187.14
. 985.38

490.82
95.14

395.68

57.38

453.06

7.94

268.61
250.00
102.31
301.48

922.40

333.08
64.94

398.02

524.38

985.38

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H. C. MARTWALA

Meanaging Direcior

NATRAJ RAMKRISHNA DEV BAJPAT C. V. MARIWALA
Partner Secretary Chairiman
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Dated : April 27, 1998 Dated : April 27, 1998
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For notes ferming part of the accounts and accounting

policies, see Schedule R.

As per our attached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

NATRAT RAMKRISHNA DEV BAJPAT

Partner Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 27, 1998

For the year ended 31st March
1997
Rs. million

SCHEDULE - 1998
Rs. million
INCOME
Sales Q 4,900.24
Other income M 15.56
4,915.80
EXPENDITURE
Cost of materials N 2,7152,17
Manufacturing and other expenses 0 1,700.09
Finance charges ° P 58.82
Depreciation E 39.85
. 4,550.93
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 364.87
Provision for tax (including Rs, 0.5 million
{Rs. 0.5 million) towards wealth tax) 64.50
PROFIT AFTER TAX 300,37
Prior period adjustments:-
Income tax provision written back —
PROFIT AFTER TAX ANP
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 300.37
Balance brought forward - 70.88
"PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS 371.25
APPROPRIATIONS
Interim dividend 43.50
Tax on interim dividend 4.35
Proposed final dividend 65.25
Tax on proposed dividend 6.53
Debenture redemption reserve 35.00
General reserve 40.00
BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET 176.62

4,096.86
21.37

4,118.23

2,418.88
1,31543
75.74
31.34

334139

276.84

76.00

200.84

13.60

214.44
7329

28173

2900

43.50
435

140,00

70.88

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARTWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Chairman Managing Director

Place . Mumbai
Dated : April 27, 1998




SCHEDULE ‘&’ As at As at
SHARE CAPITAL 31st March 31st March
1993 1997
Rs. million Rs. million
AUTHORISED: _ .
2,99,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 299.00 149.00
(1,49,00,000)
10,000 14% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference shares of Rs.100 each 1.00 1.00
300.00 150.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP:
1,45,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
up including 1,20,00,000 allotted as
fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation
of General Reserve 145.00 145.00
145,00 145.00
SCHEDULE ‘B’
RESERVES & SURPLUS As at As at
3st March 31st March
1998 1997
Rs, million Rs. miltion
CAPITAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 2.36 2.00
Add: Received during the year —_ 0.36
2.36 2.36
SHARE PREMIUM
As per last Balance Sheet 165.00 —
Add: Appropriated on
allotment of Equity shares — 165.00
165.00 165.00
GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 415.00 260.00
Add: Transfer from Debenture
Redemption Reserve — 15.00
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 40,00 140.00
' 455.00 415.00
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet — 15.00
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 35.00 —
Less: Transfer to General Reserve — 15.00
' 35.00 —
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 176.62 70.88
C653.24

833.98
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SCHEDULE ‘C’
SECURED L.OANS

Working capital finance from banks

From financial institutions

NOTES :(—

As at

31st March
1998

Rs. million

As at

31st March
1997

Rs. million

30,15
30.15

97.09
. 12724

1. Working capital finance from banks is secured by hypothecation of stock in trade and other tangible
movable assets of the Company, wherever situated and guaranteed by three Directors of the Company.

2. Loans frorrFinancial Institutions include ;

L Termloan of Rs, Nil (Rs. 22,09 million), secured by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of

specific equipments.

ii.  Term loan of Rs. Nil (Rs. 75.00 million), gnaranteed by the Managing Director, secured by a mortgage

of immovable properties at Kanjikode and negative lien on other properties at Mumbai,

SCHEDULE ‘I»’
UNSECURED LOANS

Fixed deposits

{Repayable within a year Rs. 4.43 million (Rs, 2,30 millicn)]
13.25% Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs, 100 each, privately
placed (Redeemable within a vear)

Deferred sales tax loan
{Repayable over five years commencing from year 2006)

Commercial paper

As at

31st March
1998

Rs. million

9.18

710,00
9.89

89.07

As at

31st March
1997

Rs. million

5.16

4.74

50.00

59.90




SCHEDYULE ‘E’ FIXED ASSETS Rs. millien
PARTICULARS GROSS BEOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions Deletions/ As at Hp to For the Detetions/ Up to " Asat Ag at
Ist Adjustments st 3ist Year Adjustments 31st 3ist 31st
March March March March March March
) 1997 1998 1997 1998 1998 1997
Frechold lang 1.52 767 — 9.19 — — - — 9,19 1.52
Leasehold land 3.24 — — 3.24 0.21 0.04 — 0.25 299 3.03
Building* 165.04 40.63 — 20567 7.07 360 — 10.67 195.00 157.97
Plant & machinery 275.66 @ 130.63 0.68 405.6% §3.08 34,52 0.30 11820 287.41 191,68
Fumnitore & fittings 7.09 176 0.07 878 2.49 0,92 0.4 337 $4i 4,60
Trade mark/ .
Copyright 3000 # — L= 30.00 — —_ — — 30,00 30,00
Vehicles 8.21 0.02 0.42 7.87 139 0.17 0.20 1.95 5.9% 6.88
TOTAL 450.82 180.71 L17 670.36 95.14 39.85 0.54 134.45 53591  395.68-
PREVIOUS YEAR 424.11 68.84 2.13 490,82 64.55 3134 0.5 95,14
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (AT COST) INCLUDING ADVANCES ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT 69.34 5738
605,25 453,06
*  Includes pending execution of conveyance for Rs. 130.68 miflion (Rs. 139.63 million)
# Pending registration,
@ Inclodes assets leased out Rs. 52.80 million (Rs. 52._80 million).
SCHEDULE °F° As at As at
INVESTMENTS (At Cost) - 31st March 31st March
1998 1997
Rs, million Rs. million
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS — UNQUOTED
Non Trade
Government Securities — .
National Savings Certificate (Deposited with Govt. anthorities)- 0.10 0.10
0.10 0.10
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
QUOTED
UTI - Unit *64
16,170 (16,170} Units of Rs.10 each fully paid 0.26 0.26
Associated Cement Co. Ltd.
Nil {80) Equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid — 0.19
Bajaj Auto Ltd.
Nil (100) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid —_ 0.06
Hindustan Lever Limited/(BBLIL convezsion)
Nil (800) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid — 0.47
Tata Power Co. Ltd.
Nil (1,000} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid — 0.24
Carrier Aircon Ltd,
Nil (500) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid — 0.03
India Securities Ltd.
Nil ¢9,750) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid — 0.73
Majestic Auto Litd,
Nil (1,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid — 0.30
Master Gain-92
4,600 (4,600} Units of Rs.10 each fully paid 0.06 0.06
LML Ltd.
Nil (50} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fally paid — —
0.32 2.34
UNQUOTER
Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited
Nil (200} 17% Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of Rs. 2500 each fully paid. — 0.50
Alliance Capitad Mutual Fund
Nil (5,00,000) Units of Rs.10 each of Alliance Liquid Income Scheme — 5.00
. — 5.50
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 0,42 794
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.29 1.25




SCHEDULE ‘G’
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As at As at
INVENTORIES 31st March 31st March
(As valued and certified by the 1998 1997
Management - Note 1{e) of Schedule ‘R’) Rs. million Rs. million
Raw materials 48.81 60.80
Packing materials 49.03 45.40
Stores, spares, consumables & chemicals etc. 817 8.98
Work-in-process 4.31 3.58
Finished products 139.08 147.16
By-products 0.43 69
249,83 268.61
SCHEDULE ‘H’ As at As at
SUNDRY DEBTORS 3ist March 31st March -
(Unsecured—considered good) 1998 1997
Rs, million Rs. million
Over six months 6.17 7.04
Others 275.28 242.96
281.45 250.00
SCHEDULE ‘T? As at Asat
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 31st March 31st March
1998 1997
Rs. million Rs. million
Cash on hand 0.70 0.52
Remittances in transit — 2.54
Balances with banks:
Fixed deposits (lodged with Govt. authorities) 0.78 0.56
Margin account {Against letters of credit &
bank guarantees) 4,50 2.62
Current accounts — Scheduled banks 202,81 96.05
. — Non Scheduled bank — 0.02
(Jalgaon Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd.)
[Maximum balance Rs. (.32 million
(Y. Rs. 0.30 million)]
208.79 102.31
SCHEDULE ‘)’ As at As at
LOANS AND ADVANCES 31st March 31st March
{(Unsecured—considered good) 1998 1997
Rs. million Rs. million
Bills discounted/Inter corporate deposit 82,50 123.00
Advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value 1o be received 99,095 81.85
Deposits 43.79 96.09
Balance with Central Excise authorities 0.04 0.09
Interest accrned on  — Investments (.08 0.14
— Others 0.51 031
226.87 301.48

il
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SCHEDULE ‘K’ As at Asat N
CURRENT LIABILITIES 31st March 31st March
1998 1997
Rs. million " Rs, million
Sundry creditors 344.68 253.39
Advances from customers — 1.98
Unclaimed dividend 0.01 0.01
Other liabilities 34,53 35.18
Security deposits 41,25 40.35
Interest accrued but not due on loans 3.57 2.17
424,04 333.08
SCHEDULE ‘L’ As at As at
PROVISIONS 31st March 31st March
1998 1997
Rs. million Rs. million
For Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 8.71 16.00
For diminution in value of investments 0.03 1.09
For dividend 65.25 . 43.50
For tax on dividend 6.53 4,35
80.52 : 64.94
SCHEDULE ‘M’ 1997-98 1996-97
OTHER INCOME Rs, million Rs. million
Income from investments {Gross) 0.14 0.85
[Tax deducted at source Rs. 0,02 million (Rs. 0.03 miltion)]
Provision for diminution in: value of Investments written back 1.06 —
Miscellanecus income 14.36 20.52
15.56 21.37
SCHEDULE *N* 1997-98 1996-97
COST OF MATERIALS Rs, million Rs, million
RAW MATERIALS :
Opening stock 60.80 69.08
Add : Purchases 2,536.12 2.118.61
Less : Closing stock 45.80 60.80
2,548,12 2,126.89
PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS 194.43 242,06
(INCREASEYDECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK :
Work-in-process 3.58 2.47
By-products 2.69 2.42
Finished products 147.16 198.47
153.43 203.36
CLOSING STOCK :
Work-in-process 4.30 3.58
By-products 0.43 2.69
Finished products 139.08 147.16
143.81 15343 .
9.62 49.93
2,418.88

2,752.17
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58.82

SCHEDULE O’ 1997-98 1996-97
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES Rs. million Rs. million
Employee cost :
Salaries, wages and bonus 166.22 89.00
Contribution to provident fund
and other funds 133 8.97
‘Welfare expenses 17.03 16.98
136.56 114.95
Reimbursement, including claims,
of conversion & other charges %6.70 81.58
Stores, spares & chemicals consumed 25,04 23.08
Packing materials consumed 525.76 460.02
Power, fuel and water 37.55 30.32
Rent and storage charges 36.54 32.90
Repairs to:  Buildings 8.35 3.80
Machinery 635 4.50
Others 541 1.49
20.11 9.79
Freight and forwarding charges 183.35 140.55
Advertisement and sales promotion 407.03 242.06
Rates and taxes 2.38 0.711
Sales tax & cess 63.83 29.98
Printing, stationery & comumunication expenses 19.54 22.79
Travelling, conveyance & vehicle expenses 42.01 38.22
Royalty 27.52 - 22.66
Insurance 312 2.04
Provision for diminution in value of investments —_ 0.19
Miscellaneous expenses 73.05 . 63.59
1,700.09 1,315.43
SCHEDULE ‘P’ 1997-98 1996-97
FINANCE CHARGES Rs, million Rs. miltion
Interest on fixed loans 25.61 28.72
Other interest 21.29 38.56
Bank charges & others 40.06 23.86
8696 91.14
Less ; Interest/Discounting charges earned 28,14 15.40
75.74
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SCHEDULE “{’
B) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1997-98 1696-97
Quantity Value Quantity Value
M.T. Rs. million M.T. Rs. million
Qil seeds 47894 1,532.,95 45935 1,292.48
Raw oils 29237 927.10 24184 769.78
Others — 88.07 — 64.63
2,548.12 2,126.89
C} VALUE OF IMPORTYED AND
INDIGENQUS MATERIALS CONSUMED 1997-98 1996-97
%o Value % Value
Rs., million Rs. million
Raw materials
Imported 14.81 377.28 18.67 397.09
Indigenous 85.19 2,170.84 81.33 1,729.80
100.00 2,548,12 100.00 2,126.89
Stores, spares and chémicals
Imported 046 0.12 — —
Indigenous 99.54 24.92 100.00 23.08
100.80 25.04 100.00 23.08
D)} VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.LF. BASIS '
1997.98 1996-97
Rs. miltion  Rs. million
Raw materials 290.98 318.63
Capital goods 25184 —
312,82 318.63
E} EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
1997-98 1996-97
Rs. million  Rs. million
Packing materials 42.76 50.33
Travelling & other expenses 19.48 17.25
62.24 67.58
¥) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
1997-98 1996-97
Rs, million  Rs, million
F.0.B. value of exports 117.04 77.51
117.04 77.51




SCHEDULE ‘R’

NOTES:

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b

©

(D

(&)

- ®

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION

The financial statements are prepared under the ITistorical Cost Convention on accrual basis and in accordance
with mandatory accounting standards. .

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes, duties,
freight and other incidental expenses refated to acquisition and instalation. Interest during construction period
onbhorrowings to finance fixed assefs is capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for major projects are also capi-
talised, where appropriate.

DEPRECIATION

() Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight line method at the rates and in the manner speci-
fied in Schedule XIV of the Companics Act, 1956, except as stated in paragraphs (ii) to (v) below,
Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year has been provided onpro rafa basis with reference
1o the month of addition/deletion. Extra shift depreciation has been provided on “Plant” basis.

(i)  Assets given onlease are depreciated over the primary period of the lease.

@iy Plant and Machinery costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated at 100%. Other fixed assets
costing less than Rs. 5,000 cach acquired after 31.3.1993 are depreciated at 100%.

(v} Leaschold land is amortised over the balance period of lease.

(v} Nodepreciationis provided on Trademark/Copyright,

INVESTMENTS
{ Longterm Investnents are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, inthe value of Investments is
made to recognise a decline, other than temporary.
(i) Current Investments are valued at lower of cost or market value, computed categorywise.
INVENTORY
i) Inventories are valued as follows ;
Raw materials —  atcost
Packing materials, Chemicals, Consumables — atcost
Work-in-process —  atcost
Finished products — atlower of cost or net realisable value
Stores & spares -— atcost
By-products —  atnetrealisable value
Unéer\{iceable/dmnaged finished products —  atestimafed reatisable value
(i) Costinrelation to finished goods and work-in-process is determined on ‘direct costing’ basis.
(i}  Stores, spares costing less than Rs, 1,500 are charged off in the year of purchase.
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Capital expenditure on Research & Development is allocated to Fixed assets. The revenue expenditure on
Research & Development is charged off in the year in which it is incurred.
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(&) SALES
Sales are
L netoftrade discount,
ii.  exclusive of sales tax and
il.  recognised on degpa‘fch of goods.

(h) RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Liability towards retirement gratuity and leave encashment has been provided on the basis of actuarial valua-

tion. Confribution to provident fund and pension fund are made at predetermined rates to the respective trusts
and accounted on accrual basis,

) ~FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
()  Foreign currency assets/liabilities covered by fofward contracts are stated at the forward contract rates.

{iiy Poreign currency assets/fiabilities not covered by forward contracts are restated at the rate ruling at the
close of the financial year.

(i) Exchange rate differences relating to fixed assets are adjusted in the cost of fixed assets, Other exchange
differences are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Capital Reserve represents subsidy received from the Govemment of Kerala for setting up of the new plant at
Kanjikode which is refundable if the unit gees out of production within five years of receipt of subsidy.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs.53.17 million
{Rs. 90.03 million) net of advances.

Miscellaneous income includes lease fucome Rs. 8.31 million (Rs. 8,63 million}, and profit on sale of current invest-
ments (net) Rs, Nit (Rs. 2.06 mition).

The Company is contesting the levy of cess by Agriculture Produce Marketing Committee (APMC) Mumbai and
has in this connection applied to Mumbai High Court for relief. In the meantime, the demands made by APMC
amounting fo Rs. 30.12 million (including Rs, 25.53 million for prior period) have been paid under protest, Asa
matter of prudence these have been expensed under the head Sales tax & cess,

Miscellaneous expenses includes Commmnission and Brokerage Rs. 8.33 million (Rs. 6.36 million), Donations
Rs. 0.11 million (Rs, 0.22 million}, Cash discount Rs. 0.54 million (Rs. 0.86 million), Loss on sale of assets
Rs.0.17 million (Rs. 1.00 million), Audit fees Rs. 0.23 miltion (Rs. 0.23 million), Payment to Auditors for other
services Rs. 0.13 miltion (Rs, 0.13 million), Payment to Auditors for out-of-pocket expenses Rs, 0.03 million
(Rs. 0.01 million), Loss on sale of current investments (net) Rs. 0,10 million (Rs. Nil).

Research & Development expenses aggregating to Rs. 24.78 million (Rs. 14.90 miltion) including depreciation of
Rs. 1.12 million (Rs. (.72 million) have been included under the retevant heads of expenses.

Exchange rate differences (net) aggregating to Rs. 12,39 million (Rs. 0.10 million) have been included under the.
relevant heads in the profit and foss account,
Contingent liability not provided for in respect of :

iy Letters of Credit opened and outstanding Rs. 74.11 million (Rs. 72.30 million).

iiy Sales Tax /Cess claims disputed by the Company (net of tax) Rs. 21.18 million (Rs.16.39 million).

i} Income Tax and interest demand by the Incoine Tax department disputed before higher authorities
Rs. 1.82 million (Rs. 1.82 million).

iv} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. (.72 miltion (Rs. (.72 million).

v} The Company had agreed toissue Guarantees to secure the borrowings by Kanmoor Foods Ltd. (KFL) from
their bankers, which as at 3Ist March, 1998 were Rs. 86,80 million (Rs. 92.01 million). Gnarantees have been
executed for Rs. 13.50 million (Rs. 13.50 million) in favour of a bank against which balance of Rs. 2.11 million
is outstanding as at 31st Maich, 1998. Issue of any fresh guarantees has been kept in abeyance pending the
review of Scheme of Rehabilitation of KFL by BIFR.




10.

11.

12,

13.

Kanmoor Foods Limited (KFL) which manufactures processed foods that are marketed by the Company under the
brand name ‘SIL’ was declared a sick company under the provisions of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special
Provisions) Act, 1985, The Board for Industrial & Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) appointed Industrial Development
Bank of India (IDBD) as the operating agency to evaluate the viability of KFL, and recommend a scheme for its
rehabilitation. The rehabilitation proposal approved by the Board of the Company and IDBT is presently under
consideration of BIFR. The proposal envisages a scheme of amalgamation of KL with the Company effective from
1st April, 1997; an exchange ratio of one share of the Company for two hundred shares of KFL as per the valuation
done by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants; repayment of dues to The Bombay Ot Industries Limited
(BOIL) (holding company of KFL} repayment of bank borrowing with a One Tirne Settlernent as per the directions
of BIFR; and tax benefits to the Company against the accumulated loss of KFL as per the provisions of Section
72 A of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Board reckons the above proposal as a part of the long tenn business strategy of the Company and to pursye
growth in the processed foods segment. The scheme of amalgamation is subject to the approval of the BIFR and the
sharehiotders of the Comtpany. Pending approval of the scheme as above, no effect has been given thereto in these
accounts.

During the course of the proceedings under Section 132 of the Tncome Tax Act, 1961, the Tax authorities
have collected information pertaining to the operations of the Company and explanations have been provided to
them in this regard. The Company has not received any further communication/ notice from the depattment in this
matter.

Payments to suppliers in the small scale sector are made in accordance with agreed credit terms, The interest, if any,
on overdue amounts as on 31st March, 1998, has neither been claimed nor been ascertained.

Managerial Remuneration :
D Calculation of Commission payable to the Managing Director :

1997-98 1996-97
Rs, million : Rs. million
Profit before taxation 364.87 276.84
Add: Director’s Remuneration 4.71 3.85
Director’s Sitting fees 0.04 0.03
Depreciation as per books 39.85 31.34
Loss on sale of assets as per books 0.16 1.00
Provision for diminution in value of
Investments ’ —_ 0.19
Profit on sale of assets under Sec. 350 0.41 0.21
Loss on sale of Investment C0.10
45,27 36.62
Less: Depreciation under Section 350 59.68 47.60
Profit on sale of Investments (net) — 2.07
Provision for diminution in vatue of
Investments written back 1.06
: 6074 49.67
Profit as per Section 349 . 349.40 ' 263.79

Commission to Managing Director @ 1%
of net profit 3.49 2.64
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iy Payments and provisions on account of
remuneration fo Managing Director
inclided in Profit & Loss Account.
D Salary
i) Commission
iify Contribution to Provident Fund
and Pension Fund
iv) Other Perquisites

0.60
3.49

0.16
0.46

4.71

(.60
2.64

0.15
0.46

3.85

The above remuneration does not include contribution to Gratuity Fund as this contribution is a lumpsum

amount based on actuarial valuation.

14. The figures in brackets represent those of the previous year which have been regrotiped wherever necessary to

conform with current years figures.

15. Information pursuant to Part TV of Schedule
a) Registration details ;

VI to the Companies Act, 1956 :

Registration No. 11-49208
Balance Sheet Date 31ist March, 1993 . -

b) Capital raised during the year (AmountinRs. million)
Public Issue Nil
Bonus Issue Nil
RightsTssue Nit
Private placement Nil

¢) Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds (Amount in Rs. million)
Total Liabilities 1,068.05
Total Assets 1,068.05
Sources of Funds Application of Funds
Paid up Capitat 145.00 Net Fixed Assets
Reserves & Surplus 833.98 Investments
Secured Loans Nil Net Current Assets
Unsecured Loans 89.07 Misc. Expenditure

Accumnlated losses

d} Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. million)

Tumover (Sales & Other Income) 4,915.80
Total Expenditure 4,550.93
Profit before Tax 364.87
Profit after Tax 300.37
Eamings per share (inRs,) 20171
Dividend rate (%) 75

¢} Generic name of the three principal products/services of the Company :
ftern Code No. Product Description
(LT.C. Code)
151319.00 Cocomut Oil
151219.01 Sunflower Qil
151219.02 Safflower Oil

603.25
0.42
402.38

DEV BAJPAI
Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 27, 1998

Signatures to Schedules A to R
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARIWALA
Chairman

H. C. MARIWALA
Managing Director

s
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A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax and
prior period adjustments

Adjustments for :—
Depreciation

Finance charges

Loss on sale of assets

Provision for diminution in value of investments
Loss/(Profit) on sale of Investments

Incorhe from Investments

Provision for diminution in value of
investments written back

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for -—

Increase/{Decrease) in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in Sundry debtors
Increase/{Decrease) in Loans & advances

Decrease/(Increase) in Current liabilities

Cash generated from Operations

Less: Payments for 7
— Direct Taxes (Net of refunds)

— Finance charges

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{Purchase)/Sale of Fixed assets

(Purchase)/Sale of Investments (including bills discounted/ICD})

Sale of fixed assets
Interest/Dividend income

Capital Subsidy received
NET CASH INFLOW/OUTFLOW)
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Year ended

31st March

1998

‘Rs, million

364.87
1 39.85 31.34
58.82 75.74
0.17 1.00
— 0.19
0.10 (2.07)
(0.14) (0.85)
(1.06) —

97.74

462.61
(18.78) (72.16)

3145 74.71

(34.11) (11.35)
(89.56) (31.42)
ey

57361
71.82 44.70
85.56 91.97

157.38

A 416.23

(192.07)

47.92

0.49

28.28

B (115.98)

Year ended
31st March
1967
Rs. million

276.84

105.35
382.19

(40.22)
422.41

136.68
285.74

(81.94)

(105.52)
0.40
16.25
0.36

(170.45)

g
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Year ended Year ended
31st March 31st March
1998 1967
Rs. million Rs. million
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Borrowings (98.07) - (213.18)
Dividend paid" . (95.70) {29.00)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) D _
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C (193,77 (242.18)
. I — — e
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31-3-1998 A+B+C 106.48 {126.89)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 102,31 229.20
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 208.79 102.31

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Chairman Managing Director
Place : Mumbai
Dated : April 27, 1998

Auditors’ Certificafe

We have examined the attached Cash Flow Statement of Marico Industries Ltd. for the year
ended 3ist March, 1998, The Statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of listing agreement Clanse 32 with Bombay Stock Exchange and is
based on and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and Balance
Sheet of the Company covered by our report of 27th April, 1998 to the members of the
Company.

For DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ RAMEKRISHNA
Dated : April 27, 1998 Partner
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Annual General Meeting : : : }

Tuesday, June 30, 1998, 3.00 PM
M C Ghia Hall, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

Dividend Payout Record : '

Since the Initial Public Offer (IPO) during April 1996, Marico has been declaring two dividends in
every financial year, The interim dividend based on half yearly financials has been declared typically
in November, while the final dividend based on the full year’s financials has been declared in the

Annual General Meeting in June — August.

Registrars and Share Transfer Agents:

Karvy Consultants Lid.,

7, Andheri Industrial Estate, Off Veera Desai Road,
Andheri (West), Mumbai 400 058.

Tel @ (91-22) 626 7226, 626 9044, 627 1802
Fax : {(91-22) 629 0882

Dematerialisation of Shares:

Marico is in the process of dematerialising its shares. The necessary resolutions are being placed
before the shareholders for their approval. The process is expected to be completed during Fuly
1998 after which the shares in Marico could be traded in a paperless manner.

Investor Relations Officer: Mr Dev Bajpai -
Company Secretary
Tel.:
Direct : (91-22) 640 5323
Board : (91-22) 644 3714-17
Fax : (91-22) 641 0106
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A measure of brand equity

In our factory, we fill litde blue botdes with coconut oil.

In the marketplace, Parachute is a symbol of purity.

On the shop shelf, we stack safflower oil. On the kitchen shelf,

Saffola is an essential ingredient for healthy eating.
Revive. Sweekar. Hair & Care, Sil. They all have similar stories to tell.
Of how they have gone beyond being mere packaged products,
And have become a part of everyday living.

1t is this property that makes each of Marico's brands unique.

A point driven home on the pages that follow.







The blue plastic bottle that
doesn’t contain coconut oil.

Strip away the brand name, the qualificrs, the
small print. Place the bottle on a shelf. Ask a faithful
to identify its contents. Pat will come the answer.
Parachute. For 50 million loyalists, it's more than
caconut oil, it’s a symbol of unmistakable purity. It’s
dominance over the market can be gauged by two
insights. The trade and consumers alike have
supplanted ‘Parachute’ for the word coco-nut otl.
And mention a blue plastic bottle, and invariably

people know it's Parachute you're referring to.
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The jar that elbowed
other brands off the shelf.

Full marks to the competition for effort.
Unfortunately, leave alone dent Saffola’s leadership
position, other kardi oil brands have had to
withdraw from the market. To what may this be
attributed? For starters, we consume over 50% of
the marketable surplus in raw material, making it
that much harder for competition. Two, a conéumer

who swears by Saffola despite the availability of

cheaper alternatives. Its ability to combat cholesterol

build-up is in tune with a growing health
consciousness among consumers. As more people

are discovering, life insurance never came so cheap.







What we fill it with is not quite
what consumers take out of it.

There is such a thing as perceived quality, In the
case of Sweekar, it's purity, it's ‘88% fat free’, it's the
very embodiment of health, It's what positions Sweekar
above competition; a sunflower oil that consumers
pay a premium for. Despite being the last national
entrant in a cluttered market, Sweekar is already the
no.2 brand and snapping at the heels of the leader.
Together, Saffola and Sweekar command 16.5% of the
refined edible oil market in consumer packs. Evidently,

somebody is grudgingly giving up market share.







- The bottle that

any young bride will know.

Long, black and lustrous hair has been the epitome
of beauty since time imrmemorial. Yet, there was
a growing resistance to the greasy and limp look
imparted by conventional hair oils. Enter Hair & Care.
Light and non-greasy, it's carried an entire generation
with it. In fact, there is growing evidence that bridal
trousseaus now boast the mandatory green bottle.
Although enjoying a premium, Hair & Care has taken

further share from the market leader.
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Recognise the brand?
Unfortunately, we ¢an't give you a hint.

Out of the question, there is only one brand
of instant cold water starch available in the market.
Four years ago, Revive ushered iﬁ a category and
continues to rule it. By liberating the woman of today
from cumbersome traditional starching, ‘Revive is
increasingly gaining in popularity in urban households.
The convenience factor has actually encouraged the
notion of starched clothes. On the other hand, home

made starch, though free, is being passed up.







The bottle that brings out
the child in men.

Jams full of fruity goodness. Enough to make even
the most hardened men throw childlike tantrums.
That's Sil for you. Over the last few years, it has slowly
eaten into the market share of a well entrenched
industry leader. That's not all. Responding to changing
eating habits, we've introduced speciality products like
baked beans, soups and Chinese readymades. Everyday,
we're finding our way into the hearts of an increasing

customer base. Through their stomachs, of course.




REACHING OUT

At Marico, each brand’s success is unique .
Revive enjoys the advantage of being the first product of its kind.

But Sweekar, on the other hand, is successful despite being the
last national entrint in a cluttered category.

With Saffola, we are still the only national brand of refined safﬁéwer oil.
Parachute means coconut oil in matkets bar none.
There is a thread running throuéh our brands.
It's brand equity continuously reinforced by superlative distribution.

Through 27 depots and 2,800 distributors and stockists,
we reach 4,00,000 retail outlets.

You'll find our products even in the smallest talukas with population of 10,000.
You'll find them in 80% of towns with a population between 20,000 and 50,000.

While we develop our products to appeal to a consumer’s heart and mind
our distribution puts the products within arm’s reach.

It's a network that rivals century old players.

And o think we're only a seven-year old company.

{See map ‘The long arm of Marico’ on the last page.)
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DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME
1996-97

Materials 70.5%

Profits 5.2%

Advig. & Sales Promotion 5.9%

Personnel 2.8%
Tax 1.8%

Finance charges 1.8% Mfg. & Otner Exp. 12.0%

DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME
1995-96

Matarials 67.3%

Profits 6.0%

Advtg. & Sales Promotion 6,9%

Persoanel 2,6%
Tax 2.¢%

Mg & Other Exp 12.0%

'Finance charges 2.8%




FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT

Fy-—

(Rs-Lacs}
199091 199192 199293 199394 199495 199596 199657
SALES ‘ 10583 15944 21032 23644 28334 34854 40968
OTHER INCOME ] 14 22 - 34 84 105 133 214
TOTAL REVENUE ) 10597 15966 21066 23728 28439 34987 41182
OPERATING EXPENSES 9901 14881 19035 21654 259121 31353 37657
- FINANCE CHARGES 242 468 552 583 611 952 751
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 454 617 1479 1491 1907 2682 2768
TAX 210 332 860 855 725 350 760
PROFIT AFTER TAX 244 285 619 636 1182 1832 2008
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS . . 287 136
'PROFIT AFTER TAX AND PREOR
PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 244 285 619 636 1182 2819 2144
DIVIDEND . . 23 54 67 252 725 ol
NET FIXED ASSETS 398 675 1096 1673 2703 4038 ‘4531
INVESTMENTS 1 I 1 67 216 234 79 | B
NET CURRENT ASSETS 402 908 1454 1589 2300 6334 5244
TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED _ 801 1584 2551 3329 5219 10606 9854
SHARE CAPITAL 90 90 450 450 450 1450 1450
RESERVES 240 525 821 1403 2517 5153 6532
NET WORTH 330 615 1271 1853 2967 6603 7982
BORROWED FUNDS 41 969 1280 1476 22512 4003 1872
TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED 801 1584 2551 3329 5219 10606 9854
RATIOS:
OPERATING MARGINS TO SALES (%) 6.7 7.0 10.4 9.5 10.0 11.2 9.4
PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO SALES (3} 4.3 1.9 7.0 6.3 6.7 (] 6.8
PROFIT AFTER TAX TO SALES (%) 2.3 1.8 29 .17 4.1 - 53 4.9
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE (3%} 46.2 53.8 58.2 57.3 38.1 319 27.4
‘CURRENT RATIO (Na. of times) 1.28 1.4 1.93 1.65 1.79 2.48 %32
TOTAL DEBT/EQUITY {No. of times) 1.43 1.58 1.01 0.80 0.70 0.61 0.23
EPS (Rs) 27.11 31.67 13.76* 14.13 26.21 12.63** 13.85
"
*  On enhanced capitai.
** Or enhanced capital, fully diluted {withour considering pror period adjustments).




ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED (EVA) STATEMENT

Fconomic Value Added popularly referred to as EVA is a measure of the “real profits” of a company. It is the
residual income after charging the cost of debt and equity capital. Equity Research has established that “shareholders’
value” creation is better represented by *Value Added” than traditional earnings approach. It is perhaps a better
measure of the performance of the company.

ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED analysis

Year ended March 31 1993 1994 1995 ° 1996 1997
Average Capital Employed (Rs. Lacs) 2068 1940 4274 7038% 10230
Avg. Debt/Total Capital (%) 54.4 46.9 43.6 44.4 .28.7
Beta Variant 0.75 0.75 0.15 0.75 0.75
Risk Free Debt (%) 11.4 111 10.2 12.9 113
{Average of 364 days Treasury bill yields)

Market Premium (%} 10.0 10.0 0.0 10.0 10.0
Cost of Equity (%) 18.9 18.6 17.7 20.4 18.8
{Risk Free Debt +{Beta x Mkt Premium)}

Cost of Debt (Post Tax) {%6) 8.7 8.3 10.3 10.0 10.0
Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) {%) 13.4 3.7 14.4 15.8 16.2
PAT/Average Capital Employed (%) 29.9 21.6 1.1 26.0 19.6
Economic Value Added {Rs. Lacs) :

Operating Income after Tax (excluding Prior Period Adjustments) 619 636 1182 1832 2008
Add: Interest Post Tax ' ' 235 248 330 523 519
Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT) 854 884 1582 2355 2527
Less: Cost of Capital 276 404 617 1110 1661
Economic Value Added 577 480 895 1245 - Bob

+ Application money received pending allotment not cansidered (Rs. 1750 Lacs)

Rs. Lzcs 1245

Economic value added

1992.93 1593-94 199495 155598 1996-97
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Membaers,

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the NINTH Annual Report together with the audited accounts
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 1997.

1

2.

The capital of the Company increased by Rs. 1 crore pursuant to fresh issue of 10 lacs equity shares of
Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 163/- per share, made in March '96 and allotted in April '96, simultaneously
with an offer for sale by the promoters of 26,25,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a similar premium. The
resulting infusion of Rs. 17.5 crores into the Company was utilised to repay the various term loans aggregating
Rs. 11.25 crores which fell due during the course of the year and the batance was employed to augment the

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Sales and Other Income

Profit Before Tax
Tax

Profit After Tax

Prior Period Adjustments

Profit After Tax and Prior Period Adjustments

Add: Brought Forward

Profit Available for Appropriations

Less: First Interim Dividend
Second Interim Dividend
Proposed Final Dividend
Tax on Proposed Dividend

Transfer to General Reserve

Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve

Balance Carried Forward

CAPITAL

working capirtal.

{Rs. Lacs)

1996.97 1995-96
411,82.27 349,87.11
27,68,48 26,82.08
7,60.00 8,50.00
20,08.48 18,32.08
1,35.95 2,86.49
21,44.43 21,18.57
7,32.85 3,16.71
28,77.28 24,35.28
2,90.00 1,21.17
e 1,31.26
4,35.00 .
43,50 —
14,00.00 14,00.00
— 50.00
7,08.78 7,32.85
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Shares of the Company were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange within
28 days of the close of the issue and trading commenced within a week thereafter.

3. DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of Rs. 2.00 per share (20%) was declared by the Board on 8th November "36 on the
enhanced capital of Rs. 14.5 crores. The Directors are now pleased to propose a final dividend of Rs. 3.00 per
share (30%) bringing the total dividend to 50% compared' to 25% (pro-rata) paid in the previous year. The
dividend outflow for the year of Rs. 725 lacs represents a sharp increase of 187.21 % over the previous year's
outflow of Rs. 252.43 lacs. Additionally, putsuant to the amendments made by the Finance Act, 1997, the
Company is required to pay tax on dividend @ 10% on the amount of dividend payable, which entails an
additional outgo of Rs. 43.50 lacs.

4. OPERATIONS

Revenues continued to grow and during the year crossed Rs. 400 crores. Total revenues at Rs. 412 crores were
18% higher than the previous year. Net profits after tax at Rs. 20.08 crores were an improvement of 10% over
the previous year. After making adjustments pertaining to the earlier years, the total profits were Rs. 21.44
crores against Rs. 21.19 crores for the previous year.

The second half of the financial year was characterised by sharp volatility in the prices and availability of the
principal raw material namely, copra. The price spiral reached astronomical proportions and continued to rise
even during the period when they are otherwise expected to decline. At one time on a point-to-point basis,
copra prices were 65% higher than the previous year and prices of coconut oil in the wholesale market were
almost twice that of other vegetable oils. The inflationary spiral in the raw material prices was coupled with a
major shortage in the availability of the raw material, particularly during the last four months of the year.
Aleernate sources were not available because coconut oil is the only vegetable oil not permiteed for imports. As
a consequence of the restricted availability, valuable capacity was lost but for which production and sales would
have been higher, To offset the effect of inflation the Company had to inevitably enhance its selling prices, but
the lag between the cost and realisation increases squeezed margins. Fortunately, the price situation has since
eased, although at the end of March '97, they were still considerably higher than the levels at the beginning of
the year. The overall performance for the year needs to be viewed in the context of this unprecedented

phenomena.

The competition during the year increased quite considerably in almost all product categories, despite which
revenue growths were achieved in all product categories. Parachute continues to be the single largest selling
coconut oil in the country and is vircually generic to the category. In refined edible oils sold in consumer packs,
Saffola and Sweekar have managed to outsell all other refined edible oils sold in consumer packs and have
placed the Company in a leadership position. All the other brands namely, Hair & Care, Revive and SIL
faunched during the last five years have continued in their growth trajectory.

The thrust in promoting exports continued. Revenues from exports grossed Rs. 8 crores yielding a growth of
58%. New markets are being tapped to further increase revenues.

With a view to expand the market for its products, the distribution infrastructure, extremely critical for a fast
moving consumer goods organisation, is being beefed up and the reach extended. This should help in enlarging

the market and supporting growth in future.

Plans are also afoot to expand the product portfolio.
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5.  EXPANSION

To meet the projected growth in demand, the Corapany is planning to augment the manufactucing capacity for -

coconut oil. A new facility near Ponda in Goa is under commissioning. It is expected that this unit will become
operational in the current year itself. For refined oils also, various capacity options are being explored to deal
with the increasing requirements.

6. ACCOUNTS

The accompanying Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concem basis and
meet the Accounting Standards made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Directors have selected appidpriate accounting policies which have been applied consistently. Reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates have been made so as to ensure that the accounts give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 1997 and of the profits of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of appropriate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

The observations of the Auditors in their Report to the Members have been adequately dealt wich in the
relevant Notes to the Accounts. Hence no additional explanation is deemed necessary.

7. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Fixed Deposits with the Company as at year end were Rs. 51.51 lacs. Two deposits aggregating to
Rs. 25,000/~ were unclaimed as on March 31, 1997 which have since been repaid.

8. DIRECTORS

Mr. Charandas V. Mariwala and Mr. Harsh C. Mariwala retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment.

9.  OTHER INFORMATION

9,1 Information as per Section 217{1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies (Disclosure
of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed and forms part of this

1eport.

9.2 Information as per Section 217(ZA) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 forms part of this report, As per the provisions of Section
219{1}{b){iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, this information is excluded from the Report and
Accounts being sent to the Members. Any member interested in obtaining this information may
write to the Company Secretary at the registered office.
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10. AUDITORS

Messts. Dalal Desai & Kumana, Chartered Accountants retire and are eligible for reappointment as Auditors.

11. EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Relations between employees and the management have remained cordial and the Directors wish to place on
record their appreciation of the co-operation and support received.

12, ACE®OWLEDGEMENT

The Directors take this opportunity of acknowledging the support and assistance received from the Company’s
bankers, suppliers and business associates.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai CHARANDAS V. MARIWALA
Dated : June 11, 1997 : Chairman
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Annexure to the Directors’ Report

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation
of Energy, Research & Development expenditure and
Foreign Exchange earnings and cutgo as required under
Companies {Disclosure of particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors} Rules, 1988.

A, Conservation of Energy:

i) Improvement in energy efficiency achieved
through enhanced throughputs by the
commissioning of dehumidifier.

ii) Reduction in Furnace Oil consumption
resulting from efficiency of combustion through
the use of additives and commissioning of
condensate recovery system.

iii} Reduction in power consumption by down
sizing of motor rating & convession of starter
connections.

The details of total energy consumption and energy
consuraption per unit of production are disclosed in
Enclosure ‘A’

B. Research & Development :

The details of Research & Development are
disclosed in Enclosure B’

C. Foreign Exchange carnings and outgo:

Efforts have been initiated to promote the export
of Companies’ products, wherever permissible,

The details of total foreign exchange used and
earned are disclosed in Schedule ‘Q"
ENCLOSURE “A’

Power & TFuel Consumption :
1996.97 = 1995.-96

1. Electricity

a} Purchased Unit {(Kwh) 36,73,120 50,60,766
Total Amount (Rs. lacs} 98.00 107.88
Rate {Rs./Unit) 2.67 .13

b} Own Generation
i} Through Diesel
Generator

‘Units {Kwh) 12,36,472  4,72,036

Amount (Rs. lacs) 34,23 12.37

Rate {Rs./Unit} 277 2.62
it} Through Steam

Generator Nil Nil

2. Coal (Used for Boiler)

Quantity (M. T.} Nil Nil
Amount (Rs. lacs) Nil Nil
Average Rate {Rs./Ton) Nil Nil

1996.97  1995-96

3. PFurnace Oil
Quantity (K1) 1544.542  1897.095
Amount {Rs. lacs) 114.87 115.74
Average Rate {(Rs./Kl)  7,436.88 6,100.79

4.  Other Internal Generation

L.D.O.AHS.D.
Quantiry (K1} 226,524  413.977
Amount (Rs. lacs) 21.39 28.37

Average Rate (Rs/Kl)9,440.45 6,853.18

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF
PRODUCTION OF EDIBLE OIL

Unit 199697  1995-96
Electricity Kwh 122.19 144.02
Coal M.T. Nil Nil

Furnace Qi Ki 0.04 0.05

ENCLOSURE ‘B’

Research & Development _

1. Specific areas in which R&D was carried out by
the Company:

— Process improvement specifically through
dehumidifier to improve throughputs and
yields.

— Packaging Development to improve cost
structure.

— Development of new products.

7.  Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D:
Improvement in throughput & yield for coconut
oil, getting new products ready for launch,
improving product/packaging quality and cost
reduction.

3. Expenditure on R&D:

Rs, lacs
a} Capital 5.40
b} Recurring 141.88
Total 147.28
¢} Total R&D expenditure
as a percentage of total
Eutnover 0.36%

For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors

CHARANDAS V. MARIWALA
Chairman
Place : Mumbai
Dated: June 11, 1997
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED as at 31st
~ March, 1997 and the annexed Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and report that:

1. As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 1988,
issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956,
and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as we considered necessary and
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of

the audit, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and
5 of the said Order.

2. Further to our comments above:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audir;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as appears from our examination of those books and proper returns
adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from the branches not visited by us;

¢. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account and returns;

d. In our opinion,

1. the accounting policies lollowed by the Company are in conformity with the Accounting
Standards made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

ii. there has been no material deviations from the accounting policies consistently followed
by the Company;

iit. the accounting treatment of items in the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account is
appropriate.

e. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according w the explanations
given to us, the said accounts read together with the notes thereon pive the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view;

i. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 1997 and

ii. in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

For and on behalf of
DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

"Place : Mumbai NATRA] RAMKRISHNA
Dated : June 11, 1997 Pariner
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inchuding quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets, The fixed assets are physically verified by the management
in a phased manner. No material discrepancies were noticed in case of assets verified.

2. None of the fixed assets has been revalued during the year.

3. The stocks of finished goods, raw materials, stores and spares have been physically verified
during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. Confirmations have been obtained
in respect of materials lying with third parties.

4. The procedures for physical verification of stocks followed by the management are reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

5. No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to
the book tecords.

6. In our opinion and on the basis of our examination, the valuation of stocks is fair and proper in
accordance with the normally accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis as in the
preceding year.

7. The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other
parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. We are
informed that there are no companies under the same management within the meaning of
Section 370 (1B} of the Companies Act, 1956.

8. The Company had given loans to a Company listed in the Register maintained under Section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the loan
were not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. We are informed that there
are no companies under the same management within the meaning of Section 370(1B) of the
Companies Act, 1956

9. Loans or advances in the nature of loans given are being repaid as stipulated, together with
interest, wherever applicable.

10. There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business for the purchase of stores, raw materials including components, plant
and machinery, equipment and other assets and for the sale of goods.

1. The transactions of purchases and sales of goods and materials made in pursuance of contracts
or arrangements entered in the Register maintained under Secrion 301 of the Companies Act,
1956 and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000 or more in respect of each party, other than
those transactions for which alternative comparisons are not available, have been made at
prices which, in our opinion, are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices, where
such market prices are available with the Company, or the price at which similar transactions
were made with other parties. '

12. The Company has a regutar procedure for the determination of unserviceable or damaged stores,
raw materials, finished goods and materials dealt in and provision for loss wherever necessary
has been made in the accounts.

e
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (Contd.)

13

i4.

15.

16.

17

18,

9,

20,

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regatd to the deposits accepted
from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable records for the sale and disposal of
realisable by-products. The Company has no significant realisable scrap.

The Company has an internal audit systern comrnensurate with its size and the nature of its
business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under Section

209(1)(d} of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Company has regularly deposited Provident Fund dues and Employees’ State Insurance
dues with the appropriate authorities. There were no arrears at year end.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth-tax, sales-tax, custom
duty and excise duty which have remained outstanding at year end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, other than those payable under
contractual obligations or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning of Clause (O) of Sub-
section{1) of Section 3 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

For and on behalf of
DALAL DESAI & KUMANA

Chartered Accountants

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ RAMKRISHNA
Dated : June 11, 1997 Partner
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For notes forming part of the accounts and accounting
policies, see Schedules R & S respectively.

As per our attached report of even date
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

NATRA] RAMKRISHNA P. SANKER
Partner General Manager (Legal)
& Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : June 1, 1997

BALANCE SHEET
As at-31st March
SCHEDULE 1997 1996
SOURCES OF FUNDS Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Capital A 14,50.00 - 14,50.00
Reserves & surplus B 65,32.38 51,52.85
79,82.38 66,02.85
LOAN FUNDS
Secured loans C 12,72.38 36,64.64
Unsecured loans - D 5,98.91 3,38.48
18,71.29 40,03.12
98,53.67 106,05.97 _
" APPLICATION OF FUNDS -
FIXED ASSETS - E
Gross block 49,08.16 42.41.11
Less : Depreciation 9,51.51 6,45.49
Nert block 39,56.65 35,95.62
Capital work-in-progress 5,73.91 4,42.87
45,30.56 40,38.49
INVESTMENTS F 79.41 2,33.61
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories G 26,86.14 34,07.78
Sundry debtors H 24,99.94 17,52.79
Cash and bank balances I 10,23.08 82,92.85
Loans and advances ] 30,14.75 19,15.29
92,2391 153,68.71
Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Liabilities K 33,30.82 90,25.87
Provisions L 6,49.39 8.97
39,80.21 90,34.84
NET CURRENT ASSETS 52,43.70 63,33.87
98,53.67 106,05.97

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Chairman . Managing Director

Place : Mumbai
Dated : June 1%, 1997
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 315t March

SCHEDULE 1987 1996
Rs. lacs - Rs. lacs
INCOME
Sales Q 409,68.51 348,53.82
Other income M 2,13.76 1,33.29
411,82.27 349,87.11
EXPENDITURE
Cost of materials N 241,88.77 188,88.39
Manufacturing and other expenses O 131,54.28 122,05.81
Finance charges P 7,57.38 9,52.11
Depreciation E 3,13.36 ) 2,58.72
384,13.79 323,05.03
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 27,68.48 26,82.08
Provision for tax (including Rs. 5.00 lacs
(Rs. 3.50 lacs) towards wealth tax) 7,60,00 _ 8,50.00
PROFIT AFTER TAX 20,08.48 18,32.08
Prior period adjustments
Excess provisions written back
— Depreciation ) — 2,86.49
— Income Tax 135.95 —
PROFIT AFTER TAX AND
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 21,44.43 21,18.57
Balance brought forward 7,32.85 3,16.71
PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS 28,77.28 24,35.28
APPROPRIATIONS
First interim dividend 2,90.00 1,21.17
Second interim dividend — 1,31.26
Proposed final dividend 4,35.00 —
Tax on proposed dividend 43.50 —
Debenture redemption reserve — 50.00
General reserve 14,00.00 14,00.C0
BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET 7,08.78 7,32.85

For notes forming part of the accounts and accounting
policies, see Schedules R & 5 respectively.

As per our attached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA For and an hehalf of the Board of Direcrors
Charteved Accountants ‘

NATRA] RAMKRISHNA P. SANKER C. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Partner General Manager (Legal}  Chatrman Managing Director

& Company Secreiary

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Dated : June 1, 1997 Dated : June 11, 1997
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Schedules to Accounts
SCHEDULE ‘A’ As at As at
SHARE CAPITAL 31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
AUTHORISED:
1,49,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 14,90.00 14,90.00
- 10,000 149% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference shares of Rs.100 each 10.00 10.00
15,00.00 15,00.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP: -
1,45,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
(1,35,00,000) up including 1,20,00,000 allotted as
fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation
of General Reserve 14,50.00 13,50.00
Share application — pending allotment —. 7 1,00.00
14,50.00 14,50.00
SCHEDULE ‘B’
RESERVES & SURPLUS As at As at
31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
CAPITAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 20.00 =
Add: Received during the year 3.60 20.00
23.60 20.00
SHARE PREMIUM
As per last Balance Sheet — —
Add: Appropriated during the year
on allotment of Equity shares 16,50.00 -
16,50.00 ' —
GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 26,00.00 21,00.00
Less:  Capitalised by issue of Bonus shares — 9,00.00
Add:  Transfer from Debenture
Redemption Reserve 1,50.00 —
Add:  Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 14,00.00 B 14,00.00
41,50.00 26,00.00
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 1,50.00 1,00.00
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss account — 50,00
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 1,50.00 —
— 1,50.00
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 7,08.78 7,32.85
SHARE PREMIUM — pending allotment — 16,50.00
(Transferred to Share Premium)
65,32.38 51,52.85

e -
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SCHEDULE T’ As at

SECURED LOANS 3ist March
1997
Rs. lacs

Non-Convertible Debentures (Redeemed during the year) ' —

From banks (Note 1 below)

Working capital finance : 3,01.46
Short term loans I e
3,01.46

From financial institutions (Note 2 below) 9,70.92
12,72.38

NOTES :(—

As art

31st March
1996

Rs. lacs

3,00.00

16,46.88
3,75.00
120,21.88
13,42.76
36,64.64

1. Working capital finance from banks is secured by hypothecation of stock in trade and other tangible
movable assets of the Company, wherever situated and guaranteed by three Directors of the Company.

2. Loans from Financial Institutions inchude :

i,  Term.loan of Rs. 2,20.92 lacs {Rs. 3,18.20 lacs}, secured by an exclusive charge by way of

hypothecation of specific equipments.
Repayable within a year Rs. 1;09.43 lacs (Rs. 97.28 lacs).

ii. Term loan of Rs, 7,50.00 facs (Rs. 10,00.00 lacs), guaranteed by the Managing Director, secured
by a mortgage of immovable properties at Kanjikode and negative lien on other properties at

Mumbai. _
Repayai)le within a year Rs. 7,50.00 lacs (Rs. 2,50.00 lacs).

SCHEDULE ‘D’ i As at
UNSECURED LOANS 31st March
1997

Rs. lacs

Short term toans from :
Companies o
Financial institution e

Sales tax deferment incentive 47.40

Fixed deposits 51.51
[Repayable within 2 year Rs. 23.02 lacs (Rs. 3.81 lacs)]
Commercial Paper 5,00.00

[Maximum outstanding during the year Rs. 5,00.00 Iacs (Rs. Nil}}
5,98.91

As at

31st March
1994

Rs. lacs

1,25.00
2,00.00

3,25.00

13.48

3,38.48
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Note :
purchased and sold during the yeas.

2.52
6,00,000 20% Non Convertible Debentures of Rs. 00 sach of Kotak Mahindra Fmance Limired were

SCHEDULE ‘E’ FIXED ASSETS {Rs. lacs}
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Addirions Deletionsf As at Up For the Deletions/ Up to Asat As at
3lse Adjustments 31st 3st Year Adjustments 31st 35t 3kt
March March March March March March
. 1996 1997 1996 1997 1997 1996
Freehold Yand 15.20 — — 15.20 — — L 15.20 £5.70
Leasehold Tand 3244 — — 3744 L78 0.37 — 2.15 30,26 3056
Building* £2,33.34 4,13.56 152 16,50.38 43.87 26.97 0.16 7068 | 15,7970 11,8947
Plant & machinery 25.23.08 24872 1525 17,5655 5,73.64 27176 554  8,39.86 | 19,16.69 19.49.44
Fursiiture & fittings 33.81 12.51 044 70.88 18.33 6.65 0.08 24.90 45.98 40.48
Trade mack/
Copyright= 3,00.00 — —  3,00.00 — — — — 3,00.80 3,00.00
Vehicles 78.2% 8.60 4.13 B2.71 187 . 7.61 1.56 13.92 - 68,79 .37
TOTAL 42,4111 6.85.39 2134 49,0816 6,45.49 34336 734 95151 | 39,56.65 3595.62
PREVIOUS YEAR 13.56.16 13,9332 1037 42,41.11 6,74.81 255.72 235048 6,45.49
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS {AT COST) INCLUDING ADVANCES ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT 5,13.91 4.42.87
45,10.56  40,38.49
+ Includes perding execution of conveyance for Rs. 13,06.8) lacs {Rs. 9,06.83 tacs)
=+ Pending registration.
@ Includes depreciation weite back of Rs, 286,49 lacs.
SCHEDULE *¥
INVESTMENTS (At Cost) As at As at
31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Unquoted - Trade
Kanmoor Foads Led.
Nil (14,50,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid —_ 1,45.00
Unguoted - Non Trade
Government Securities -
National Savings Certificate {Deposited with Govt. authorities) 1.03 1.03
: 1.03 1,46.03
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
QUOTED
UTI - Unit '64
16170 {14700} Units of Rs.10 each fuliy paid 2.60 2.60
{1470 Units received as bonus during the year.)
Assoctated Cement Co. Led.
80 (50) Equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid 1.90 1.90
{30 shares received as bonus during the year.)
Bajaj Auto Led.
100 (500} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 0.61 3.06
Brooke Bond Lipton India Lid.
900 (900) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 4.72 4.72
Tata Power Co. Ltd.
1000 {2500} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 243 6.10
Carrier Aircon Ltd.
500 (2100) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 0.35 1.45
India Securities Ltd.
9750 {9750) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 7.16 1.16
Majestic Auto Lid.
1000 {1000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 2.97 2.97
Master Gain-92
4600 {19600} Units of Rs. [0 each fully-paid 0.61 2.59
LML Led. _
50 (50) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 0.03 0.03
23.38 32.58
UNQUOTED
Birla Global Finance Lid.
Nit (50,000) 13.5% Redeemable Non-Convertible Cumulative
Preference shares of Rs.100 each fully paid — 50.00
Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited
200 (200} £7% Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible
Dehentures of Rs. 2500 each fully paid. 5.00 5.00
Alliznce Capital Mutual Fund
5,00,000 {(Nil) Units of Rs.10 each of Aliance Liq 1id Income Scheme 50.00 —
55.00 55.00
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 79.41 2,33.61
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 23.61
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SCHEDULE ‘G’ As at As at
INVENTORIES 31st March 31st March
{As valued and certified by the 1997 1996
Management - Note 4 of Schedule ‘S’) Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Raw materials 6,08.01 6,90.84
Packing materials 4,53.99 6,03.48
Stores, spares, consumables & chemicals etc. 89.81 79.89
Work-in-process 3576 24.68
Finished products 14,71.63 19,84.61
By-products 26.94 24.22
26,86.14 34,07.78
SCHEDULE ‘H’
SUNDRY DEBTORS As at Asat
(Unsecured—considered good) 31st March Jist March
1997 1996
Rs. lacs Rs. laes
Over six months 70.36 1,03.70
Others 24,29.58 16,49.09
24,99.94 17,52.79
SCHEDULE ‘¢’
CASH AND BANK BALANCES As at As at
31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs, lacs Rs. lacs
Cash on hand 5.21 8.78
Remittances in transit 25.35 —
Balances with Banks:
Fixed deposits {lodged with Govt. authorities) 5.59 1.35
Margin account {Against letters of credit &
bank puarantees) 26,18 40.01
Current accounts 9,60.75 4,91.84
Share application collection accounts (Net} — 71,50.87
10,23.08 82,92.85
SCHEDULE ‘J’
LOANS AND ADVANCES As at As at
{Unsecured-considered good) 31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Bills discounted 12,30.00 —
Advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be received 8,18.49 10,62.18
Deposits 9,60.84 8,31.94
Advance Tax (net of provisions) — 17.05
Balance with Central Excise authorities 0.85 0.09
Interest accrued on — Investments 142 0.82
— Others 3.15 3.2t
30,14.75 19,15.29
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SCHEDULE ‘K

CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at
31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs: lacs Rs. lacs
Sundry creditors 25,33.93 23,04.08
Advances from customers 19.79 8.54
Shate application monies refundable — 66,00.87
Unclaimed dividend ' 0.14 —
Other liahilities 3,51.79 2,52.86
Security deposits 4,03.47 " 4,29.40
Interest accrued but not due on loans 2170 30.12
33,30.82 90,25.87
SCHEDULE ‘v’
PROVISIONS As at . wdAsat
31st March 31st March
1997 1996
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
For Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 1,60.03 —
For diminution in value of investments 10.86 8.97
For dividend 4,35.00 —_
For tax on dividend 43.50 —
6,49.39 8.97
SCHEDULE ‘M’
OTHER INCOME
1996.97 1995.96
Rs, lacs Rs. lacs
Income from investments {Gross) 8.53 8.03
[Fax deducted at source Rs. 0.29 lacs (Rs. 1.01 lacs)]
Miscellaneous income ' 2,05.23 1,25.26
2,13.76 1,33.29
SCHEDULE '‘N*
COST OF MATERIALS
1996.97 1995-96
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
RAW MATERIALS :
Opening stock 6,90.84 4,08.617
Add : Purchases 211,86.09 183,72.01
Less : Closing stock 6,08,01 6,90.84
212,68.92 180,89.84
PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS 24,20.61 14,57.23
{INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK :
Work-in-process 24.68 17.50
By-produces 24.22 27.95
Finished products 19,84.67 13,29.44
20,33.57 13,74.89
CLOSING STOCK :
Work-in-process 35.76 24.68
By-products 26,94 24.22
Finished products 14,71.63 19,84.67
15,34.33 20,33.57
4,99.24 (6,58.68)
241,88.77

188,88.39

T
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SCHEDULE ‘O’ :
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES

1996-97 1995.96
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Employee cost :
Salaries, wages and bonus 8,89.97 7,18.61
Contribution to provident fund
and other funds 89.66 68.80
Welfare expenses '1,69"77 1,28.12
11,49.40 9,15.53
Reimbursement, including claims,
of conversion & other charges 8,15.77 7,84.05
Stores, spares & chemicals consumed 2,30.84 2,25.06
Packing materials consumed 46,00.20 44,50.95
Power, fuel and water 3,03.19 2,84.88
Rent and storage charges 3,29.05 2,81.18
Repairs to: Buildings 37.99 47.94
Machinery 45.02 49.80
Others 14.91 16.33
97.92 1,14.07
Freight and forwarding charges 14,05.50 12,08.46
Advertisement and sales promotion 24,20.57 24,00.12
Rates and taxes 7.15 8.21
Sales tax 2,99.75 2,34.24
Printing, stationery & communication expenses 2,27.91 1,90.19
Travelling, conveyance & vehicle expenses 3,82.21 3,29.86
Royalty 2,26.64 1,92.53
Insurance 20.42 15.176
Provision for diminution in value of investments 1.89 8.97
Miscellaneous expenses 6,35.87 5,61.15
131,54.28 122,05.81
SCHEDULE ‘¥
FINANCE CHARGES
1996-97 1995.96
Rs, lacs Rs. lacs
Interest on fixed loans 2,87.21 3,67.98
Other interest 3,85.56 4,16.64
Bank charges & others 2,38.57 £,84.55
less : Interest/Discounting charges eamned 1,53.96 17.06
[Tax deducted at source Rs. 22.89 Jacs (Rs. 0.04 lacs)] m

9,52.11
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SCHEDULE ‘()

B} RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1996-97 1995.96
Quantity Value  Quantity Value
M.T. Rs. lacs M.T. Rs. lacs
Oil seeds 45935 129,24.79 51687 105,41.95
Raw oils 24184 76,97.81 21688 69,08.34
Others — . 64632 — 6,33.55
212,68,92 180,89.84
C} VALUE OF IMPORTED AND
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED 1996-97 1995-96
% Value % Value
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Raw materials
Imported 18.67 39,7091 - 1271 22,9954
Indigenous 81.33 172,98.01 87.29 157,90.30
“100.00  212,68.92 100.00 180,89.84
Stores, spares and chemicals
Imported —_— — — —
Indigencus 100.00 2,30.84 100.00 2,25.06
100.00 2,30.84 100.00 2,25.06
D} VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.LF. BASIS
1996-97 1995-96
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Raw materials 31,86,32 15,93.35
Capital goods — - 8.64
31,8632  16,01.99
E) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
1996-97 1995.96
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Packing materials 5,03.33 4,14.40
Travelling & other expenses 1,72.45 1,68.52
6,75.78 5,82.92
F) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE ‘ B
199697 1995-96
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
F.O.B. value of exports 7,75.14 4,83.00
7,75.14 4,83.00
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SCHEDULE ‘R’
NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

17.

Capital Reserve represents subsidy received from the Government of Kerala for setting up of the new
plant at Kanjikode which is refundable if the unit goes out of production within five years of receipt
of the subsidy.

Under the ‘1993 Scheme’ of the Government of Maharashtra, the Company is entitled to sales tax

deferment incentive for it's refining unit at Jalgaon. This is repayable over a period of five years from
the year 2006.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for

Rs. 9,00.26 lacs {Rs. 1,52.69 lacs) net of advances.

The gross block of fixed assets includes assets given on lease Rs. 5,28.02 facs (Rs. 5,28.02 lacs).
Cash and Bank balances include balances of Rs. 0.21 lacs (Rs. 0.27 lacs) held with Janata
Sahakari Bank, Jalgaon, a non-scheduled bank. Maximum balance during the year Rs, 3,02 lacs
{Rs. 6.70 lacs).

Loans and Advances includes loan to an Officer of the Company of Rs. 0.06 lacs (Rs.‘ 0.70 lacs).
Maximum balance outstanding during the year was Rs. 0,70 lacs (Rs. 0.70 lacs).

Sundry Creditors include acceptances Rs. Nii {(Rs. 91.50 lacs).

Miscellaneous income includes fease income Rs. 86.47 lacs {Rs. 1,01.84 lacs), and profit on sale of
current investments (net) Rs. 20.65 lacs {Rs. 0.51 lacs).

Miscellaneous expenses include Commission and Brokerage Rs. 63.56 lacs (Rs, 16.89 lacs), Donations
Rs. 2.15 lacs {Rs. 3.39 lacs), Cash discount Rs. 8.59 lacs (Rs. 5.49 lacs), Loss on sale of assets
Rs. 9.96 lacs {Rs. 6.22 lacs), Audit fees Rs. 2.25 lacs (Rs. 1.50 lacs), Payment to Auditors for other
services Rs. 1.32 lacs (Rs. 0.81 lacs), Payment to Auditors for out-of-pocket expenses Rs. 0.10 lacs
{Rs. 0.16 lacs), Public issue expenses Rs, 47,98 lacs (Rs. Nil).

Research & Development expenses aggregating to Rs. 1,49.04 lacs (Rs. 1,04.00 lacs) including
depreciation of Rs. 7.16 lacs (Rs. 5.98 lacs) have been included under the relevant head of expenses.

Exchange rate differences (net} aggregating to Rs, 0.97 lacs have been included under the relevant
heads in the profit and loss account.

Contingent liability not provided for in respect of :
i) Letters of Credit opened and ouestanding Rs. 7,22.95 lacs (Rs. 46.44 lacs).

ii) Sales Tax/C.ess claims not acknowledged as debts (net of tax} Rs. 1,63.93 lacs
(Rs. 15.41} lacs).

iii) Income Tax and Interest demand by the Income Tax department disputed before higher authorities
Rs. 18.22 lacs (Rs. 11.92 lacs).

iv) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. 7.21 lacs (Rs. 7.21 lacs).

v) The Company is committed to issuing guarantees {or the borrowings by Kanmoor Foods Limited
(KFL) from their bankers. Outstandings as at year end is Rs, 9,20.08 lacs. However, guarantees

-
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actually issued {Rs. 1,35.00 lacs as at 31st March, 1997)/to be issued by the Company, will be
secured by counter guarantee by Bombay Oil Industries Limited (BOIL), the holding company of
KFL, as also by a charge on the Bhandup property of BOIL.

13. Confirmations have not been called for debtors, creditors and advances. However, the balances on
review are considered receivable or payable, as the case may be.

14. Payments to suppliers in the small scale sector are made in accordance with agreed credit terms. The
interest, if any, on overdue amounts as on 31st March, 1997, has neither been claimed nor been
ascertained, '

15. Managerial Remuneration :

i)

i}

Calculation of Commission payable to the Managing Director :

Profit before taxation

Add: Direcror's Remuneration
Director’s Sitting fees
Depreciation as per books

Loss on sale of assets as per books

Provision for diminution in value of
Investments

Profit on sale of assets under Sec. 350

Less: Depreciation under Section 350
Loss on sale of assets under Section 350 {net)

Profit on sale of Investments (net)

Profit as per Section 349

Commission to Managing Director @ 1%
of net profit

Payments and provisions on account of
remuneration to Managing Director
included in Profit & Loss Account.

i} Salary
it} Commission

iti) Contribution to Provident Fund
and Pension Fund

iv) Other Perquisites

1996.97

Rs, lacs

27,68.48
38.50
0.34
3,13.36
9.96
1.89
2.12

3,66.17
4,76.02
20.65

4,96,67

26,37.98

26.38

6.00

26.38

1.50

4,62

38.50

1995-96

Rs. lacs

26,82.08
317.66
2,58.72
6.22
8.97

3,11.57
4,41.32
5.1
0.51

4,47.60

25,46.05

25.46

6.00

25.46

1.50

4.70

37.66

The above remuneration does not include contribution to Gratuity Fund as this contribution
is a lumpsum amount based on actuarial valuation.

16. The figures in brackets represent those of the previous year which have been regrouped wherever
necessary to conform with current years figures.
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17, Information pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 :

a)

b}

c)

d)

e)

Registration details ;
Repgistration No.

Balance Sheet Date

Capital raised during the year

Public Issue 100.00
Bonus Issue Nil
Rights Issue Nil
Private placement Nil

Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds {(Amount in Rs. lacs})

Total Liabilities 98,53.67
Total Assets 98,53.67
Sources of Funds

Paid up Capital 14,50.00
Reserves & Surplus 65,32.38
Secured Loans 12,72.38
Unsecured Loans 5,98.91

Performance of the Company {Amount in Rs. lacs)

Turnover (Sales & Orher Income} 411,82.27
‘Total Expenditure 384,13.79
Profit before Tax 27,68.48
Profit after Tax * 21,4443
Earnings per share {in Rs.) 14.79
Dividend rate (%) 50

* After prior period adjustments

Generic name of the three principal productsfservices of the Company:

ltem code No.
(L. T.C. Code)

151319.00 Coconut Git
151219.01 Sunflower Oil
151219.02 Safflower Seed Qil

11-49208
31st March, 1997

{Amount in Rs. lacs)

Product Description

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets 45,30.56
Investments . 79.41
Net Current Assets 52,43.70

Mise. Expenditure —

Accumulated losses —

e~

N
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SCHEDULE ‘§’

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
I.  FIXED ASSETS

Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes,
duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation. Interest during
construction period on borrowings to finance fixed assets is capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for
major projects are also capitalised, where appropriate.

2. DEPRECIATION

2.1 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight line method at the rates and in the manner

specified in Schedule X1V of the Companies Act, 1956, except as stated in paragraphs 2.2 to 2.5..

below. Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year has been provided on pro rata basis
with reference to the month of addition/deletion. Extra shift depreciation has been.provided on
“Plant” basis.

2.2 Assets given on lease are depreciated over the primary period of the lease.

2.3 Plant and Machinery costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated at 100%. Other fixed assets
costing less than Rs. 5,000 each acquired after 31.3.1993 are depreciated at 100%.

2.4 Leasehold land is amortised over the balance period of lease,
2.5 No depreciation is provided on Trademark/Copyright.

3. INVESTMENTS

3.1 Long term Investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of
Investments is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary.

3.2 Current Investments are valued at lower of cost or market value, computed categorywise.

4. - INVENTORY

4.1 lnventories are valued as follows :

a) Raw materials : — at cost

b} Packing materials, Chemicals, Consumables at cost

¢} Work-in-process — aE cost

d) Finished products — at lower of cost or net realisable value
e} Stores & spares — at cost

f} By-products at net realisable value

estimated realisable value

j~4

g) Unserviceable/damaged f{inished products — a
4.2 Cost in relation to finished goods and work-in-pracess is determined on ‘direct costing’ basis.

4.3 Stores, spares costing less than Rs. 1,500 are charged off in the year of purchase.

5. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Capital expenditure on Research & Development is allocated to Fixed assets. The revenue
expendititre on Research & Development is charged off in the year in which it is incurred.

6. SALES -

Sales are :
i) net of trade discount,
i1} exclusive of sales tax and

tii) recognised on despatch of goods.
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LA

1. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Liability towards retirement gratuity and leave encashment has been provided on the basis of actuarial F
valuation. Contribution to provident fund and pension fund are made at predetermined rates to the '
respective trusts and accounted on accrual basis.

8 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

8.1 Fareign currency assets/liabilitics covered by forward contracts are stated at the forward contract
rates.

8.2 Foreign currency assets/liabilities not covered by forward contracts are restated at the rate ruling
at the close of the financial year.

8.3 Exchange rate differences relating to fixed assets are adjusted in the cost of fixed assets. Other -
exchange differences are recognised in the profit and loss account. )

Signatures to Schedules A to S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P. SANKER C. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Place : Mumbai General Manager (Legall Chairman Managing Director
Dated : June 11, 1997. & Company Secretary

s
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Cash Flow Statement

Net Profit before tax and
prior period adjustments

Adjustments for :-
Depreciation

Finance charges

Loss on sale of asset

Provision for diminution in investments
Profit on sale of Investments

Income from Investments

Operating profit before working capical changes

Adjustments for :-
Increasef{Decrease) in Inventories

Increasef{Decrease} in Sundey debtors
Increasef(Decrease) in Loans & advances

Decreasef(Increase) in Curmrent liabilities

Cash generated from Operations

Less : Payments for
— Direct Taxes {Net of refunds)

— Finance charges

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

3,13.36
7,57.38
9.96
1.89
{20.65)
(8.53)

(721.64)
747.14
(113.49)

(3,14.24)

4)4’6-97

9,19.17

. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Tixed assets

Year ended
31st March
1997

Rs. lacs

27,68.48

10,53.41

38,21.89 -

{4,02.23)
42,24.12

13,66.74
A 28,57.38

(8,19.43)

{Purchase)/Sale of Investments {including bills discounted} (10,55.15}

Sale of fixed assers
Interest/Dividend income

Capital Subsidy received

NET CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW)
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

4.04
1,62.49
3.60

B{17,04.45)

Year ended

31st Maich

1996

Rs. lacs

26,82.08
2,58.72
9,52.11
6.22
8.97
(0.51)
{8.03)

12,17.48

38,99.56
11,32.75
5,80.63
3,07.15
{1,68.41)

18,52.12

20,47.44
8,36.42
9,74.24

18,10.66

2,36.18

(13,16.13)

{16.77}

2.59

15.09

20.00

{12,85.22)




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Year ended Year ended
31st March 31st March o -
1997 1996 :
. ‘ Rs. facs Rs.. lacs
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Shares pending
allotment (net of refunds) - 17,50.00
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings ' (21,31.82) 17,50.60
Dividend paid (2,90.00) (3,19.93)
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) - —_—
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES C(24,21.82) 31,80.67
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31-3-1997 A+B+C (12,68.89) 21,32.23
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 22,91.97 1,59.74
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance 10,23.08 22,91.97
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
C. V. MARIWALA  H. C. MARIWALA
Chairman Managing Director
Place : Mumbai -~
Dated : June 11, 1997
Auditors’ Certificate 4

We have examined the attached Cash Flow Statement of Marico Industries Ltd. for the year
ended 31st March, 1997. The Statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of listing agreement Clause 32 with Bombay Stock Exchange and is
based on and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss account and Balance Sheet
of the Company covered by our report of 11th June, 1997 to the members of the Company.

For DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Charteved Accountants

Place : Mumbai NATRA] RAMKRISHNA
Dated: June 11, 1997 Partner
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Behind the masks men wear lies a powerfui cnergy.
The power of thought, of ideas and aspiration.
The power of the mind.

At Marico, we have created an environment designed to cultivate

and cnhance this power in all our people.

A climate in which new ideas and concepts are free to flourish and grow.

So that we are more than a group of people working within four walls.

We are a meeting of minds,

whose only boundaries are the frontiers of our imaginaiions.
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“As an executive here at Marico,
I’ve got my hands full. Once a year, though,

I take a break to be M.D. of the company.”

It is a tradition here at Marico. Once a year, Harsh Mariwala; M.D., gathers his
people together for a candid discussion on the future of the company. Every single
person, without exception, is present at the oaccasion.

The M.D.'s own views are entirely open to -debate. His mind equally open
to suggestions.

Last year, in fact, a group of our executives from Bombay office used the
occasion as a forum for a presentation titled ‘H 1 were M.D. of Marico...”

Mr. Mariwala and his senior management, it must be reported, took careful notes.
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“My friends say, join an MNC, that's where the future is...
I tell them, this year I helped craft Marico’s Business Plan.

Would any MNC allow a middle level executive to shape its future?”

The Strategic Business Plan is possibly a company’s most vital document.

A blueprint, almost, for future success.

Stands to reason, therefore, that organisations restrict authorship of this corporate
bible to their most senior management.

Marico, with its customary scant regard for tradition, goes at it another way.

Every year, 2 new task force is created to review and formulate the hallowed document.
lts members are picked from across all departments, regardless of designation. While
formulating the Plan, this task force interacts with several people from across the organisation,

The resuit is a very real sense of ownership, of each person being key to Marico’s
growth. A feeling that translates directly into superlative performance,

So where did we get the idea for this novel process?

Remember that old saw... 'for the people, of the people, by the people.’
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“Sure I work machines at the Marico factory.

I also happen to own the place.”

In the heart of Kerala, you will come upon one of Marico’s factéties,

Here you will find many things outside the ordinary: Shop floor personnel who
routinely devise and implement ideas that continuously improve efficiency. A factory
manager who believes that ‘..if these men unionise, it is owr fault, not theirs.” And a
cost structure amongst the lowest in the industry.

The secret? That old cliche - a real sense of ownership.

‘Our people are encouraged to treat that plant as though it were their own,

And so, if it looks good, they look goed.
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“I recently helped solve one of Marico’s

knottier production problems - how to optimise oil extraction from copra.

Most days, however, you'll find me number crunching

in the finance department.”

I’s a rather unconventional method of problem solving, But there’s no doubt

that it works,

At Marico, the onus of solving a problem lies not only with the department most

obviously involved, but with an inter-departmental -task force, made up of all those

connectéd with the problem. This group identifies the nature of the problem, looks at

it from every angle and scts itself a clear deadline for a solution.

Not only does this approach make for more effective problem solving, it also

provides our people with stimulating challenges across all disciplines.

As our young finance executive on the left will confirm.
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“Am I proud to be a senior manager here?.
Lets just say that if I ever set up my own business

1'd run it like Marico. Exactly like Marico.”

A meeting of minds is all very well. But is it good for business?

Well, our work ethic results in one of the highest tuwrnover to employee ratios in
India today. With 850 people on board, we run a very tight ship.

We have created four winning brands in the last five years. Have been rated one
of India’s most admired marketing companies. Won the National HRD Award in ‘04,
Seen our asset base increase six times in the last five years. And, in that same period,
recorded a 59% annual grewth rate in profits. Far and away one of the highest in
the industry,

From which it may be deduced that while our philosophy does wonders for

morale, it is equally beneficial to our bottom line.
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Financial

Snapshot

{Rs facs)

1990-91 1991-92 199293 1993-94 199495 1995-96
SALES 10583 15944 21032 23644 28334 34854
OTHER INCOME 14 22 34 B84 105 150
TOTAL REVENUE 10597 15966 21086 23728 28439 35004
OPERATING EXPENSES 9901 14881 19035 21654 25921 31352
FINANCE CHARGES 242 468 552 583 e 969
PROFIT BEFORE
EXTRAGRDINARY INCOME AND TAX 454 617 1479 1491 1907 2683
EXTRACGRDINARY INCOME - - - - - 236
PROFIT BEFORE TAX . 454 617 1479 1491 1907 2965
TAX 210 332 860 855 725 . 850
PROFIT AFTER TAX 244 285 619 636 1182 2119
DIVIDEND - - 25 54 67 252
NET FIXED ASSETS 398 675 1996 1673 2703 4038
INVESTMENTS - 1 1 1 67 216 234
NET CURRENT ASSETS 402 908 1454 1589 2360 6009
TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED 801 1584 2551 3529 5219 10281
SHARE CAPITAL 90 20 450 450 450 14504
RESERVES 240 525 821 1403 2517 5153%*
NET WORTH 330 615 271 1853 2967 6603%*
BORROWED FUNDS 471 969 1280 1476 2252 3678
TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED 801 1584 2551 3329 5219 10281
RATIOS;
OPERATING MARGINS TO SALES (%) 6.7 7.0 104 9.5 10.0 1.2
PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO SALES (%) 4.3 3.9 7.0 G.3 6.7 8.5
PROFIT AFTER TAX TO SALES {%) 2.3 1.8 2.9 2.7 4.2 6.0
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE (%) 46,2 53.8 ] 58.2 57.3 35.1 25.6
CURRENT RATIO (No. of times) 128 1.41 1.93 1.65 1.79 2.40
TOTAL DEBT/EQUITY {No. of tines) 1.43 1.58 1.01 0.80 0.76 0.55
EPS (Rs) 27.1 31.7 13.7 14.1 26.3 157 %

* On Equity of Rs. 1350 Lacs

#* Include Share Application monies received peading allotment




* Materials 69.7% i
.+ Finance Charges 2.2% ;
Distribution/Generc! expenses 13.1% ;
=i Tax 2.5%
Profits 4.1%
“; Personnel 2.1%
1994 - 95 - Advertising & Sales Promofion 4.3%

Distribution of Income i

Materials 67.3% :
s+ Finonce Chﬂrges 2.8% i
Distribution/General expanses 12.0% .
: Tox 2.4% :
Profits 6.0% |
. Personnel 2.6% !
1095 - 96 Adverfising & Sales Promation 6.9% .




Directors’ Report

To The Members, . 7
" The Directors have pleasure in presenting the EIGHTH Annual Report of the Company together
with the audited accounts for the year ended March 31, 1996,

(Rs. Lacs)
1. Financial Results 1995-96 1994-95
Sales and Other Income 850,04.17 284,30.07
Profit Before Tax
{without Extraordinary Income) 26,82.08 19,06.65
Extraordinary Income 2,86.49 .
Profit Before Tax 29,68.57 19,06.65 .
Tax 8,50.00 7,25.00
Profit After Tax 21,18.8% 11,81.65
Add: Brought Forward 3,16.71 2,52.56
- 24,3528 14,34.21
Less: First Interim Dividend 1,21.1% -
Second Interim Dividend 1,31.26 -
Final Dividend - 67.50
Transfer to General Reserve 14,00.00 10,00.00
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 50.00 50.00
Balance Carried Forward 7:32.85 3,16,71
2. Capital

During July 1995, the equity share capital of the Company was augmented to Rs. 13.50 crores, by
capitalising Rs. 9.00 crores from General Reserves for issuing bonus shares of Rs, 10/- each, at par,
in the ratio of 2 equity shares for every equity share held by a member, This was the second such
bonus issue during the last six years since the Company began commercial operations,

Further, in March 1996, the Company made a fresh issue of 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
cach, at a preminm of Rs. 165/- per share, simultaneounsly with an offer for sale by the promoters
of 26,25,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, at a premium of Rs. 165/ per share. As against the
issue size of Rs. 63.44 croves, the actual mobilisation was Rs. 123.45 crores, eguivalent to an

oversubscription of 1.94 times.




Considering the extremely difficult market conditions prevailing then, the response from ithe
investing public was overwhelming and fthis, while reflecting the strong business fundamentals of

- the Company, also captures the faith the investors have in the leadership of the Company.

3. Dividend

During the year, two interim dividends were paid, aggregating 25% (i.e. Rs. 2.50 per share) of
Rs. 10/- each, on a pro-rata basis. Pursuant to the terms of the Offer for Sale-cura-Public Issue and
the undertaking given to the Stock ‘Exchange, Mumbai, no final dividend is proposed, to ensure
that the investors receive the same benefits under the issue irrespective of whether they are allotted

fresh shares or allocated shares out of the offer by the promoters.

4. Operations
Total revenues touched Rs. 350 crores, resulting. in a growth of 23% over the previous year. All
the product groups recorded higher sales, though due to environmental constraints, the rate of
growth was somewhat lower in certain product categories:

The profit before tax, including extraordinary income of Rs. 2.86 crores, increased by 56% to
Rs. 29.69 crores and profit after tax by 79% to Rs. 21.19 crores. Even excluding the extraordinary
income, profit before tax has improved by 41% and profit after tax by a healthy 55%.

The net worth of the Company (without recognising
the expanded capital which was allotted in April
1996} increased from Rs. 28.67 crores to Rs, 4853
crores of which, approximately 72% is represented by
undistributed profits and 28% by share capital,

While continuing to stress for growth in the mainstay

products, viz; Parachute, Saffola and Sweekar, equally

sharp focus was given to the newer products. The

You wan't find copre stored in silos anywhere but ot Marica.
Another bright ideo from our people.

result was a healthy increase in sales volumes and
corresponding revenues.

The Company decided to leverage on the strong equity of the Parachute brand through
appropriate extensions. Accordingly, ‘Parachute Herbal’ was launched. The initial consumer
response is in line with expectations.

Refined edible oil sales, marketed under the brands ‘Saffola’ and ‘Sweekar’, continued to show
buoyancy.

Newer initiatives have been taken to expand the market for the Company's products. The
distribution is being restructured and the sales organisation
strengthened to enable greater penetration and facilitate better
service levels.

Focussed efforts were made to step-up exporis of the Company’s

products mainly in the. Middle East where apparently there is

significant demand for the Company's products. The thrust
helped in increasing export turnover from Rs. 3 crores to Rs. 5 croves. A Representative Office has
been opened in Dubai.

The pace at which production and sales are increasing may necessitate further capacity expansion,

particularly for Parachute, Saffola and Sweekar. Proposals in this regard are being evalaated.

e
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5. Initiatives

Total Quality Management

The Total Quality Movement within the Company has gathered speed and now embraces virtually
all locations. Apart from the involvement and overwhelming response of all organisation members

in Kaizen programmes, several Quality-Related Projects have been

initiated in various parts of the Company through Smalt Group
Activities comprising members drawn from various functions,
The outcome of these projects should result in cost redifttion,

efficiency improvement and better quality of service to customers.

A Maorica inter Departmental Task Force
in session.

Manufacturing

The pursuit of continuous improvement forces our members to think laterally. The Company has

always encouraged debate which would result in processes that can contribute

to higher efficiency, productivity and lower costs. Some of the major
initiatives that were operationalised during the year arising out
of such thought processes, were: '
a. A tipper facility at our Kanjikode Works, which enables trucks

carrying raw materials to be unloaded with minimal manual

intervention, thus substantially improving productivity and

This ingenioys trock-tipper devised by our peaple

lowering COsEs, saves energy, Hme and meney by eliminating the
) copra bagging & unbagging process.

b.An automated material handling system involving the use of Silos, once again at our Kanjikode

Works. This perhaps is the first copra crushing plant with such a facility,

Information Technology
The Company has made major investments in information technology, a process which began four
years ago. Presently, all the establishments are covered by information technology and networked

£

i with the Corporate Office. The flow of information is now much faster and

the data availability is facilitating a major overhaul in the way work is
carried out, However, information technology needs farther expansion and
sophistication. Hence, further investments are contemplated to create
decision support systems which will bring about a qualitative improvement in
work processes. Integrating developments in communication technology with
information technology is another initiative which will bring about a
dramatic shift in werk styles and eventuzlly reduce costs, improve efficiency, enable faster speed of

response and finally add more value to the customer.

6. Human Resources
The Company has acquired a formidable reputation for its HR practices and has been recognised
by the National HRD Network in the recent past. The dynamics of the market place is changing
rapidly. With the intensification of competition, equations %

are unlikely to be the same. In the emerging complex
environment, it will be the human resource that will matter;

being the most potent and valuable rescurce of the

Company. The efforts in human resowrces and culture

Open house ot Marico, early '94. Attended by the M‘D.
second fiom left.

development made in the past, should greatly assist the




Company in fighting competition. Future investments in this area will be tailored to the changing
external environment. The endeavour would be to create a community of organisation members,
whose horizons extend beyend contractual relationships to being voluntary members of the

corporate community, reflecting a deeper sense of commitment and psychological ownership.

7. Accounts .
The observations of the Auditors in their Report to the Members have been adequately dealt with

in the relevant Notes to the Accounts. Hence, no further explanation is deemed necessary.

8. Directors

Mr, H: V. Mariwala resigned from the Board inNovember 1995, The Directors place on record their
appreciation of his contribution during his tenure,

Mr. Bipin R. Shah and Dr. Kirit S. Parikh were inducted as Additional Directors on the Board with
effect from April 17, 1996. The Company has received notices from members under Section 257 of
the Companies Act, proposing to appoint them as Directors liable to retire by rotation,

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1956, and the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. K. V. Mariwala retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for

re-appointment.

9. Other Information

9.1 Information required in accordance with provisions of Section 217(1) (e) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988, regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo is given in the Annexure to this Report.

9.2 Information as per Sec.tion 217{2A) of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, forms part of this report. As per the provisions of
Section 219(1)(b}(iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Report and Accounts is being sent to
the shareholders of the Company, excluding the statement of particulars of employees under
Section 217 (2A) of the Act. Any sharelolder interested in obtaining a copy of the said

statement may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office.

10. Auditors
Messrs. Dalal Desai & Kumana, Chartered Accountants, retire and are eligible for reappointment

as Auditors.

11. Employee Relations
The relation between employees and the management has remained cordial and the Directors wish

to place on record their appreciation of the co-operation and support received.

12, Acknowledgement
The Directors take this opportunity of acknowledging the support and assistance received from the

Company’s bankers, suppliers and other business associates.

On Behalf of the Board

Place : Mumbai C. V. Mariwala
Dated : June 11, 1896 Chairman




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Annexure to the Directors’

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation
of Energy, Research & Development Expenditure and
Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required
under Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the
Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988,

A. Conpservation of Energy :

i)} .Installation of better quality steam trap for
more efficient utilisation of steam.

it} Improved conditioning of copra for efficient
expelling.

iii} Installation of Capacitor Banks improving
power factor resulting in improved
efficiencies.

iv) Introduction of Gland valves sealing
compound arresting all steam leakages in
valves and joints.

The details of total energy consumption and
evergy consumption per unit of production are
disclosed in Enclosure ‘A’ :

B, Research & Development

The details of Research & Development are
disclosed in Enclosure ‘B’

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

Efforts have been initiated to promote the export
of Companies’ products, wherever permissible.

The details of total foreign exchange used and
earned are disclosed in Schedule ‘(Y to accounts.

ENCLOSURE ‘A’
A. Power & Fuel Consumptions :

199596 199495

1. Electricity
a) Purchased Unit

{Kwh) 50,60,766 50,34,780
Total Amount

(Rs. tacs) 107.88 101,60
Rate (Rs. /Unit) 2.13 2.02

b) Own Generation
i) Through Diesel

Generator
Units 4,72,036  1,03,380
Amount Rs. lacs 12.37 2.69
Rate (Rs. /Unit) 2.62 2.60
il Through Stcam
Generator Wil Nil
2. Coal {Used for Boiler)
Ouantity (M. T,) Nil Nil
Total Cost (Rs. lacs) Nil Nil
Average Rate (Rs. /Ton) Nil Nil

3. Furnace Oil
Quantity (K. Lrs) 1897.095 1397.447
Amount (Rs. lacs) 115.74 79.76
Average Rate (Rs/Kl)  6,100.79  5,707.27
4,  Other Internal Generation
LD.O./H.S.D. .
Quantity (I Lers) 413,98 295.85
Amount {Rs. lacs) . 28.37 19.7¢
Average Rate
(Rs/Kl) 6,835.23 6,659.55
CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF
PRODUCTION
Edible Oil Unit Consumption per
Unit of Production
199596 199495
Electricity Rwts 144,02 153.41
Coal M.T. Nil Nil
Furnace Qil KEltr 0.05 0.04
ENCLOSURE ‘B!

Report

199596 199495

Research & Development

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the
Company
— Development of new products
— Development of new packaging
— Improvement of product quality
— Process improvement
2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D:
Launching of new products, improvement in
product quality and cost reduction.
3.  Expenditure on R&D:
Rs, lacs
a) Capital 22.41
b} Recurring 98.02
Total 120,43
¢) Total R&D expenditure
as a percentage of total
turnover 0.34%
For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors
Place : Mumbai C. V. MARTWALA
Dated: june 11, 1996 Chairman
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Auditors’ Report

To,
The Members of Marico Indusiries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Marico Industries Limited as at 31st March, 1996
and the Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the year ended on that date annexed thereto,
and report that: :

1. As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 1988,
issued by the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956,
and on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of information
and explanations given to us, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified
in the paragraphs 4 and b of the said Order. -

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 ahove:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

B. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
- Company so far as appears from our examination of the books;

c. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account;

d. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the said accounts read with the notes and significant accounting policies
therecon and read with Note 6 of Schedule ‘R’ dealing with valuation of long term
investments at Cost, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Gompany as at 31st
March, 1996 and

b} in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the profit for the year ended on that date.
For Dalal Desat & Kumana

Chartered Accountanis

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ] RAMKRISHNA
Dated : june 11, 1956 Partner

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)
1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and sitnation of fixed assets. The fixed assets are physically verified by the management
in a phased manner. No material discrepancies were noticed in case of assets verified.

2. None of the fixed assets have been revalued during the year.

3. The stocks of finished goods, raw materials, stores and spares have been physically verified
during the year by the management at reasonable intervals, Confirmations have been obtained
in respect of materials lying with third parties.

4. The procedures for physical verification of stocks followed by the management are reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

5. No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical verification of stocks as compared to
the book records,
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

10.

I1.

12,

13.

14.

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

In our opinion and on the basis of our examination, the valuation of stock is fair and proper
in accordance with the normally accepted accounting principles and is on the same basis as
in the preceding year. ; '

The Company has taken unsecured loans from Companies listed in the Register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. In our opinion, the rate of interest and other
terms and conditions relating thereto are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company. We are informed that there are no Companies under the same management within
the meaning of Section 370 ( IB ) of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has given a loan to a Company listed in the Register maintained under Section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the
loan are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. We are informed that
there are no Companies under the same management within the meaning of Section 370
(IB) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Loans or advances in the nature of loans given are being repaid as stipulated, together with
interest, wherever applicable.

There are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of its business for the purchase of stores, raw materials including components,
plant and machinery, equipment and other assets and for the sale of goods.

The transactions of purchases and sales of goods and materials made in pursuance of contracts
or arrangeraents entered in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000 or more in respect of each party,
other than those transactions for which alternative comparisons are not available, have been
made at prices which, in our opinion, are reasonable having regard to prevailing market
prices, where such market prices are available with the Company, or the price at which similar
transactions were made with other parties,

The Company has a regular procedure for the determination of unserviceable or damaged
stores, raw materials, finished goods and material dealt in and provision for loss wherever
necessary has been made in the accounts.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975 with regard to the deposits accepted
from the public.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable records for the sale and disposal of
realisable by-products. The Company has no significant realisable scrap.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and the nature of its
business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under
Section 209(1}{d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has regularly deposited Provident IFund dues and Employees’ State Insurance
dues with the appropriate authorities. There were no arrears at year end.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth-tax, sales-tax,
custom duty and excise duty which have remained outstanding as at year end for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

No personal expenses have been charged to revenue account, other than those payable
under coniractual obligations or in accordance with generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company within the meaning of Clatise (O) of Sub-
section(l) of Section 3 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana
Chartered Accountanis

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ RAMERISHNA
Dated : June 11, 1996 Partner
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Balance Sheet

As at 31st March

- SCHEDULE 1996 1995
SOURCES OF FUNDS Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Capital A 14,50.00 4,50.00
Reserves & Surplus B 51,52.85 25,16.71
66,02,85 29,66.71
LOAN FUNDS
Secured Loans O 33,40,07 17,6251
Unsecured Loans D 3,38.48 5,00.00
36,78.55 22,52.51
102,81.40 52,19.22
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS E
Gross block 42,4111 28,56.16
Less : Depreciation 6,45.49 6,74.81
Net block 35,95.62 21,81.36
Capital work-in-progress 4,49.87 5,22.06
40,38.49 27,08.41
. {
INVESTMENTS I 2,35.61 2,16.33
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Inventories G 34,07.78 22,75.03
Sundry debtors H 17,62.79 11,72.16 h
Cash and bank balances 1 79,68.28 1,69.74
Loans and advances ] 19,15.29 16,21.71 |
150,44.14 52,28.64 i
Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS |
Liabilities K 90,25.87 28,61.66 |
Provisions L 8.97 67.50 F
90,34.84 29,29.16 }
NET CURRENT ASSETS 60,09.50 22,99.48 :
— I

102,81.40 52,19.22

For rnotes forming part of the accounts and accounting :
policies, see Schedules R & S respectively,

As per our attached report of even date

FOR DAILAL DESAF & KUMANA For and on behalf of the Board of Directors !
Chartered Accountants .

NATRA] RAMKRISHNA P. SANKER C. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Partner Srerelary Chairman Managing Director
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Dated : June 11, 1996 Dated : June 11, 1996
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Profit & Loss Account

Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
INCOME:
Sales Q 348,53.82 283,54.94
Other income M 1,50.35 1,04.83
~ 850,04.17 284,39.07
EXPENDITURE:
Caost of materials N 188,88.39 160,75.65
Manufacturing and other expenses o 122,05.81 95,22.23
Finance charges o 9,60.17 6,10.74
Depreciation
For the period E 2,58.72 3,23.80
Less : Excess depreciation written back 2,86.49 —
{Refer note 5 of Schedule R) —_—
(27.%97) 3,23.80
320,35.60 265,32.42
PROTFIT BEFORE, TAX 29,6857 19,06.65
Provision for tax {including Rs, 5.50 lacs 8,50.00 47,25.00
(Rs. 0.30 lacs) towards wealth tax) :
PROFIT AFTER TAX 21,18.57 1%,81.65
Balance brought forward 3,16.71 2,62,56
PROFIT AVATLABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS 24,35.28 14,34.21
APPROPRIATIONS
First interim dividend 1,21.1%7 —
Second interiin dividend 1,31.26 .
Final dividend — 67.50
Debenture redemption reserve 50,00 50.00
General reserve 14,00.00 10,00.00
BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET 7,32.85 3,16.71

For notes forming part of the accounts and accounting

policies see Schedules R & S respectively.

As per owr attached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAT & KUMANA
Chartered Accounianis

NATRAJ RAMKRISHNA
Partner

Place : Mumbat
Dated : June 11, 1996

’ For the year ended 31st March
SCHEDULE 1996 : 1995

For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors

P. SANKER G. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Secrelary Chairman Managing Dirvector

Place : Mumbai
Dated : June 11, 1996
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Schedules to Accounts

A

SCHEDULE ‘A’ As at : As at

SHARE CAPITAL 31st March 31st March
1996 1995
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
AUTHORISED:

1,49,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each 14,90.00 14,90.00

{1,49,00,060) .

10,000 14% Cumulative Redeemable

(£0,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each 10,00~ 10,00
15,0000 15,00.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP:
1,35,00,000 Equity sharcs of Rs.}0 each fully paid
{45,00,000) up including 1,20,00,000 atlotted as
fully paid bonus shares by capitalisation
of General Reserve (Bonus shares issued

during the year - 90,600,000} 13,50.00 4,80.00
Share application - pending alloiment 1,00.00 —
{Refer note 1 {a) of Schedule R)
14,50.00 4,50.00
SCHEDULE ‘B’
RESERVES & SURPLUS As at As at
31st March 31st March
1996 1995
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
GENERAL RESERVE .
As per last balance sheet 21,0000 11,00.00
Less: Capitalised by issuc of bonus shares 9,00.00 —
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss account 14,00.00 £0,00.00
26,00.00 21,00.00
CAPITAL RESERVE (refer note 2 of Schedule R) 20.00 —
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESIERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 1,00.00 50.00
Add: Transter from Profit and Loss account 50.00 50.00
1,50.08 1,00.00
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 7,32.85 3,16.71
' 35,02.85 26,16.71
SHARE PREMIUM — pending allotment 16,50.00 —
(Refer note 1 (a) of Schedule R)
51,52.85 25,16.71
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SCHEDULE ‘C As at As at
SECURED LOANS 31st March 31st March
1996 1995
Rs. lacs Rs, Iacs
Non-Convertible Debentures (Note 1 belaw} ’ 3,00.00 - 3,00.00
From banks (Note 2 below) 16,97.31 6,12.48
From financial institutions (Note 3 below} . 13,42.76 8,40.03
33,40,07 17,5251

NOTES :-

1 Non-Convertible Debentures issued to GIC Mutual Fund are secured by first legal mortgage on all the Company’s
propetties at Jalgaon, including plant & machinery (excluding the assets on which exclusive charge has been
created) and a floating charge on ail other movable assets of the Company subject to prior charges created in favour
of the Company's bankers, The debentures are redeemable at par in June'96.

2 Loans from Banks include :

i Working capital finance of Rs. 13,22.31 lacs (Rs. 6,12.48 lacs), secvwed by hypothecation of stock in trade and
other tangible movable assets of the Company, wherever situated, and guaranteed by the Directors of the
Company. Charge in respect of Rs. 2,02.31 lacs is pending creation.

ii  Short term loan of Rs. 3,75.00 lacs {Rs. nil), secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of a specific asset.

2 Loans from Financial Institutions include :

i Deferred payment credit of Rs. 24.55 lacs (Rs. 48.10 lacs), co- accepted by the Company's bankers against
hypothecation of all tangible movable properties including stock in rade and machinery situated at Jalgaon
factory; and also guaranteed by the Directors of the company {and two former Directors). Repay1ble within a
year Rs, 24.55 lacs (Rs. 24.55 lacs).

it Term loan of Rs. 3,18.20 lacs (Rs. 2,90.92 lacs), secured by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of
specific equipments. Repayable within a year Rs. 97.28 lacs (Rs. 67.63 lacs).

iii Term loan of Rs. 10,00.00 lacs (Rs. 5,00.00 lacs}, guaranteed by the Managing Director, sccured by a mortgage
of immovable properties at Kanjikode and negative lien on other properties at Mumbai. Charge in respect of
Rs, 2,00.00 lacs (Rs. nil} is pending creation.

SCHEDULE ‘D’ As at As at
UNSECURED LOANS 31st March 3tst March
1996 1995

Rs. lacs Rs, facs

Short term leans from ¢

Compunies 1,25.00 —

Financial institation 2,04.00 5,00.00%
3,25.00 5,00.00

Fixed deposits 13.48 o

(Repayable within a year Rs. 3.81 lacs (Rs. Nil))
3,38.48 5,00.00

* Guaranteed by the Managing Director
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SCHEDULE ‘F’ FIXED ASSETS (Rs. Tacs)
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
As at Additions  Deletiens/ As at Up to For the Deletions/ Upto As at Asat
3ist Adjustmanis Blst 31st Year  Adjustments 3st 3lst 31st
March . March March ’ March March March
1995 15396 1395 1956 1996 1995
Frechold land 15.20 —_ — 15.20 — —— - — 15.20 . 15,20
Leasehold Jand 32.44 — — 32.44 1.41 0.37 _— L78 30,66 31.03
Building * 5,22.06 7,11.28 — 12,33.34 2609 17.18 - 43.87 11,8947 4,95.97
Plant & machinery 19,00.50 6,32.65 1007  25,23.08 62714 2,34.4% 287.99€@ 5,73.64 19,49.44 12,73.36
Furniture & fittings 56,08 2.90 0.17 58.81 16,48 149 0.04 18.33 40.48 39,60
" | Trade mark/ .
copyright 300,004 — - 3,00.00 — — — — 3,00.00 3,00.00
Vehicles 29.88 48.49 0.13 78,24 369 4.19 0.0t 7.87 70.37 26.19
TOTAL 28,56.16 13,9532 1037 424111 6,74.81 2,58.72 2,88.04 6,45.49 35,9562 21,8135
PREVIOUS YEAR 17,55.38 11,2825 27.47 28,56.16 3,71.23 3,23.80 20,22 6,5;4.81 ’
CAPITAL WORKIN-PROGRESS (AT COST) INCLUDING ADVANCES ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT 4,42.87 5,22.66
40,38.49 27,0341
* Includes pending execution of conveyance for Rs. 9,06.83 lacs (Rs.2,06.84 Jacs) .
# Pending registration.
@ Includes depreciation write back of Rs. 2,856.49 lacs (Rs. Nil), Refer note & of Schedule R
SCHEDULE ‘F
INVESTMENTS As at As at
31st March 31st March
1996 1995
. ‘ Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (At Cost)
Unquoted - Trade
Kanmoor Foods Lid.
14,50,000 (Nily Equity shares of Rs,10 each fully paid 1,45.00 1,45.00@
Government Securities - :
National Savings Certficate (Deposited with Govt. authorities} 1.03 1.03
@ Advance against share application 1,46.03 1,46.03
CURRENT INVESTMENTS (At cost) (Refer note 5 (b) of Schedule R)
QUOTED
UTI - Unit ‘64
14700 (146580) Units of Rs.10 each fully paid 2.60 25.88
Associated Cement Co, Ltd.
50 (50) Eqguity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid 1.90 1.80
Bajaj Auto Ltd
500 (1000} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 3.06 6.12
Brooke Bond Lipton India Ltd,
900 (900) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 4.72 4.72
Fata Power Co. Ltd
2500 {250} Equity shares of Rs.10 {Rs 100} each fully paid 6.10 6.10
Carrier Aircon Ltd
2100 {5000} Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 1.45 5.45
India Securities Lid
9750 (14350) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 7.16 10.82
(500 shares subscribed towards Rights issue and 5100 shares sold
during the year)
Majestic Anto Lid
1000 (1000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 2.97 2.97
Master Gain-92
19600 (58000) Urits of Rs,10 each fully paid 2.59 .66
Nirma Ltd
NIL {300} Equity shages of Rs.10 cach folly paid — (.33
LML Litd
50 (600) Equity shares of Rs. 10} each fully paid 0.03 .35
32.58 70.30
UNQUOTED - -
Birla Global Finance Ltd.
50,000 (Nil) 13.5% Redecmuble Non-Convertible Cumulutive
Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid 50.00 —
Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited
200 (Nil} 17% Secured Redeemable Non-Convertibie
Debentures of Rs. 2500/- each fully paid. 5.00 -
55.00 —
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 2,33.61 2,16.33
Aggregate market vatue of guoted investments 23.61 67.08
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SCHEDULE ‘G’ As at As at
INVENTORIES 31ist March 31st March
(As valued and certified by the 1996 1995
Management - Note 3 of Schedule ‘§’) Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Raw materials 6,90.84 4,08.67
Packing materials | 6,03.48 4,54.78
Stores, spares, consumables & chemicals etc. 79.89 36.69
Work-in-process 24.68 17.50
Finished products 19,84.67 13,29.44
. By-products 24.22 27.95
34,07.78 29,7503
SCHEDULE ‘F’
SUNDRY DEBTORS As at As at
{Unsecured-considered good) 31st March 31st March
1996 1995
Rs, Jacs Rs, lacs
Over six months s 1,03.70 1,38.13
Others 16,49.09 10,34.03
17,6279 11,72.16
SCHEDUILE ‘T’
CASH AND BANK BALANCES As at As at
31st March 31st March
1996 1995
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Cash on hand 8.78 4.47
Remittances in transit — 13.50
Balances with Banks:
(Note 7 of Schedule R)
Fixed deposits (lodged with Govt. anthorities) 1.35 1.25
Margin account (Against letters of credit &
bank guarantees) 40.01 : 41,01
Current accounts ) _ 1,67.27 99.51
Share application coltection accounts (Net) 77,50.87 —
{Includes Stockinvest Rs, 71,77.40 lacs. Refer
note 1 (b) of Schedule R) - —_—
. 79,68.28 1,59.74
SCHEDULE ‘J
LOANS AND ADVANGCES As at’ As at
{Unsecured-considered good) 31st March 315t March
1996 1995
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be received 10,62.18 5,53.84
Deposits 8,31.94 9,33,48
Acvance Tax (net of provisions) 17.05 30,62
Balance with Centrat Excise authorities 0.09 0.17
Interest accrued on -— Investments 0.82 0.62
- Others 3.21 2,98

19,15.29 16,21.71
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SCHEDULE *K’
CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at
' 31st March 31st March
1996 1995
Rs. Iacs Rs. lacs
Sundry creditors 23,04.08 22,38.11
Advances from customers 8.54 137
Share application-monies refundable 60,00.87 e
{Refer note k{c) of Schedule R)
Other habilities 2,52.86 2,09.93
Security deposits 4,29.40 3,64.72
Interest accrued but not due 30,12 35.19
90,25.87 28,61.66
SCHEDULE ‘L’
PROVISIONS As at As at
31st March 31st March
1956 1995
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
For diminution in value of investments 8,97 —
(Refer note 5(b) of Schedule R)
For dividend — 67.50
8.97 67.50
SCHEDULE ‘M’
OTHER INCOME
1995-96 1994.95
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Income from investments (Gross) . 8.03 3.64
Tax deducted at source Rs, 1.01 lacs {Rs. 0.86 lacs)
(includes Rs. 0.21 lacs ( Rs, 0.18 lacs) on long
term investmenis) .
Interest from banks & others (Gross) 17.06 49.53
Tax deducted at source Rs. 0.04 lacs
(Rs. 6.16 lacs)
Miscellaneous income 1,25.26 51.66
1,50.35 1,04.85
SCHEDIJLE ‘N?*
COST OF MATERIALS :
199596 1994-95
Rs. Jacs Rs. lacs
RAW MATERIALS
Opening stock 4,08.67 3,99.91
Add : Purchases 183,72.01 148,44.67
Less : Closing stock 6,90.84 4,08.67
- 180,89.84 148,35.61
PURCHASE OF FINISHED-PRODUCTS 14,57.23 14,4329
{INCREASE)/DECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK
Wark-in-process 17.50 24,81
By-products 27.95 15.587
Finished products 13,29.44 11,31.16
: ) 13,74.89 11,71.34
CLOSING STOCE. e e
Work-in-pracess 24.68 17.50
By-praducts 24,22 27.95
Finished producis 19,84.6%7 18,2944
20,33.57 18,74.89
(6,58.68) {2,03.55)
188,88.39 160,75.65

30




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
SCHEDULE ‘O’
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES
199596 1994-95
Rs. lacs Rs, lacs
Employee cost :
Salaries, wages and bonus 7,18.61 4.50.40
Contribution to provident fund
- and other funds 68.80 41.38
Welfare expenses 1,28.12 . 99.71 |
9,15.5% 5,91.49 :
Reimbursement, including claims,
of conversion & other charges 7,84.05 5,89.89
Stores, spares & chemicals consumned 2,25.06 T 2,48.60
Packing materials consumed 44,60.95 34,92.44
Power, fuel and water 2.84.88 2,23.89
Rent and storage charges . 2,6L.18 2,20.29
Repairs to: Buildings 47.94 54.25 ;
Machinery 49.80 43.99
Others 16.33 14,16
1,14.07 92.40
Freight and forwarding charges 12,0846 9,15.89
Advertiserment and sales promotion 24,00.12 17,90.22
Rates and taxes 8.21 9.9k
Sales tax 2,34.24 2,36.31
Printing, stationery & communication expenses 1,90.19 1,48.75
Travelling, conveyance & vehicle expenses 3,29.86 2,81.90
Royalty ‘ 1,92.53 1,56.08
Insurance 15.76 18,75
Provision for diminution in value of investments 8.97 —
Miscellancous expenses 5,61.75 4,48.42
T 122,05.81 95,2293
SCHEDULE ‘P
FINANCE CHARGES ‘
1995-96 1994-95 i
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Interest on fixed loans 5,18.37 2,21.24
Other interest 2,66.25 2,15.574
Bank charges & others 1,84.55 1,73.76
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SCHEDULE “Q»

B} RAW MATERIAIS CONSUMED 199595 199495
Quantity Value Quantity Value

M.T. Rs. lacs M.T. Rs, lacs

Oil seeds 51687 105,47.95 41,856 82,71.85
Raw oils 21688 69.08.34 18,478 61,69.66
Others — 6,33.55 4,04.40

180,89.84 148,35.91

C) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND

INDIGENQUS MATERIALS CONSUMED 1995-96 1994.95
% Value % Value
Rs, lacs Rs. lacs

Raw materials
Imported 12,71 22,99.54 0.35 52.12
Indigenous 87.29 157,90.30 98.65 147,83.79
100,00 180,89.84 100.00 148,35.91

Stores, spares and chemicals

Imporied — — — —
Indigenous 100.00 2,25.06 100.00 2,48.60
100.00 2,25.06 100.00 2,48.60
D) VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.LF. BASIS
199596 1994-95
Rs, lacs Rs. lacs
Raw materials 15,93.35 52,12
Capital goods ) 8.64 1.30
16,01.99 55.42
E) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY
1995-98 199495
Rs. lacs Rs. tacs
Packing materials 4,14.40 2,57.98
Travelling & other expenses 1,68.52 56.98
' 5,82.92 3,14.96 i
|
!
F) FARNINGS IN FORTIGN EXCHANGE
1995.96 - 199495
Rs. lacs Rs, lacs
F.0.B. vaiue of exports 4,33.00 2,79.79

4,83.00 2,79.7%
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SCHEDULY ‘R’
NOTES:

1. a) During the year, the Company issued 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 165/- per
share, aggregating to Rs. 17,50.00 lJacs. Pending allotment of these shares, which cccurred in April 1996, an
amount of Rs. 1,00.00 lacs has been disclosed under ‘Share Capital’ in Schedule ‘A’ and the correspeonding
premium of Rs, 16,50.00 lacs under 'Reserves & Surplus’ in Schedute ‘B,

b) Share Application monies received have been shown under 'Cash and Bank Balances’, after netiing off the
Hability of Rs, 45,93.75 lacs due to Promoters on account of amounts collected on their behalf in terms of the -
offer for sale.

¢) The excess subscription of Rs. 60,00.87 Iacs has been reflected as share application monies refundable under
‘Current Liabilities’.

2. Capital Reserve represents subsidy received from the State government of Kerala for the setting up of the new pla:ﬁt
at Kanjikode which is refundable if the unit goes out of production within five years.

3.  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 1,52.69 lacs
(Rs. 4,73.82 lacs) net of advances.

4. The gross black of fixed assets includes asscts given on lease Rs. 5,28.02 lacs (Rs. 5,11.18 lacs).

5. The Company has made the following changes in its accounting policies on depreciation and investments in the light
of the accounting standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India becoming mandatory with
effect from 1.4.95 :

a) Depreciation :
On assets given on lease - Over the primary period of lease as against income tax rates.
On assets used for research and development — As per Schedule XIV rates as against 100%.
Depreciation on the above mentioned assets have been recomputed on the revised basis from the month in
which the asscts have been put to use and consequently :
iy  Excess depreciation charged in earlier years of Rs, 2,86.49 lacs has been written back, and

ii) Depreciation charge for the year is lower and profits higher by Rs. 1,27.52 lacs.

b} Investments:
Long term investments —  Valued at cost except that permanent decline in value, if any, is recognised.

Current investments —  Valued at lower of cost or market value (computed categorywise) as against practice
of valuing at cost in the previous year.

The diminution in the value of current investments as at 31st March, 1996 amounting to Rs. 8.97 lacs (Rs. Nil}
has been provided For in the accounts. The profit for the year is therefore lower to this extent.

6. The Company has an investiwent of Rs. 1,45.00 lacs in the equity capltal of Kanmoor Foods Limited ( K F L ) which
is engaged in the manufacture of processed foods, These products are marketed by the Company under the brand
name * SIL'. Although carrently the net worth of K F L is negative, considering the growth potential of this business
and the Company’s long term interest in it, this investment is expected to benefit the Company. Having regard to the
foregoing, no provision for diminution in the value of investments is considered necessary.

7. Cash and Bank balamces include batances of Rs. 0.27 kaes {Rs. 0.03 lacs) held with Janata Sahakari bank, jaﬂgaon, a
non-scheduled bank. Maximum balance during the year Rs. 6.69 lacs ( Rs. 2.04 lacs).

§.  Loans and Advances includes Loan to an Officer of the Company of Rs. 0.70 Iacs (Rs. Nil). Maximum Balance
outstanding during the year was Rs. 0.70 lacs (Rs. Nilj.

o

Sundry Creditors inclhade accepiances Rs, 91.50 lacs (Rs. 18.88 lacs).

10, Misceltancous income includes lease income Rs. 1,01.84 Iacs (Rs, 41.52 lacs), and profit on sale of current investments
{net) Rs. 0.5]1 lacs (Rs. 1.74 lacs).

11. Miscellaneous expenses include Commission and Brokerage Rs. 16.8% Iacs (Rs. 6.10 lacs), Donaiions Rs. 3.39 lacs
(Rs. 10,72 lacs), Cash discount Rs. 5.49 lacs (Rs. $.67 lacs), Loss on sale of assets Rs, 6.22 facs {Rs, 3.85 lacs), Audit
fees Rs. 1.50 lacs (Rs. 1.50 lacs}y, Payment to Auditors for other services Rs, 0.81 lacs (Rs. 0.79 IM\) Payment to
Auditors for out-of-pocket expenses Rs, 0,77 lacs (Rs. 0.38 hc:,)
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12, Research & Development expenses aggregating to Rs. 1,04.00 lacs (Rs. 72,18 lacs) including depreciation of Rs. 5.98
lacs {Rs. 6.7 Jacs) have been included under the relevant heads of expenses.

13. Contingent liability not provided for in respect of :
. i) Letters of Credit opened and outstanding Rs. 46,44 Jacs {Rs. 44.71 lacs).

ii)  Sales Tax claims against the Company for which ass#$ments have been completed, not acknowledged as debts
“Rs. 27.03 lacs {Rs. 2.62 lacs). -

iii} Income Tax and Interest demand disputed before higher authorities ;
a) By the Company Rs. Nit (Rs. 6.11 lzcs)
b) By the Income Tax Department Rs, 11.92 lacs (Rs. 11.92 lacs)
iv}  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. 7.21 laes {Rs. Nil)

14. Confirmations have not been called for debtors, creditors and advances. However, the balances on review are
considered receivable or payable, as the case may be.

15. Payments to suppliers in the small scale sector are made in accordance with agreed credit terms. The interest, if any,
on overdue amouinds as on 31st March 1996, has neither been claimed nor been ascertained.

16. Managerial Remuneration :

i} Calcutation of Commission payable to the Managing Direclor :

1995-96

199495
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Profit before taxation 29,68.57 19,06.65
Add: Director's Remuaneration 57.66 16.33
Depreciation as per books:
For the period 2,58.72
Write back of Depreciation (2,86.49) (27.1'7) 3,23.80
Loss on sale of assets as per books 6.22 3.85
Provision for diminution in value of
Investments 897 —
25.08 3,43.98
Leys: Depreciation under Section 350 4,41.32 4,67.68
1.oss on sale of assets under Section 350 {net) 577 3.1
Profit on sale of Investments (net) 0.51 1.74
4,47.60 4,72.61
Profit as per Section 349 25,46,05 17,78.02
Commission to Managing Director @ 1%
of net profit 25.46 17.78
Restricted to 50% of salary for the year N.A 4.80
i) Payments and provisions on accownt of
remuneration 1o Managing Director
included in Profit & Loss Accoun.
iy Salary 6.00 6.00
i} Commission 25.46 4.80
i} Contribwiion 1o Provident Fund
and Pension Fund 1.50 1.h0
iv)  Other Perquisites 4.70 4.03
6.35

37.66 1
The ahove remuneration does not include conuibution to Grawity Fund as this contribution is a lumpsusn
amount based on actuarial valuation.

17. The figures in brackets represent previous years figures which have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm
with current years figwres.
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Information pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 :

a)  Registration details :

Registration No, ;o 11-49208 t

Balance sheet Date : 31st March 1996 :
b)  Capital raised during the year ¢ (Amount in Rs, lacs)

Public Issue Nit (Refer Note 1 above)

Bonus Essue 9,00.00

Rights Issue ) Nil

Private placement Nil

¢} Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds {Amount in Rs. lacs)

Total Liabifities 102,81.40

Total Assels 102,81.40

Sources of Funds Application of Funds

Paid up Capital 13,50.00 Net Fixed Assets 40,38.49 !
Share Application Investments 2,33.61
— pending allotment 1,00.00 Net Current Assets 60,09.30
Reserves & Surplus 35,02.85 Misc. Expenditure —
Share Premium Accumulated losses -
—pending allotment 16,50.00

Secured Loans 33,40.07

Unsecured Loans 3,38.48

d} Performance of the Company (Amount in Rs. lacs)

Turnover 348,535.82
Total Expenditure 320,35:60
Profit before Tax 29,68.57
Profit after Tax 21,1857
Earnings per share in Rs. 15.690

Dividend rate (%) 25

¢}  Generic name of the three principal products/services of the Company:
Item code No, Product Description

(L. T.C Code)

151519.00 Coconut Qil i
151219.01 Sunflower O '
151219.02 Safflower Seed Oil :
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SCHEDULE ‘8

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. FIXED ASSETS - {

Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes, duties, freight
and other incidental expenses related 1o acquisition and installation, Interest during construction perfod on borrowings .
to finance fixed assets are capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for major projects are also capitalised, where appropriate.

2.  DEPRECIATION

2.1 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight line method at the rates and in the manner specified in
Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, except as stated in paragraphs 2.2 to 2.5 below. Depreciation on
additions/deletions during the year has been provided on pm rata basis with reference to the month of
addition/deletion. Extra shift depreciation has been provided on “ Plant” basis.

2.9 Assets given on lease are depreciated over the primary period of the lease.

2.3 Plant and Machinery costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated at 100%. Other fixed assets costing less
than Rs. 5,000 each acquired after 31.3.1993 are depreciated at 100%. ;

2.4 Leasehold land is amortised over the balance period of lease. ;

2.6 No depreciation is provided on Trademark/Copyright.

3. INVESTMENTS

N
3.1 Long term Investmenis are valued at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of Investments is made
to recognise a decline, other than temporary.

3.2 Current Investments are valued at lower of cost or market value, computed categorywise.

4,  INVENTORY

4,1 Inventories are valued as follows :

a)  Raw materials — at cost

b) Packing material, Chemicals, Consumables. — at cost

¢)  Work-in-process — at cost

d} Finished products — at lower of cast or net realisable value
|

¢) Stores & spares — ai cost

f)  By-Products — at net realisable value :

g) Unserviceable/damaged Gnished products  — at estimated realisable vaiue. {

4,2 Cosl in relation to finished goods and work-in-process is determined on “direct costing’ basis.

4.3 Stores, Spares costing less than Rs, 1,600 are charged off in the year of purchase.

5. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
Capital expendilure on Research & Development is allocated to Fixed assets. The revenue expenditiure an Research
& Development is chweged off in the year in which it is incurred,

6. SALES

Sales are ;

i) net of wrade discount,
i} exchusive of sales tax and

iii} recognised on despatch of goods.
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7.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Liability towards retirement gratuity has been provided on the basis of actuarial valuation. Contribution to provident L
fund and pension fund are made at predetermined rates to the respective trusts and accounted on acerual basis.

8. TFOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
8.1 Foreign currency assets / liabilities covered by forward contracts are stated at the forward contract rates.

8.2 Yoreign currency assets / Habilities not covered by forward cenltracts are restated at the rate ruling at the close
of financial year. -

8.3 Exchange rate differences relating to fixed assets are adjusied in the cost of fixed assets. Other exchange
differences are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Signatures to Schedules AtoS

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai P, SANKER C. V. MARTWALA H. C. MARIWALA
Dated : June 11, 1996. Seeretary Chairman Managing Director
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Cash Flow Statement

A, CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit as per accounts

Adjustments for -

Provision for Taxes

Extraordinary Items — Excess Depreciation written back
Interest

Net Profit before Interest, Taxes and Extraordinary Items

Adjustments for -

Depreciation

Loss on sale of assets

Provision for diminution in Investments

Profit on sale of Investments
Income from Investments
Interest from Banks/Others

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Invested in
— Inventories

— Sundry Debtors
— Loans & Advances

— Current Liabilities

Cash generated from Operations

Less : Payments for

— Direct Taxes
— Interest

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Fixed assets
Purchase of Investments
Sate of assets

Sale of Investments
Interest received
Dividerd received

Capital Subsidy received
NET CASH OUTFLOW ON INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Year ended
31st March
1996
Rs. lacs
21,18.57
8,50.00
(2,86.49)
9,69.17
15,32.68
36,51.25
2,58.72
6.22
8.97
2,73.91
39,25.16
{0.51)
(8.03)
{17.06)
(25.60)
38,99.56
11,32.75
5,80.63
3,07.15
{1,68.41)
18,52.12
20,47.44
8,36.42
9,74.24
18,10.66
2,36.78
(13,16.13)
(55.09)
2,59
38.32 .
20.69
4.40
20.00
{12,85.22)

Year ended
31st March
1995
Rs, lacs
11,81.65
7,25.00
6,10.74
13,35.74
25,17.30
3,28.80
3.84
3,27.64
28,45.03
(1.74)
{3.64)
{48.53)
{54.91})
27,90.12
4,18.73
2,73.37
4,35.95
{4,84.78)
6,42.57
21,47.55
7.92.29
5,88.98
13,81.27
7.66.28
(18,61.34)
(1,50.99)
3.40
2.04
49,53
3.64
{14,62.72)
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CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Year ended Year ended (
31st March 31st March /
1996 1995 !
Rs, lacs Rs. lacs !
Equity !
Proceeds from issue of Shares pending altotment 77,50.87 — ;i
Less : Amounts due as refunds. 60,00.87 — /
17,60.00 —_—
Changes in Long Term borrowings '
Proceeds from Long term Borrowings B,16.21 5,12.20
Changes in Short Term borrowings |
Bank Borrowings - 10,84.83 (85.61) !
Others {1,75.00) 3,50.00 X
9,09.83 2,64.39
Dividend paid {3,19.93) {64.00)
NET CASH INFLOW ON FINANCING ACTIVITIES 28,56.11 7,22.594
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31.3.96 A+B+C 18,07.67 36.15
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31.3.95 1,59.74 1,25.59
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31.3.96
(Including Rs. 17,50.00 kacs in Share Application
monies collected Net of refunds, pending altotment) 19,67.41 1,59.74

For and on behalf of the Board

C. V. MARIWALA H. C. MARIWALA

Chairman Managing Director !
Place : Mumbai
Dated : June 11, 1996

Auditors’ Certificate

We have examined the attached Cash Flow Statement of Marico Industries Ltd. for the year
" ended 31st March, 1996. The Statement has been prepared by the Company in accordance with
the requirements of listing agreement Clause 32 with Bombay Stock Exchange and is based on
and in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss account and Balance Sheet of the

Company covered by our report of 11th june, 1996 to the members of the Company.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana
Chartered Accourntants

Place : Mumbai NATRAJ RAMKRISHNA
Dated: June 11, 1896 Pariner
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A Hor MARIC O, it is tomorrow that counts.  the strength our brands have garnered over tone that
! We know that the growth of our company is inexorably  will belp us stand firm and tall. A strength bown of our
* linked with the growth of our brands. Which is why investments in every aspect of the brand. From
prusdent and. continuous investsnents in all onr brands is  Manufiucturing Facilities to Product Aesthetics. From
% of cvitical importance to us. Each brand is created and  Quality Control to Research. From Distribution to
nurinred over the years. So that it can blossom and build  Promotion and Medin Advertising. And most important
an identity of its own. of all, our investnent in People. N i
At MARICO, we are intent on being a leader in the It is the brand equity built through all these investments
market, norwithstanding the quality of competition,  that will help us realise our view of the fiture.
present and futurve. And, in the face of competition, it is -
|
j
J
o
143




he greatest investment into brands is people. Therefore, the future of the company is seen 45 8
And that is not an ordinary statement. MARICO  collective vesponsibility, not just that of n few people.
bas been able to invite the best of talent into the People are not employees at MARICO. They are
company, not just in Marketing but in all spheves of members and partners linked with one another ’
management of the enterprise. This assembly of talent  through a culture of epenness, trust, informality; !
has been nurtuved, trained and encouvaged to  togetherness and performance. A philosophy cherished !
produce dramatic results for its yarious brands. by all at MARICO. A philosophy that has won us the ‘
Emphasis is placed on teamwork, quality of National Award for Outstanding Work in HRD for
management processes and building a community spirit. the year 1993- 94, from the National HRD Network.
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roduct Quality not only matches uncompromising
standards, but also builds for MARICO n competitive
edge. It is quality that will set us apart from the
competition.

Continunous investment is made in the arens of
Technology, Quality Development and Quality
Assurance. Pavachute is an example. The avoma of
Coconut Oil is the vichest when certain exacting

pavameters, honed over years of observation and vesearch,
are muintained in the cooking of copra. This process has
been perfected by MARICO’s engineers and has made
Parachute the clearest oil in the marker. Thas
Pavachute bas always been a market leader is proof
enough. New entvanis and old players have made no
difference whatsoever.




4. ackaging is the face a brand presents to the do wonders for a brand. Like when SIL introduced

consumer. Which is why new, contemporary packaging  plastic tubs in n market that had been stagnant for over
can belp a product stand out from the clutter and add @ decade, the market expanded, and market shaves grew -
tremendously to the brand’s ingge. by 40%. '

But move than this, it is innovative packaging that can ' _ i




# the cose of any consumer product, sales is a direct

outeorne of the veach of n byand. The quality of the sales
team and the distributors is absolutely eritical to the
brand being available on the retail shelves. Oper the
years, MARICO has continnously invested in the quali-
ty, depth and width of its Distribution Network. The dis-
tribution of our products is facilitated through o

network of 26 Depots, 1,700 Distributors and over
300,000 Retailers, making MARICO?s Distribution
Network veach the firr corners of the countyy. And com-
parable with the best st moving consumer J00ds conpa-
nies. This emphasis on distribution bas helped MARICO
miatke Sweekar the fastest growing brand in its category,
tripling its market shave in three yeass.




L_nvestment in new products has always worked to onr
advantage.
Consumer Research helped us identify a growing
demand for non-greasy huir preparations in the existing
buir oil category. So we crented Haiy and Care, o non--
greasy oil with the added benefit of Vitawmin E.
The market shave of Hair and Care has been growing

steadily since its launch. This year, it has incrensed to
21% in a bighly competitive market. All because n
consimer need in an existing product category was iden-
tiffed and fulfilled.




B nnovative, memorable advevtising along with
contintous presence in the medid has helped build o loyal
Sfranchise for our brands. And the Saffoln story is a
perfect example.

Saffola, the only oil in the safflower oil segment,
continues its success story in the edible oil market. This
year, its shave increased by move than 20% and sales
volumes grew by 40%.

=

In 1993 - '94, Saffoln won the 'Brand of theYear' |
Award, instituted by the Advertising Club of Bombay.
The product’s stupendons performance was laygely
becanse of its brillinnt advertising campaign.




1 ARICO has initiated new product
categovies by identifying lotent consumer needs and
creating products 10 fulfil them. For years, stavching
clothes involved messy and cumbersome proceduves like
botling water, straining, cooling, ete. Ouy product
development team identified the need for a more
convenient way of starching. :

So they even ted Revive, an instant cold water starch. A new

product category,

Revive was lnunched nationally

duving the course of the year. The first instant stavch in
India, it is expected to become generic to this product

cotegory.
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4 be success of investing in new products
and new categovies is even more significant
when you compare it to the numbey of new
products that fail to survive. But at
MARICO, our products succeed becanse we
“Plant” them only after identifying a veal
consumer need. These products are then
“Nurtured” and wmade strong through
sustained investment in Product Development

and Advertising. And then we expevience the

joy of watching them unfirl and “Blosson™...
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TOP MANAGEMENT TEAM

SECRETARY

BANKERS

i AUDITORS

SOLICITORS

REGISTERED OFFICE

WORKS

CHARANDAS VALLABHDAS MARIWALA Chairman
HANSRAJ VALLABHDAS MARIWALA
KISHORE VALLABHDAS MARIWALA

HARSH CHARANDAS MARIWALA Managing Director

HARSH CHARANDAS MARIWALA Managing Director

JESWANT NAIR Vice President — Personnel

PRANAB DATTA Vice President — Finance

RAJ AGGARWAL Vice President — Operaiions

SHREEKANT GUPTE Vice President— Marketing

ARVIND KUMAR ~ Vice President — Commodities
& Exports

P. SANKER

STATE BANK OF SAURASHTRA

INDIAN BANK {
ALLAHABAD BANK

BANK OF BARODA

DALAL DESAI & KUMANA

AMARCHAND & MANGALDAS & SURESH A, SHROFF & CD.
MULLA & MULLA & CRAIGIE BLUNT & CAROE

“RANG SHARDA”
Krishnachandra Marg,
Bandra Reclamation,
Bandra West,
BOMBAY 400 050,

i} E—10, M.LD.C. Area, Jalgacn 425 003.

ify Industrial Development Area,
Kanjikode — Menonpara Road,
KANJIKODE, PALAKKAD 678 621.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE s hereby given that the Seventh Annual
- General Meeting of MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
will be held at the Registered Office of the Company
at “RANG SHARDA”, Plot No. 791, Krishnachandra
Marg, Bandra Reclamation, Bandra (West),
Bombay - 400 050 on July 28, 1995 at 11.00 am. to
transact the following business : .

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance

‘Sheet as at March 31, 1995 and the Profit_and

Loss Account of the Company for the year ended
on that date together with the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors.

To declare a dividend.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. H.C. Mariwala
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. C.V. Mariwala
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

To consider -and, if thought fit, o pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Reselution:-

“RESOLVED THAT

() Pursuant to the recommendation of the Board
of Diractors, a sum of Rs. 9,00,00,000/-
{Rupees Nine Crores Only) being a part of the
sum standing to the credit of the General

Reserve as at 31st March, 1985 be and is
hereby capitalised in pursuance of Article 141
of the Articles of Association of the Company
for paying up in full at par 90,00,000 Equity
shares of Rs. 10/~ each in the capital of the
Company to be alloited and distributed as fully
paid bonus shares to such members holding
Equity shares as on the date of this meeting
in the proportion of two new Equity shares for
every Equity share held by such members on
the aforesaid date upon the fooling that they
become entitled to such new Equity shares as
capital and not as income.

(il The new Equity shares, as and when issued
and allotted, shall be subject to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company and shall rank in all respects
pari passu with the existing Equity shares of
the Company, save and except that they shall
not be entitled o any dividend declared or
paid prior to the date of allotment.

(iii} No letter of allotment shall be issued for such
new Equity shares and cerificates in respect
of new Equity shares shall be completed and
kept ready within three months from the date
of allotment.

(iv) For the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution, the Board of Directors be and is
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds,
matters or things and give such directions as
it may deem fit to seftle any question or
difficulty that may arise with regard to the issue
and distribution of new Equity shares as it
may in its absolute discretion deem necessary,
expedient, usual or proper.”

NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY 10O

2
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ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2. DIVIDEND ON SHARES AS RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, IF DECLARED AT
THE MEETING, WILL BE PAD TO THOSE
SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE NAMES STAND
REGISTERED IN THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
AS ON JULY 28, 1995,

3. BONUS SHARES AS RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, IF APPROVED AT THE
MEETING, WILL BE ISSUED TO THOSE
SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE NAMES STAND
REGISTERED IN THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
AS ON JULY 28, 1995,

4. THE RELATIVE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

4

PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956 IN RESPECT OF THE
SPECIAL BUSINESS UNDER ITEM NO. 6 IS
ANNEXED HERETO.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

P. SANKER
Company Secrelary

Place : Bombay
Date : June 23, 1995

Registered Qffice
"Rang Sharda”,
Krishnachandra:Marg,
Bandra Reclamation,
Bandra (West),
Bombay - 400 050.

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956.

ITEM NO. 6

Considering the size and scale of the Company’s
operations with operating revenue nearing RBs. 300
crofes, it is felt that the present Equity Share capital of
the Company of Rs. 4.50 Crores doss not appropriately
reflect the capital employed in the business.
Accordingly, your Directors recommend that a sum of
Rs. 9 crores be capitalised out of the amount avallable
to the credit of General Reserve as at 31st March,
1995 and that such sum be applied in paying up in full
90 tacs fresh Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at par fo
be allotted as bonts shares to the holders of the Equity
shares of the Company as on the date of this meeting
in the proportion of iwo new Equity shares for every
Equily share held by such holders,

Your Directors may be deemed to be interested in this
Resolution to the extent of their shareholding in the
Company.

Your Directors recommend passing of the Resolution
contained in Item 6 of the accompanying Notice dated
June 23, 1895,

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

P. SANKER
Company Secretary

Place : Bombay
Date : June 23, 1995
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FINANCIAL SNAPSHOT

SALES
OTHER INCOME

"+ TOTAL REVENUE
OPERATING EXPENSES
FINANCE CHARGES
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
TAX

PROFIT AFTER TAX
DIVIDEND
NET FIXED ASSETS
INVESTMENTS
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED
SHARE CAPITAL
RESERVES
NET WORTH
BORROWED FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS EMPLOYED
RATIOS -
OPERATING MARGIN TO SALES (%)
PROFIT TO SALES (%)
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE (%)
CURRENT RATIO (No. of times)
TOTAL DEBT/EQUITY {No. of times)
EPS (Rs.)

* ON ENHANGED CAPITAL

(Rs. lacs)

1990-91 1991-92°  1992-93 1993-94 1994-95
10583 15944 21032 23644 28334
14 22 34 84 105
10597 15966 21066 23728 28439
9901 14881 19035 21654 25921
242 468 552 583 611
454 617 1479 1491 1907
210 332 860 855 725
244 | 285 619 636 182
— — 23 54 67
308 675 1096 1673 2703

1 1 1 67 71

402 908 1454 1589 2445
801 1584 2551 - 3329 5219
90 90 450 450 450
240 525 821 1403 2517
330 615 1271 1853 2967
471 969 1280 1476 2252
801 1584 2551 3329 5219
6.7 7.0 10.4 9.5 10.0
2.3 1.8 2.9 2.7 4.2
46.2 53.8 58.2 57.3 38.1
1.28 1.41 1.93 1.65 1.83
1.43 1.58 1.01 0.80 0.76
27.1 31.7 13.7* 14.1 26.3
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventh

Annual Report of the Company together with the

audited accounts for the year ended March 31, 1995.
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

{Rs. lacs)

1994-95 1993-94

Sales and Other Incorﬁe 28,439.07 23,728.07

Profit Before Tax 1,906.65 1,490.82
Tax 725.00 855.00
Profit After Tax "1,181.65 635.82
Add : Brought Forward 252,56 22074
1,434,21 856.56
Less : Dividend 67.50 54.00
Transfer to General
Reserve 1,000.00 500.00

Transfer to Debenture
. Redemption Reserve  50.00 50.00

Batance Carried Forward 316.71 2652.56

2. DIVIDEND

Your Directors recommend a dividend of 15%
(i.e. Rs. 1.50 per share of Rs. 10/- each}, subject
to deduction of tax at source which if approved
by the Shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting will absorb Rs. 67.50 lacs (previous year
Rs. 54 lacs).

3. CAPITAL

In order to ensure that the equity share capital
_appropriately reflects the capital employed in the
business, your Directors recommend that a sum
of Rs. 9 crores (Rupees Nine Crores) be
capitalised out of the amount standing to the credit
of General Reserve as at 31st March, 1995 and
that such sum be applied in paying up in full 90
lacs fresh equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at par
to be aliotted as bonus shares to the holders of
equity shares of the Company as on July 28,
1995 in propottion of two new equity shares for
every equily share held by such holder. The said
proposal, if approved by the members, would
augment the paid-up capital to Bs. 13.50 crores.

4. OPERATIONS

Compared to 13% in the previous year,_revenues
registered a growth of 20% during the year,

increasing from Rs. 237 crores to Rs. 284 crores.
Profits before tax increased by 28% to Rs. 19.07
crores and profits after tax by as much as 86%
to Rs. 11.82 crores. The net worth of the
Company now stands at almost Rs. 30 crores
and has been built up in just five years since the
Company began comimercial operations in 'its
current identity. The extremely high level of profits
ploughed back in the business has significantly
helped in strengthening the financial structure,
as reflected by various ratios.

Despite the competitive environment, the
Company managed to enhance its market shares
in all product categories. Substantial investments
were made in the branids, both established and
newly launched, and the growth in the market
shares is a testimony to the increasing equities
of the various brands. The continuing profit growth
is a reflection of the growing franchise of the
brands.

Parachute Coconut O, amongst the top selling
consumer brands in the country, continued to
grow in volumes. Parachuie, as the clear market
leader, is consistently endeavouring to expand
the market for branded coconut oil and in the
process increase its franchise amongst the
consumers. The strategy to bring more
consumers into its fold rests on the assurance of
purily, clarity and value for money offered by
Parachute.

In the refined edible oils category, the Company
has two powerful brands, viz. Saffola, the only
nationally recognised refined kardi oil and
Sweekar, one of the largest selling refined
sunflower oil. The combined sales of these two
brands increased by as much as 59% and
crossed the Rs. 100 crore mark. This makes the
Company one of the largest manufacturers of
refined edible oils sold in consumer packs.
Incidentally, the Company has consciously stayed
away from the bulk business and focussed only
on the branded segment in consonance with its
mission to service the needs of the consumers
with value added fast moving products in
convenient consumer packs.

Operations at the newly established copra
crushing plant at Kanjikode, Kerala have
stabilised and the plant is now operating at full
capacity, Additional expellers have been installed
to augment capacity to meet the increasing load
on this plant. Similarly, the Jalgaon plant too is
operating at full capacity. Emerging shortage in

el .
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7.2

the near future due to increasing demand may
necessitate further capacity expansion at Jalgaon
also.

ACCOUNTS

The observations of the Auditors in their Report
to the Members have been adequately dealt with
in the relevant Notes to the accounts. Hence no
further explanation is deemed necessary.

DIRECTORS

Mr. J. V. Mariwala resigned from the Board on l

February 23, 1995. In accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1956 and
the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. H. C. Mariwala and Mr. C. V. Mariwala are
flable 1o retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

OTHER INFORMATION

information required in accordance with the
provisions of Section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disciosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988, regarding conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo is given in the Annexure to
this Report.

in addition, information in- accordance, with
provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars

10.

Place : Bombay
Dated : June 23, 1995,

of Employees) Rules, 1975, and forming part of
this Report is annexed.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Dalal Desat & Kumana, Chartered
Accountants, retire and are eligible for re-
appointment as Auditors.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Relations between employees and the
management have remained cordial and the
Directors wish to place on record their
appreciation for the co-operation and support
received.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors take this opportunity of
acknowledging the support and assistance

received from the Company’s bankers, suppliers
and other business associates. -

On behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARIWALA
Chairman
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of
Energy, Research & Development Expenditure and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required under
Companies {Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board
of Directors) Rules, 1988.

A. Conservation of Energy :

i} tmproved energy utilisation by Motor load
rationalisation and rating adjustments in Refinery.

ii) Installation of power factor improvement devices at
various plants to improve efficiency.

i) Installation of heat recovery equipment to improve
Boiler efficiericy.

v} Process improvemen! to improve raw material
preparation and conditioning for energy efficient
expelling.

The details of tolal energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of production are disclosed in
Enclosure ‘Al

B. Research & Development :

The details of Research & Development are disclosed
in Enclosure 'B’,

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo :

New markets are being developed to promole the
exports of Company's products and steps have been
initiated to improve the infrastructure in the markets
already tapped.

The details of total foreign exchange used and earned
are disclosed in Schedule ‘Q to accounts,

ENCLOSURE ‘A’

A, Power & Fuel Consumptions :

1994-95  1993-84

1 Electricity
a) Purchased Unit (Kwh) 50,34,780 33,46,120

Totat Amount (Rs. lags)  101.60 83.62
Rate (Rs./Unit) 2.02 2.50
b} Own Generation

iy Units 1,03,380 il
Amount (Rs. lacs) 269 Nil
Rate {Rs./Unit) 2.60 il

iy Through Steam
Generator Nil it

2 Coal (Used for Boiler)

Quantity (M.T) Nil il
Total Cost (Rs.} Nil . Nil
Average Rate (Rs./Ton} Nii Nil

1994-95 1993-94
3 Furnace Qil
Quantity (K.Ltrs) 1,397.447 638.149
Amount {Rs. lacs) 79.76 38.45
Average Rate (Rs./Kl) 5707.27 6,025.88
4 Other Internal Generation
L.D.O/H.S.D.
Quantity {K.Llrs.) 29585 681.029
Amount (Rs. lacs}) 19.70 45.35
Average Rate (Rs./Ki) 6,658.55 6,659.12.

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

Edible Ol Unit Consumption pef Unit
of Production

1994-95  1993-94

Electricity Kwts 153.41 153.48

Coal M.T Nil Nil

Furnace Oil K.Ltr 0.04 0.03

ENCLOSURE ‘B’

Research & Development

1t  Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the Company
—  Development of new products

— Improvement of product quality
— Process improvement

2 Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D:

Launching of new products, improvement in product
quality and cost reduction, :

3 Expenditure on R&D

Rs. lacs
a) Capital 6.70
b} Recurring- 65.47
Total 72.17
c) Ttotal R&D
expendiiure as a
percentage of total
turnover 0.25%
For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors
Place : Bombay C. V. MARIWALA
Dated ; June 23, 1995 Chairman
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Marico
Industries Limited as at 31st March, 1995 and the
Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the year

ended on that date annexed thereto, and report that:

1 We have obtained all information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit. E

2 In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those
hooks.

3. The Balance Sheet and Profit & { oss Account dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the hooks
of account.

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts together with schedules annexed
thereto, Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies in Schedule ‘S’ and read with notes to
accounts in Schedule ‘R’, give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner
so required and subject to note 11 of Schedule ‘R’
regarding basis of depreciating certain assets and
corresponding effect thereof give a true and fair
view :

a) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
1995 and

b) in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of
the profit for the year ended on that date.

As required by the Manufacturing and Other
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 1988, issued by
the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basig of
such checks as we considered appropriate and in
terms of information and explanations given fo us,
we report that ©

{1, The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets. The fixed assets are
physically verified by the management in a phased

10.

11,

manner, No material discrepancies were noticed
in case of assets verified.

None of the fixed assets has been revalued during
the year.

The stock of finished goods, raw materials, stores
and spares have been physically verified during
the year by the management at reasonable
intervals. Confirmations have been obtained in
respect of materials lying with third parties.

The procedures for physical verification of stocks
followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company
and nature of its business.

No material discrepancies have been noticed on
physical verification of stocks as compared to the
hook records.

in our opinion and on the basis of our examination,
the valuation of stock is fair and proper in
accordance with the normally accepted accounting
principles and is on the same basis as in the
preceding yeat.

‘The Company has not taken any loans from

companies, firm or other parties listed in the
register maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 andfor from companies under
the same management as defined in Section
370(1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

. The Company has given loan to a company listed

in the register maintained uncer Section 301 of
the said Act. The rate of interest and other terms
and conditions of the loan are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

Loans or advances in the nature of loans given

are being repaid as stipulated together with
interest, wherever applicable.

There are adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business for the purchase of
stores, raw materials including components, plant
and machinery, equipment and other assets and
for the sale of goods.

The transactions of purchases and sales of goods
and materials made in pursuance of contracts or

—
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

arrangements entered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000 or

more in respect of each party, other than those

transactions for which alternative comparisons are
not available, have been made at prices which, in
our opinion, are reasonable having regard to
prevailing market prices where such market prices
are available with the Company or the price at
which similar transactions were made with other
pariies.

The Company has a regular procedure for the
determination of unserviceable or damaged stores,
raw materials, finished goods and material dealt
in and provision for loss in respect thereof has
been made in the accounts.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from
the public to which the provisions of Section 58A
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 1975 are applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained
reasonable records for the sale and disposal of
realisable by-products. The Company has no
significant realisable scrap.

The Company has an internal audit system
comrmensurate with its size and the nature of iis
business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under
Section 209{1){d) of the CGompanies Act, 1956.

17.

18.

16.

20.

Place : Bombay
Dated : June 23, 1995,

The Company has regularly deposited provident
fund dues and Employees State Insurance dues
with the appropriate authorities. There were no
arrears at year end.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-fax, wealth-tax, sales-tax,
custom duty & excise duty which have remained
outstanding as at year end for a period Y fnore
than six months from the date they became
payable. .

No ‘personal expenses have been charged to
revenue account, other than those payable Under
contractual obligations or in accordance with
generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company
within the meaning of Clause (O) of sub-section (1)
of Section 3 of the Sick Indusirial Companies
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana
Chartered Accountants

MAHESH ASRANI
Partner
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SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds

Capital
Reserves & Surplus

Loan Funds

Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assels
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation

Nst Block
Capital Work-in-Progress

Investments

Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories .

Sundry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances

Loans and Advances

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions

Liabilities
Provisions

Net Current Assels

BALANCE SHEET
as at 3ist March

SCHEDULE 1995 1994
Fls.‘ lacs _ - Bs. lacs
A 450.00 450.00
B 2516.71. 1,402.56
2,966.71 1,.852.56
c 1,752.51 1,325.92
D 500,00 150.00
2,252.51 1,.475.92
5,219.22 " 3,328.48

E .
2,856.16 1,755.38
674.81 371.23
2,181.35 1,384.15
522.06 288.97
2,703.41 1,673.12
F 71.33 66.63
G 2,275.03 1,856.30
H 1,172.16 898.79
1 159.74 123.50
J 1,766.71 1,155.84
5,373.64 4,034.52
K 2,861.66 2.355.12
L 67.50 90.67
2,029.16 2,445.79
2,444.48 1,588.73

5,219.22 3,328.48

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accounting Policies, see Schedules ‘R’ & 'S’ respectively.

As per our attached report of even date
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accouniants

MAHESH ASRANI P. SANKER
Pariner Secrelary

Place : Bombay
Dated : June 23, 1995.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA
Chairman

H.C. MARIWALA
Managing Director

Place : Bombay
Dated : .une 23, 1995,
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

INCOME:
Sales

Other Income

EXPENDITURE:

Cost of Materials

Manufacturing and Other Expenses
Finance Charges

Depreciation

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Provision for Tax

PROFIT AFTER TAX

Balance brought forward

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS

APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend (Subject 1o tax)
General Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st March

SCHEDULE 1995
Rs. lacs

Q 28,334.24

M 104.83
' 28,439.07

N 16,075.65

fo) 9,622,23

p 610.74

E 323.80
26,532.42

1,906.65

725,00
1,181.65

252,56
1,434.21

67.50

1,000.00
50.00

316.71

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accounting Policies, see Schedules 'R’ & ‘S’ respectively.

As per our atlached report of even date
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

MAHESH ASRANI P. SANKER
Partner Secretary

Place : Bombay
Dated : June 23, 1995,

1994
As. lacs

23,643.85

84.22

23,728.07

13,266.39
8,217.94
582.80

170.03

22,237.25

1,490.82

855.00

635.82

220.74

856.56

54,00
500.00
50.00

262.56

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars

C.V. MARIWALA
Chalrman

Place : Bombay
Dated : June 23, 1995.

H.C. MARIWALA
Managing Director
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MARICO INDUSTRIES HMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

As at -~ Asat
SCHEDULE ‘A 31st March 31st March
1995 1994
SHARE CAPITAL Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Authorised :
1,49,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,490.00 490.00
(49,00,000) :
10,000 14% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of -
{10,000} Rs. 100/ each 10.00 ) 10.00
1,500.00 . 500.00
Issued, Subsecribed and Pald up:
45,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
(45,00,000) inciuding 30,00,000 allotted as fully paid bonus
shares by capitalisation of General Reserve 450.00 450,00
As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘B’ 31st March 31st March
RESERVES AND SURPLUS 1995 1994
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 1,100.00 600.00
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Accaunt 1,000.00 500.00
2,100.00 1,100.00
PEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE 100.00 50.00
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 316.71 252.56
2,516.71 1,402.56
As at As af
SCHEDULE ' 31st March 31st March
. 18985 1994
SECURED LOANS Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Non-Convertible Debentures (Note 1) 300.00 300.00
From banks (Nofe 2) 612.48 698.09
From Financial Institutions {Note 3} 840.03 _ 327.83
' 1,752.51 1,325.92
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘C’
SECURED LOANS (contd.)

NOTES =

1 Non-Convartible Debentures issued to GIC Mutual Fund are
secured by first legal mortgage on all the company's properties
at Jaigaon, including Plant & Machinery {excluding the assets
on which exclusive charge has been created) and a floating
charge on all other movable assets of the Company subject
to pilor charges created in favour of the Company’s bankers.
The Debentures are redeemable al par in June 18986,

2 Secured by hypothecation of stock in trade and other tangible
movable assets of the Company, wherever situated, and
guaranteed by the Directors of the: Company.

"3 Loan from financhal institutions include :

i} defeired payment credit of Rs. 49,10 lacs (Rs. 73.66
lacs), co-accepted by the Company's bankers against
hypothecation of all tangible movable properties including
stock in frade and machinery situated at Jalgaon factory;
and also guaranteed by the directors of the Company
(including a former Director). Repayable within a year
Rs. 24.55 lacs {Rs. 24.55 lacs).

i) term loan of Rs. 290.93 lacs (Rs. 254.18 lacs), secured
by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of
specific equipments. Repayable within a year
Rs. 67.63 lacs (Rs. 45.12 lacs).

iiiy term loan of Rs. 500.00 lacs (Rs. Nil}, guaranteed by the
Managing Director, to be secured by a morlgage of
immovable properties at Kanjikede and a negative lisn
on other properlies at Bombay.

- _ As at
SCHEDULE Iy 31st March
. . 1995
UNSECURED LOANS Rs. Inos
Short Term Loans ;
From GCompanies e
From Financial Instilutions (Guaranteed by the Managing Director) 500.00

500.00

As at

31st March
1994

Hs. lacs

150.00

150.00

13
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

As at

As at
SCHEDULE ‘F 31st March 31st March
1995 1994
INVESTMENTS - Non Trade (at Cost) Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
UNQUOTED
Government Securities -
National Savings Certificates {Deposited with |
Government authorities) 1.03 —_— 1.03 —
Other Securities
Nirma Lid. — 0.77
Nil {700} Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
1.03 1.80
QUOTED
{Note 12 Schedule ‘R")
UTI - Unit '64
146580 (122150) Units of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 25.88 2z.27
Associated Cement Co. Lid.
50 {50) Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up 1.90 1.90
Bajaj Auto Lid.
1000 (500} Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 6.12 6.12
Brooke Bond Lipton India Lid.
900 {200) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 4.72 4.72
Tata Power Ltd. ’ -
250 (250) Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully pald up 6,10 6.10
Carrier Aircon Ltd.
5000 (4700) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 3.45 3.24
India Securities Ltd.
14350 {10000} Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 10.82 - 10.04
Majestic Auto Lid. .
1000 {1000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2.97 2.97
Master Gain-22
58000 (56600} Unils of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 7.66 7.47
Nirma Ltd.
300 {700} Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 0.33 —
LML Lid.
600 (Nil} Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up .0.35 e
{2050 shares purchased and 1450 shares sold during the year) .
70.30 64.83
71.33 66.63
As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘& 3lst Mf'é%g 31st M%Sﬂ
INVENTORIES Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
(As per Inventories valued and certified
by the management - Note 3 of Scheduls 'S") o
Raw Materials 408.67 399.91
Packing Matertals 454.78 246.57
Stores, Spares & Chemicals 36.69 38.48
Work-in-Process 17.50 24.81
Finished Products 1,329.44 1,131.16
By-Products 27.95 15.37
2,275.03 1,856.30
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘H’ 31st March 31st March
. 1995 - 1994
SUNDRY DEBTORS
. Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
(Unsecured : considered good)
Over Six months 138.13 87.83
Others 1,034.03 810.96
1,172.16 898.79
- As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘I 31st March 31st March
1995 1994
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Cash on hand 4.47 4.62
Remittances in transit 13.50 8.33
Balances with Banks;
(Note 5 Schedule 'R’}
Fixed Deposits {lodged with Govt. authorities) 1.25 1.25
Margin Account (Against Lelters of Credit &
Bank Guarantees) 41.01 44.40
In Current Accounts 99.51 64.99
141.77 110.64

159.74

SCHEDULE
LOANS AND ADVANCES

{Unsecured : considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or in
kind or for value to be received
Deposits
Advance Tax {Net of Provisions)
Balance with Central Excise Authorities
Interest accrued on — Investments

— Qthers

SCHEDULE ‘K
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors

Advances from customers
Other Liabilities

Security Deposits

nterest accrued but not due

16

As at

31st March
1995

Rs. lacs

798.84
933.48
30.62
0.17
0.62
2.98

1,766.71

As af

31st Mareh
1995

Rs. lacs

2,238.11
13.71
209.93
364.72
35.19

2,861.66

123,59

As at

31st March
1994

Hs. facs

424,89
728.26
0.10
0.44
215

1,155.84

As at

31st March
1994

As. lacs

1,927.11
533
144.99
264.26
13.43

2,355.12

—_—
—_—




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

«\ As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘L’ 31st March 31st Marc};
1995 199
PROVISIONS Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Tax {Net of Advances) — 36.67
Dividend 67.50 54.00
67.50 90.67
SCHEDULE ‘M" ] 199394
994-95 993-9
OTHER INC_OME _ Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Income from Investments {Gross) N 3.64 0.16
Tax deducted at source As. 0.86 lacs (Rs. NiL) _
Interest from Banks & Others (Gross) 49.53 32.66
Tax deducted at source Rs. 6.16 lacs (Rs. 5.95 lacs)
Miscellaneous Income 51.66 51.40
104.83 84.22
4. SCHEDULE ‘N o 4
1994-95 1993-9
COST OF MATERIALS Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
RAW MATERIALS:
Opening Stock 399.91 289.34
Add : Purchases 14,844.67 12,082.57
fess : Closing Stock 408.67 399.91
14,835.91 11,972.00
PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS 1,443.29 1,5675.09
{INCREASE)}DECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK
Work-in-Process 24.81 15.37
By-products . - 15.37 47.29
Finished Products 1,131.16 827.98
1,171.34 890.64
CLOSING STOCK o
Work-in-Process 17.50 24831
. By-products 27.95 15.37
' Finished Products - 1,329.44 1,131.16
1,374.89 (203.55) 1,171.34 {280.70)
13,266.39

16,075.65
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘¢’ 1994-95
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES Rs. lacs
Emplioyse Cost :
Saiaries, Wages and Bonus 450.40 350.43
Gontribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds - 3316 35.73
Welfare Expenses 107.93 92,72
591.49
Reimbursement, including claims,
of Conversion & Other charges 639.89
Stores, Spares & Chemicals Consumed 248.60
Packing Matetials Consumed 3,492.44
Power, Fuel and Water 223.89
Rent and Storage Charges 229.29
Repairs : Buildings 34.25 22.41
Machinery 43.99 22,56
Others 14,16 22.59
92.40
Freight and Forwarding Charges 213.89
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 1,790.22
Rates and Taxes 9.91
Salss Tax 236.31
Printing, Stationery & Communication Expenses 148.75
Travelling, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 281.90
Royalty 156.08
Insurance 18.75
Miscellaneous Expenses 448.42
9,522.23
SCHEDULE ‘@ )
FINANCE CHARGES o 95
interest on Fixed Loans 221.24
Other Interest 21574
Bank Charges 173.76
610.74

18

1993-94
Rs_. lacs

478.88

T 711,54
141.04

3,160.81

1

186.23
202,65

67.56
619.67
,626.10
7.95
228.18
113.76
207.53
143.64
14.14
318.26

8,217.94

1983-04
As. facs

158.50
259.40
164.99

582.89
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE ‘@

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

B) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1994-95 1998-94
Quantity Value Quantity Value
M.T. Rs. lacs M.T. Rs. lacs
Oil seeds 41,856 8,271.85 34,774 7,845.43
Raw oils 18,478 6,159.66 13,019 3,642.36
Others — 404.40 484.24
14,835.91 11,972.00
C) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND
1994-95 1993-94 !
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED 5
% Value Y Value
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs ‘}
Raw material
Imported 0.35 52.12 0.51 61.58 ‘t
Indigenous 99.55 14,783.79 99.49 11,910.42
100.00 14,835.91 100.00 11,972.00
Stores, Spares and Chemicals
Imported — — 3.75 5.29
indigenous 100.00 248.60 96.25 135,75
100.00 248.60 100.00 141.04
D) VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.L.F. BASIS -
1994-95 1993-94
Rs. lacs Hs. lacs
Raw material 52.12 61.58
Stores, spares and Chemicals — 5.29
Capital Goods 1.30 7.687
53.42 74.54 |
i
E) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY ?
1994-95 1993-94
Rs. lacs As. lacs
Packing Material 257.98 315.58
Traveliing & other expenses 56.98 19.36
314.95 334,94
F) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE
1994-95 1993-94
fis. tacs Rs. lacs
F.O.8. Value of Exports 279.79 180.60
279.79 190.60
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

L

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘R’
NOTES:

1.

10.

1.

Conlingent liabilities not provided for in respect of
i) Letters of Credit opened and outstanding Rs. 37.58 lacs (Rs. 44.71 lacs).

i) Sales Tax Claims against the Company for which assessments have been completed, not acknowledged as
debts Rs. 2.62 lacs {Rs. 1.79 lacs).

o’

i) income Tax and Interest demand disputed before higher authorities :
a) by the Company ) Rs. 6.11 lacs {(Rs. Nil)
b} by the Income Tax Department Rs. 11.92 lacs (Rs. Nil)

1} Fixed Assets include office building costing Rs. 206.84 lacs (Rs. 146.77 lacs) for which conveyance has not yet
been completed.

i} The gross block of fixed assels includes Plant & Machinery given on lease Rs. 511.18 lacs (Rs..108.43 lacs}.

i} The Company has acquired a Trade Mark/Copyright during the year and the formalities for registration are in
progress.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 473.82 lacs
(Rs. 82.92 lacs), net of advances.

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind include due from a company under the same management viz, Kanmoor
Foods Limited on account of:

Advances Rs, 342.96 lacs {Rs. 174.60 lacs).
Maximum Balance Rs. 619.40 lacs (Rs. 254.03 lacs).
Advance against Share application Rs. 145.00 lacs (Rs. Nil).
Maximum Balance Rs. 145.00 lacs (Rs. Ni}.

Cash and Bank balances include balances of Rs. 0.03 lacs {Rs. 0.04 lacs) held with Janata Sahakari Bank, Jalgaon,
a non-scheduled bank. Maximum balance during the year Rs. 2.04 lacs (Rs. 1.20 lacs).

Sundry Credilors include acceptances Rs. 18.33 lacs (Rs. 47.87 lacs).

Miscellaneous expenses include Commission and Brokerage Rs. 6.10 lacs {Rs. 4.81 lacs), Donations Rs. 10.72 lacs
{Rs. 10.88 lacs), Cash discount Rs. 3.67 iacs (Rs. 1.62 lacs), Loss on sale of assets Rs. 3.84 lacs (Rs. 0.06 lacs),
Loss on Sale of Investments Rs. Nil {Rs. 2.28 lacs), Audit fees Rs. 1.50 lacs {Hs. 1.00 lac}, Payment to Auditors for
other services Rs. 0.79 lacs (Rs. 3.75 lacs), Payment to Auditors for out-of-pocket expenses Rs. 0.38 lacs
{Rs. 0.12 lacs).

Miscellaneous income includes lease income Hs. 41.52 lacs (Hs. 35.00 lacs) and profit on sale of investment
Rs. 1.74 lacs {Rs. Nii}.

Research & Development Expenses aggregating to Rs. 72.18 lacs (Rs. 43.12 lacs) including depreciation of
Rs. 6.70 {acs (Rs. 27.25 lacs) have been included under the relevant heads of expenses.

A sum of Rs, 17.97 lacs (Rs. 17.97 lacs) representing actuarial liability towards retirement gratuily in respect of
employees of the Company, who were earlier employed by The Bombay Qil Industries Limited, is held by the
Trustees of The Bombay Ot Industries Employees Gratuity Fund. This amount has been recognisad while determining
the actuarial liabilily towards retirement graluity of the Company during the year.

In accordance with the policy consistently followed by the company :

i} Depreciation on fixed assets given on lease has been charged at rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act and
not at rates that would depreciate the asset over the period of lease. Depreciation for the year is therefore higher
by Rs. 165.91 lacs {Rs. 23.81 lacs). The company has recognised income from lease rentals of Rs. 41.52 facs
{Rs. 35.00 lacs) in the accounts.

iy Depreciation on fixed assets used for Research & Development has been charged at 100% and not at rates
specified in Schedule X1V, Depreciation for the year is higher by Rs. 6.48 lacs (Rs. 24.80 lacs).
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12.

13.

14,

5.

16.

17.

Aggregate cost of quoted investments Rs. 70.30 lacs (Rs. 64.83 lacs). Aggregate market value Rs. 67.08 lacs
{Rs. 56.49 lacs). Fluctuations in the values of investments, being insignificant, have not been provided for.

Confirmations have not been called for debtors, creditors and advances. However, the balances on review are
considered receivable or payable as the case may be.

Payments 1o suppliers in the small scale sector are made in accordance with agreed credit terms. The interest, if any,

on overdue amounis as at 31st March 1995, has neither been claimed nor ascettained.

Pursuant to the amendment to Accounting Standard 11 dealing with Accounting for effects of changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates, the current assets and liabilities are now stated at the rates prevailing at the close of the financial
year without any resulting impact on the operating results for The year. .

Manageriat Remuneration :
i} Calcutation of Commission payable to the Managing Director :

1994-95 1993-94
Rs. lacs Rs. lacs
Profit before taxation 1,906.65 ' 1,490.82
Add: Director’s Remuneration 11.563 3.49
Commission to Directors 4.80 0.80
Depreciation as per books 323.80 170.03
Loss on sale of assels 3.84 0.08
Loss on sale of investments — 2.28
343.97 176.76
Less: Depreciation as per
Sec, 350 467.68 230.78
Loss on sale of assels as per
Sec. 350 (nef) . . 3.19 0.04
Profit on sale of lnvestments 1.74 —
472.61 ; 230.32
Profil as per Sec. 349 1,778.01 1,437.26
Commission lo Managing Director @ 1%
of net prolit . 17.78 - 14.37
Restricted {0 4.80 0.90
i) Payments and provisions on account of
remuneration to Managing Director
included in Profit & Loss Account.
) Salary ' 6.00 ' 1.80
i) Commission 4.80 ' 0.90
iy  Contribution to Provident Fund
and Pension Fund ) 1.50 0.18
v}y Other Perquisites 4.03 1.35

16.33 4.23

The above remuneration does not include conlribution to Gratuity Fund as this contribution is a lumpsum amount
based on actuarial valuation.

Figures in brackets pertain to previous year which are regrouped wherever necessary.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘S’
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. "'Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes, duties, freight
and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation. Interest during construction period on borrowings
fo tinance fixed assels are capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for major projects are also capitalised, where appropriate.

21 Deprediation onFixed Assets is provided on Straight line method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, except as stated in paras 2.2 1o 2.5 below. Depreciation on additions and deletions
during the year has been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of addition / deletion. Extra shift
depreciation has been provided on "Plant” basis.

2.2 Asseis given on lease are depreciated at the rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act.

2.3 Assels used for Research and Development and Plant and Machinery costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated
at 100%. Other fixed assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 each acquired after 31.3.1993 are depreciated at 100%.

2.4 Leasehold land is amortised over the balance perlod of lease.
25  No depreciation is provided on Trade Mark/Copyright.

3.1 Inventories are valued as follows :

a) Raw materials - gt cost
. by Packing material — at cost
c) Work-in-process — at cost
d) Finished products — at lower of cost or
net realisable value
e} Stores & spares — at cost
f} By-Products — at net realisable value
g) Unserviceable/damaged — at estimated realizable
finished producis value.

3.2 Cost of finished goods and work-in-process is determined in accordance with the principles of direct costing.
3.3 Stores, Spares costing less than Rs. 1,500 are treated as consumed in the year of purchase,

4, Research & Development costs are charged as expense in the year in whichThey are incurred.

5. Sales are net of trade discount and exclusive of sales tax and are recognised on despaich of goods.

6. Liability towards retirement gratuity has been provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

7.1 Foreign currency assets/liabilities covered by forward conltracts are stated at the forward contract rates.

7.2 Foreign currency assetsfliabilities not covered by forward contracts are restated at rates ruling at the close of the
financial year. '

7.3 Exchange rate differences relating to fixed assets are adjusted In the cost of the asset, Any other exchange
differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

Signatures to Schedufes Ato S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Bombay P. SANKER C.V. MARIWALA H.C. MARIWALA
Dated : June 23, 1995. Secretary Chairman Managing Director
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixth Annual General
Meeting of the Members of MARICO INDUSTRIES

LIMITED wilt be held at “RANG SHARDA®, Plot No.

791, Krishnachandra Marg, Bandra Rectamation,
Bandra (West), Bombay - 400 050, on December 23,
1994 at 11.00 a.m. to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance
Sheet as on March 31, 1994 and the Profit and
Loss Account of the Company for the year ended
on that date and the reporis of the Directors and
Auditors.

To declare a dividend.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. J. V. Mariwala
who retires by rotation and being efigible offers
himaelf for re-appeintment.

o appoint a Director in place of Mr. K. V. Mariwala

_ who refires by rotation and being eligible offers

himself for re-appointment.

To appoint auditors to hold office from the
conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of
the next Annual General Mesting of the Company

_and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or

without modifications, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution \—

“RESOLVED THAT the Authorised Share Capital
of the Company be increased from
Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores} divided
into 49,00,000 (Forty Nine Lakhs} Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- {Rupees Ten) each and 10,000
(Ten Thousand) 14% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- {(Rupees Hundred)
each to Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crores)
by creation of further 100,00,000 (One Hundred
Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each and that the Memorandum and Arlicles of
Association of the Company be altered in the
manner following :

a. In place and stead of Clause V of the

Mermorandum of Association, the following shall -

be substituted :

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company
is Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores)

divided into 149,00,000 (One Hundred Forty
Nine Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten) each and 10,000 (Ten Thousand) 14%

Cumutative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- {(Rupees Hundred) each with power

to increase and reduce the capital of ‘the
Company and/or divide the shares in the

capital for the time being into several classes )

and attach hereto respectively such preferential
or qualified rights, privileges or conditions as

- may be determined by or in accordance with -

the Articles of the Company for the time being
and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights,

privileges or conditions or restrictions in stch .

manner as may be permitted by the legislative
provisions or by the Articles of Association of
the Company for the time being in force.

b. In place and stead of Article 3 of the Articles
of Association, the following shall be
substituted :

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company
is Rs. 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores)
divided into 149,00,000 (One Hundred Forty
Nine Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten) each and 10,000 (Ten Thousand) 14%
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of

b

Rs. 100/~ (Rupees Hundred) each. The .
Company shail have power to increase, -

consolidate, sub-divide, reduce or otherwise
alter its share capital subject to the provisions
of the Act.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution :—

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the
resolution limiting the borrowing power of the Board
of Directors of the Company upto Rs. 50 Crores
(Rupees Fifty Crores Only) passed by the
Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting
held on March 23, 1993, the Board of Directors of
the Company be and are hereby authorised under
Section 293 {1} (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 to
borrow money from time to time upto a limit not
exceeding Rs. 75 Crores {Rupees Seventy Five
Crores Only) in the aggregale notwithstanding the
money to be borrowed, together with the monies
already borrowed by the company (apart from the
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temporary loans obtained from the company’s
bankers in the ordinary course of business),
exceeds the aggregate of the paid up capital of
the company and its free reserves i.e. lo say
reserve not set apart for any specific purpose.”

NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

DIVIDEND ON SHARES AS RECOMMENDED BY
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, |F DECLARED AT
THE MEETING, WILL BE PAID TO THOSE

SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE NAMES STAND

REGISTERED IN THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
AS ON DECEMBER 23, 1994.

3. THE RELATIVE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956 IN RESPECT OF THE
SPECIAL BUSINESS UNDER ITEM NOS. 6 & 7
IS ANNEXED HERETO. '

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Place : Bombay P. SANKER
Date : November 18, 1994 - Company Secretary

Registered Office :
“Rang Sharda”,
Krishnachandra Warg,
Bandra Reclamation,
Bandra {(West),
Bombay 400 050.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Item No. 6

Considering the size of the Company’s operations and
its future requirements of Capital, it is proposed to
increase the Share Capital of the Company from
Rs. 5 Crores to Rs. 15 Crores. The increased Share
Capital of Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifteen Crores
Only) will consist of 149,00,000 (One Hundred Forty
Nine Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten)
each and 10,000 (Ten Thousand) 14% Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees
Hundred) each.

The Amendment to Clause V of the Memorandum of
Associatioh and Article 3 of the Articles of Association
are consequential to the increase of the Authorised
Capital and the said amendments are being effected
by Special Resolution,

None of the Directors are interested in the resolution.
item No. 7

At the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on March 23, 1993, the Company had accorded

_its consent under Section 293 (1)(d) of the Companies

Act, 1956 to the Board of Directors borrowing monies
in excess of the aggregate of paid up capital and free
reserves of the Company upto a limit of Rs. 50 Crores
{apart from temporaty loans obtained from the
Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business).
With the business operations of the Company growing
at a rapid pace, the requirement of additional funds
have also increased substantially.

The consent of the Company is sought by the resolution
proposed at ttem No. 7 of the Notice to enable the
Board of Directors to borrow monies upto Rs. 75 Crores.

None of the Directors of the Company is in any way
concerned of interested in the said resogltion.

For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Place : Bombay
Date : November 18, 1994

Registered Office :
“Rang Sharda”,
Krishnachandra Marg,
Bandra Reclamation,
Bandra (West), -
Bombay 400 .050,

Company Secrelary

P. SANKER

T
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Sixth
Annual Report of the Company together with the
audited accounts for the year ended March 31, 1994,

.

3.2

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Rupees in Lacs)
1993-94 1992-93

23728.08 21065.62

Sales and Cther Income

Profit Before Tax 1490.82 1479.02

Tax 855.00 860.00
Profit Alter Tax 635.82 619.02
Add : Brought Forward 220.74 124.60
856.56 743.62
Less : Dividend 54.00 22.88
Transier to General
Reserve 500.00 500.00
Transfer to Debenture
Redemption Reserve  50.00 —
Balance Cartied Forward 25256 220.74

DIVIDEND

Your Directors recommend a dividend payment
of 12% {Rs. 1.20 per equity share of Rs. 10/-
each), subject to deduction of tax at source which,
if approved by the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting will absorb Rs. 54 lacs (previous
year Rs. 22.88 lacs). The quantum of dividend
on the pre-bonus capital works out to 36%.

CAPITAL

Considering the present and envisaged volume
of business, the present authorised capital of the
company appears o be inadequate. It is hence
proposed to augment it to Rs. 15 crores.

The approval of the shareholders required for
this purpose is sought in terms of the resolution
proposed in Item No. 6 of the Notice convening
the Annual General Meeting.

OPERATIONS

Turnover for the year increased from Rs. 211
crores to Rs, 237 crores, registering a growth of
around 13%. This growth was lower than the
earlier years mainlv because of drop in unit values
in the main product groups undertaken to pass
on the benelits of the lower matetial costs to the
consumers.

However, all the produéls recorded handsome

gains in volumes compared to the previous year.
In pariicular, the edible oils, Saffola and Sweekar,
recorded sharp increases. Hair & Care, which
was nationally launched in 1991-92 has made
steady progress in sales and market share. Our
Company has commenced exporting this product.

Revive, the instant cold water fabric starch, which
was nationally launched during the year, is
steadily finding increased acceptance from the
consumers. The distribution network for this
product is being expanded. Similarly, the foray
into processed foods through marketing of the
SiL range of jams and other processed foods
has taken off satisfactorily. The market share of
‘SIL’ has, in a short span, increased substantialiy
and sales are expected to grow further in the
coming years.

Profits before tax increased marginally from
Rs. 14.79 crores to Rs. 14.91 crores. The
Company has been able to maintain profits
despite substantial increase in advertising and
sales promotion expenses which became
inovitable to combat compestition, improve market
shares, expand the market and develop the equity

‘of the newer brands that were launched during

the year. This strategy while; no doubt, having
long term benefits, has enabled the Company
expand its presence in the growing fast moving
consumer product business in the short term as
well.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In January 1994, the Company was presented
the National Award for outstanding work in HRD
from the prestigious National HRD Network. This
was In recognition of the Company's contribution
to HRD philosophy and practices and was taken
as an example of how HRD practices can be
integrated into organisational strategies, systems
and procedures and utilised as an instrument in
making the organisation and its people proactive
and responsive 1o gain competitive edge.

The Company's leading product, Saffola was
recognised and received the ‘Cutstanding Brand

of the year 1993-94° award from the The

Advertising Club, Bombay.

The Company's Commercial Paper Programme
which was earlier rated A1, indicating highest
safety regarding timely payment was upgraded
to Al+ by the Investment Information & Credit
Rating Agency.
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10.
10.1

-external facilitator.

QUALITY

With a view to prepare the Company to face the
increasing competition in the market place,
improve all-round performance and finally provide
to the customer delight in the products and
services offered, the Company has undertaken
an ambitious Total Quality Management
Programme with the active participation of an
The benefits of this
programme will accrue in the coming years.

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

Further to the reference in the previous yéar's
report, the New Oil Mill at Kanjikode, Palakkad,
Kerala was commissioned during ihe year.

ACCOUNTS

The chservations of the auditors in their report to
the Members have been adequately dealt with in
the relevant Notes to the accounts. Hence no
further explanation is deemed necessary.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the reguirements of the
Companies Act, 1966, and the Articles of
Association, of the Company, Mr. J. V. Mariwala
and Mr. K. V. Mariwala are liable to retire by

rotation, and being eligible, offer themiselves for

re-appointment.

OTHER INFORMATION

Information required in accordance with provisions
of Section 217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act,

1956, read with Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)

10.2

it

12.

Rules, 1988, regarding conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo is given in the Annexure o
this Report.

In addition, information in accordance with
provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975, and forming part of
the Directors’ Report {or the year ended
March 31, 1994, is also given in the Ahnexure {o
this Report.

AUDITORS

Messrs Dalal Desai & Kumana, Charlered
Accountants, relire and are eligible for
reappointment as Auditors.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The relation between employees and the
management have remained cordial and the
Directors wish to place on record their
appreciation of the co-operation and support

~ received.

13.

Place : Bombay
Date

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors take this opportunity of
acknowledging the support and assistance
received from the Company's bankers, suppliers
and other business associates.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

C. V. MARIWALA

: November 18, 1894 Chairman
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’” REPORT

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation
of Energy, Research & Development Expenditure and
Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required

under Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the:

Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.
A. Conservation of Energy :

i) Installation of heat exchangers in Refinery fo
reduce energy tonsumption.

ii) tmprovement of throughput rate of ekpellers
to improve energy efficiency.

ity - Improvement in boiler efficiency.

The details of total energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of production are disclosed
in Enclosure ‘A

B. Research & Development :

The details of Research & Development are
disclosed in Enclosure ‘B’

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Ouigo :

Efforts have been initiated to promote the export
of Company’s products, wherever permissible.

The details of total foreign exchange used and
earned are disclosed in Schedule 'Q’ to the
Accounts. o

ENCLOSURE ‘A
A.  Power & Fuel Consumptions :

1993-94  1992-93
1 Electricily
a} Purchased Unit
{Kwh) 33,46,120 30,92,550 .
Total Amount
{Rs.) 83,61,992  72,80,662
Rate (Rs./Unit) 2.50 2.35
b} Own Gengration
i} Through Diesel
Gienerator Nil Nil
i) Through Steam ,
Generalor Nil Nil
2 Coal (Used for Boiler)
Quantity (M.T) Nil  1839.000
Total Cost (Rs.) Nit 17,69,829
Average Rate (Rs./Ton) Nil  1,079.82
3 Furnace Oil
Quantity (K.Ltrs) 638.149  214.100
Amount (Rs.) 38,45,410 12,16,736
Average Hate
(Rs./Kl) 6,025.88

5,683.03 Date

1992-93

1993-94
4 Other Internal Generalion
L.D.O./ H.5.D.

Quantity

(K.Ltrs.) 681.029 471173
Amount (Rs.) -45,35,0561 33,02,431
Average Rate ‘

{Rs./Kl) 6,659.12 7,008.96

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

Edible Gil Unit Consumption per Unit
of Production

1993-94  1992-93

Electricity Kwis 153.48 224.44

Coal M.T Nit 0.12

Furnace Oil K.Ltr 0.03 0.05

ENCLOSURE ‘B’
Hlesearch & Development

1 Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the
Company
— Development of new products.
— Improvement of product quality
— Process improvement

2 Benefits dertived as a result of the above R&D:

Launching of new products, improvement in
product quality and cost reduction.

3 Expenditure on R&D

Rs. in lacs
a) Capital 27.25
b) Recurring 15.87
Total 43,42
¢). Total R&D
expenditure as a
percentage of total
turnover 0.18%
For and on behalf of
the Board of Direclors
Place ; Bombay C. V. MARIWALA

: November 18, 1924 Chairman
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of Marico industiies Limited

" We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Marico
Industries Limited as on 31st March, 1994 and the

Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the year
. ended on that date annexed thereto, and report that;

1 1. We have obtained all information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

2. In our opinion; proper books of account as,

required by law have been kept by the Company
80 far as appears from our examination of those
books. ‘

. 3. The Balance Sheet and Profit & L.oss Account deait
with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account,

4. In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accouhts together with schedules annexed
thereto, Statement of significant accounting policies
in Schedule ‘S’ and read with notes on accounts
in Schedule 'R’, give the information required by
the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so required
and subject to note 13 (a) of Schedule ‘R’ regarding
basis of depreciating certain assels and
corresponding effect thercof give a true and fair
view :

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
1994 and

b} in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of
the profit for ihe year ended on that date.

As required by the Manufacturing and Other
‘Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order 1988, issued by
the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227(4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of
such checks as we considered appropriate and in
terms of information and explanations given to us,
we report that :

1. The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets. The fixed assets are
physically verified by the management in a phased

10.
--commensurate with the size of the Company and

1.

-in case of assets verified.

. None of the fixed assets have been revalued during

- followed by the management are reasonable and

‘principles and is on the same basis as in the

. Loans or advances in the nature of loans given

manner. No material discrepancies were noticed

the year.

The stock of finished goods, raw materials, stores
and spares have been physically verified during
the year by the management at reasonable
intervals. Confirmations have been obtained In
respect of materials lying with third parties.

The procedures for physical verification of stocks

adequate In relation to the size of the Company
and nature of #ts business. .

No material discrepancies have been noticed on
physical verification of stocks as compared to the
hook records.

In our opinion and on the basis of our examination,
the valuation of stock is fair and proper in
accordance with the normally accepted accounting

preceding year.

The Company has taken a loan from a Company
listed in the register maintained under Section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956 at rate of interest and
terms and conditions which are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interest of the company.

The Company has not given loans to Companies,
firms or other parties lisied in the register
maintained under Section 301 and/or to companies
under the same management as defined under
sub-section (1B) of Section 370 of the Companies
Act, 19586,

are being repaid as stipulated together with
interest, wherever applicable.

There are adequate internal control procedured:

the nature of its business for the purchase of
stores, raw materials including components, plant
and machinery, equipment and other assels and
for the sale of goods.

The transactions of purchases and sales of goods
and materials made in pursuance of contracts or

R




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

12,

13.

14.

16,

186.

17.

18.

19,

20.

-arrangements entered in the register maintained

under Sectiont 301 of the Companies Act, 1955
and aggregating during the year o Rs. 50,000 or
more in respect of each party, other than those
transactions for which alternative comparisons are
not available, have been made at prices which, in
our opinion, are reascnable having regard to
prevailing matrket prices where such market prices
are available with the Company or the price at
which similar transactions were made with other
paries.

The Company has a regular procedure for the
determination of unserviceable or damaged stores,
raw materials, finished goods and material dealt
in and provision for loss in respect thereof has
been made in the accounts.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from
the public to which the provisions of Section 58A
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 1975 are applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained
reasonable records for the sale and disposal of
realisable by-products. The Company has no
significant realisable scrap.

The Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with its size and the nature of iis
business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under
Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has regularly deposited provident
fund dues and Employees State Insurance dues
with the appropriale authorities. There were no
arrears at year end.

Except for sales tax of Rs.1,00,942 which has since
been pald, there are no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of income tax, wealth-tax, sales-
tax, custom duty & excise duty which have
remained outstanding as at year end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

Mo personal expenses have been charged to
revenue account, other than those payable under
contractual obligations or in accordance with
generally acceptad business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company
within the meaning of Clause (O) of sub-section (1)

Place : Bombay
Dated : 18th November, 1994

of Section 3 of the Sick industiial Companies
{Special Provisicns) Act, 1985.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana
Chantered Accountédnts

MAHESH ASRANI
Pariner




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Capital

Reserves & Surplus

Loan Funds

Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation

Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress

investments

Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories

Sundry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances

L.oans and Advances

Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions
Liabilities
Provisions

Net Current Assets

SCHEDULE 1994 1893

Rs. Rs.

A 4,50,00,000 4,50,00,000
B 14,02,56,255 8,20,74,047 .

18,52,56,255 12,70,74,047

. f

C 12,87,96,192 11,29,83,863

D 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000

14,37,96,192 12,79,83,863

32,90,52,447 25,50,57,910

E

17,55,38,087 8,74,567,643

3,71,23,562 2,01,21,466

13,84,14,525 6,73,36,177

2,88,97,267 4,22,10,450

16,73,11,792 10,95,46,827

F 66,62,739 1,01,200

G 18,56,29,571 14,70,09,035

H 8,98,79,460 7,87,30,737

i 85,63,407 78,74,897

J 11,55,84,203 6,79,01,657

39,96,56,641 30,15,16,226

K 23,55,11,660 14,04,886,308

L 90,67,065 1,66,18,835

24,45,78,725 15,61,06,143

15,50,77,916 14,54,10,083

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31st MARCH

32,90,52,447

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accounting Policles, see Schedules ‘R’ & ‘S’ respectively.

As per our attached report of even date
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountanis

MAHESH ASRANI P. SANKER
Pariner Secretary

Place @ Bombay
Dated @ 18th November, 1994,

25,50,57,910

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA
Chairman

H.C. MARIWALA
Managing Director

Place : Bombay
Dated : 18ih November, 1994.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 4

INCOME:
Sales

Other Income

EXPENDITURE: -

Cost of Materials
Manufacturing and Other Expenses
Finance Charges

Depreciation

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Provision for Tax
{Includes Rs. 29,00,000 for earlier years;
Previous year Rs. Nil)

PROFIT AFTER TAX
Balance brought forward

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS

APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend (Subject to tax)
General Reserve

Debenture Redernption Researve

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st March

SCHEDULE 1994 1993
Rs. Rs.

Q 236,43,84,635 210,32,13,218

M 84,22 964 33,498,229
237,28,07,598 210,65,62,447

N 132,66,38,865 130,47,79,532

0 82,17,94,153 58,21,65,943

P 5,82,89,004 5,51,59,087

E 1,70,03,369 1,65,65,142

222,37,25,391

195,86,59,704

14,90,82,208 14,79,02,743
8,55,00,000 8,60,00,000
6,35,82,208 6,19,02,743
2,20,74,647 1,24,59,521
8,56,56,255 7,43,62,264
54,00,000 22,88,217
5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
50,00,000 —

2,52,56,255

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accounting Policies, see Schedules ‘R’ & ‘S’ respectively.

As per our attached report of even date
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

MAHESH ASRANI
Partner

Place : Bombay
Dated : i8th November, 1994.

P. SANKER
Secretary

2,20,74,047

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H.C. MARIWALA
Managing Director

C.V. MARIWALA
Chairman

Place : Bombay
Dated : 18th November, 1994,

1




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITEL

SCHEDULE ‘A’
SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised :
49,00,000 Equity Shares of Bs. 10/- gach

14%, Cumulative Redsemabie Preference Shares of
Rs. 100/- each

10,000

Jesued, Subscrived and paid up:
45,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

including 30,00,000 allotted as fully paid bonus
shares by capitalisation of General Reserve

Iy

SCHEDULE ‘B’
RESERVES AND SURPLUS

GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet
Less: Amount utilised towards issue of Bonus Shares

Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account

DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

SCHEDULE "¢’
SECURED LOANS

Non-Convertible Debentures - Advance Subscription
Non-Convertible Debentures {Note 1)

From banks (Note 2)

From Financial Institution {Note 3)

|

|

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS
As at As at
31st March 31st March
1994 19493
Rs. Rs.
4,90,00,000 4,90,00,000
10,00,000 10,00,000
5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000 |
|
4,50,00,000 4,50,00,00(
As at As i
31st March 3ist Marc
1994 199
Rs. R
1‘
6,00,00,000 4,00,00,0( |
— 3,00,00,0( |
6,00,00,000 1,00,00,0( |
5,00,00,000 5,00,00,01 |
11,00,00,000 6,00,00,00 |
50,00,000 j
2,52,66,265 220740
14,02,56,255 8,20,74,0 |
As at As
31st March 31st Ma |
1994 1t
Hs. i
— 3,00,00, |
3,00,00,000 '
5,60,12,937 6,43,32.
3,27,83,255 ) 1,86,50
12,87,96,192 11,2983

T
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

- SCHEDULES TC ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘C’
SECURED LOANS (contd.)

NOTES :-

1 Non-Converible Debentures issued to GIC Mutual Fund are
secured by first legal mortgage on all the company’s properties
at Jalgaon, including Plant & Machinery {excluding the assets
on which exclusive charge has been created} and a floating
charge on all other movable assets of the Company subject
to prior charges created in favour of the Company's bankers.
The Debentures are redeemable at par in June 1996.

2 Secured by hypothecation of stock in trade apd other tangible
movable assets of the Company, wherever situated, and
guaranteed by the Directors of the Company.

3 Loan from financial institution includes :

i} deferred payment credit of Rs. 73,65,600 (Rs. 98,20,800),
co-accepted by the Gompany’s bankers against
hypothecation of all tangible movable properties including
stock in trade and machinery situated at Jalgaon factory,
and also guaranteed by the directers of the Company.
Repayable within a year Rs. 24,565,200 (Rs. 24,55,200}.

i) termloan of As. 2,54,17,655 (Rs. 88,30,099), secured by
an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of spacific
equipments. Repayable within a year Rs. 45,11,682
(Rs. 12,87,693), ‘

As at

As at
SCHEDULE ‘D 31st March 3tst March
UNSECURED LOANS 1994 1993
R Rs.
From Companies 1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000
Repayable within a year Rs. 1,50,60,000 {Rs. NiL}
1,50,00,000 1,50,00,000

13




—.

¢,

129°99'S6°01L ZBLLHEL'DL 99VZ'L0T 0BLOS'E

pLEOL'6E

L'es'ee’L er9/S'YL'8 625°08'9L  POP'SO'ER'S 80L'€l'L9t  WVHA SNOIATHd

0SPoLES'y L9Z'L6'88C INAOIDY TYLIEYD NO SIONYAGQY DNIAMIONI (LS00 1) $S3HD0Hd-NI-MHOM TV1IdVYD
LIL'9E'SL°0  STEWLYB'EL|TOSET LL'E  €L2'L GOE'CO'0L'L 9P LZLO'E | L80°8E'GS°LY 000'6S Py 6E1R'8  £PO LS TL'S IVLOL
PrE'6L8 g6g'oe'eL | 16078 L — 106181 96128 ssrogLr SLO'GYF L ory' LL'E S9IAUBA
giLe'e8'vl  6LETYES  |L9T0901L — £85'08'8 R 98.'20'08  — $aL'0P'EE 200299l sBuniid g anyuind
628'9b'ZL'y 9L2°TE09°8 |2EL'98'Tr'E £L2°1 GLE'0Z°ISL  980'19°16°L | B06°8L'E0TL 000'6Y SAB'69'66'C  GLEL0'P0'9 | ABUIUDRI B U
[22BSV'E  186'6LEey [aLe'esyL  — lgg'1e's 8£9°25'9 ZOG'E0 LYY /BG'sZ'sE'e G9E'08ET Buping
85G'yS'1e 060'v8°LT L60°60°L o 6ez'le 298'18 L1816’z ~— 092'LS LZ6'68'ce pue ployases
e 662°86'0L | e — — seL'e6'vE  — ceL'BEPL — pue p|leysaid
"SY Sy sH "SH sy "sY "SH sy sy ‘SH

€661 v661 ve61 661 7661 £661

UL ISLE  Yose ISLE |ydten IS1E sssnipy  JeaA UOJeN ISLE | uydJep ISLE  sweuisnlpy Yol i1s1e
e sy je sy o1 dn jsuon@ag ay} 104 ordn e sy jsucne|a(  SUCHIPPY e sy

. MO0Tg AN ) NOILYIOFHd3A U008 SSOHD SHYINDILHYd

SLNNCOJV OL S3TINAZHIS

S1ZISSY O3Kid (2. ITNCIHIS

Q3 LINIET SAIHLSNANI OJIHVIA

14




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

18,56,29,571

As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘F 31st March 31st March
INVESTMENTS - Non Trade (at Cost) 1394 195
UNQUOTED
Government Securities -
National Savings Cerlificates (Deposited with
Government authorities) 1,02,900 1,01,200
Other Securities
Nirma Ltd.
700 £quity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 77,000 —
QUOTED
{Note 14 Schedule ‘R'}
UT{ - Unit '64
122150 Units of Rs. 10 eaeh fully paid up 22,26,762 —
Associated Cement Co. Lid.
50. Equity shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid up 1,89,975 —
Bajaj Auto Ltd.
500 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 6,12,000 s
Brooke Bond Lipton india Ltd.
900 Equily shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 4,72,449 —
Tata Power Lid.
250 Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up 6,10,164 —
Carrler Aircon Lid.
4700 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 3,23,512 —
India Securities Lid. o ,
10000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald up 10,03,525 —
Majestic Auto Lid. : -
1000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,97,432 —
Master Gain-92
56600 Units of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 747,020 —
66,62,739 1,01,200.
. As at As at
SCHEDULE '@ 31st March 3ist March
1994 1983
INVENTORIES Rs. Rs.
(As per Inventories vaiued and certified
by the management - Nole 3 of Schedule 'S')
Raw Materials 3,99,91,329 2,89,34,189
Packing Materials 2,46,56,659 2,62,07,020
Stores, Spares & Chemicals 38,47,380 28,04,037
Work-in-Process 24,81,227 15,37,040
Finished Products 11,31,15,741 8,27,98,152
By Producis 15,37,235 47,28,527
14,70,09,035 -

15




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

As at As at
SCHEDULE 'H’ 31st March 31st March
SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured—considered good) 1994 1999
Qver Six months 87,83,274 67,30,390
Others 8,10,96,186 7,20,00,347
8,98,79,460 7,87,30,737
As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘I 31st March 31st March
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 1994 1953
Cash on hand _ 4,62,266 4,48,220
Remittances in fransit 8,33,000 17,10,000
Balances with Banks:
{Note 6 Schedule ‘R")
Fixed Deposits (lodged with Govt, authorities) 1,24,500 1,24,500
Margin Account {Against Letters of Credit &
Bank Guarantees) 44,39,555 35,94,670
In Current Accounts . 27,04,086 19,97,507
72,68,141 57,186,677
85,63,407 78,74,807
As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘J’ : 31st March 31st March
LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured-considered good) 1%934 1?;35
Advances recoverable in cash or in '
kind or for value {o be received 4,24,89,204 2,76,58,219
Deposits 7,28,26,401 3,99,31,509
Balance with Central Excise Authorities 9,652 11,465
Interest accrued on — Invastments 43,624 27,693
— Qthers 2,15,322 2,71,971
’ 2,58,946 2,80,664
11,55,84,203 6,79,01,557
_ As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘K’ 31st March 31st March
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1994 1993
. . As. Rs.
Sundry Creditors : 19,27,11,125 10,66,16,123
Advances from customers 5,32,632 4,37,262
Other Liabilities : o 1,44,98,753 1,09,90,943
Security Deposits 2,64,25,616 2,24,22,069
Interest accrued but not due 13,43,534 - 19.eMm

23,55,11,660 14,04,86,308
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

132,66,38,865

130,47,79,632

As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘L’ 31st March 31st March
1994 1993
PROVISIONS vy Re
Tax {Net of Advances) 36,67,065 1,65,21,203
Dividend 54,00,000 98,632
90,67,065 1,66,19,835
As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘W 31st March 31st March
1994 1893
OTHER INCOME o o
Income from Investments {Gross) 15,931 4,144
Tax deducted at source-Rs. NIl (Rs. NIL) '
Interest from Banks & Others (Gross) 32,66,252 24,14,832
Tax deducted at source Rs. 5,94,629; {Bs. 4,34,0
Miscellaneous lhcome 51,40,781 9,30,253
84,22,964 33,49,229
As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘N’ 31st March 31st March
1994 19493
COST OF MATERIALS
Rs. Rs.
RAW MATERIALS:
Opening Stock 2,89,34,189 4,79,93,959
Add : Purchases 120,82,57,280 102,66,92,378
Less : Closing Stock 3,99,91,329 2,89,34,189
119,72,00,140 104,57,52,148
PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS 15,75,08,209 28,97,70,058
(INCREASEYDECREASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK
Work-in-Praocess 15,37,040 10,05,285
By-producis 47,28,527 75,77,052
Finished Products 8,27,98,152 6,97,38,708
8,90,63,719 7,83,21,045
CLOSING STOCK
Work-in-Process 24,81,227 15,37,040
By-products 15,37,235 47,28,527
Finished Products 11,31,15741 8,27,98,152
1,71,34,203  (2,80,70,484) 8,90,63,719

{1,07,42,674}
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS | ¢/ .
B , \! rd
As at As-at & :
SCHEDULE ‘O’ 31st March 3ist March |~ i
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES S 1959
Employee Cost :
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 3,50,42,567 - 2,91,79,450
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 35,73,005 28,05,861
Welfare Expenses 92,71,952 63,20,367
‘ 4,78,87,524 3,83,05,678
Reimbursement, including claims,
Conversion & Other charges 7,11,53,858 3,53,88,167
Stores, Spares & Chemicals Consumed 1,41,03,633 1,09,19,677 ‘;
Packing Materials Consumed 31,50,81,037 05,17,81,767
Power, Fuel and Water 1,86,23,254 1,59,26,010
Rent and Storage Charges 2,02,65,148 2,01,01,166
Repairs : Buildings 8,78,328 46,34,594
Machinery 22,55,588 16,58,166 :
Otners 22,59,161 _ 31,47,556 |
53,93,077 94,40,316
Freight and Forwarding Charges 6,19,66,764 4,40,13,630
~ Advertisement and Sales Promotion 16,26,10,335 7,86,50,160 ‘f
Rales and Taxes 7,95,499 2,92,546 S
Sales Tax 2,286,18,061 17,65,55,8‘32 !
Printing, Stationery & Communication Expenses 1,13,76,185 64,114,513
Travelling, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 2,07,52,856 1,31,65,306 .
Royatty 1,43,63,989 92,06,288 :
Insurance 14,14,698 8,62,069
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,31,88,235 3,11,41,818
82,17,94,153 §8,21,65,943
As at As at :
SCHEDULE ‘P 31st March 315t March '
FINANCE CHARGES B 1
Interest on Fixed Loans 1,58,4%9,826 32,48,622
Other Interest 2,50,39,791 2,58,24,678 -
Bank Charges 1,64,99,387 2,60,85,887
582,869,008 551,59,087 |
j
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

As at As at
SCHEDULE ‘¢ 31st March 41st March
B) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1994 1998
Quantity Vaiue Quantity Value
M.T. Rs. M.T. fis.
Oil seeds 34,774 78,45,42,810 35,614 84,08,36,850
Raw olls 13,019  36,42,38,369 8,344 17,88,57,954
Others 4,84,20,961 2.60,57,344
119,72,00,140 104,57,52,148
As at = As al
C) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND 31st March 31st March
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED 1994 1998
% Vailue Yo Value
Rs. Rs.
Raw material
imported 0.51 61,57,999 0.16 16,66,783
Indigenous 99.49 119,10,42,141 99.84 104,40,85,365
100.00 119,72,00,140 ‘ 100.00 104,57,52,148
Stores, Sp'ares and chemicals N
Imported 3.75 5,28,544 — ) —
indigenous 96.25 1,35,75,089 100.00 1,09,19,677
100.00 1,41,03,633 100.00 1,09,18,677
Asat ~ Asat
D) VALUE OF IMPORTS OF C.LF. BASIS 31st March 31st March
1994 1993
Hs. - Rs.
Raw material 61,57,999 16,66,783
Stores, spares and
Chemicals 5,28,644 —
Capital Goods 7,67,181 3,50,389
74,53,?_24 20,17,172
. As at As at
E) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 31st March - 31st March
1994 1893
Rs, Rs.
Packing Matetial 3,15,57,738 3,39,92,611
Travelling & other expenses 19,368,457 3,81,920
3,34,94,193  3,43,74,531
. B As at As al
. F) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE 31st March ‘31st March
1994 1983
As. ‘Rs,
F.O.B. Value of Exports 1,90,59,792 50,65,129
1,90,59,792 50,65,129
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘R’
NOTES:

1.

16,

1.

12,

13.

Contingent liability nef-provided for in respect of :
i) Lelters of Credit opened and outstanding Rs. 44,70,618 (Rs. 53,10,619).

iy Sales Tax Claims against the Company for which assessments have been completed, not acknowledged as
debts Rs. 1,78,793 {Rs. NIL).

i) Fixed Assets include office building costing Rs. 1,46,77,000 (Rs. 1,46,77,000} for which conveyance has not yet
been completed.

iy The gross block of fixed assets includes Plant & Machinery given on lease Rs. 108,43,309 (Rs. 99,93,750).

iiiy The Company has commenced commercial production of raw ail at its Kanjikode plant from 25.5.93. The pre-
operative expenditure of Rs. 21,99,808 incurred for erection and commissioning of the plant has baen capitalised
and includes Power Rs. 4,85,058 and Finance Charges Rs. 13,68,539.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 82,91,839
{Rs. 67,24,994), net of advances.

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind include due from a company under the same management viz. Kanmoor
Foods Limited on account of:

Loans Rs. NIL (Rs. 1,00,00,000).
Maximum Balance Rs. 1,00,00,000 (Rs. 1,00,00,000).
Advances Rs. 1,74,59,963 (Rs. 37,65,461).
Maximum Balance As. 2,54,02,526 (Rs. 1,18,80,413).

Deposits include security deposit towards lease of office premises of Rs. 1,38,00,000 (Rs. 40,00,000) with a firm in
which directors are partners.

Cash and Bank bafances include balances of Rs. 3,951 (Rs. 75,540) held with Janaia Sahakari Bank, Jalgaon, a non
scheduled bank. Maximum balance during the year Rs. 1,19,526 ( Rs. 2,25,233).

Sundry Creditors Include acceptances Rs. 47,87,460 (Rs. NIL).

Miscellaneous expenses include Commission and Brokerage Rs. 4,80,981 (Rs. 6,72,704), Donations Rs. 10,67,973
(Rs. 12,11,711}, Cash discount Rs. 1,62,459 (Rs. 1,75,639), Loss on sale of assets Rs. 6,353 (Rs. 9,76,611), Loss on
Sale of Investments Rs. 2,27,500 {Rs. NIL), Audit fees Hs. 1,00,000 {Rs. 90,000), Payment to Auditors for other
services Rs. 3,75,000 {Rs. NIL), Payment to Auditors for out-of-packet expenses Rs. 12,216 (Rs. 10,813).

Miscellaneous income includes profit on sale of assets Rs. NIL (Rs. 32,328} and lease income Rs. 35,00,446
(Rs. 7,57,668). '

Hesearch & Development Expenses aggregating to Rs. 43,112,471 (Rs. 40,03,989) including depreciation of
Rs. 27,25,473 (Rs. 27,63,713) have been included under the relevant heads of expenses.

A sum of Rs. 17,97,433 (Rs. 17,97,433) representing actuarial liability towards retirement gratuity in respect of
employees of the Company, who were earlier employed by The Bombay Oil industries Limited, is held by the
Trustees of The Bombay Oil industries Employees Gratuity Fund. This amount has been recognlsed wh:le determining
the actuarial liability towards retirement gratuity of the Company during the year.

In accordance with the accrual systern of accounting, during the year, entire liability for medical benefits and leave
travel allowance has been accrued, Till 31.3.1993 this liability was recognised to the extent claimed. The effect on
operational results for the year js insignificant.

a) In accordance with the policy consistently followed by the company :

iy Depreciation on fixed assets given on lease has been charged at rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act

and not at rates that would depreciate the asset over the period of fease. Depreciation for the year is
therefore higher by Rs. 23,81,016. The company has recognised income from lease renials of Rs. 35,00,446
in the accounts.

i) Depreciation on fixed assets used for Research & Development has been charged at 100% and not at rates
spacified in schedule XiV. Depreciation for the year is higher by Rs. 24,80,149.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

b) Pursuant to amendment to Schedule XIV vide Notification dated 16.12.1993, depreciation has been provided at
revised rates with effect from 1.4.1993, '

Aggregate cost of quoted investments Rs. 64,82,839 (Rs. NIL). Aggregate market value Rs. ‘56,49,1 75
{Rs. NIL). Shortfall in the market value has not been provided for in view of subsequent improvement in the
market value of investments..

ii} 2500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paidp of Reliance Industries Limited were purchased and sold during
the year. ' :

4. )

15. Confirmations have not been cafled for debtors, creditors and advances. However, the balances on review are
considered receivable or payable as the case may be. ) '

16, Paymenis to suppliers in the small scale sector are made in accordance with agreed credit terms. The interest if any,
on overdue amounts as on 31st March 1994, has neither been claimed nor been ascertained.

17. Managerial Remuneration :
i) . Calculation of Commission payable to the Managing Director :

i8.

31st March 31st March
: 1894 1993
Rs. Rs.
Profit before taxation 14,90,82,208 14,79,02,743
Add: Director's Aemuneration 3,49,167° ‘ 3,43,474
Commission to Directors 90,600 90,000
Depreciation as per books 1,70,03,369 1,65,55,142
Loss on sale of assets _ 6,353 9,44,283
Loss on sale of investments 2,27,500 —
1,76,76,389 1,79,32,899
Less: Depreciation as per
Sec. 350 2,30,28,383 1,53,71,104
Loss on sale of assets as per
Sec. 350 (net} 3,882 5,38,464
2,30,32,265 1,59,09,568
Profit as per Sec. 349 14,37,26,332 14,99,26,074
Commission to Managing Director @ 1%
of net profit 14,37,263 14,99,261
Restricted to 50% of salary for
the year 90,000 90,000
i) Payments and provisions on account of
remuneration to Managing Director
included in Profit & Loss Account.
)  Salary 1,80,000 1,80,000
iy Comimission 90,000 40,000
i)  Contribution to Provident Fund 18,000 18,000
i)  Contribution to Graluity Fund 16,167 10,474
V) Other Perquisites 1,35,000 1,35,000
4,33,474

Figures in brackets pertain to previous year which are regrouped wherever necessary.

4,39,167
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘S’
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{.  Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes, duties, freight
and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and instaflation. Interest during construction period on borrowings
to finance fixed assets are capitalised. Pre-operative expenses for major projects are also capilalised, where appropriate.

2.1 Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight line method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedule
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, except as stated in paras 2.2 to 2.4 below. Depreciation on additions / deletion
during the year has been provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of addition / detetion. Extra shift
depreciation has been provided on "Plant” basis.

2.2 Assets given on lease are depreciated at the rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act.

2.3 Assels used for Research and Development and Plant and Mach_inery._costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated
at 100%. Other fixed assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 each acquired after 31.3.1993 are depreciated at 100%.

2.4 Leasehold land is amortised over lhe balance period of lease.

3.1 Inventories ate valued as follows :

a) Raw materials — at cost

b) Packing materiat — at cosi

¢} Work-in-process — at cosl

d) Finished products : — at lower of cost or

net realisable value

e} Stores & spares — at cost

fy By-Products —- at net realisable value
g} Unserviceable/damaged — at estimated realisable

finished prodtcts value.

3.2 Cost of finished goods and work-in-process Is determined in accordance with the principles of direct costing.
3.3 Stores, Spares costing less than Rs. 1,500 are treated as consumed In the year of purchasse.

4, Research & Development costs are charged as expense In the year in which they are incurred.

Sales are net of trade discount and exclusive of sales tax and are recognised on despatch of goods.

Liability towards retirement gratuity has been provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

N oo oo

Transactions In foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates existing at the time of the transactions. In the
case of current assets and currént llabllities, if the result of conversion at the closing rate is an overall gain, such gain
is not taken into account, but if the result is a netloss, the current assets and current liabilities are restated at the
closing rate and the loss is charged to profit and loss account.

Signatures to Schedules Ato S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Bombay P. SANKER C.V. MARIWALA H.C. MARIWALA
Dated : 18th November, 1994. Secretary Chairman Managing Director
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HOw MANY OF US REMEMBER

THE SECOND MAN WHO

STEPPED ON THE MOON




if,’:‘-i‘&éa',.-i‘{‘,

SECOND MAN

TO RUN THE

FOUR MINUTE MILE ?

OR THE

SECOND MAN

TO-FLY THE

AIRPLANE 2

.This_bééome the guiding principle for oll our preducis.

“We took a decision te create new categories in the

“market place with every product that we introduced.

""We decided 10 be the first in the market everylime.
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WHILE EVERYBODY ELSE WAS MAKING A

NOISE ABOUT BEING MARKET-LED

SAFFQLA

Heart ailments were medical problems that were not even
remolely related with cooking oils. When the satueated fal
coalent in cooking oils is one of the main reasons for
chelesterot formation. There was this need to educate the
onsumer on the jll sffects of cholesterol. And to tell him about
he goodness of kardi oil, where the saturated faf content
vas the lowest. With this educational exsrcise, yel another
:ategery waos born. Safola is siill the only national brand
oF kerdi oil in the market today. '

b
{

. '.|
el o

'ARACHUTE a'!i'y_e_":_i:;br_o:seIZI:i.ri___lf.p"é__'i'.rid@s'f'ry_:has been *

- ~ln the last few years,:
or centuries Coconul Oit was sold loose, : & :

'marketled'.
y the kilo, People could never be sure of - :

' “Scores of com anies loday Brofes
e qualily o the purity. . panie 2 Y P

lasico was the first fo brand and market So one sees-a major ﬁ_f'[_l';x:_.zé___cq_rr:;péi'i'_f'_iyé.:b}cin_dé'-syffu_c_i_ng e\}eryduy.
is commodity product. Of course, the At Marico we do I_hirié_s ._dffféreh_ﬂy.' We slart with _-'the_ consumer .as -our focal
surishing properties of coconut oil were point. ' S B ::Z'.;: L e S ¥

ready well-known. Now the consumer

" We believe t_i'iqt_"d rr : ﬁé‘dr’ke_! fei_ijcfé_r__'é_ré_m_e:s'_"_p'r_qc'_it_rc.f:s fo "fit I'h_:e'; needs of con-

M

35 also sure of the quality. Today on B T R [
sumers, A irue mark_et._leqd_e_r creates categories, | -
rachute hos caplured over 50% of the : L T T T S

anded coconut oil market and has A quick look af ourronge ._?F..P-ro__du‘_:_'s.r:w'!!_Sh_ow E’OW we made a success out of

come synorymous with the category. sach one of them,
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SWEEKAR
Sunflawer oil is the fostest growing segment
in the edible ol markel. This is becauss of -~

the growing health consciousness among ) L

consumers, Yet people did not know why
sunflower oil was good for health, We saw
~an oppurlunity hers fo come in with o
“'Health oil' for the fitness conscious. Thus
Sweekar wos launched, by lelling people
Ihol the saturated fals are the culprits for
thost health problems and Sweekar is 88%
saturated fat free. By establishing Sweekar
as the 88% Saluraled fat free oil, the fitness
conscious consumer became ours.

HAIR AND CARE

For cenluries the image of the perfect Indion
woman has been the are with the big black
eyes and long black hair.The hair oils then in
the market made her hair leok limp and
oily. There was a definite need for a non
greosy hoir oif with the nourishing properties
of the tradilional hair oils. Hair & Core with
Vitamin £ was thus born, and the Hair oil-
plus cotegory was born along with it

,\Q 0.2

\.v‘

"o@ﬁ

_ 'People woufd Iabonously slcrch Ihelr_ co!ions al_home. -We worked
intensively on our R&D " ond cr__uted an lnslunt storch whlch

‘Revive wos faunched in Murch 93 cmd hus creoied o cc:!egory._“'.

REVIVE

dissolved in cold wuier

in: 1he

around itself by becoming the oniy avallcbia lnsiont slcrch
market. Cotton wearing hos. ccqutred a new meomng "
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AND SPEAKING OF LEADING
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IT IN MORE WAYS THAN ONE.
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in o short span of just 3 years, Marico’s lurnover has grown
compounded rate of over 40% per annum. )

No mean achievement for o young organisation which has been in
existence for only three years.

We have grown from a 2 product compony to a 5 product company,
from one manufaciuring location to three locations, from 300 people to 600
people, from a distribution network comprising 1000 diskibutors o one with
1300 distributors.

We ended this year with a turnover of Rs. 210 crores. Inspite of this growth
in size our profitability has grown from 4.3% in 1990-91 1o 7.0% in 1992 . 93.
Our return on capilal employed is greater than 70%, which shows the

importance placed on produclivity of Marico.

Al this has been possible because of our belief in being the first in the
market,

We do belisve that we must reach for the moon.

o
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTOHRS

TOP MANAGEMENT TEAM

SECRETARY

BANKERS

AUDITORS

SOLICITORS

REGISTERED OFFICE

WORKS

CHARANDAS VALLABHDAS MARIWALA  Chairman
HANSRAJ VALLABHDAS MARIWALA
JAYSINH VALLABHDAS MARIWALA
KISHORE VALLABHDAS MARIWALA

HARSH CHARANDAS MARIWALA Managing Director

HARSH CHARANDAS MARIWALA Managing Director

JESWANT NAIR Vice President—Parsonnsl

PRANAB DATTA Vice President—Finance

RAJ AGGARWAL Vice Prosident—Marketing
SHREEKANT GUPTE Vice President—Operations

ARVIND KUMAR Vice President—Gommuodities & Exports
P. SANKER -

STATE BANK OF SAURASHTRA
INDIAN BANK

ALLAHABAD BANK

BANK OF BARODA

DALAL DESA! & KUMANA -

MULLA & MULLA & CRAIGIE, BLUNT & CAROE
TYABJI DAYABHAI & COMPANY

"RANG SHARDA"
Kishenchand Marg,
Bandra Reclafnation,
Bandra Waest,
BOMBAY 400 050.

i) E—10, M.LD.C. Area, Jalgaon 425 003.

) Industrial Development Area,
Kanjlkode--Menonpara Road,
KANJIKODE, PALAKKAD 678 621.




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifth Annual General Mesting
of the Members of MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be
held at "RANG SHARDA", Plot No, 791, Krishnachandra Marg,
Bandra Reclamation, Bandra {West), BOMBAY-400 050, on
December 30, 1993 at 11.00 am. to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet
as on March 31, 1993 and the Profit and Loss Account of
the Company for the year ended on that date and the
reports of the Directors and Auditors.

To declare a dividend.

To appoint a Director In place of Mr. C.V. Mariwala, who
retires by rotaion and, being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment,

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. H.V. Mariwala, who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, ofters himsealf for
re-appoiniment.

To appoint auditors o hold office from the conclusion of
this meeting untit the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meefing of the Gompany and to fix- their

. remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
6. To 'consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without

modifications, lhe following resolution as a Special

Resolution;—

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
370 of the Companies Act, 1956, and other applicable
provisions, if any, the Board of Direclors be and they are
hereby authorised:

(i) to make loan(s) o any body corporate from time to
time, and on such terms and conditions as the Board
of Directors may deem fit notwithstanding that the
aggregate of such toan(s) to the other bodies corporate
not under the same management as the Company,

axceeds twenty per cent of the subscribed. capital of

the Company and its free reserves, provided further, -

that the aggregate of loan{s) so made, to all bodies
corporate should not, without the prior approval of the
Central Government, exceed:

{2) Thirty per cent of the aggregate of the subscribed

capital of the Company and is free reserves, -

where all such olher bhodies corporate are not
under the same management as the Company
and -

{b} Twenty per cent of the aggregate of the subscribed
capital of the Company and its free reserves,
where all such other bodies corporate are under
the same management as the Company.

(iy to give any guaraniee, or provide any security in
connaction with a loan made by any other person to or

to any other person by any body corporate, on such -

terms and conditions as the Board may think fit or
expedient to he in the best interest of the Company.
Provided that, lhe aggregate of all such guarantees
given ar securities provided remaining outstanding at
any time shall not exceed Rs. 30 crores (Rupees Thirty
crores only)”, )

To consider, and if thought {it, to pass, with or without
modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:—

"RESOLVED THAT the consent of the Company be and
is hereby accorded under Section 293(1}a) and other
applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 fo
the Board of Directors of the Company {hereinaiter referred
to as “lhe Board™ to mortgaging and/or charging on such
terms and conditions as the Board roay deem fit, all or any
part of the movable and/or immmovable properties of the
Company, wheresoever siluated, both present and future,
and the whole of the undertaking of the Company (save
and except the current assets thal are or may be
hypothecated andfor pledged in favour of the Company's
bankers for securing borowings for working capital




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

requirements) in favour of The Industrial Credit and
Investment Corporation of India Limited, the Truslees lo
18.75% Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debeniures
for a sum not exceeding Rs. 3 crores (Rupees Three
croras) together with interest at the agreed rates and
compoundfadditional  interest, commitment  charges,
premium on pre-payment or on redemption, costs, charges,
expenses and all other monies payabls by the Compary in
terms of Debenture Trusi Deed enteredito be entered into
by the Company in respsct of such Debeniures.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorised  to  finalise  with  such  Trusiees  of
Debentursholders the documents for ¢reating the aforesaid
morigage andfor charge and to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things as may be necessary usual or expedient
for giving effect to this resolution and also to agree to any
amendments thereto from time to time as it may think it

NOTES:—

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A.MEMBER.

2. DIVIDEND ON SHARES AS RECOMMENDED BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, [F DECLARED AT THE
MEETING, WILL BE PAID ON PRO-RATA BASIS 7O
THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE NAMES STAND
REGISTERED IN THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS AS ON
DECEMBER 30, 1993 AFTER ADJUSTMENT OF THE
INTERIM DIVIDEND ALREADY PAID.

3. THE RELATIVE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1956 IN RESPECT OF THE BUSINESS UNDER
ITEM NOS. 6 & 7 ARE ANNEXED HERETO.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Place: Bombay P. SANKER
Date: December 2, 1993 Company Secrelary

Reglstered Office:

"Rang Sharda”, Krishnachandra Marg,
Bandra Reclamation, Bandra {West),
BOMBAY 400 050.




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

ITEM NO. 6

Under Section 870 of the Companies Act, 1956, authorisation
of the Company by a Special Restlution is required, to enable
the Board of Directors to give loans or provide any guarantee
or security in connection with leans made by any other person
to, or to any other person by, a body corporate beyond twenty
per cent of the aggregate of the subscribed capital of the
Company and its free reserves. '

in order to optimise the returns on the surplus funds, the
Directors of the Company consider it essential to invest such
funds prudently as and when avaitable.

It is, therefore, considered necessary that the Board of
Directors of the Company should be empowered to make loans
or give guarantee or provide securities in connection with loans
made to olher bodies corporate as specified in ltem 6 of the
Notice.

The Directors recommend the Special Resolution_ pursuant to
Section 370 of the Companies Act, 1956, for your approval,

Except to the extent that they may be Direclors or Members
of such other body corporate, none of the Directors of the
Company are in any way concemed or Interesled in ihfs
Resolution.

ITEM NO., 7:

GIC Mutual Fund has subscribed to the Company's 18.75%
Securad Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100/-
each aggregating to Rs. 3 crores fo meet the Company's
requirements of long term working capital and normal capilal
expenditure, The said debentures are fo be secured inter alia,
by a first morigage and charge on the properties of the Company.

Section 293(1)(a} of the Companies Act, 1956 provides that the
Board of Direclors of a Public Company shall not, except with
the consent of the Company in general mesling, sell, lease or
olherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the
undertaking of the Company or where the Company owns
more than one underlaking, of the whole or substantially the
whole of any such undertaking. Accordingly, the consent of the
Company is being obtained.

None of the Directors are interested in the Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

P. SANKER
Company Secrelary

Place: Bombay
Date: December 2, 1993.

Registered Office:

*Rang Sharda’, Krishnachandra Marg,
Bandra Reclamation, Bandra {West),
BOMBAY 400 050.




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors have pleasure in presenling the Fifth Annual
Report of the Company together with the audited accounts for
the year ended March 31, 1993.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Rupees in Lacs

1992-93 1991-92
Sales 21065.62 15965.88
Profit Before Tax 1479.02 616.99
Tax 860.00 332.00
Profit After Tax 619.02 284,98
Add; Brought Forward 124.60 239.61
743.62 524,60

Less: Dividend 22,88 —

Transfer to General

Reserve 500.00 400.00
Batance Carried Forward 220,74 124.60

2. DWVIDEND

An interim dividend of 20% (subject o tax) was declared

" on February 17, 1993 and paid to the Shareholders on a
pro-rata basis out of the profits for the year ended March
31, 1993. In accordance with the relevant terms, bonus
shares issued after the declaration of the dividend would
he eligible to the said dividend on a pro-rata basis. In order
lo conserve resources your Directors have considered it
prudent not to recommend any final dividend.

3. CAPITAL

During the year the Company expanded its capital by
issuing and allotting 6,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/

L
-

each at par.
321In order to ensure that the equily share capilal
appropriately reflected the capital employed in the

Company, your Directors recommended that a sum of

Rs. 8,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three ocrores only) be
capitalised out of the amount available to the credit of
General Reserve as at March 31, 1892 and that such sum
be applied in paying up in full, at par, 30,00,000 iresh
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to.be allotted as Bonus
Shares to the holders of the Equity Shares of the Company
"as on March 23, 1993 in the proportion of iwo new Equity
Shares for every one Equity Share hsld by such holders.

3.3 The aforesaid proposal to Issue Bohus shares was duly
approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Mesting of the Company held on March 23, 1993, and the
Bonus shares were allotted on March 26, 1993,

3.4 With the issue of Right shares and allotment of Bonus
shares as aforesaid the paid up Capital of the Company
slands increased to Rs. 4.50 crores.

4. OPERATIONS

4,1 The trnover for the year registered a growth of 32%, on
top of 51% recorded in the previous year. Sales crossed
the Rs. 200 crore mark, the year finally ending with total
income of Rs. 211 crores as against Bs. 160 crores in the
previous yeat.

4.2 Volume increases were registered by all the product
groups. The lwo main brands, ‘Parachute’ and ‘Safiola’
continued fo be the most popular brands in their respective
categories. ‘Sweekar' and 'Hair & Care’, the two brands of
comparatively recent origin have also registered growlh in
sales.

4.3 Profits (before tax} have increased from Rs. 6.17 crores to
Rs. 14.79 crores, the growth being largely athributed to the
volume increase and improvement in unit margins following
the containment of inilation in raw material prices.

5. NEW PRODUCTS

5.1 During the year, the Company launched an instant fabric
starch under the brand name ‘Revive’. The product was
initially taunched in Bombay and thereafter extended to the
other centres. The initial response has been encouraging.

5.2 The Company has decided to venture into the growing
maiket of processed foods which can be conveniently sold
through its existing distribution infrastructure. Marketing of
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6.2

10.
10.1

the ‘SIL’ range of processed foods, manufactured by Hs
assoclate company, Kanmoor Foods Limited has been
undertaken effective April, 1993.

FUNDS

Your Company has been sanctioned a Rupee Term Loan
of Rupess Five hundred lacs under the Asset Credit
Scheme of ICICI for mesting the capital expenditure
requirements of the Coconut Oil Mill being set up at
Kanjikode, Palghat In the State of Kerala.

Your Company has also privately placed Secured
Non-Convertibte Debentures for Rupees Three hundred
lacs with GIC Mutual Fund to finance the working capital
requirements of the Company. The allotment of
Debentures has been completed during the current
year.

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

Further to the reference in the previous year's repor, the
Company is sefting up a New Oil Mil in the New
Industiial Area, Kanjikode about 14 kms. from Paighat
town in the Siate of Kerala. The plant Is expected to be
fully operational during the first quarter of 1924,

ACCOUNTS

The observations of the auditors in their report o the
members have been adequately dealt with in the relevant

Notes fo the accounts. Hence no further explanation is

deemed necessary.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the requirements of the Cormnpanies
Act, 1956 and the Articles of Assactation of the Company,
Mr. C.V. Mariwala and Mr. H.V. Mariwala are liable to
retire by rotation, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appoiniment.

OTHER INFORMATION

Information required in accordance with provisions of
Section 217{1){e} of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars) in the Report of
Board of Directors Rules, 1988 regarding conservation of
energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange

earnings and outgo, is given in the Annex_ure- tg this
Report.

10.2 In addition, information in accordance with provisions of

Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1858, read with
the Company's (Pariculars of Employees) Rules, 1975
and forming part of the Directors' Report for the year
ended 31st March, 1993, is also given in the Annexure to
this Report.

10.3 The steps taken fowards extensive tree planting and

1.

12,

13

Place: Bombay
Date: Decamber 2, 1903,

landscaping at the factory premises at Jalgaon wguld
during the coming years create a pleasant green
environment. The discharge of effluents at the Company's
operations are well within the norms prescribed by the
Pollution Control Board and sleps are being taken fo
establish effluent treatment plant so as to bring down the
level of effluents further.

AUDITORS

The members are requested to appoint Auditors for the.
current year and to fix their remuneration. Messrs Dalal,
Desal & Kumana, the existing Auditors have under
Section 224{1) of the Companies Act, 1856 furnished
Ceriificate of their eligibility for re-appointment.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The relation between employees and the management
have remained cordial and the Directors wish to place on
record their appreciation of the co-cperatlon and support
received.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Direclors take this opportunity of acknowledging the
support and assistance received from the Company's
bankers, suppliers and other business associates.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA
Chairman

Lo
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure of parliculars with respect to Conservation of
Energy, Research & Development Expenditure and Foreign
Exchange earnings and outgo as required under Companiss
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988,

A. Conservation of Energy:

i) Instaliation of high efficiency "NTB Beils" on expelier
drives. These belts have high tensife strength and very
high modulus of elasticity and thereby have 98%
transmission efficlency compared lo 83-86% efficiency
of conventional V belts.

fiy Installation of suitable ‘Capacitors’ to improve powser
factor to more than 0.95.

iif) Installation of shaft mounted speed Reducers for
expellers.

The details of total energy consumpiion and energy
consumplion per unit of production are disclosed in

Enclosure ‘A’. Electricity consumption per unit of production

is higher dus to substantial increase in refined oil output,

which consumes more power,

B. Research & Development:
The details of Research & Development are disclosed in
Enclosure ‘B’, .

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:
Efforts have been initiated to promote the export of
Company’s products, wherever permissible.
The details of totat foreign exchange used and earned are
disclosed In Schadule ‘QY. ‘

ENCLOSURE ‘A’

A. Power & Fuel Consumptions: 1892-93  1991-02
"1 Electricity .
a} Purchased Unit {Kwh) 30,892,550 26,97,143
Totat Amount (Rs.) 72,80,622 54,38,719
Rate {Rs./Unif) 2.35 2.02
b} Own Generation

i) Through Diesel Generator Nil Nil
i) Through Steam Generator il Nil

2 Coal {Used for Boiler}
CGuantity (M.T.) 1639.000 1443.955
Total Cost (Rs.) 17,69,829 16,63,291
Average Rate (Rs./Ton) 1,079.82  1,151.90
3 Furnace Oll Quantity (K.Lirs) 214,100  680.000
Amount {Hs.} 12,16,736 28,75,177

Average Rate (Rs./K.Ltrs) 5,683.03 4,228.20

'3

1992-83  1991-02

4  Other Internal Generation

) LD.O. oy -
Quantity (K.Ltrs.) 284373 21.000
Amount (Rs.) 18,63,948  1,13,268

Average Rate (Rs./K.Lirs) 6,554.59 5,393.72
i) LS.H.8 Quantity (Klirs) 186.800 10.000
Amount (Rs.) 14,38,483 48,500
Average Rate (Rs/K.Ltrs)  7,700.66  4,650.00

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

‘Edible Off Unit Consumption per Unit

of ‘Production
1992-93  1991-92

Electricity Kwts 224,44 216.35
Coal ) M.T. 0.12 0.12
Furnace Qil K.Ltr. 0.05 0.05

ENCLOSURE ‘B’
Research & Development:

1

Specitic areas in which R&D carried out by the Company:
~—Development of new products.

~—Improvement of product quality.

—Process improvement.

2 Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D:
Launching of new products, improvement in product quality
and cost reduction.

3 Expenditure on R&D:

Rs. in lacs
a) Capital 16.06
b} Recurring 40.04
Totat : §6.10

¢} Total R&D expenditure as a percentage
of total tumover ) 0.27%
For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors

Place: Bombay C.V. MARIWALA

Date: December 2, 1993. Chairman
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Marico
Indusiries Limited as on 31st March, 1983 and the Profit &
Loss Account of the Company for the year ended on that date
annexed thereto, and report that:

1. We have obtained all informatlon and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as requlred by law
have been kept by the Company so far as appsars from
our examination of those books.

3. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of
account. -

4. As detailed in notes 12(i) and 13 of Schedule R, provision
for Depreciation on cerain assets has been mads at
rates higher than the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV

. resulting in the charge for depreciation being higher by
Rs. 62,44,110.

5. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanalions given lo us, the said
accounts fogether with schedules annexed thereto,
Staternent of significant accounting policies and read with
notes on accounts in Schedule ‘B’ particutarly note 12
regarding change in the basis of accounting, give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1856 in the
mannar so required and subject to para 4 hereol give a
true and fair view:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 1983 and

b) in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the profit
for the year ended on thal date.

As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies
{Auditors Report) Order 1988, issued by the Company Law
Board in terms of Seclion 227{4A) of the Companies Act,

1956, and on the basis of such checks as we considered:

appropriate and in terms of information and explanations-given
to us, we report that: o

1.

The Company has maintained proper records ‘showing full
parliculars inciuding quantilative details and situation of
fixed assets. The fixed assets are physicafly verified by the
management in a phased manner. No material
discrepancies were noticed in case of assets verified.

2 None of the fixed assets have been revalued during the year.

3. The stock of finished goods, raw materials, stores ;and

spares have been physicaily verified during the year by ihe
management at reasonable intervals. Confirmations have
peen oblained in respect of materials lying with third
patties.

. The procedures for physical verification of stocks followed

by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company and nature of its
business.

. No malerial discrepancies have been noticed on physical

verificalion of stocks as compared lo the book records.

.- ; N 4
. In our opinion and on the basis of our examination, the

valuation of stock is fair and proper in accordance with the
normally accepted accounting principles and except as
detailed and quantified in note 12 (i) of Schedule 'R', is on
the same basis as in the preceding year.

. The Company has not laken any ioans from Companies,

firms or other parties listed in the register maintained under
Soction 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 and/or from
Companies under the same management as defined in
section 370 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956.

. The Company has given loan lo a company under the

same management as defined under Sub-section {1B) of
Section 370 of the Companies Act, 1956 which is aiso &
Company listed in the register maintained under Section
301 of the said Act. The terms and conditions of the loan
are nol prima-facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.
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9,

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Loans or advances in the nature of leans given are being
repald as stipulated together with interest, wherever
applicable.

There are adequate internal control  procedures
commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business for the purchase of slores, raw
materials Including components, plant and machinery,
equipment and other assets and for the sale of goods.

The transactions of purchases of goods and materials and
sale of goods, materials and services, made in pursuance
of conlracls or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000 or more In
respect of each parly, other than those purchases which
are explained to be of a special nature for which alternative
quotations are not available have been made at prices
which, in our opinion, are reasonable having regard lo
prevailing market prices where such market prices are
available with the Company or the price al which similar
transactions were made with other parties.

The Company has a regular procedure for the
determination of unserviceable or damaged stores, raw
materials, finished goods and material dealt in and
provision for loss in respect thereof has been made in the
accotnts.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the
public to which the provisions of Section 58A and lhe
Companies (Acceptance of Deposils) Rules, 1975 are
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained reasonable
records for the sale and disposal of realisable by-products,
The Company has no significant realisable scrap.

15.

16.

17.

18,

14.

20.

Place: Bombay
Date: December 2, 1993.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with its size and the nature of ils business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been presciibed by
the Central Government under Section 209(1){d) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has regularly deposited provident fund dues
and Employees’ State Insurance dues with the appropriate
authorities except for a delay of one day In deposiling
provident fund dues on account of civic disturbances.
There were no arfears at year end. '

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income tax, wealth-tax, sales-lax, custom duty & excise
duty which have remained outstanding as at year end for
a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

No personal expenses have been charged lo revenue
account, other than those payable under contractual
obligations or in accordance with generally accepted -
business practice.

The Company is not a sick indusirial company within the
meaning of Clause (o) of Sub-section {1} of Section 3 of
the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,
1985.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana
Chartered Accountants

MAHESH ASRANI
Partner
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BALANCE SHEET -
AS AT 31st MARCH

SCHEDULE 1993 1992
SOURCES OF FUNDS Rs. Rs.
Shareholders’ Funds
Capltal A 4,50,00,000 90,00,600
Reserves & Surplus o - ) B 8,20,74,047 5,24,58,521
12,70,74,047 6,14,569,521
Loan Funds
Secured Loans C 12,80,23,950 7,19,16,109
.Unsecured Loans D 1,60,00,000 2,50,00,000
14,30,23,950 9,69,16,109
APPLICATION OF FUNDS 27,0097,997  1583,75.630
Fixed Assets E . .
Gross Block ' 8,74,57,643 3,67,12,708
Less: Depreciation 2,01,21,466 39,i6,514
Net Block 6,73,36,177 3,27,96,194
Capital Work-in-Progress 4,22,10,450 - 3,46,86,719
: 10,95,46,627 6,74,82,913
Investments F ,01,200 81,200
-Current Assets, Loans and Advances
nventcries G 14,70,09,035 16,33,20,654
Sundry Debtors H 7,87,30,737 5,98,24,109
Cash, and Bank Balances K 2,29,14,984 2,02,86,438
Loans and Advances J 19,25,90,354 6,66,37,200
Less: 44,12,45,110 31,00,77,402
Current Llabilities and Provisions
Liabilities K 14,04,86,308 16,50,55,885
Provisions L 14,03,08,632 - 5,42,10,000
28,07,94,940 21,92 65,885
Net Current Assets 16,04,50,170 9,08,11,517
27,00,97,997 15,83,75,630
For Notes formlng part of the Accounts and Accounting Policies, sce Schedules R & § respectively.
As per our attached repott of even dale
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA For and on behaf of the Board of Directors
Charlered Accountanis
MAHESH ASRANI P. SANKER C.V. MARIWALA H.C. MARIWALA
Pariner Secrelary Chairmart Managing Director
Place: Bombay Place: Bombay ’
Date: December 2, 1993, Date: Decamber 2, 1993,
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INCOME

Sales
Cther Income

EXPENDITURE

Cost of Materials

Manufacluring and Other Expenses
Interest

Depreciation

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Provision for Tax

PROFIT AFTER TAX
Batance brought forward

PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS

APPROPRIATIONS
Dividend {Subject to tax)

General Reserve

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD TO BALANCE SHEET

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st March

SCHEDULE 1993 1992
Rs. Rs.
Q 210,32,13,218  159,43,95,801
M 33,49,229 21,92,128
210,66,62,447  159,66,87,920

N 130,47,79,532 107,27,14,241 .
0 60,82,51,830 44,07,93,331
P 2,90,73,200 1,86,49,520
E 1,65,55,142 27,32,015
195,86,59,704 153,48,89,107
14,79,02,743 6,16,08,822

8,60,00,000 3,32,00,000 °
6,19,02,743 2,84,98,802
1,24,59,521 2,39,60,699
7,43,62,264 5,24,59,621

22,88,217 —

5,00,00,000 4,00,00,000
2,20,74,047 *1,24,59,621

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accounting Policies, see Schedules R & S respeciively.

As per our attached report of even dale

FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

MAHESH ASRANI
Partner

Place: Bomhay
Date: December 2, 1983,

P. SANKER
Secrelary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA H.C. MARIWALA
Chalrman Managing Director

Place: Bombay
Date; December 2, 1893,
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SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS -
SCHEDULE ‘&’ As at As al o
31ist March 31st March
SHARE CAPITAL 163 aon
Bs. Rs.
Authorised!:
49,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,80,00,000 90,00,000
(9,00,000)
10,000 14% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of L
fAs. 100/- each 10,008,000 10,00,000
5,00,00,000 - 1,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid up:
45,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up
{9,00,000) Including 30,00,000 {Nil) allotted as fully.paid bonus
shares during the year by capitalisation of
General Reserve ' 4,50,00,000 90,00,000
SCHEDULE 'B’ As at As at
3tst March 3ist March b
RESERVES AND SURPLUS areh farch o
Rs. Rs.
General Reserve— -
As per last Balance Shaet 4,00,00,000 —
Less: Amount ulilised, towards issue of Bonus Shares 3,00,00,000 —
1,00,00,000
Add : Transfer from Profit And Loss Account .5,00,00,000 3 4.(50,00,000
6,00,00,000 4,00,00,000
Profit and Loss Account 2,20,74,047 - 1,24,58,521
8,20,74,047 5,24.59.52'1

12 !
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SCHEDULE ‘C

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

As at As at
31st March 31st March
SECURED LOANS 1993 1992
Rs. Rs.
Non Converible Debentures—Advance Subscription (Note 1) 3,00,00,000 ) —
From Banks (Note 2) 7,93,73,051 5,96,40,109
From Financial Institution (Note 3} 1,86,50,899 1,22,76,000
12,80,23,950 7,19,16,109
NOTES:
1. To be Issued to GIC Mutual Fund which are proposed to be
sectired by legal morigage of immovable property of the Company,
wherever situated including Plant & Machinery {excluding the
assets on which exclusive charge has been created) and a floating
charge on all olher movable assets of the Company subject 1o
prior charges created In favour of the Company's bankers;
debentures were since allotted on June 11, 1993 and securties
are In the process of being created.
2. Secured by hypothecation of stock In trade and other iangible
movable assels of the Company, wherever situated, and
guaranteed by the Directors of the Company.
3. toan from financlal institution includes :
{i) delerred payment credit of Rs. 98,20,800 co-accepled by the
Company’s bankers against hypothecation of all tangible
movable properties including stock In trade and machinery
situated at, Jalgaon factory; and also guaranteed by the
Directors of the Company. Repayable within a year
Rs, 24,55,200 {Rs. 24,55,200}.
{ity term loan of Bs. 88,30,098 secured'by an exclusive charge by
way of hypothecation of specific equipments. Repayable
within a year Rs. 12,87,693 {Rs. Nil).
SCHEDULE D As at As at
_ 31st March 31st March
UNSECURED LLOANS 1993 1992
Hs. Rs.
+
From Companies
Repayable within a year Rs. Nit (Rs. 50,00,000) 1,50,00,000 2,50,00,000
1,50,00,000 2,50,00,000

i3
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SCHEDULE ‘E’ FIXED ASSETS

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

As at " Additions D-ereiionsl As at Upto For the  Delstions/ Upto As at © As at
1st April Adjustments 31st March 1st Aprit Year Adjusiments 31st Marchf 3ist March 3ist March
1982 1993 1992 1993 1993 1992
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs, Rs. Rs.
Leasehold Land 22,35,921 - —_ 22,35,921 55,009 26,763 — 81,862 21,54,059 21,80,822
Building 62,72,401 1,59,07,964 — 2,21,80,365 2,32,436 420,202 —_ 6,52,638)F 2,1 5,2?,127 60,39,965
Plant and Machinery | 2,70,05,396 3,49,60.962 15,67,443 6,04,07,915] 3536,025 1,59,67,907 342,846 1,91,61,086] 4,12,46,820 2,34,66,371
Fumiture and Fittings|  11,62,250 5,22,073 22321 16,62,002 82,629 92,236 1,181 i,73684] 14,688,318  10,79,621
Vehicles 36,740 9,65,465 30,765 9,71,440 10,325 48,034 6,163 52,196 9,19,244 26,415
TOTAL 3,67,12,708 5,23,65464 16,20,520 8,74,57,643; 39,16,514 1,65,55,142 3,550,190 2,01,21,466{ 6,73,36177 3,27,96,194

PREVIOUS YEAR 2,91,16,059 78,46,000 2,49,351 3,67,12,708| 12,062,100 27,32,015 17,601 39,168,514 — —
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS {AT COST} RNCLUDING ADVANCES ON CAPITAL ACCOUNT 4,22,10,45¢ 3,46,86,71¢
10,95,46,627 6,74,82,013
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘F As at As at
INVESTMENTS (At Cost) Unquoted 31st March 31st March
1993 © 1882
) Rs. Rs.
Government Securities — Nalional Savings Cerificates 1,01,200 81,200
{Deposited with Government authorilies)
1,01,200 81,200
SCHEDULE ‘G’ As at As at
INVENTORIES 3ist March 31st March
1993 1992
As. Rs.
{As per Invantories valued and cerlified
by the management—Refer item 3 of Schedule S}
Raw Materials 2,89,34,189 4,79,93,959
Packing Materials 2,62,07,090 3,25,19,984
Stores, Spares & Chemicals 28,04,037 44,94,666
Work-in-Process 15,837,040 10,05,285
Finished Products 8,27,98,152 6,97,38,708
By-Products 47,28,627 758,77,062
14,70,00,035 16,33,29,654
SCHEDULE ‘H’ As at As at
" SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured—considered good) J1st M;\égg 31st Mfggg
As. Rs.
QOver 8ix months 67,30,390 12,54,766
Others 7,20,00,347 5,85,60,343
’ 7,87,30,737 5,98,24,109
SCHEDULE ‘I As at As al
CASH AND BANK BALAMCES 31st March 3tst March
1983 1992
As. Rs.
Cash on hand 4,48,220 3,30,700
Remittances in transit 17,10,000 2,865,600 -
Balances with Scheduled Banks:
Fixed Deposits (lcdged with Gowvt, authoritles) 1,24,500 1,24,500
Margin Account (Against Lelters of Credit &
Bank Guaranteas 35,94,670 27,84,346
in Current Accounts 1,70,37,594 1,67,81,393
2,07,56,765 1,96,90,239
2,29,14,984 2,02,86,439
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ' : As at As at
LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured—considered good) 31st M%gg st “’116‘9;32
Rs. Hs.
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be recelved 2,76,58,919 02,00,602
Advance Tax ‘ 12,46,88,797 5,03,64,676
Deposits 3,80,31,509 69,866,529
Balance with Central Excise Authorities 11,465 5,851
Interest accrued on— Invesiments 27,693 23,549
— Others 2,71,971 75,993
2,99,664 99,542
19,25,80,354 B6,66,37,200
SCHEDULE ‘K’ As at As at
CURRENT LIABILITIES 31st March 31st March
1993 1992
Rs. Rs.
Sundry Creditors 10,66,16,123 13,92,21,071
Advances from customers 4,37,262 C—
Cther Liabilities 1,09,90,843 92,02,445
Security Deposits 2,24,22,069 1,64,62,788
Interest accrued but not due 19,911 1,689,681
14,04,86,308 16,50,55,885
SCHEDULE ‘L’ As at As at
PROVISIONS 31st March 3ist March
1983 1992
Rs. Rs.
Tax 14,02,10,000 5,42,10,000
Dividend 98,632 —
_11,_03,08,632 5,42,10,000
SCHEDULE '™’ As at As at
OTHER INCOME 3ist March 31st March
’ 1993 1892
Rs. As.
Income from Investments (Gross) 4,144 12,738
Tax deducted at source Rs. Nil {Rs. Nil}
Interest from Banks & Others {Gross) 24.14,832 7,111,028
Tax deductad at source Rs. 4,34,019 (Rs. 54,025}
Miscellaneous Income 9,30,253 14,68,362
21,92,128

33,49,229
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE ‘N’
COST OF MATERIALS

HAW MATERIALS:
Opening Stock
Add: Purchases
Less; Closing Stock

PURCHASE OF FINISHED PRODUCTS
(INCREASE)YDECRHEASE IN STOCK
OPENING STOCK

Work-in-Process

By-praducts
Finished Products

CLOSING STOCK:

Work-in-Process
By-producls
Finished Products

4,79,93,959
102,66,92,378
2,89,34,189

10,05,285
75,77,052
6,07,38,708

7,83,21,045

15,37,040
47,28,527
8,27,98,152

8,90,63,719

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

As at

31st March
1993

Rs.

104,567,52,148

26,97,70,058

(1,07,42,674)

130,47,79,532

2,75,71,322
£0,80,94,765

4,79,93,959

34,14,418
40,00,018

6,21,21,793

6,85,36,229

10,05,285
75,77,052

6,97,38,708

7,83,21,045

107,27,14,241

As at

3tst March
1962

Rs. .

88,76,72,128

19,38,26,929

(87,84,816)
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

| SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE O’ As at As at
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES 3st Marcn 3tst March
Rs. Rs.
Employee GCost:
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,91,79,450 2,08,88,058
Contribution to Providen! Fund and Other Funds 28,05,861 . 17,51,810
Woelfare Expenses . 63,20,367 45,84,159
: 3,83,05,678 2,72,24,027
Conversion & other charges reimbursed 3,53,89,167 2,02,28,573
Stores, Spares & Chemicals Consumed 1,09,19,677 65,53,133
Packing Materials Consumed 25,17,81,767 19,47,76,454
Power, Fuel and Water 1,59,26,010 1,04,563,451
Rent and Storage Charges 2,01,01,166 1,15,50,739
Repairs: Buildings 46,34,594 7,27,067
Machinery 16,58,166 9,00,203
Others 31,47,556 23,19,454
94,40,316 39,46,724
Freight and Forwarding Charges 4,40,13,630 3,47,25,180
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 7,86,50,160 4,61,87,673
Rates and Taxes 2,92,546 204,969
Sales Tax 1,65,55,832 1,64,51,487
Royaity 92,086,288 2 1,07,46,469
Traveliing, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 1,31,65,306 90,88,341
Bank Charges 2,60,85,887 2,81,85,291
Insurance 8,62,069 9,05,084
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,75,56,331 1,05,65,726
60,82,51,830 44,07,93,331
SCHEDULE ‘P As at As at
31st March 31st March
INTEREST 1993 5992
Rs. Rs.
Fixed Loans 32,48,522 8,72,167
“Others 2,568,24,678 1,77,77,353
- 2,90,73,200 1,86,49,620

18
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE ‘@

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A) DETAILS OF PRODUCTS MANUFACTURED, TURNOVER, OPENING STOCK, CLOSING STOCK ETC.

159.;3.95.801

& PARFICULARS Year Ended Licensed Instatted CPENING STOCK PRODUGTION® PURCHASES TURNOVER CLOSING STOCK
No. 3ist March Capacity Capacity Quantity Amount Quantity Quantity Amount Quantty Amount Quantity Amount
M, MT, M. fs. M.T. MT. As. M.T. fs. M.T. As.
1 AW OLS 1533 1ta0e! 11400 634.263  3,60,43,206 £801.250 4503.163 24,68,85,56% 17968.743  148,88,37,723 790.583 4,33,78,498

(Finished Eroducts) Of Seeds Of Seeds
1992 11400 H4G0 613300 30746775 8340.307 4D47.300 10,38.26920 15351500  109,80.32,853 634263 3.60,43,308
Of Seeds Of Seeds -

2 REFINED QILS 1993 22,500 22,500 781.138  2,98,25354 6977.542 469.708 1,47,69,537 9151.746 45,90,8%,358 922525 2,80,35011
1092 22,500 15,120 619.958 24758421 £128.310 —_ — 7372434 39,17.45,053 781.138  2,93.25,354
‘3 BY-PRODUCTS 1593 — — 1386.783 75,177,652 1963£.989 — _ 17181.060 8,16,13,750 £82.243 47,28,527
1892 — — 1109.940 40,00,018 33477133 —_ - 15797.981 665,324,667 1386783 75,777,052
4 HAIR OfL ** 1893 _— — a7.318 37,07,266 — — — S06.643 5,06,65,797 26.179 27,3%,838
1982 — — 78700 £66,63,597 — — — AZ5244 4,39,08,010 a7.318 a7,07,266
5 OTHERS 1493 —_ — — 1,62,782 —_ — 81,14952 — $,40,08,500 — . £65,52,805
1952 — — —_ — —_ — —_ — 32,75,218 - 162,782
TOTAL 1983 —_ _ —_ TI3A5,760 — — 26,97,70,058 — 210,32,13,218 —_ 8,75,26,679
1992 — — — 8612181 — — 19,38,26,920 — - 7,73,15,760

The Instatied capacities are as certified by the Management on a tves shili basls.

On lsase basis

NOTE:
* Excludes processed by others
Jtst March 3ist March By-Products Producton
1983 1992 Includas B7.712 MT, (P.Y, 286500 M.T.) consumed during processing
My MT Inciudes 5107.938 M.7. (P.Y. 4463.295 M.T.) consumed during processing by Others.
Raw Cis 6315.650 4934776
Refined oils 1835.883 §467.285
By-Produsts 2997.84¢ 7427480 ** Producad by others; units in Kt
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE ‘@' a1 nﬁ\s aht hﬁ‘:?:
st Marc 31st rCH
B) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1993 a9
Guantity Value Qua‘nti_ily Value
M.T. Rs. M.T. Rs.
Qil seads 35514 84,08,36,850 31957 70,41,46,604
Raw oils 6344 17,88,57,954 4747 16,75,84,469
Qthers 2,60,57,344 1,59,41,055
104,57,52,148 §8,76,72,128
As at As at
31st March 3ist March
1993 P 1992
% Value % Value |
C) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND Rs. fs.
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw material
Imported 0.16 16,66,782 012 10,47,642
Indigencus 99.84  104,40,85,365 09.88 88,66,24,486
100,00  104,57,52,148 100.00 88,76,72,128
Stores, spares and chemicals
Imported — — 6.30 4,12,559
Indigenous 100,00 1,09,19,677 93.70 61,40,674
100.00 1,09,19,677 100.00 65,563,133
As at As at
31st March 3tst March
- 1993 1992
D) VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.L.F. BASIS fs. Rs.
Raw material 16,66,783 10,47,642
Stores, spares and chemicals — 4,112,659
Capital goods 3,50,389 713,157
20,417,172 21,73,358
As at As at
31st March 31st March
1993 1992
E} EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY Rs. Rs.
Packing materfals 3,39,92,611 3,65,62,927
Others 3,81,920 36,678
3,43,74,531 3,65,99,605
As at As at
31st March 31st March
1993 1992
F} EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE Rs. Rs.
F.Q.B. Value of Exports __58,65,129 31,79,669
50,65,129 31,79,669
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULE ‘R’

NOT
1.

2.1
22
3.
4.

N

o

13.

14.

15.

16.

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

CS:
Contingen! liabilty not provided for in respect of:
iy Lelters of Cradit opened and cutstanding Rs. 53,10,619/- (Bs. 9,85,400/-).
i) Liability for conversion and other charges on account of the exposure aggregating to Rs. 101.76 takhs (Rs. Nif) of the processors
fowards duties eic., which is being contested by them with the concerned statutory authority. «l
lii} Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis Rs. Nil (Rs. 4,74,973/).
Fixed Assets include office building costing Rs. 1,46,77,000/- (Rs. Nil} for which conveyance has not yet been completed.
The gross block of fixed assefs includes Plant & Machinery given on lease Rs. 99,93,750/- (Rs. Nil}.
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 67,24,994/- {Rs. 23,65,450/-).
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind include :
i) Loans to ofiicers of the Company Rs. 60,800/~ (Hs. 1,98,275/-). Maximum debit balance Rs. 1,98,275/- (Rs. 3,04,705L).
i} Due from a company under the same management viz. Kanmoor Foods Limited on account of :
Loans Hs. 1,00,00,0600/- (Rs. Nil).
Maximum Balance Rs. 1,00,00,000/~ {Rs. Nil}.
Advances Rs. 37,65,461/- (Rs. Nil),
Maximum Balance Rs. 1,18,80,413/- {Rs. Nil}.
Deposits inciude security deposit towards lease of office premises of Hs. 40,00,000/- (Rs. Nil) with a firm in which directors are
pariners.
Cash and Bank batances include balances of Bs. 75,540/ {Rs. 2,598/} held with Janata Sahakari Bank, Jalgaon, a nen scheduled bank.
Maximum balance during the year Rs. 2,298,293/~ {Rs. 1,38,808/-).
Sundry Creditors include acceptances Rs. Nit (Rs. 5,15,16,6025},
Miscellaneous expenses include Commission and Brokerage Rs. 6,72,704/- {RBs. 4,35,053/-), Donations Rs. 12,11,711/- (Rs. 17,7563/},
Cash discount Rs. 1,75,630/- (Rs. 1,08,513/-), Loss on sale of assets Rs. 9,76,611/- {Rs. 33,909/-) Audit fees Rs. 90,000/- {Hs. 70,000/},
Payment to Auditors for taxation matters Rs. Nil (Rs. 1,260/-), Payment to Auditors for out-of-pocket expenses Rs. 10,193/~ {Hs. 7,694/-).
Miscellaneous income includes profit on sale of assets Rs. 32,328/- (Rs. 587/-) and lease renfals Rs, 7,57,668/- (Rs. Nil).
Research & Development Expenses aggregating to Rs. 40,03,989/- {Rs. 13,565,050/-) Including depreciation of Rs. 27,63,713/-
{Rs. 1,00,471/-) have been included under the relevant heads of expenses.
A sum of Rs. 17,97,433/- (Rs. 9,02,274/-) representing actuarial liability towards refirement gratuity in respect of employees of the
Company, who were earlier employed by The Bombay Oil Industries Limited, is held by the Trustee of The Bombay Oil Industies
Employees Gratuily Fund. This amount has been recognised while delermining the actuarial liability towards retirement gratuity of the
Company during the year.
The basls of accounting has been changed during the year as under:— .
i} Depreciation on fixed assets used for Research and Development, Including the assets acquired in the eadier vears, has been
- charged at 100% and not at the rates specified in Schedule XIV as was done In the preceding years. Consequently, depreciation
for the year is higher by Rs. 26,84,172/-.
iy The method of determining the cost of finished goods and work In process has been changed from absorption costing to direct costing
50 as to include variable costs only, resulting in the inventories af the year end being lower by Rs. 21,58,723/-. Certain refinements
have also been carried out In the basis of allocaflng variable costs and valuation of stores and spares, the impact of which on valuation
of inventories is not material.
Depreciation on assels given on tease has been charged at rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act, and not at the rales specified
in Schedule XIV. Consequently, depreciation for the year is higher by Rs. 35,59,938/-.
Depreciation includes additional charge of Rs. 37,35,378/- on cerlain assets identified as obsolete/non-usable, which are relained in the
books at salvage value.
Confirmations have not been called for debtors, creditors and advances. However, the balances on review are considerad receivable or
payable as the case may be.
Payments to suppliers in the small scale sector are made In accordance with agreed credit terms. The Interest if any, on overdue amotnts
as on 31st March 1993, has neither been claimed nor been ascertained,
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¥

17,

18.

Managerial Remuneration :

i) Calculation of Commission payable to the Managing Direclor:

Profit before taxalion

Add: Directers’ Remuneration
Comimission to Directors
Depreciation as per books
Loss on sale of assels {net)

Less: Bepreciation as per Section 350
Loss on sale of assels as per Section 350 (net}

Profit as per Section 349

Commission to Managing Direclor @ 1% of net profit

3,43,474
96,000
1,65,55,142
9,44,283

1,53,71,104
5,38,464

Restricted to 50% of salary for the year {Previcus Year 1-7-91 to

31-3-92)

if) Paymenis and provisions on account of remuneration to
Managing Direclor included in Profit & Loss Account,

iy Salary
iiy Commission

iiy Contribution to Provident Fund
iv) Coniribution to Gratuity Fund

v) Other Perquisites

Figures in bracket pertain to Previous year which are regroupsd whersver necessary.

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

3ist March,
1893
Rs.

14,79,02,743

1,79,32,899

1,59,00,568

14,99,26,074
14,99,261

90,000

1,80,000
90,000
18,000
10,474

1,35,000

4,33,474

3ist March, .

1992
Rs.

6,16,98,822

2,13,303
58,500
27,32,015
33,322

30,37,140
59,94,730
18,827

60,13,557
- 5,87,22405

5,87.224

58,500

1,17,000
58,500
11,700

4,781
79,822

2,71,803
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE 'S’
STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

2.1 Deprecialion on Fixed Assets is provided on Staight line method at the rates and in the manner specified in Schedute XIV of the '
Companies Act, 1958, except as stated in paras 2.2 to 2.4 below. Depreciation on additions/deletions during the year has been provided
on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/doletion. Extra shift depreciation has been provided on “"Plant” basis.

2.2 Assets given on lease are depreciated al the rates prescribed under the Income Tax Act.

2.3 Assets used for Research and Development and Plant and Machinery costing less than Rs. 5,000 each are depreciated at 100%.

2.4 Leasehold land is amortised over the balance pericd of leass.

3.1 Inventories are valued as follows: .-

a. Raw materials at cost
b. Packing materials at cost
¢. Work-in-process at cost
d. Finished Goods _ at fowar of cost or
net realisable value
e. Stores & spares at cost
i. By-producis at net realisable value
g. Unserviceable/damaged finished products at estimated reafisable value

3.2 Cost of finished goods and work-in-precess Is detennined in accordance with the principles of direct costing.

3.3 Stores and Spares costing less than Rs. 1,500 are treated as censumed in ihe year of purchase,

4 Research & Development costs are charged as expense in ihe year in which they are incurred,

5. Sales are net of trade discount and exclusive of sales tax and are recognised on despatch of goods.

6.  Liability towards retirement gratuity has been provided on the basis of actuariat valuation,

7.  Transactions in forelgn currency are recorded at the exchange rates existing at the time of the transactions. In the case of current assets |
and current liabilities, if the result of conversion at the closing rate is an overall gain, such gain is not laken into account; but if the result -
is a net loss the current assets and current liabililies are restated at the closing rate and the loss is charged to profit and loss !
account. ;

Signatures to Schadules ‘A’ to 'S’
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place : Bombay P. SANKER C.V. MARIWALA H.C. MARIWALA

Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes, dulies, freight and other incldental
expenses related 1o acquisition and Instaliation. Interest during construction period on borrowings o finance fixed assels is capitallsed.
Pre-operative expanses for major projects are also capitalised, where appropriate.

Pate : Dacember 2, 1993. Secretary Chairman Managing Director

23

7




MARICO




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  CHARANDAS VALLABHDAS MARIWALA  Chairman
HANSRAJ VALLABHDAS MARIWALA
JAYASINH VALLABHDAS MARIWALA
KISHORE VALLABHDAS MARIWALA

HARSH CHARANDAS MARIWALA Managing Director
. SECRETARY L.H. KHILNANI

TOP MANAGEMENT HARSH CHARANDAS MARIWALA Managing Director
JESWANT NAIR Vice President—Personnel
PRANAB DATTA Vice President— Finarice
RAJ AGGARWAL Vice Prosident—Marketing
PRAVEEN RATTAN Vice President—Cgmmodities
SHREEKANT GUPTE ' Vice President—Operations

BANKERS ‘ STATE BANK OF SAURASHTRA
INDIAN BANK

ALLAHABAD BANK
BANK OF BARODA

AUDITORS DALAL DESA|I & KUMANA

SOLICITORS _ MULLA & MULLA & CRAIGE BLUNT & CAROE
TYABJI DAYABHA] & COMPANY

REGISTERED OFFICE "RANG SHARDA"
Plot No. CST 791, Kishenchand Mary,
Bandra Reclamation, Bandra West,
BOMBAY —400 050.

WORKS : E—10, M.LD.C. Area,
Jalgaoh—425 003,




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE

~ NOTICE is hereby given that the 4th Annual General

Meeting of the Members of Marico Industries Limited
will be held at its Registered Office situated at "Rang
Sharda", Kishenchand Marg, Bandra Reclamation,
Bandra West, BOMBAY - 400 050, on August 27th,
1992 at 11.00 a.m. o transact the following business:

1.

To consider and adopt the Directors’ Report and
Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss
Account for the year ended 31st March, 1992

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. K.V,
Mariwala, who retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. H.C.
Mariwala, who relires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Authorised Share
Capital of the Company be increased from
Rs. 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore) divided
into 9,00,000 (Nine Lakhs) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- {(Rupees Ten) each and 10,000 {Ten
Thousand) 14% Gumulative Redeemable Pre-
ference Shares of Rs. 100/~ (Rupees Hundred)

each to Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores)

by creation of further 40,00,000 (Forty Lakhs)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten) each and
that the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company be altered in the manner
following:

a. In place and stead of Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association, the following
shall be substituted: ‘

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company
is Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores)
divided into 49,00,000 {Forly Nine Lakhs)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten} and
10,000 (Ten Thousand) 14% Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/-
(Rupees Hundred) each with power to
increase and reduce the capital of the
Company andfor divide the shares in the
capital for the time being into several
classes and altach hereto respectively such

preferential or qualified rights, privileges or
conditions as may be determined by or in
accordance with the Articles of the Company

for the time being and to vary, modify or

abrogate any *ssgch rights, privileges or
conditions or restrictions in such manner as
may be permitted by the legisiative pro-

visions or by the Articles of Association of

the Company for the time being in force.

b. In place and stead of Article 3 of the Articles
of Association of the Company, the following
shall be substituted.

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company
is Rs. 5,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores)
divided into 49,00,000 (Forty RNine Lakhs)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten)
each ~and 10,000 (Ten Thousand) 14%
Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares
of Rs. 100/~ (Rupees Hundred) each. The
Company shall have power to increase,
consolidate, sub-divide, reduce or otherwise
alter its share capital subject to the pro-
visions of the Act.”

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without medification, ithe following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the consent of the Company

be and is hereby accorded under Section 293 (1)

{(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, to the Board of Directors
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as "the
Board”) to mortgaging and/or charging on such
terms and conditions as the Board may deem fif,
all or any part of the movable and/or immovable
propetties of the Company, wheresoever situate,
hoth present and future, and the whole of the
undertaking of the Company (save and except
the current assets that are or may be hypothe-
cated and/or pledged in favour of the Company's
bankers for securing borrowings for working
capital requirements) in favour of one or more
banks andfor financial institulions and/or trustees
of debentureholders and/or others to secure term
loans borrowed/to be borrowed and/or debentures
issuedfto be issuad whether on a rights basis to
the shareholders of the Company andfor to the
public andfor to any other person or persons, for
a sum not exceeding Rs. 16 Crores {Rupees

XY
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Fifteen Crores) together with interest at the
agreed rates and compound/additional interest,
commitment charges, pregium on pre-payment
or on redemption, costs, charges, expenses and
all other moneys payable by the Company in
terms of any Loan Agreement/Head of Agreement/
Letter of Sanction/Memorandum of the terms
and conditions/Debenture Trust Deed entered
into'to be entered into by the Company in
respect of such term loans andfor Debentures."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be

and is hereby authorised to finalise with such ~

banksffinancial institutions/Trustees of Debenture-
holders andfor any other person(s} the
documents for creating the aforesaid mortgage

- andfor charge and to do all such acts, matters,

deeds, and things as may be necessary usual or
expedient for giving effect to this resolution and
also to agree to any amendments thersto from
time fo fime as it may think fit."

NOTES:—

1.

Place: Bombay
Dated: 22nd July, 1892,

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OQF HIMSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

THE RELATIVE EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS,
PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956 IN RESPECT OF THE .
BUSINESS UNDER ITEM NOS. 5 & 6 ARE
ANNEXED HERETO.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

L.H. KHILNANI
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

"Rang Sharda"“, Kishenchand Marg,
Bandra Reclamation, Bandra West,
BOMBAY —400 050.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

kem 5:

Considering the size of the Company's operations
and its future requirements of Capital, it is proposed
to increase the Share Capital of the Company from
Rs. 1 Crore to Rs. 5 Crores. The increased Share
Capital of Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores) will
consist of 49,00,000 (Forty Nine Lakhs) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 10,000
(Ten Thousand) 14% Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 100/~ (Rupees Hundred)
each.

The Amendment to Clause V of the Memorandum of
Association and Arlicle 3 of the Aricles of
Association are consequential o the increase of the
Authorised Capital and the said amendments are
being effected by Special Resolution.

None of the Directors are interested in the Resolution,
Item 6:

The Company has been sanctioned a term loan of
Rs. 1 Crore to parlly finance the acquisition of

Jalgaon Unit by State Bank of Saurashira, Allahabad
Bank and Bank of Baroda. In addition to this, the

»

Company would be approaching the Banks/Financial

institutions for term 'loans to finance capital projects

that may be undertaken by the Company. Term

loans sanctioned/to be sanctioned are io be secured,
inter alia, by a first morigage and charge on the
propetties of the Company.

Section 283(i{a) of the Companies Act, 1956

provides that the Board of Directors of a Public
Company shall not, except with the consent of the
Company in general mesting, sell, lease or otherwise
dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the
undertaking of the Company or where the Company

owns more than one undertaking, of the whole or

substantially the whole of any such undertaking.
Accordingly, the consent of the Company is being
obtained.

None of the Directors are interested in the Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

L.H. KHILNANI
Company Secretary

Place: Bombay

Dated: 22nd July, 1992,
Registered Office:
"Rang Sharda", Kishenchand Marg,
Bandra Reclamation, Bandra West,
BOMBAY —400 050,
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors present their Fourth Annual Report
and the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year
ended 31st March, 1992.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The summarised financial results are as

follows :
(Rupees in Lacs)
1991-92 1990-91
Sales 15965.88 10597.45
Profit Before Tax 616.99 454.03
Tax 332.00 210.10
Profit After Tax 284.99 243.93
Add: Brought Forward 239.61 {4.32)
524.60 £239.61
Less: Transter to General
Reserves 400.00 -
Balance Carried Forward 124.60 239.61

2, DIVIDEND

Despite the growth in sales and profits, the
Directors have considered it prudent not to
recommend any dividend for the year, having
regard to the need in the initial years to plough
back the profits into the operations and reinforce
the financial structure.

3. CAPITAL

3.1 Considering the present and snvisaged volume
of business, the present authorised capital of the
Company appears to be inadequate. It is hence
proposed to augment it to Rs. 5 crores.

3.2 The approval of the Shareholders required for
this purpose is sought in terms of the resolutions
proposed in item No. 5 of the Notice convening
the Annual General Meeting.

4. OPERATIONS

4.1 Sales recorded a growth of 51% during the year,
the turnover increasing from Rs. 106 crores o
Fs. 160 crores. All the product groups
contributed to the growth.

4.2 The sleep inflation in raw malterial prices
adversely impacted margin earnings 7 certain
products because the burden could not always
be passed on ito the customer. Apart from raw
material costs, finance charges also registered

a sharp swing because of the increase in the
rates of interest applicable on the working capital
borrowings of the Company.

4.3 Sales of Hair & Care, a new non-greasy perfumed
hair oif nationally launched during the year under
review, showed the anficipated growth. However
the product will require further marketing
investment for securing its envisaged market
shares.

4.4 As a step towards diversifying its product range,
the Company has now ventured into fabric care
products. The test launch of a fabric softener is
currently underway at Pune under the brand
name ‘Fluffy’.

EXPANSION

5.1 Further to the previous year's report and as a
step towards upgrading and augmenting the
capacity for refined edible oils at the Jalgaon
Plant, a continuous refinety using the most
contemporary technology available in the country
has been commissioned during the current year.
Since adequate capacily is now available at
Jalgaon for meeting the medium term needs of
refined edible oils and scope exists for further
expansion, it has heen decided not to renew the
lease for the Mazagaon plant.

5.2 It was stated in the previous report that the-
Board was evaluating the location options for
new facilities for the manufacture of raw oils. It
has since been decided fo locate the project at
Palghat in Kerala, from which state, almost the
entire raw matetial is sourced. A Memorandum
of Understanding in this connection is expected
to he signed with the Kerala State Industrial
Development Corporation and every effort will be
made to make the new plant begin production
before the end of the current financial year.

6. REGISTERED OFFICE

The Company moved to its new Corporate Office
during the course of the year under review.
Consequently, it was decided to shift the
Registerad Olfica to its prasent address.

7. DIRECTORS

In accordance wilh the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1956, and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. K. V. Mariwala
and Mr. H. C. Mariwala are liable to retire by
rotation and are eligible for reappointment.
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8. OTHER INFORMATION

8.1 Information required in  accordance  with
provisions of Section 217(1}(e) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars) in the Repont of Board of Directors
Rules, 1988, regarding conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign  exchange
eamings and outgo, Is given in the Annexure {o
this Report.

8.2 In addition, information in accordance with
provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1858, read with the Company’s (Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975, and forming part of
the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st
Maich, 1992, is also given in the Annexure to
this Report.

9. AUDITORS

The members are requested to appoint Auditors
for the current year and to fix their remuneration.
Messrs Dalal Desal & Kumana, the existing

10.

11,

Auditors, have under Section 224(1) of the
Companies Act, 1958, furnished Ceriificate of
their eligibility for reappointment.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The relation between employees and the manage-
ment have remained cordial and the Directors

wish to place on record thelr appreciation of the.

co-operation and support received.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors. take this opportunity of acknow-
ledging the support and assistance received from

the Company's bankers, suppliers and other -

business associates.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bombay GC.V. MARIWALA
Dated: 22nd July, 1992, Chairman
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure of particutars with respect to Conservation
of Energy, Research & Development Expenditure
and Foreigh Exchange earnings and outgo as
required under Companies {Disclosure of Particulars
in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.

A. Conservation of Energy:
a) i} Additlonal capacitors to improve power
factor of electrical equipments.
i) Rationalisation of boilers to improve
steam to coal ratio.
i) Improvement in drive & transmission
mechanism of expeliers.
b) Improvement in throughput rate of expellers
for the same energy consumption.

The above measures have resulted in reduction
of energy consumption. The details of total
energy consumption and energy consumption per
unit of production are disclosed in Enclosure ‘A’
B. Research & Development:
The details of Research & Development are
diselased in Enclosure 'B'.
C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

Efforts have heen kifiated to promoie the expori
of Company's products, wherever permissible.

The details of total foreign exchange used and
eamed are disclosed in Schedule ‘Q7.

ENCLOSURE &’
A. Power & Fuel Consumptions:

1991-92  1990-91
1 FElecticity
a) Purchased Unit
(Kwh) 26,97,143 17,93,609
Total Amount
{Rs.) 54,38,719 34,92.411
Rate (Rs./Unit) 2.02 1.85
b) Own Generation
iy Through
Diesel
Generator Nil Nil
ity Through
Steam
Generator Nil Nil
2 Coal {Used for Boiler)
Quantity (M.T.) 1443.955  868.005
Total Cost {Rs.) 16,63,291  9,04,052
Average Rate .
{Rs./M.T.) 1,151.90  1,041.53
3  Furmnace Oil
CQuantity (K.Lirs.) 680.000  756.378

Amoumnt (Rs.) 2875177 25,112,213

Average Rate
(Rs./K.Ltrs.)

422820 3,321.37

4 QOther Internal Generation

) LDO. 1991-92  1990-91
Quantity
(K.Ltrs.) 21 30
Amount (Rs.) 1,153,268  1,94,000
Average Rate
(Rs./K.Lirs.) 539372 6,466.67
iy L.SHS '
Quantity (K.Ltrs.) 10 N
Amount (Rs.) 46,500 Nl
Average Rate
{Rs./i{.Ltrs.) 4,650.00 il

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION

Edible Qi Unit  Consumption per Unit
of Production

1991-92 1990-91
Electricity Kwh 216.35 151.20
Coal M.T. 0.12 0.07
Furnace Oil K.Ltr. 0.05 0.06

ENCLOSURE ‘B’

Research & Development

1 Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the
Company:
—Development of new products
—Improvement of product quality
—Process improvement

2 Benefils derived as a result of the above R&D:
Launching of new products, improvement in
product quality and cost reduction.

3 Expenditure on R&D:

Rs. in lacs

a} Capital 9.54
b} Recurring 13.55

Total 23.09
c) Total R&D

expenditure as a

percentage of total

turnover 0.15%

For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA
Chairman

Place: Bombay
Dated: 22nd July, 1992,
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

To, ;
The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of
Marico Industries Limited as on 31st March, 1992
and the Profit & Loss Account of the Company for
the year ended on that date annexed thereto, and
report that: N

1. We have obtained all information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have baen kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those
books.

3. The Balance Shest and Profit & Loss Account
dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given io us,
the said accounts together with the schedules
annexed therelo and read with the notes and
significant accounting policles thereon, give the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956
in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at 3ist
March,1932 and ‘

by in the case of the Profit & Loss Account, of
the profit for the year ended on that date.

As reguired by the Manufacturing and Other
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 1988, issued by
the Company Law Board in terms of Section 227{4A)
of the Companies Acl, 1956, and on the basis of
such checks as we considered appropriate and in
terms of information and explanations given to us,
we report that:

1. The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particutars including quantitative
deiails and situation of fixed assets. The fixed
assets wore physically verified by the
management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed.

2. None of the fixed assetis have beenh revalued
 during the year.

3.

4.

10.

The stock of finished goods, raw materials,
stores and spares have been physically verified
during the vyear by the management at
reasonable intervals.

The procedure for physical vetification of stocks
followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company
and nalure of its business. )

. No material discrepancies have been noticed on

physical verification of stocks as compared to e
book records. In respect of stock of stores and
spares at the Jalgaon unif, discrepancy, if any,

between physical stocks and book records could

not be ascertained in the absence of such
records. However, the value of such stores and
spares Is not significant in relation fo the value
of the total inventory.

.In our opinion and on the basis of our

examination, the valuation of stock is falr and
propet in accordance with the normally accepted
accounting principles and is on the same basis
as in the preceding year.

. The Company has taken loan from a Company

listed in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The same has
been repaid during the year. The rate of interest
and other terms and conditions of the said loan
ware not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of
the Company. The Company has not taken any
loan from companies under the same
management as defined under sub-section (1B)
of Section 370 of the said Act.

. The Company has not granted any loans,

secured or unsecured to companies, flrms or
other parties listed in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
or to companies under same management as
defined under sub-section (1B) of Section 370 of
the said Act.

. Loans or advances in the nature of loans given

to the employees and third parties are bheing
repaid as stipulated together with interest,
wherever applicable. '

In our opinfon and according to informations and
explanations given to us there are adequate
internal control procedures commensurate with
the size of the Company and the nature of its
business for the purchase of stores, raw materials

.

By

-4
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t1.

12.

13.

14,

15,

16.

17.

18.

including components, plant and machinery, equip-
ment and other assets and for the sale of
goods.

The transactions of purchases of goods and
materials and sale of goods, materials and
services, made in pursuance of contraclts or
arrangements entered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956
and aggregating during the year to Rs. 50,000 or
more in respect of each party, other than those
purchases which are explained to be of a special
nature for which alternative quotations are not
available have been made at prices which, in our
opinion, are reasonable having regard to
pravailing market prices where such market
prices are available with the Company or the
price at which similar transactions were made
with other parties.

The Company has a regular procedure for the
determination of unserviceable or damaged
stores, raw materials & finished goods and
provision for loss in respect thereof has been
made in the accounts.

The Company has not accepted any deposit
from the public to which the provisions of Section
58A and the Companies {Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 1975 are applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained
reasonable records for the sale and disposal of
realisable by-products. The Company has no
significant realisable scrap.

The Company has an internal audit system
comimensurate with its size and the nature of its
business.

Maintenance of cost records has not been
prescribed by the Central Government under
Section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956,

The Company has regularly deposited provident
fund dues and Employees’ State Insurance dues
with the appropriate authotities except for delay
in one case involving an insignificant amount and
lhere were no arrears at the end of the vear.

There are no undisputed amounis payable in
respect of income tax, wealth-tax, sales-tax,
custom duty & excise duty which have remained
ouistanding as at 31st March, 1992 for a period
of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

19.

20.

Place: Bombay
Dated: 22nd July, 1982,

. In refation to the trading activity of the Company,

According to the information and explanalions
given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, no personal expenses have
been charged to revenhue account, other than
those payable under contractual obligations or in
accordance with generally accepted business
practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company
within - the meaning of Clause {0} of Sub-section
(1} of Section 3 of the Sick Indusirial Companies
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985.

we are informed that provision has been made
for damaged goods which are not significant.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana
Chartered Accountanis

G.C. SHAREDALAL
Partner
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SOURCES OF FUNDS

Shareholders’ Funds
Capital
Reserves & Surplus

Loan Funds

Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation

Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress

Investments

Current Assets, Loans and Advances

inventories

Sundry Debtors
Cther Current Assetls
Loans and Advances

Less:
Current Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities
Provisions

Met Current Assets

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accounting
Policies, see Schedules R & S respeclively.

As per our atiached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA

Chariered Accourlants

L.H. KHILNANI
Secretary

G.C. SHAREDALAL
Pariner

Piace: Bombay
Dated: 22nd July, 1992,

SCHEDULE

-n

“—TO

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31st MARCH

1992 1991
Rs. As.
90,000,000 90,000,600
5,24,59,521 2,39,60,699
6,14,59,521 3,29,60,699
7,19,16,109 3,71,15,595 °
2,60,00,000 1,00,00,600
9,69,16,109 4,71,15,595
15,83,75,630 8,00,76,294
3,67,12,708 2,91,16,059
39,16,514 12,02,100
3,27,96,194 2,79,13,959
3,46,86,719 1,19,24,017
6,74,82,913 3,98,37,976
81,200 78,700
16,33,29,654 11,40,86,083
5,98,24,109 1,73,55,309
2,03,32,337 40,90,945
6,65,91,302 4,79,37,715
31,00,77,402 18,34,70,052
16,50,55,885 12,23,00,434
5,42,10,000 2.10,10,000
21,92,65,885 14,33,10,434
9,08,11,517 4,01,68,618
15,83,75,630 8,00,76,284

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA

Chairman

Place: Bombay
Dated: 22nd July, 1992,

H.C. MARIWALA
Managing Director
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PROFIT AND 1.OSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31si March |

SCHEDULE 19892 1991
Rs. Rs.
INCOME:
Sales Q 159,43,95,801 105,83,31,748
Other Income M 21,92,128 14,13,381
159,65,87,920  105,97,45,129
EXPENDITURE:
Cost of Materials Consumed N 107,27,14,241 67,41,89,1656
3
Manufacluring and Other Expenses Q 44,07,93,331 32,61,71,042
Interest P 1,86,49,520 1 ,26,60,246
Depreciation E 27,32,015 11,78,925
Preliminary Expenses written off - 1,42,860
153,48,89,107 101,43,42,228
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5,16,98,822 4,54,02,901
Less: Provision for Taxation 3,32,00,000 2,10,10,000
PROFIT AFTER TAX 2,84,98,822 2,43,92,901
Add: Balance brought forward 2,39,60,699 {4,32,202)
5,24,59,521 2,39,60,699
Less: Transfer to General Reserve 4,00,00,000 —
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 1,24,59,521 2,39,60,698

For Notes forming part of the Accounts and Accouniing
Policies, see Schedules R & S respectively.
As per our attached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H.C. MARIWALA
Managing Director

G.C. SHAREDALAL L.H. KHILNANI C.V. MARIWALA
Partner Secretary Chairman

Place: Bombay

Place: Bombay
Dated: 22nd July, 1992,

Dated: 22nd July, 1992.
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SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘A’ 31st March 31st March
SHARE CAPITAL 1992 1991
Rs. Rs.
Authorised:
9,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each 90,00,000 90,00,000
10,000 14% Cumulative Redeemable Prefersnce
Shares of Rs, 100/~ each 10,00,000 10,00,000
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued,Subscribed and paid up:
9,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 90,00,000 90,00,000
31st March 31st March
SCHEDULE ‘B’ 1992 1991
RESERVES AND SURPLUS Rs. Rs.
General Reserve—Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 4,00,00,000 —
Profit and Loss Account 1,24,59,521 ‘ 2,39,60,699
5,24,59,521 2,39,60,699
31ist March 3ist March
SCHEDULE ‘C’ 1992 19¢H
SECURED LOANS Rs. Rs.
From Banks @ 5,96,40,109 3,71,15,595
From Financial institution @@ 1,22,76,000 —
7,19,16,109 3,71,15,595
@ Secured by hypothecation of stock in trade and other tangible
movable assets of the company, wherever situated, and
guaranteed by the Directors of the company.
@@ Deferred Payment Credit secured by hypothecation of machinery
purchased and guaranteed by the Directors of the company.
(Repayable within a year Rs. 24,556,200 Previous Year Rs. Nil).
SCHEDULE ‘DY 31st March 3tst March
UNSECURED LOANS 1992 1991
Rs. Hs.
From Companies 2,50,00,000 1,00,60,000
(Repayable within a year Rs. 50,00,000; Previous Year
Rs. 1,00,00,000)
1,00,00,000

2,50,00,000

12
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDUILE 'F 31st March 31ist March
INVESTMENT (At Cost) 1992 1991
Rs. Rs.
In Government Securities )
National Savings Certificates 81,200 78,700
{Deposited with Government & Fublic bodies)
81,200 78,700
SCHEDULE ‘G’ 31st March 31ist March
INVENTORIES 1992 1991
Rs. Rs.
{As per Inventories valued and certified
by the management—Refer item 3 of Schedule §) :
Raw Materials 4,79,93,959 2,75,71,322
Packing Materials 3,25,19,984 1,30,80,724
Stores, Spares & Chemicals 44,984,666 38,97,808
Work-in-Process 10,05,285 34,14,418
Finished Products 6,97,38,708 6,21,21,793
By-Products 75,77,052 40,00,018
16,33,29,654 11,40,86,083
SCHEDULE ‘H’ ) 31st March 31st March
SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured—considered good) 1%92 1%91
s. S.
Over Six months 12,54,766 44,779
Others 5,85,69,343 1,73,10,530
5,98,24,109 1,73,55,309
SCHEDULE I 31st March 31st March
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 1992 1081
Rs. Rs.
Cash on hand 2,77,006 2,80,695
Remittances in transit 2,65,500 —
Balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Fixed Deposits (lodged with Govt. authorities} 1,24,5G0 41,000
in Margin Account {Against Letlers of Credit &
Bank Guarantees) 27,84,346 34,32,245
In Current Account—With Scheduled Banks 1,67,78,795 2,47,526
—With Non-Schedulad Banks 2,598 1,000
1,96,90,239 37,21,771
Interest accrued on Investments 23,549 10,811
Interest accrued—Others 75,993 77,668

2,03,32,337

40,90,945
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SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘W 31st March 31st March
LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured—considered good) 1%952 1%931
Advances recoverable in cash or in 'kind or for value to be received 92,54,246 1,92,44,614
Advance Tax 5,03,64,676 2,50,00,000
Deposit with Public Bodies and Others 69,66,529 36,87,250
Balance with Central Excise Authorities 5,851 5,851
6,65,91,302 4,79,37,715
SCHEDULE ‘K’ 31st March 31ist March
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1992 1991
. Rs. Rs
Sundry Creditors 14,07,08,162 10,47,66,676
Other Liabilities 77,15,354 45.85,716
Security Deposils 1,64,62,788 1,28,48,043
Interest accrued but not due on loans 1,69,581 —
16,50,55,885 12,23,00,434
SCHEDULE ‘L’ 31st March 31st March
PROVISIONS 1992 1991
- Rs. Rs.
Tax 5,42,10,000 2,10,10,000
5,42,10,000 2,10,10,000
SCHEDULE ‘W 31st March 31st March
OTHER INCOME 1992 1991
Rs. Rs.
Income from Investments 12,738 10,811
Interest from Banks & Others {Gross} 7,11,028 3,42,464
{Tax Deducted at Source Rs. 54,025; Previous Year Rs. Nil)
Miscellaneous Inceme 14,68,362 10,60,106
21,92,128 14,13,381
SCHEDULE ‘N’ 31st March 31st March
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 1?:!932 1%91
. s,
RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Opening Stock 2,75,71,322 60,43,441
Add: Purchases 90,80,94,765 h8,81,16,805
Less: Closing Stock 4,79,93,959 2,75,71,322
88,76,72,128 56,65,88,924
PURCHASE FOR RESALE 19,38,26,929 17.68,56,211
ADD: OPENING STOCK
Work-in-Process 34,14,418 —
By-products 40,00,018 —
Finished Products 6,21,21,793 2.80,249
6,95,36,229 2,80,249
LESS: CLOSING STOCK
Work-in-Process 10,05,285 34,14,418
By-products 75,77,052 40,00,018
Finished Products 6,97,38,708 6,21,21,793
(7,83,21,045) {6,95,36,229)
107,27,14,241 67,41,89,1565
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘O 31st March 31st March
MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES 1%932 19:;
Employee Cost: .
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 2,08,88,058 1,63,07,155
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 17,51,810 13,71,520
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 44,89,681 24,36,062
2,71,29,549 2,01,14,737
Processing Charges 2,02,28,573 1,20,02,471
Stores, Spares & Chemicals Consumed 65,563,133 38,29,899
Packing Materials Censumed 19,47,76,454 14,70,48,630
Power, Fuel and Water 1,04,53,451 78,860,253
Rent and Storage Charges 1,15,50,739 61,67,836
Repairs; Buildings 7.27,067 1,90,714
Machinery 9,00,203 6,35,318
Othars 23,19,454 12,68,794
) 39,46,724 . 20,94,826
Freight and Forwarding Charges 3,64,31,401 2,79,38,661
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 4,51,12,427 4,84.46,938
Rates and Taxes 1,60,383 71,659
Sales Tax 1,27,30,179 70,168,114
Royalty 1,07,46,469 95,29,878
Travelling, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 90,39,896 61,09,600
Bank Charges 2,81,85,291 1,16,01,978
Insurance 9,41,236 7,86,714
Miscellansous Expenses 2,38,07,426 1,565,560,848
44,07,93,331 32,61,71,042
SCHEDULE P’ 31st March 3tst March
INTEREST 1982 1991 -
Rs. Bs.
On Fixed Loans 8,72,167 6,45,835
Others 1,77,77,353 1,20,14,411
1,86,49,5620 1,26,60,246
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE ‘@@ 31st March 31st March
B) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1992 1991
Rs. Rs.
Quantity Vaiue Quantity Value
M.T. Rs. M.T. Rs.
Qil seeds 31957.3 70,41,46,604 21604.6  36,49,47,996
Raw oils 4746.5 16,75,84,469 65916 19,12,12,240
Others 1,59,41,055 1,04,28,688
88,76,72,128 56,65,88,924
31st March 3ist March
C) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND 1992 1991
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED
Yo Value % Value
RAs. Rs.
Raw material
Imported 0.12 10,47,642 —_ —
indigenous 89.88 88,66,24,486 i00.00 56,65,88,924
100.00 88,76,72,128 100.00 56,65,88,924
Stores, spares and chemicals
Impoited 6.30 412,559 37.22 6,82,861
Indigenous 93.70 61,40,574 62.78 11,561,713
100.00 65,563,133 100.00 18,34,574
3ist March 31st March
D) VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C.LF. BASIS 1992 1991
Rs. Rs.
Raw material 10,47,542 ‘ —_—
Stores, spares and Chemicals 4,12,559 3,28,867
Capital Goods 7,13,157 1,356,136
21,73,358 4,64,003
31st March 31st March
E) EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 1892 1991
RAs. As.
Packing Materials 3,65,62,027 1,28,22,272
Others 36,678 7,574
3,65,99,605 1,29,29,846
3ist March 3ist March
1992 1991
F} EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE Rs. fis.
F.0.B. Value of Exporis 31,79,669 12,25,805
31,79,669 12,25,805
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘R’
NOTES:

1.

w

ke

i1,

12.

oo %A

Contingent lfabifity not provided for in respect of:

i} Letters of Credit opened and outstanding Rs. 9,85,400/- (Previous year Rs. 36,43,600/-).

iiy Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls Rs. 4,74,973/- (Pre\r[ous year Rs. 2,00, 000/ -).

iy Claims under disputed labour matter : Amount unascertainabte {Previous year Rs. Nil).

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind includes toans lo officers of the Company Rs. 1,808,275/ {Previous year
Rs. 1,95855/-). Maximum debit balance at any time during the year Rs. 3,04,705/- (Previous vyear
Rs. 2,22,310/-),

Sundry Creditors include acceptances of Rs. 5,15,16,602/- (Previous year Rs. 4,82,91,788/-).

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 23,65,459/-
(Previous year Rs. 40,00,741/-).

Miscellaneous expsnses include Excise duty Rs. Nil ( Previous year Rs. 1,23,759/- ), Commission and Brokerage
on sales Rs. 4,35,053/- {Previous year Rs. 21,211/-), Donations Rs. 17,753/~ (Previous year Rs. 10,826/}, Cash
discount Rs. 1,08,5613/- (Previous year Rs. 99,887/-), Research & Development expenses Rs. 9,37,130/- {Previous
year Rs. 8,33,366/-), Loss on sale of assets Rs. 33,908/- (Previous year Rs. Nil), Audit fees Rs. 70,000/~ (Provious
year Hs. 60,000/-), Payment to Auditors for taxation matters Rs. 1,250/~ {(Previous year Rs. Nil}, Payment to Auditors
for out-of-pocket expenses Rs. 7,694/~ (Previous year Rs. Nil).

Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses are net of Excess provision wrilten back amounting io Rs. 7,66,374/-
{Previous year Rs. Nif).

Employee Cost includes Rs. 3,17,449/- paid o Besearch & Development siaff {Previous year Rs. 1,89,634/-).
Depreciation includes Rs. 1,00,471/- on Research & Development assets {Previous year Rs, 497/-),
Miscellaneous income includes profit on sale of assels Rs. 587/ (Previous year Rs. 3,500/-).

A sum of Rs. 9,02,274/- (Previous year Hs. 9,02,274/-) representing actuarial liability as on 31st March, 1990 in
respect of employees transferred from The Bombay Oif Industries Lid., is held by the trustees of The Bombay Oil
Industries Employees’ Gratuily Fund. Pending transfer to Marico Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund and
approval of the relevant authorily for specific transfers, this amount has been taken ‘inte account for dstermining
the actuarial liability for the year.

Managerial Bemuneration:

i) Calcutation of Commission payable to the Managing Birector:

3ist March

1992

Rs.

Profit as per Profit & Loss Alc. 6,16,98,822
Add: Diractors’ Remuneration 2,13,303
Commission to Directors 58,500
Depreciation as per books 27,32,015
Loss on sale of assets (net) 33,322

30,37,140
Less: Depreciation as per Section 350 of the Companies Act 59,984,730
Loss on sale of assets as per Section 350 (net) 18,827

60,13,557

5,87,22,405

Commission to Managing Director @ 1% of nat profit 5,87,224

Subject to 50% of salary for the pericd 1.7.91 to 31.3.92 58,500

i) Payments and provisions on account of remuneration to Managing Director
included in Profit & Loss Account.

iy Salary 1,17,000

ify Commission 58,500
iiiy Contribution to Provident Fund 11,700
iv} Contribution to Gratuity Fund 4,781

" v} Other Perquisites 79,822
2,71,803

Previous year's figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE ‘S’
STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1,

2. Depreciation has been provided (except in the case of Leasehold tand which is being amottised over the balance
" period of the lease) on straight line method at the rates and in the manner specitied in Schedule XIV of the
Companles Act, 1956. Depreciation on additions/deletions during the period has been provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the month of addition/deletion. Extra shift depreciation has been provided on ‘Plant’ basis.
Additions to plant and machinery where cost of each item is Rs. 5,000/- or less are written off in the year of
capitalisation.
3. Inventories are valued as follows:
a. Raw materials at cost
b, Packing materials at cost
¢. Stores, spares and chemicals . at cost
d. Work-in-process at cost
e. Finished Goods at lower of cost or
net realisable value
f. By-products at net realisable value
4, Research & Development costs are charged as expense in the year in which they are incurred.
5. Sales are net of discount and exclusive of sales tax and are recognised on despatch of goods.
6. Relirement benefit liability in respect of Gratuity to employees are provided on the basis of acluarial valuation.
7. Contingencles which can be reasonably ascertained are provided for, if in the opinion of the company, there is a
probability that the future outcome may be materfally detrimental to the company. .
8.  Prior Period items and changes in accounting policies having maierial impact on the financial affairs of the company
are disclosed. :
9.  Material Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognisance.
Signatures to Schedules ‘A” to 'S’
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
C.V. MARIWALA
Chailrman
Place : Bombay L.H., KHILNANI H.C. MARIWALA
Dated . 22nd July, 1992. Secrelary Managing Director

Fixed Assets are valued at cost of acquisition and subsequent improvement thereto including taxes, duties, freight
and other incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation. Interest during construction period on
borrowings to finance fixed assets are capitalised. Pre-operating expenses for major projects are also capitalised,

~ where appropriate.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 3rd Annual General
Meeting of the Members of Marico Industries Limited will
" be held at the Registered Office of the Company situated
at Kanmoor House, 281/87 Narsi Natha Street,
Bombay-400 009, on Monday the 30th September,
1991 at 4.00 P.M. to transact the following business :

1. To consider and adopt the Directors’ Report and
Audited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account
for the year ended 31st March, 1991.

2. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. H. V. Mariwala,
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

3. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. J. V. Mariwala,
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.

5. Toconsider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or with-
out modification, the following resoluion as an
Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 269 and
309 read with Schedule XHI and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1856,
approval of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to the appointment of Mr. Harsh C.
Mariwala as Managing Director of the Company for
a period of five years with effect from 1/7/1991
upon the terms and condilions set out in the draft
agreement placed before this meeting and initialled
by the Chairman for the purpose of identification,

- which agreement is hereby specifically sanctioned
with liberly to the Directors to alter and vary the
terms and conditions of the said appointment and/
or agresment, so as not o exceed the limits specified
in Schedule Xl to the Companies Act, 1956, or any
amendmentsthereto, as may be agreedto between
the Directors and Mr. H. C. Mariwala”.

6. Toconsider,andif thoughtfit, to pass with orwithout
modification, the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the resolution
passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held
on20th February, 1990, consent of the Company be
and is hereby accorded, pursuant to section 293(1)
(d) of the Companies Act, 1956, to the Board of
Directors of the Company, for borrowing from time
to lime any sums of money, which, together with the
moneys already borrowed by the Company (apart

from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
bankers in the ordinary course of business}, shall net
exceed in the aggregate of Rs. 15 crores,
notwithstanding that the aggregate of moneys so
borrowed may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up
capital of the Company andits free reserves, thatis to
say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose”,

NOTE:

1.

AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TOATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

THE RELATIVE EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS,
PURSUANT TOSECTION 1730F THE COMPANIES

ACT, 1956, IN RESPECT OF THE BUSINESS.

UNDER ITEM NOS. 5 & 6 ARE ANNEXED
HERETO.

By Order of the Board of Directors
for MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

L. H. KHILNANI
Company Sectetary

Bombay : 23rd September, 1991

Registered Office :

Kanmoor House,
281/87 Narsi Natha Strest,
BOMBAY 400 009.
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

ltem 5.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Harsh C. Mariwala as the
Managing Director of the Company for a period of five
years with effect from 1/7/1991 at a remuneration in
accordance with the limits prescribed under Schedule

- Xllitothe Companies Act, 1956, and upon theferms and

conditions as set out in the draft agreement placed
before the meeting.

The draft Agreement between the Company and Mr. H.
C. Mariwala contains inter alia the following principal
terms and condilions :

1. Subject to the supervision and control of the Board
of Direciors, the Managing Director shall be
responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Company and shalt carry out such duties as may be
entrusted to him by the Direclors.

2. TheManagingDirector shall, solongashe continues

to be the Managing Director, be paid the following
remuneration in accordance with Schedute Xiii of
the Companies Act, 1956.

Salary: Rs. 13,000/- per month including dearness and
all other allowances.

Commission: 1% of the net profits of the Company
subject to a ceiling of 50% of the salary or Rs. 90,000/

_per annum whichever is less.

Perquisites: Perquisites be allowed in addition to salary
and/or commission or both but perquisites shall be
restricted to an amouni equal to the annual salary or Rs.
1,35,000/- per annum, whichever is less. Unless the
context otherwise requires, perquisites are classified
into three categories ‘A", ‘B’ and 'C’ as follows:

CATEGORY —A

This will comprise of house rent allowance, leave travel
concession, medical reimbursement, fees of clubs
and personal accident insurance as under:

(i} Housing | — The expenditure by the Company on
hiring unfurnished accommodation for the Managing
Director wili be subject to the following ceilings:

{a} Bombay, Calcutta, Dethi and Madras:
Sixty percent of the salary, over and above- ten
percent payable by the Managing Director.

Housing Il — In case the accommodation is owned

~ by the Company, ten percent of the salary of the
Managing Director shall be deducted by the
Company.

Housing Hi— In case no accommodation is provided
by the Company, the Managing Director shall be
entitled to house rent allowance subjecttothe ceilings
laid down in Housing 1. '

Explanation — The expenditure incurred by the
Company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings
shall be valued as per the Income Tax Rules, 1862.
This shall, however, be subject to a ceiling of ten
percent of the salary.

(i) Medical reimbursement — Expenses incurred for
self and his family subject to a ceiling of one month’s
salary in a year or three months' salary over a period
of three years.

(i) L.eave Travel Concession — For self and family,
once in a year incurred in accordance with the rules
of the Company.

(iv) Club Fees — Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of
two clubs. This will not include admission and life
membership fees.

(v) Personal Accident Insurance — Premium not to
exceed Rs. 1000/- per annum.

Explanation — For the purpose of Category A, “family”
means the spouse, the dependent children and dependent
parents of the Managing Director. '

CATEGORY —B "

Contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund or
annuity fund will not be included in the computation of the
ceiling on perquisites to the extent these singly or put
together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act,
Gratuity payable should not exceed half a month's salary
for each completed year of service, subject to a ceiling of
Rs. 1,00,000/-. .

CATEGORY —C

Provision of car for use on Company’s business and
telephone al residence will not be considered as-
perquisites. Personal long distance calls and use of car
for private purpose shall be billed by the Company to the
Managing Director.

i} Inthe event of loss or inadequacy of profits during
the aforesaid period, the salary payable shall be
reduced by 10%.

i) The terms and conditions of the said appointment/
re-appointment and/or agreement may be altered
and varied from time to time by the Board as it may,
in its discretion, deem fit so as not to exceed the limits
specified in Schedule XHI to the Companies Acl,
1956, or any amendments made hereafter in that
regard.




MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

i) The agreement may be terminated by either party
giving the other party three months’ notice.

This may be treated as an abstract of the draft agreement ..

beiween the Company and Mr. Harsh C.Mariwala,
pursuant to Seclion 302 of the Companies Acl, 1956.

The draft agreement is available for inspection by the
Members of the Company atits Reqgistered office between
11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on any working day of the
Company.

All Directors of the Company may be considered to be
intérested or concerned in the passing of the said
resolution.

item 6:

Atthe Exira Ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 12/2/90, the Company had accorded its consent
under Section 293 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956 to
the Board of Directors borrowing moneys in excess of
the aggregate of paid-up capital and free reserves of the
Companyuptoalimitof Rs. 7 crores (apartfromtemporary
loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the
ordinary course of business). With the business and

operations of the Company growing at a rapid pace, the
requirement of additional funds have aiso increased
substaniially.

The consent of the Company is sought by the resolution
proposed at ltem No. 6 of the Notice to enable the Board
of Directors fo borrow moneys upto Rs. 15 crores.
None of the Directors of the Company is in any way
concerned or interested in the said Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
for MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

L. H. KHILNANI
Company Secretary'

" Bombay: 23rd September, 1991

Registered Office:
Kanmoor House,

281/87 Narsi Natha Strest,
BOMBAY 400 009.
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. ' MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS increasing consumer awareness of health-based
oils.

The Directors present their Third Annual Reportand the

Audited Statement of Accounts for the yearended 31st 2.6 A new non-greasy perfumed hair oil was also
March, 1991. successfully test-launched during the year under
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS the brand name “Hair & Care™ followed by anational

launch during the current year. The sales -
1.1 The summarised financial results are as follows . performance of this product is in accordance with

(Rupees in Lacs) our expectations.
1990-91  1989-90 3.  DIVIDEND

Sales 10597.45 364 3.1 The Directors have considered it prudent not to
recommend any dividend for the year having regard

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 454.03 {4.32) to the need to plough back the earnings to help

Tax 210,10 - consolidate the Company’s operations as also to

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 243,93 {4.32) reinforce the core funds to meet the increasing -

Add: Brought Forward {4.32) - capital needs.

Balance carried forward 239.61 (4.32)

4. CAPITAL:

2. OPERATIONS : Consequenttothe transfer of shares of the Company,

21 Consdfuent o the restructuring of the operations of

The Bombay Oil Industries Limited, its consumer
product business was spun off tothe Company with
effect from April 2, 1990, consequently, the date
from which the company began commaercial opera-

nationally launched during the year under the brand
name "Sweekar”. The company is already one ofthe
leading players in this segment of the market which
is expected to contribute to sales in much larger
measure in the coming years, considering the

held by the Bombay Of Industries Limited, to its
othersubsidiary Companies, the Company has now
ceasedtobe asubsidiary of the Bombay Qil industries
Limited. '

tions. This business will enjoy a distinctive identily 5. INFRASTRUCTURE:
under the Company, and receive a sharper focus 5.1 With a view to provide more congenial working
and greater stimulus so vitally necessary to conditions to its employees and to cope with the
enable it to survive and grow in an increasingly growing needs of space arising out of new
complex and competitive environment. recruitments, the Company has decided to shift its
* corporate office from its current location to a more
2.2 Apart from continuing manufacturing operations at contemporary office locatedin the suburbs at Bandra.
the existing locations, the Company also commenced The new office facilities are now ready and are
commercial production of edible oils atits own plant expected to be occupied shortly.
at Jalgaon, acquired in March 1990.
52 A new well furnished and equipped product
2.3 The turnover for the year crossed the landmark development centre has also been established at
figure of Rs100 crores, an event of profound Andhert in the suburbs.
satisfaction'and pride, considering thatit occuredin :
the very first year of the company's operations and 5.3 Apart from the above, efforls are under way to
also for the first time since the inception of the improve the facilities at the respective
consumer productbusinessinthe group. The actual manufacturing locations.
tct;jrrg%\fr achieved during the year was Es. 106 6 EXPANSION :
6.1 Tomeetthe envisaged growing demand for refined
2.4 The traditional strongholds viz. Parachute Coconut edible oils, it is intended to augment the capacity at
Cil and Saffola refined kardi oil continued o show. Jalgaon. A letter of intent to the principie equipment
growth, though sales of Saffola couid have been manufacturer has already been released. Ht is
higher had raw material supplies not been erratic anticipated that the additional capacily will be
towards the fast quarter of the year. available during the forthcoming financial year.
2.5 A new refined Sunfiower based edible oil was 6.2 In so faras additional facilities for manufacture of

raw oils are concerned, the Board is curfently
evaluating the location options, following which
the remaining phases of the projectimplementation,
forwhichetters of intent, areinhand wowld be taken

up.
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7.2

8.2

DIRECTORS :

Mr. Harsh C. Mariwala has been assoctated with
the consumer product business of the group for

over 15 years now-and has been instrumental in -

the growth achieved by the business during the
last few years. Having regard o his past association
andhis expertise inthis area of the groups’ business,
proposals were received for appointing him as the
Managing Director of the Company. However,
since all the Directors are interested in his

appointment, the matter is placed before. the .

shareholders for their sanct:on

In accordance with the requrrements of the Com-
panies Act, 1956, and the Articles of Association,
of the Gompany, Mr. H.V. Mariwala and Mr. J.V.
Mariwala are liable to retire by rotation and are
eligibte for reappointment.

OTHER INFORMATION

Information reqwred in accordance with prows;ons
of Section.217 (1) (e)of the Companies Act, 1958,
read with Companies {Disclosure of Particutars)in

the Report of Board of Directors Rules, 1988,

ragarding conservation of. energy, technology ab-
sorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
is given in the Annexure 1o this Reporl.

In  addition,
provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Company’s {Particulars
of Employees) Rules, 1975, and forming part of

information in, accordance with’

10.

1.

ihe Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st
March, 1991, is also givenin the Annexure to this
Report.

AUDITORS :

The members are requested to appoint Auditors for

the current year and tofix theirremuneration. Messrs
Dalal Desat & Kumana, the existing Auditors have
under Section 224 (1) of the Companies Act, 1956,
furnished Certificate of their eligibility for reappoint-
ment. ’

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS :

The relation between employees and the manage-

ment have remained cordial and the Directors wish
to place on record their appreciation of the co-
operation and support received from all the
employees.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT :

- The Directorstake this opportunity of acknowledepng

the support. and assistance received from the

- Company's bankers, suppliers and other business
associates.

'On behalf of the Board of Directors

C.V. MARIWALA

Chairman

Place : Bombay
Dated : 23rd September, 1951.
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of
Energy, Research & Development Expendiiure and
Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required under
Companies (Disclosure of particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules, 1988.

A. Conservation of Energy :

Efferts are undertaken on a constant basis to en-
sure optimum utilisation of energy through use of
economisers in boilers, installation of capacitors
and improvement in drive and transmission
mechanisms in expelters. Energy audits have been
initiated at some of the plants and will be exiended
prograssively to all the locations. These measures
are expectedtoresultinlower fuel consumption and
optimal use of power.

The details of total energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of production are disclosed in
Enclosure ‘A,

B. Research & Development :

The details of Research and Development are
disclosed in Enclosure ‘B’

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

Efforts have been initiated to promote the export of
Companies’ products, wherever permissible.

The details of total {oreign exchange used and
earned are disclosed in Schedule ‘P,

ENCLOSURE ‘A’

A. Power & Fuel Consumptions :

1. Electricity
a) Purchased Unit (Kwh) 17,93,609
" Total Amount (Rs.) 34,92,411
Rate {Rs./Unit) i.95

b}y Own Generation

iy Through Diesel Generator Nil
iiy Through Steam Generator Nl

2. Coal (Used for Boiler)

Quantity (M.T) 868.005

Total Cost (Rs) 9,04,052

Average Rate (Rs./Ton) 1,041.63
3. Furnace Ot

Quantity {K. Lirs.} 756.378

Amount (Rs.) 25,12,213

Average Rate (Rs./Kl) 3,321.37

4, Other Internal Generation
i} LD.O.

Quantity (K.Lirs} 30

Amount (Rs.) 1,894,000
Average Rale (Rs./Kl) 6,466.67
i LS HS.
Quantity il
Amount (Rs.) Nil
Average Rate {Bs./Ton) Nit
CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRGDUCTION
Edible Oil Unit Consumption per
o Unit of Production
Electricity Kwlis ~151.20
Coal M.T. 0.07
Furnace Oil K.Lir. 0.06
LD.O. K.Lir. -

NOTE: In absence of any manufacturing activity in the
previous year, corresponding figures for the
previcus years are not available.

ENCLOSURE ‘B’

Research & Development :

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the
Company

— Developmaent of new products
— Improvement of product quaiity
— Process improvement

2. Benefils derived as a result of the above R&D.

Launching of new products, improvement in product
quality and cost reduction.

* 3. Expenditure on R&D ;

a} Capital Rs. 2.77 lacs
b} Recurring Rs. 8.33facs
c) Total Rs. 11.10lacs

d} Total R&D expenditure
as a percentage of total turnover. 0.11%

For and on behalf of
the Board of Directors

C.V.MARIWALA
Chairman

Place : Bombay
Dated : 23rd September,1991.
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To,

The Members of Marico Industries Limited

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Marico
| Industries Limited as at 31st March, 1991 and the Profit
and Loss Account of the Company for the yearended on
that date annexed thereto, and report that:

1.

We have obtained all information and explanations
whichiothe best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books
of accoum.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounis together with the schedules annexed
thereto and read with the notes give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view:.

a) inthecase of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 1991
and. .

b} inthe case of the Profit & Loss Account, of the

profit for the year ended on that date.

As required by the Manufacturing and Other Companies
{Auditor's Report) Order 1988, issued by the Company
I aw Board interms of section 227{4 A} of the Companies
Act 1056, and on the basis of such checks-as we
considered appropriate and in terms of information and

1.

‘explanations given to us, we report that:

The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quaniitative details
and situation of fixed assets. The fixed assels were
physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed.

None of the fixed assets have been revalued during
the year.

The stock of finished goads, raw materials, stores
and spares have been physically verified during the
year by the management at reasonable intervals.

The procedure for physical verification of stocks

-folfowed by the management are reasonable and

adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
nature of its business.

No material discrepancies have been noticed on

physical verification of stocks as. compared to the
book records. In respect of stock of stores and
spares. at the Jalgaon unit, discrepancy, if any,

i0.

11.

12.

between physical stocks and book records could not
be ascerlained in the absence of such records.
However, the value of such stores and spares is not
significantinrelationtothe value of the totalinventory.

In our opinion and on the basis of our examination,
the valuation of stockis fair and proper in accordance
with the normally accepted accounting principles
and is on the same basis as in the preceding year.

The Company has faken in the previous year un-
secured loan from the holding Company listed inthe
register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956. The same has been repaid
during the year. The rate of interest and other terms
and conditions of the said loan were not prima facie
prejudicial to the interests of the Company. The
Company has not taken any loan from companies
under the same management as defined under
subsection (1B) of section 370 of the said act.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties
listedin the register maintained under section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956 orto companies underthe
same management as defined under subsection
{1B) of section 370 of the said act.

In respect of interest free loans and advances in the
nature of loans given by the Company to its
employees the same are being repaid as stipulated
except in the case of an ex-employee in respect of
which reasonable steps have been taken and the
loan has since been recovered from his other dues.

In our opinion and according to informations and
explanations givento usthere are adequate internal
control procedures commensurate with the size of
the Company and the nature of its business for the
purchase of stores, raw materials including
components, plant and machinery, equipment and
other assets and for the sale of goods.

The transactions of purchases of goods and mate-
rials and sale of goods, materials and services made
inpursuance of contracts or arrangements enteredin
the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and aggregaling during the
year to Rs. 50,000/- or more in respect of each party,
other than those purchases which are explainedtobe
of a special nature for which alternative quotations
are not available have been made at prices which, in
ouropinion, arereasonable having regardioprevailing
market prices where such market prices are available
with the Company, or the price at which similar
transactlions were made with other parties.

The Company has a regular procedure lor the
determination of unserviceable or damaged stores,
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13.

14,

15.

186.

17.

18.

raw materials & finished goods and provision for
loss in respect thereof has been made in the
accounts.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from
the public to which the provisions of section 58A and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
1975 are applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained
reasonable records for the sale and disposal of
realisable by-products. The Company has no
significant realisable scrap.

The Company tias aninternal audit system, whichis
commensurate with its size and the nature of its
husiness.

Maintenance of cost records has not been pres-
cribed by the Central Government under Section
209(1) (d} of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has regularty deposited Provident
Fund dues and has generally been regular in
depositing Employees’ Siate Insurance dues with
the appropriate authorities and there were no arrears
at the end of the year.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in res-

19.

20.

21.

Bombay .
Dated: 26th September, 1891

pect of income tax, wealth-tax, sales-tax, custom
duty & excise duty which have remained outstand-
ing as at 31st March, 1981 for a period of more than
six months from the date they become payable.

Accordingto the information and explanations given
to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, no personal expenses have been charged to
revenue account, other than those payable under
contractual obligations or in accordance with
generally accepted business practice.

The Company is not a sick industrial company
within the meaning of Clause (O) of Sub-section (1)
of Section 3 of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special
Provisions) Act ,1985.

in relation to the trading activity of the Company, we

are informed that provision has been made for -

damaged goods which are not significant.

For Dalal Desai & Kumana

Chartered Accountants

G.C. SHAREDALAL
Partner
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SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Capital

Reserves & Surplus

L.oan Funds
SecuredLoans ‘
Unsecured Loans

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets
Gross Block
Less: Depreciation

Net Block
Capital Work-in-Progress
Pre-operative expenses

Investments

Current Assets, Loans and Advances

Inventories :
Sundry Deblors

Other Current Assets
Loans and Advances

Less:

Current Liabilities and Provisions

Current Liabilities
Provision for wealth tax

Net Current Assets

Miscellaneous Expenditure {io ithe extent not written off/adjusted)

Preliminary expenses
Profit & Loss Account

For Notes forming part of the Accounts see schedule 'QF

As per our attached report of even date

FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA
Chartered Accountants

G.C.SHAREDALAL
Partner

Place: Bombay
Dated: 26ih September, 1991

- BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31st MARCH, 1991

SCHEDULE  31istMarch

L.H. KHILNANI
Secretary

Place: Bombay

31st March
1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
A 90,00,000 80,00,000
B 2,39,60,699 -
3,29.60,699 80,00,000
C 3,71,15,585 -
D 1,00,00,000 2,63,75,337
4,71,15,5986 2,63,75,337
- 8,00,76,294 3,53,75,337
E R
2,91,16,059 1,79,62,000
12,02,100 28,175
2,79,13,959 1,79,33,825
1,19,24,017 40,00,000
- 11,85,686
3,98,37,976 2,31,19,511
F 78,700 42,100
G 11,40,86,083 1,00,94,238
H 1,73,55,309 27,396
i 40,90,945 39,48,120
J 2,69,37,715 18,568,011
16,24,70,052 1,69,27,774
K 12,23,00,434 41,94,360
10,000 -
12,23,10,434 41,994,360
4,01,59,618 1,17,33,414
- 48,110
- 432 202
8,00,76,294 3,53,75,337
C.V. MARIWALA
Chairman

H.C.MARIWALA
Director

Dated: 23rd September, 1991,
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st March, 1991
31st March 31st March
SCHEDULE 1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
INCOME:
Sales P 1,05,83,31,748 3,59,839
Other Income L 14,13,381 4,688
' 1,05,97,45129 364,527
EXPENDITURE:
Cost of Materials Consumed M 67,41,89,155 3,569,989
Manutacturing and Other Expenses N 32,61,71,042 1,565,793
Interest i 0] 1,26,60,246 2,652,772
Depreciation 11,78,925 28,175
Preliminary Expenses wrilten off _ ) 1,42,860 -
1,01,43,42,228 7,96,729
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 4,54,02,901 (4,32,202) '
Less: Provision for Taxation 2,10,10,000 -
PROFITALOSS) AFTER TAXATION 2,43,92,901 (4,32,202)
Add, Balance brought forward (4,32,202) -
Balance carried forward 2,39,60,699 (4,32,202)
For Notes forming part of the Accounts see schedule 'Q°
As per our attached report of even date
FOR DALAL DESAI & KUMANA C.V. MARIWALA
Chartered Accouniants Chairman
G.C.SHAREDALAL L.H, KHILNAN! H.C. MARIWALA
Partner Secretary Director
Place: Bombay Place: Bombay
Dated: 26th September, 1991 Dated: 23rd September, 1991.
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SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE ‘A’ * 31ist March 31st March
SHARE CAPITAL 1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
Autharised:
8,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 90,00,000 90,00,000
10,000 14% Cumulative Redeamable Preference 10,00,000 10,00,000
Shares of Rs. 100/- each
1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and paid up:
*9,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 90,00,000 _90,00,000 ‘
*The enlire paid up capital of the Company held by The Bombay Qil
Industries Limited as an the date of ihe balance sheet, has since
been transferred by it to its other subsidiary companies,
31stMarch 31st March
SCHEDULE ‘B’ 1991 1990
RESERVES & SURPLUS Rs. Rs.
Profit and Loss Account 2,39,60,699 -
2,39,60,699 -
31st March 31st March
SCHEDULE ‘'C’ 1991 1990
SECURED LOANS Rs. Rs.
Cash Credits from banks secured by Hypothecation of stock in trade
and other tangible movable asssts of the Company, wherever
situated, and are also guaranteed by the Directors of the Company. 3,71,15,595 -
3,71,15,595 -
31st March 3tst March
SCHEDULE ‘¥ 1991 1990
UNSECURED LLOANS Rs. Rs.
From a Company towards part of purchase 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
consideration, secured by a Bank Guarantes.
{Payable within a year Rs. 1,00,00,000/-
Previous Year Rs. Nil} ,
Holding Company - 1,63,75,337
{Includes interest accrued {net} Rs. Nit {(Previous year Rs. 3,64,560/-)
1,00,00,000 2,63,75,337
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
&
s i
SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS ;’
P
SCHEDULE ‘P’ 31st March 31stMarch |
1991 1990 i
INVESTMENTS (At Cost) Rs. Rs. )
In Government Securilies I
National Savings Certificates ‘
{Deposited with Government & !
Public Bodies) 78,700 42100 J
78,700 42,100 L
|
dist March 31stMarch !
SCHEDULE ‘G’ 1991 1990 :
INVENTORIES Rs. Rs.
{As per Inventories valued and certified
by the managemeni) , o
Raw Materials (at cost) 2,75,71,322 - 60,43,441
Packing Materials (at cost) 1,30,80,724 37,70,548 ]
Stores, Spares & Chemicals {at cost) 38,97,808 - ;
Work-in-Process {at cost) 34,14,418 - i
Finished Products (at lower of cost or net realisable value) 6,21,21,793 . 2,80,249 l
By Products (at net realisable value) 40,00,018 - ]l
11,40,86,083 1,00,94,238 ""f{
i
o
N ;
_ 31st March 31st March |
SCHEDULE ‘H’ 1991 1990
SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured-considered good) Rs. Rs. ‘
Over Six months 44,779 -
Others 1,73,10,530 27,396
1,73,55,309 27,396
31st March 31ist March
SCHEDULE P 1991 1990 .
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Rs. Rs.
Cash on hand 2,80,695 4,740
Cheques on hand - 1,14,595 :
Balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Fixed Deposits 41,000 -
In Margin Account (Against Letters of Credit & Bank Guaraniees) 34,32,245 31,33,750
In Current Account 2,48,526 6,895,044 -
37,21,771 38,28,794
Interest accrued on Invesiments 10,811 -
Interest accrued — Others 77,668 -
40,90,945 39,48,129
it

14
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE 31st March 31st March
LOANS AND ADVANCES 1991 1990
(Unsecured — considered good) Rs. " Rs.
’ Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received ' 1,92,44,614 } 6,28,306
Advance Tax (Net) ' ‘ ‘ ' 40,00,000 -
-| Deposit with Public Bodies and Others 36,87,250 12,289,705
Balance with Gentral Excise Authorities 5,851 - _
2,69,37,715 18,58,011
S , ~31stMarch ~ . 3istMarch -
SCHEDULE ‘K’ 1991 1990
CURRENT LIABILITIES Rs. Rs.
Sundry Creditors 9,41,92,350 33,59,239
Holding Company 1,05,74,326 7,34,591
Advances from Cuslomess 5,92 500 -
Other Liabilities 45,85,715 1,00,530
Security Deposits 1,34,25,543 L s
o ‘ ©12,23,00,434 ©  41,94,360
SCHEDULE °L 31stMarch 31stMarch
1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
OTHER INCOME S
fncome from Investments - 10,811 -
interest from Banks & Others {Gross)
{Tax Deducted at Source Rs, Nil.) 3,42,464 -
Miscellaneous Income 10,60,106 4,688
(Refer Note 7 of Schedule’'Q') - 14,13,381 - 4,688
SCHEDULE ‘MW 31st March 31st March
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 1991 1090
RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED: Rs. fs.
Opening Stock 60,43,441 -
Add . Purchases 58,81,16,805 ‘ 60,43,441
Less: Closing Stock _2,75,71,322 60,43,441
56,65,88,924 -
PURCHASE FOR RESALE '17,68,56,211 6,40,238
Add: OPENING STOCK
Work-in-Process - -
Finished Products 2,80,249
2,80,249
Less; CLOSING STOCK:
Work-in-Process 34,14,418 -
Finished Products 6,61,21,811 2,80,249
6,95,36,229 2,80,249

67,41,89,155 3,569,989
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SCHEDULE ‘N’

MANUFACTURING AND OTHER EXPENSES
Employee Cost:

Sa1aries; Wages and Bonusg

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds
Workmen and Stalf Wellare Expenses

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS
3ist March 31stMarch
1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
1,63,07,155 -
13,71,520 -

2,01,14,737

Processing Charges 1,18,78,712 -
Excise Duty 1,23,759 -
Stores, Spares & Chemicals Gonsumed 38,29,899 -
Packing Materials Consumed 14,70,48,630 .
Power, Fuel and Water 78,60,253 -
Rent and Storage Charges 61,67,836 15,375
_Repairs: Buildings 1,90,714 -
Machinery 6,35,318 -
Others 12,68,794 2442
20,94,826 2,442
Freight and Forwarding Charges 2,91,09,126 -
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 4,89,77,621% 31,250
Rates and Taxes 71,659 7,621
-| Sales Tax 70,16,114 -
Royaity 95,290,878 -
Traveliing, Conveyance & Vehicle Expenses 61,09,600 -
Bank Charges 1,16,01,978 10,801
Insurance 7,86,714 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,38,49,700 88,304
{Ref. Note 6 of Schedule ‘Q') 32,61,71,042 1,55,793
SCHEDULE ‘O’ 31st March 31st March
INTEREST 1991 1990
Hs. Hs.
On Fixed Loans 6,45,835 -
Others 1,20,14,411 2,502,772
4,26,60,246

2,52,772
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SCHEDULE 'P 31st March 31st March
B) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 1991 - 1980
Quantity Value Quantity Value
M.T. As. MT. Rs.
Oil seeds 21604.6 36,49,47,996 - -
Raw oils £591.6 19,12,12,240 - -
Others 1,04,28,688 - -
56,65,88,924 -
31st March 31st March
©) VALUE OF IMPORTED AND 1991 1990
INDIGENOUS MATERIALS CONSUMED ‘
% Value % Vaiue
Rs. Rs.
Stores, spares and chemicals
Imported 37.22% 6,82,861 - -
Indigenous 62.78% 11,51,713 - -
100.00 18,34,574 o -
31st March 31st March
D) VALUE OF IMPORTS ON C...LF.BASIS 1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
Stores, spares and chericals 3,28,867 -
Capital Goods _1,35,136 -
4,64,003 -
E) EXPENDITUREIN EQREIGN CURRENCY 31st March 31siMarch
1991 1990
Rs. Rs.
Packing Materials 1,29,22.272 -
Others 7,574 -
1,29,29,846 -
F) EARNINGS IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE 3ist March -31st March
1991 1980
Rs. Rs.
F.0.B. Value of Exporls 12,25,805 -
12,25,805
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MARICO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS -

SCHEDULE ‘@’
NOTES:

1. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of: ,
i) lLetters of Credit opened and outstanding Rs. 36,43,600 (Previous year Rs. Nil}
i} Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts Rs. 2,00,000 (Previous year Rs. Nilj

2. -Advances recoverable in cash or in kind includes loans to officers of the Company Rs. 1,95,955/- (Previous year Rs. Nil).
Maximum debil balance at any time during the year Rs. 2,22,310/- (Previous year Rs. Nil}.

3. Eslimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Rs. 40,00,741 (Previous year
Rs. Nii)

4. AsumofRs.9,02,274 (Previous year Rs. Nif) representing acturial liability as on 3tst March 1990 in respact of employess
transferred from The Bombay Oil Industries Limited, is held by the rustees of The Bombay Ol Industries Employees’ Graluily
Fund. Pending transfer to Marico Industries Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund and approval of the relevant authority, this
amount has been laken into account for determining the acturial liabifity for the year.

5. The company has commenced commercial production of refined oils atits Jalgaon plant from 30th October, 1990. All direct
expenditure incurred inerection and commissioning the plant are capitalised under the head Building and Plant Machinery
respectively. Allindirect expenditure incurred in connectionwith the project are capitalised and allocated to all the fixed assets
on the basis of the original cost on 1st April, 1990.

6.  Miscellaneous expenses include Commission on sales Rs. 21 ,211 (Previous year Rs. Nil) Donations Rs. 10,826 {Previous
year Rs. Nil}, Cash Discount Rs. 99,987 {Previous year Rs. Nil) and Audit Fees Rs. 80,000 {Previous year Hs. 5,000).

7. Miseellaneous income includes profit on sale of assets Rs. 3,500 (Previous year Rs. Nil).

In the absence of any manufacturing activity in the previous year, the figures of the current yearare notdirectly comparable
with that of the previous year. '

8. Previous year's figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary.

Signatures to Schedules 'A' to 'QF annexed.

C.V. MARIWALA

Chairman

Place: Bombay L.H, KHILNAN{ ‘ H.C. MARIWALA
Daled: 23rd September, 1991, Secretary Direcior
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